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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Commission file number 1-11071

UGI CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Pennsylvania 23-2668356
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
Incorporation or Organization)
460 North Gulph Road, King of Prussia, PA 19406
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)
(610) 337-7000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) alfie Act:

Name of each Exchange
Title of Each Class on Which Registered

Common Stock, without par value New York Stéoichange, Inc.
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) die Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%edBéturities Act. YeRI No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by SectiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirefilécsuch reports), and (2) has been sul
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayssM No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥alb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRile 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files).

YesM NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélgrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkKS(8229.405 of this chapter) is not contai
herein, and will not be contained, to the bestegfistrants knowledge, in definitive proxy or information &ments incorporated by refere
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthastForm 10-K.O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated filer, or a smaller repori
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiled,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingpmpany” in Rule 122 of the Exchancg
Act.

Large accelerated fil&d Accelerated fileEd Non-accelerated filddl Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢8s0 No ™
The aggregate market value of UGI Corporation Com®itock held by non-affiliates of the registrantMarch 31, 2012 was $3,057,059,971.
At November 13, 2012, there were 112,704,763 stafrel&s| Corporation Common Stock issued and outtitan

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Mepbf Shareholders to be held on January 24, 2Z0&3incorporated by reference i
Part 11l of this Form 10-K.
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Information contained in this Annual Report on FdriK may contain forwartboking statements within the meaning of SectioA
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, andi@e@tLE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934am&nded (the “Exchange Act'$uct
statements use forward-looking words such as “belie'plan,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,"expect,” “may,” “will,” or other simila
words. These statements discuss plans, strategiests or developments that we expect or anticipdt®r may occur in the future.

A forward-looking statement may include a statemefnthe assumptions or bases underlying the ford@oking statement. W
believe that we have chosen these assumptionsses lda good faith and that they are reasonable.ederywe caution you that actual res
almost always vary from assumed facts or bases,tladlifferences between actual results and assdaets or bases can be mate
depending on the circumstances. When considerirnvgafaiooking statements, you should keep in mind thk¥dhg important factors whic
could affect our future results and could causese¢heesults to differ materially from those exprésseour forwardlooking statements: (
adverse weather conditions resulting in reducedashein(2) cost volatility and availability of propamand other liquefied petroleum gases
electricity, and natural gas and the capacity amgport product to our customers; (3) changes medtic and foreign laws and regulatic
including safety, tax, consumer protection and antiag matters; (4) inability to timely recover t®shrough utility rate proceedings; (5)
impact of pending and future legal proceedings;c@@petitive pressures from the same and altematinergy sources; (7) failure to acq
new customers and retain current customers themstycing or limiting any increase in revenues; li@ility for environmental claims; (!
increased customer conservation measures dueticehigrgy prices and improvements in energy effiyieand technology resulting in redu
demand; (10) adverse labor relations; (11) largeacuer, counterparty or supplier defaults; (12biligy in excess of insurance coverage
personal injury and property damage arising frompl@sions and other catastrophic events, includctg af terrorism, resulting from operat
hazards and risks incidental to generating andiloliging electricity and transporting, storing addtributing natural gas and liquef
petroleum gases; (13) political, regulatory andneeoic conditions in the United States and in fanetguntries, including foreign currer
exchange rate fluctuations, particularly the e\fiet) capital market conditions, including reducedess to capital markets and interest
fluctuations; (15) changes in commodity market g@gicesulting in significantly higher cash collateemjuirements; (16) reduced distributi
from subsidiaries; (17) the timing of developmetitMarcellus Shale gas production; (18) the timingd ssuccess of our acquisitio
commercial initiatives and investments to grow businesses; and (19) our ability to successfullggrate acquired businesses and acl
anticipated synergies.

These factors are not necessarily all of the ingoartactors that could cause actual results tediffaterially from those expresse:
any of our forwardeoking statements. Other unknown or unpredictédttors could also have material adverse effectbuture results. W
undertake no obligation to update publicly any farddooking statement whether as a result of new in&diom or future events except
required by the federal securities laws.

PART I

ITEMS 1. AND 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

UGI Corporation (the “Company’is a holding company that, through subsidiariesirithutes, stores, transports and markets e
products and related services. We are a domedliénéernational retail distributor of propane andane (which are liquefied petroleum g
(“LPG™); a provider of natural gas and electric service ugtoregulated local distribution utilities; a gemter of electricity; a region
marketer of energy commodities; an owner and manafgmidstream assets; and a regional provideregiting, ventilation, air conditionir
refrigeration and electrical contracting servid@ar subsidiaries and affiliates operate principailyhe following six business segments:

* AmeriGas Propar

* International PropaneAntarga:

« International PropaneHaga & Othe
« Energy Service

* Electric Generatic

« Gas Utility

The AmeriGas Propane segment consists of the peoghiatribution business of AmeriGas Partners, (‘/AmeriGas
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Partners”), which is the nation's largest retailgame distributor, and Heritage Operating, L.P.(itHP” and, together with AmeriGas Partn
the “Partnership”). The Partnership's sole genpaatner is our subsidiary, AmeriGas Propane, IhWamgriGas Propane” or theGenere
Partner”). The common units of AmeriGas Partners represeritddrpartner interests in a Delaware limited paghg and they trade on 1
New York Stock Exchange under the sym*APU.” We have an effective 26% ownership interest inRhgnership; Energy Transfer Partn
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“ETPHgas an effective 32% ownership interest in therRRaship and the remaining interest is pub
held. See Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Statésnen

The International PropaneAntargaz segment consists of the LPG distributiasifess of our wholly owned subsidiary Antarge
French société anonyme, and our LPG distributiosinmsses in the Benelux countries (consisting olgiBm, the Netherlands, a
Luxembourg) (collectively, “Antargaz”)Antargaz is one of the largest retail distributof4. PG in France and the Netherlands and the I¢
retail distributor of LPG in Belgium and Luxembourg

The International Propandlaga & Other segment consists of the LPG distidioubusinesses of (i) Flaga GmbH, an Austrian ke
liability company, and its subsidiaries (collective “Flaga”), (i) AvantiGas Limited, a United Kingdom private lirad compan
(“AvantiGas”), and (iii) ChinaGas Partners, L.P.najority-owned Delaware limited partnership. Flaga is thigdat retail LPG distributor
Austria and Denmark and one of the largest in thec@ Republic, Hungary, and Slovakia. Flaga alstridutes LPG in Finland, Norwe
Poland, Romania, Sweden and Switzerland. Avanti§as LPG distributor in the United Kingdom. Chireg3Partners is an LPG distributo
the Nantong region of China.

The Energy Services segment consists of enezigyed businesses conducted by our wholly ownédidiary, UGI Energy Service
Inc. (“Energy Services”), and its subsidiaries. 3dhéusinesses include (i) energy marketing in tice Mlantic region of the United States,
operating and owning a natural gas liquefactiooragte and vaporization facility and propame-mixing assets, (iii) managing natural
pipeline and storage contracts, and (iv) developawning and operating pipelines, gathering infiatuire and gas storage facilities in
Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania.

The Electric Generation segment consists of saldrlandfill gas electric generation facilities ierfhsylvania conducted by Ene
Services' wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Developm&dmpany (“UGID”). The Energy Services and Electric Generation segman
collectively referred to as “Midstream & Marketiig.

The Gas Utility segment (“Gas Utility'gonsists of the regulated natural gas distribubasinesses of our subsidiary, UGI Utilit
Inc. (“UGI Utilities”), and UGI Utilities' subsidiges, UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. (“PNG”) and UGInGeal Penn Gas, Inc. (“CPG"zas
Utility serves nearly 600,000 customers in eassrth central Pennsylvania and several hundred cessoim portions of one Maryland cour
UGI Utilities' natural gas distribution utility ieferred to as “UGI Gas'Gas Utility is regulated by the Pennsylvania Publitity Commissiot
(“PUC”) and, with respect to its several hundredtomers in Maryland, the Maryland Public Servicen@ussion.

In addition to the segments set forth herein, UGpOration also owns and operates (i) a regulakectree distribution business
Pennsylvania through UGI Utilities (“Electric Uti") and (ii) a heating, ventilation, agenditioning, refrigeration and electrical contiag
service business in the Mid-Atlantic region of theited States through UGI HVAC Enterprises, In¢i\VAC/R”).

Business Strateg

Our business strategy is to grow the Company bydiog on our core competencies of distributingristy transporting and marketi
energy products and services. We are utilizing cane competencies from our existing businesses aamdnational scope, internatio
experience, extensive asset base and access tmeustto accelerate both internal growth and graWwtbugh acquisitions in our existi
businesses, as well as in related and complemehtesiypesses. During Fiscal 2012, we completed abeurof transactions in pursuit of t
strategy and moved forward on a number of largéerimally generated capital projects, including asfructure projects to support
development of natural gas in the Marcellus Shedgon of Pennsylvania. A few of these transactams projects are described below.

In early Fiscal 2012, we purchased LPG distributimrsinesses in the United Kingdom, Belgium, thehldands, Luxembour
Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden. See “ManagémBiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditammd Results of Operationsihc
Note 4 to Consolidated Financial Stateme

In early Fiscal 2012, Energy Services completecithaging project to transport locally produced ratgas from a pipeline in t
Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania to an itd¢espipeline. During Fiscal 2012, Energy Servilss completed the expansion of its na
gas liquefaction, storage and vaporization facilitffemple, Pennsylvania. In addition, in June 2012
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Energy Services restarted a unit at its naturalfgeled generating station, Hunlock Station, whietd lbeen shut down for repairs due ti
accident in late July 2011 and, in early Novemh#tr12 restarted another unit at Hunlock Station Wwiiiad suffered flood damage in the fo
quarter of Fiscal 2011.

On January 12, 2012, AmeriGas Partners completeddhuisition of the subsidiaries of ETP that ofet&TP's propane distributi
business (“Heritage Propane®he acquired business conducted its propane opesain 41 states through HOLP and Titan Propane.
Effective August 1, 2012, Titan Propane LLC mergeith and into AmeriGas Propane, L.P. ("AmeriGas OLMAccording to LPGas
Magazine rankings published on February 1, 2012jt&tge Propane was the third largest retail propdis&ibutor in the United Stat:
delivering over 500 million gallons to more thareamillion retail propane customers in 2011. Skkafiagement's Discussion and Analysi
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” &lude 4 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Corporate Information

UGI Corporation was incorporated in Pennsylvania981. UGI Corporation is not subject to regulatiynthe PUC. UGI Corporatit
is a “holding company” under the Public Utility Hihg Company Act of 2005 (“PUHCA 2005"RUHCA 2005 and the implementi
regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Comimis (“FERC”) give FERC access to certain holding company bookkracords ar
impose certain accounting, recdtdeping, and reporting requirements on holding caomgs. PUHCA 2005 also provides state u
regulatory commissions with access to holding camyg@oks and records in certain circumstances.uauaigo a waiver granted in accorde
with FERC's regulations on the basis of UGI Corfiores status as a singsate holding company system, UGI Corporation issubject t
certain of the accounting, record-keeping, and ntagpprequirements prescribed by FERC's regulations

Our executive offices are located at 460 North GURoad, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406, andelaphone number is (6]
337-7000. In this report, the terms Company” andGtJ as well as the terms “our,” “we,” and “itsdre sometimes used as abbrevi
references to UGI Corporation or, collectively, UGdrporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.il8ity, the terms “AmeriGas Partnerahc
the “Partnership’are sometimes used as abbreviated references toi@asePartners, L.P. or, collectively, AmeriGastRars, L.P. and i
subsidiaries and the term “UGI Utilitie$s sometimes used as an abbreviated reference taJtiliies, Inc. or, collectively, UGI Utilities|nc.
and its subsidiaries. The terms “Fiscal 2012” aRis¢al 2011 refer to the fiscal years ended September 30, 20tPSeptember 30, 20
respectively.

The Company's corporate website can be found at wgieorp.com. Information on our website is noeimded to be incorporat
into this report. The Company makes available &eeharge at this website (under the “Investor Refes and Corporate Governanc8EC
Filings” caption) copies of its reports filed or furnishadguant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchangg ixcluding its Annual Reports
Form 10-K, its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q atsdGurrent Reports on Formk3-The Company's Principles of Corporate Govern;
Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer adenior Financial Officers, Code of Business Conduntt Ethics for Directors, Officers ¢
Employees, and charters of the Corporate Governaiegdit and Compensation and Management Developi@entmittees of the Board
Directors are also available on the Company's websinder the caption “Investor Relations and Crafgo Governance €orporat
Governance.All of these documents are also available freeh@rge by writing to Hugh J. Gallagher, Treasurdgl Corporation, P.O. Bc
858, Valley Forge, PA 19482.

AMERIGAS PROPANE
Products, Services and Marketir

Our domestic propane distribution business is cotedlithrough AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas Propamesigonsible for managi
the Partnership. The Partnership serves approxiynat8 million customers in all 50 states from appmately 2,100 propane distributi
locations. In addition to distributing propane, tRartnership also sells, installs and services gwepappliances, including heating systt
Typically, the Partnership's locations are in sbluarand rural areas where natural gas is not yeaddilable. Our district offices genere
consist of a business office, appliance showrooarghouse, and service facilities, with one or mi@®00 to 30,000 gallon storage tank:
the premises. As part of its overall transportatom distribution infrastructure, the Partnershijgrates as an interstate carrier in 48 <
throughout the continental United States. It i® dilsensed as a carrier in the Canadian ProvinE@ntario, British Columbia and Quebec.

The Partnership sells propane primarily to residéntommercial/industrial, motor fuel, agriculturand wholesale customers. ~
Partnership distributed approximately 1.1 billiosllgns of propane in Fiscal 2012. Approximately 9d¢4¢he Partnership's Fiscal 2012 s
(based on gallons sold) were to retail accountsagmiloximately 9% were to wholesale customers.sSaleesidential customers in Fiscal 2
represented approximately 40% of retail gallonsd;ssbmmercial/industrial customers 34%; motor foaktomers 14%; and agricultt
customers 7%. Transport gallons, which are largéesdeliveries to retail
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customers other than residential, accounted foro%iscal 2012 retail gallons. No single customepresents, or is anticipated to repre:
more than 5% of the Partnership's consolidatedes®

The Partnership continues to expand its AmeriGdm@sr Exchange (“ACE”program. At September 30, 2012, ACE cylinders
available at over 44,600 retail locations throughdne United States. Sales of our ACE cylinders rétailers are included
commercial/industrial sales. The ACE program ermbtnsumers to purchase propane cylinders or egehidueir empty propane cylinder:
various retail locations such as home centerssgdi®ns, mass merchandisers and grocery and ciemeenstores. We also supply retailers:
large propane tanks to enable retailers to refierustomers' propane cylinders directly at thellssta location.

Residential customers use propane primarily for éndmating, water heating and cooking purposes. Ganaiat users, which inclus
hotels, restaurants, churches, warehouses and s&iggs, generally use propane for the same pegpas residential customers. Indus
customers use propane to fire furnaces, as a gugs and in other process applications. Othersinidii customers are largeale heatin
accounts and local gas utility customers who uspame as a supplemental fuel to meet peak loadedahility requirements. As a motor ft
propane is burned in internal combustion enginas plower over-theead vehicles, forklifts and stationary enginesriggtural uses incluc
tobacco curing, chicken brooding, and crop dryingts wholesale operations, the Partnership ppiglty sells propane to large industrial end
users and other propane distributors.

Retail deliveries of propane are usually made ttamers by means of bobtail and rack trucks. Pregampumped from the bobt
truck, which generally holds 2,400 to 3,000 gallofipropane, into a stationary storage tank orctrstomer's premises. The Partnership
most of these storage tanks and leases them toug®mers. The capacity of these tanks ranges fmpproximately 120 gallons
approximately 1,200 gallons. The Partnership aiivers propane in portable cylinders, includingEA€ylinders. Some of these deliveries
made to the customer's location, where empty cglimdre either picked up or replenished in place.

Propane Supply and Storac

The Partnership has over 250 domestic and intemealtisources of supply, including the spot markeipplies of propane from t
Partnership's sources historically have been neadiilable. During Fiscal 2012, approximately 96%the Partnership's propane supply
purchased under supply agreements with terms of3lytears. The availability of propane supply ipetaent upon, among other things,
severity of winter weather, the price and availapibf competing fuels such as natural gas andemitl and the amount and availability
imported supply. Although no assurance can be gitiah supplies of propane will be readily availabiethe future, management curre
expects to be able to secure adequate suppliesgdfiscal year 2013. If supply from major sourcesravinterrupted, however, the cos
procuring replacement supplies and transportingatsupplies from alternative locations might beemally higher and, at least on a shtatrr
basis, margins could be adversely affected. Erigerptroducts Partners, L.P. and Targa Midstreamic®srLP supplied approximately 36%
the Partnership's Fiscal 2012 propane supply. Merasingle supplier provided more than 10% of thetrfership's total propane supply
Fiscal 2012. In certain areas, however, a singbplger provides more than 50% of the Partnershggsiirements. Disruptions in supply in th
areas could also have an adverse impact on thedpPsiitp's margins.

The Partnership's supply contracts typically previdr pricing based upon (i) index formulas usihg turrent prices established
major storage point such as Mont Belvieu, TexaGamway, Kansas, or (ii) posted prices at the tihdelivery. In addition, some agreeme
provide maximum and minimum seasonal purchase welgumdelines. The percentage of contract purchemes,the amount of supj
contracted for at fixed prices, will vary from yetar year as determined by the General Partner.Prenership uses a number of inter:
pipelines, as well as railroad tank cars, delivengks and barges, to transport propane from sewgptd storage and distribution facilities. -
Partnership stores propane at various storagétiesiand terminals located in strategic areassactioe United States.

Because the Partnership's profitability is sensitiv changes in wholesale propane costs, the Psiitpegenerally seeks to pass
increases in the cost of propane to customers.eTisemo assurance, however, that the Partnershiigiwiys be able to pass on product
increases fully, particularly when product coste riapidly. Product cost increases can be triggeyeperiods of severe cold weather, su
interruptions, increases in the prices of base codities such as crude oil and natural gas, or athéareseen events. The General Partne
adopted supply acquisition and product cost risknaggeament practices to reduce the effect of vdhatdin selling prices. These practi
currently include the use of summer storage, fodwamrchases and derivative commodity instrumenish sis options and propane price sw
See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fiaa@mondition and Results of Operations - MarketkRDisclosures.”

The following graph shows the average prices opane on the propane spot market during the laitcalfyears at Mont Belvie
Texas, a major storage area.
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Average Propane Spot Market Prices
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General Industry Information

Propane is separated from crude oil during thenirgdi process and also extracted from natural gaslavellhead gas at process
plants. Propane is normally transported and storedliquid state under moderate pressure or mfaigon for economy and ease of handlir
shipping and distribution. When the pressure isastd or the temperature is increased, it is usabdeflammable gas. Propane is colorles:
odorless; an odorant is added to allow for its cteda. Propane is considered a clean alternatieédader the Clean Air Act Amendments
1990, producing negligible amounts of pollutantewlproperly consumed.

Competition

Propane competes with other sources of energy, safnvehich are less costly for equivalent energyuealPropane distributc
compete for customers with suppliers of electriditiel oil and natural gas, principally on the Isasi price, service, availability and portabil
Electricity is a major competitor of propane andausrently more expensive than propane. Fuel alss a major competitor of propane ar
comparable in price to propane. Furnaces and aymelfathat burn propane will not operate on fuel aid vice versa, and, therefore
conversion from one fuel to the other requiresittstallation of new equipment. Propane serves aaltemnative to natural gas in rural i
suburban areas where natural gas is unavailakpertability of product is required. Natural gaggsnerally a less expensive source of er
than propane, although in areas where natural gavailable, propane is used for certain indusaiad commercial applications and ¢
standby fuel during interruptions in natural gawiee. The gradual expansion of the nation's nhgma distribution systems has resulted ir

availability of natural gas in some areas that jmesly depended upon propane. However, naturapgesdines are not present in many reg
of the country where propane is sold for heating) @oking purposes.

For motor fuel customers, propane competes witbliees diesel fuel, electric batteries, fuel celsd, in certain applications, liquef
natural gas and compressed natural gas. Wholesaaune distribution is a highly competitive, low ngia business. Propane sales to ¢

retail distributors and large-volume, direct-shipméndustrial endisers are price sensitive and frequently involveompetitive biddin
process.

Retail propane industry volumes have been slowblinieag for several years and it is anticipatedttha or modest growth in to
demand is foreseen in the next several years. fdrerehe Partnership's ability to grow within thelustry is dependent on its ability to acq
other retail distributors and to achieve internadvgth, which includes expansion of the ACE progrand the National Accounts progr
(through which the Partnership encourages nhodtion propane users to enter into a supply ageeé with it rather than with ma

suppliers), as well as the success of its salegvarileting programs designed to attract and retagtomers. The failure of the Partnershi
retain and grow its customer base would have arradweffect
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on its long-term results.

The domestic propane retail distribution businesiighly competitive. The Partnership competeshia business with other lar
propane marketers, including other fe#lrvice marketers, and thousands of small indeperafeerators. Some rural electric cooperatives
fuel oil distributors have expanded their businegseinclude propane distribution and the Partriprebmpetes with them as well. The ab
to compete effectively depends on providing higlaliy customer service, maintaining competitiveaileprices and controlling operati
expenses. The Partnership also offers customeisugapayment and service options, including guaeahtprice programs, fixed pr
arrangements and pricing arrangements based oislpedblpropane prices at specified terminals.

In Fiscal 2012, the Partnership's retail proparesstotaled over 1 billion gallons. Based on thesmecent annual survey by
American Petroleum Institute, 2010 domestic repmdpane sales (annual sales for other than chemamd) in the United States tot¢
approximately 8.7 billion gallons. Based on GAS magazine rankings, 2010 sales volume of thdaegest propane companies (incluc
AmeriGas Partners) represented approximately 418oofestic retail sales.

Properties
As of September 30, 2012, the Partnership ownedoappately 90% of its more than 900 district officekaroughout the country. T

transportation of propane requires specializedpgent. The trucks and railroad tank cars utilizedtiiis purpose carry specialized steel t:
that maintain the propane in a liquefied stateoASeptember 30, 2012, the Partnership operatexthagdortation fleet with the following asse

Approximate Quantity & Equipment Type % Owned % Leased
2,200 Trailers 91% 9%
400 Tractors 38% 62%
350 Railroad tank cars 4% 96%
4,600 Bobtail trucks 65% 35%
300 Rack trucks 29% 71%
4,800 Service and delivery trucks 80% 20%

Other assets owned at September 30, 2012 inclysjedydmately 1.5 million stationary storage tankghvtypical capacities of mo
than 120 gallons and approximately 4.6 million pble propane cylinders with typical capacities o6 120 gallons.

Trade Names, Trade and Service Marks

The Partnership markets propane principally under‘AmeriGas®”, “America's Propane Company®”, “Hage Propane®”, Titan
Propane” and “Relationships Matter&ade names and related service marks. The Pdrpeatso markets propane under other various
names throughout the United States. UGI owns, tjrec indirectly, all the right, title and interem the “AmeriGas’name and related tra
and service marks. The General Partner owns dit,rigle and interest in the “America’'s Propanarpany”trade name and related sen
marks. The Partnership has an exclusive (exceptigerby UGI, AmeriGas, Inc., AmeriGas Gas Polskazsmo. and the General Partn
royalty-free license to use these trade names and relateates marks. UGI and the General Partner each Haveption to terminate
respective license agreement (on 12 months priticendn the case of UGI), without penalty, if theer@@ral Partner is removed as ger
partner of the Partnership other than for caus¢éhdfGeneral Partner ceases to serve as the geaetakr of the Partnership for cause,
General Partner has the option to terminate ienBe agreement upon payment of a fee to UGI equdlet fair market value of the licen:
trade names. UGI has a similar termination optlomywever, UGI must provide 12 months prior noticeaddition to paying the fee to
General Partner.

Seasonality

Because many customers use propane for heatingpgmspthe Partnership's retail sales volume isosahsDuring Fiscal 201
approximately 55% to 60% of the Partnership's kedalies volume occurred, and substantially allhef Partnership's operating income
earned, during the peak heating season from Octbbaugh March. The record warm temperatures egpeed during the Fiscal 2012 hea
season and the timing of the acquisition of Heat&gyopane impacted the Partnership's Fiscal 2aa# sales volumes. For comparison
Fiscal 2011, approximately 65% to 70% of the Pastmie's retail sales volume occurred in the sam@geAs a result of this seasonality, s
are typically higher in the Partnership's first aedond fiscal quarters (October 1 through Margh Gash receipts are generally greatest di
the second and third fiscal quarters w
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hen customers pay for propane purchased duringititer heating season.

Sales volume for the Partnership traditionally fliades from year-tgear in response to variations in weather, pricesypetition
customer mix and other factors, such as conservafiorts and general economic conditions. Forrimiation on national weather statistics,
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinanCiahdition and Results of Operations.”

Government Regulation

The Partnership is subject to various federalestatl local environmental, safety and transporidéws and regulations governing
storage, distribution and transportation of propand the operation of bulk storage LPG terminalsese laws include, among others,
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Comepsite Environmental Response, Compensation anuilityaAct (“CERCLA”), the
Clean Air Act, the Occupational Safety and Healttt, Ahe Homeland Security Act of 2002, the Emergdrlanning and Community Right
Know Act, the Clean Water Act and comparable stsgutes. CERCLA imposes joint and several ligbith certain classes of pers
considered to have contributed to the releasereatbned release of a “hazardous substainte'the environment without regard to fault or
legality of the original conduct. Propane is nétaaardous substance within the meaning of fedadhhzost state environmental laws.

All states in which the Partnership operates halpted fire safety codes that regulate the stoaagedistribution of propane. In so
states these laws are administered by state agelacié in others they are administered on a muadié@wel. The Partnership conducts trair
programs to help ensure that its operations areompliance with applicable governmental regulatiohsth respect to general operatic
National Fire Protection Associatio“NFPA”) Pamphlets No. 54 and No. 58 and/or one or moreaobuws international codes (includ
international fire, building and fuel gas codedpbBsh rules and procedures governing the safdlimgnof propane, or comparable regulatit
which have been adopted by all states in whichRhgnership operates. Management believes thabdlieies and procedures currently
effect at all of its facilities for the handlingosage and distribution of propane are consistétit imdustry standards and are in complianc
all material respects with applicable environmertiablth and safety laws.

With respect to the transportation of propane bgkr the Partnership is subject to regulations pigated under federal legislatir
including the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Act dhd Homeland Security Act of 2002. Regulations urtese statutes cover the security
transportation of hazardous materials and are adtaird by the United States Department of Trariafion (“DOT”), Pipeline and Hazardo
Materials Safety Administration. The Natural GageBaAct of 1968 required the DOT to develop anfbere minimum safety regulations
the transportation of gases by pipeline. The D@ipsline safety regulations apply to, among othérgs, a propane gas system which sup
10 or more residential customers or 2 or more coroimecustomers from a single source and to a pregms system any portion of whic
located in a public place. The DOT's pipeline safegulations require operators of all gas systenmsovide operator qualification stande
and training and written instructions for employeesl third party contractors working on coveredepiges and facilities, establish writ
procedures to minimize the hazards resulting fr@® gjpeline emergencies, and conduct and keepd®odlinspections and testing. Opere
are subject to the Pipeline Safety Improvement @c2002, which, among other things, protects emgdsywho provide information to th
employers or to the federal government as to pipedafety from adverse employment actions.

There continues to be concern, both nationally emernationally, about climate change and the dbution of greenhouse g
(“GHG”) emissions, most notably carbon dioxide, to globatming. While some states have adopted laws andations regulating tf
emission of GHGs for some industry sectors, thereurrently no federal or regional legislation matirty the reduction of GHG emission:
the United States. Because propane is consideodehn alternative fuel under the federal CleanAdt Amendments of 1990, we anticip
that this will provide us with a competitive advagé over other sources of energy, such as fuanailcoal, if new climate change regulat
become effective.

Employees

The Partnership does not directly employ any persesponsible for managing or operating the Paimer The General Partt
provides these services and is reimbursed forifescdand indirect costs and expenses, includihg@inpensation and benefit costs.
September 30, 2012, the General Partner had appatedy 9,200 employees, including approximately pa@ttime, seasonal and tempor
employees, working on behalf of the Partnershipl diSo performs certain financial and administratservices for the General Partne
behalf of the Partnership and is reimbursed byPiuenership.

INTERNATIONAL PROPANE - ANTARGAZ

During Fiscal 2012, our International Proparmntargaz LPG distribution business was conductdéramce and the Benelux count
(consisting of Belgium, the Netherlands, and Luxeuorh). Antargaz also operates a natural gas martketi
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business in France and sold approximately 2.4 anillekatherms of natural gas during Fiscal 2012 Blnelux operations were acqu
during the first quarter of Fiscal 2012.

Products, Services and Marketir

During Fiscal 2012, Antargaz sold approximately 2&illion gallons of LPG in France and approximatéf/ million gallons of LPG i
the Benelux countries. Antargaz is one of the Istr¢®G distributors in France and the Netherlamikthae largest LPG distributor in Belgil
and Luxembourg. Antargaz' customer base consistesidential, commercial, agricultural and motoelfaustomer accounts that use LPC
space heating, cooking, water heating, processdrehtransportation. Antargaz sells LPG in cylisgdend in small, medium and large ta
Sales of LPG are also made to service stationgd¢omamodate vehicles that run on LPG. Antargaz 4408 in cylinders to approximate
17,000 retail outlets, such as supermarkets, iddally owned stores and gas stations. Supermasikes$ sepresented approximately 759
butane cylinder sales volume and approximately b4%ropane cylinder sales volume in Fiscal 2012 Saptember 30, 2012, Antargaz
approximately 223,000 bulk customers, approximateB00 natural gas customers and approximatelyn8l@n cylinders in circulatior
Approximately 63% of Antargaz' Fiscal 2012 salessétl on volumes) were cylinder and small bulk, 188t6lium bulk, 19% large bulk and :
to service stations for automobiles. Antargaz &lsgages in wholesale sales of LPG and providestlogstorage and other services to thirc
party LPG distributors. In addition, Antargaz ofesaa natural gas marketing business in Frances#maices both commercial and reside
customers. No single customer represents, or isigatied to represent, more than 5% of total reesrfor Antargaz.

Sales to small bulk customers represent the lagggghent of Antargaz' business in terms of voluesenue and total margin. Sn
bulk customers are primarily residential and srhaBiness users, such as restaurants, that use lait®/ rfor heating and cooking. Small b
customers also include municipalities, which us&LfBr heating certain sports facilities and swimgnpools, and the poultry industry for |
in chicken brooding.

Medium bulk customers use propane only, and comsanly of large residential developments such essing developmen
hospitals, municipalities and mediusized industrial enterprises, and poultry broodessge bulk customers include agricultural comps
and companies that use LPG in their industrial gsees.

The principal endisers of cylinders are residential customers wheo LWRG supplied in this form for domestic applicaiosuch
cooking and heating. Butane cylinders accountedafiproximately 54% of all LPG cylinders sold in &gk 2012, with propane cylinde
accounting for the remainder. Propane cylindersadse used to supply fuel for forklift trucks. Thearket demand for cylinders has b
declining, due primarily to customers gradually mfiag to other household energy sources for cookimgj heating, such as natural gas
electricity.

LPG Supply and Storag

Antargaz has an agreement with Totalgaz for thelgugf butane in France, with pricing based onrmé&tionally quoted market prici
Under this agreement, 80% of Antargaz' requireméamtdutane are guaranteed until September 201§uiRsments are fixed annually ¢
Antargaz can develop other sources of supply. FaraF2012, Antargaz purchased 100% of its buteqgeirements in France from Totalc
During Fiscal 2012, two suppliers accounted forssaitially all of Antargaz' propane supply for dperations in France. In the Bene
countries, Antargaz purchased 90% of its butane mogane requirements from TOTAL and STASCO dufiigcal 2012. Antargaz al
purchases propane on the international market anthe domestic market, under term agreements wittrriational oil and gas tradi
companies. In addition, purchases are made onpibiensarket from international oil and gas compaied to a lesser extent from dome
refineries, including those operated by Ineos asgbESAF.

Antargaz has three primary storage facilities irerafion that are located at deep sea harbor fasiliand 29 secondary stor
facilities. It also manages an extensive logistiod transportation network. Access to seaborndtfesiallows Antargaz to diversify its LF
supplies through imports. LPG stored in primaryage facilities is transported to smaller storaaglities by rail, sea and road. At seconc
storage facilities, LPG is filled into cylinders wucks equipped with tanks and then deliveredusiamers.

Competition and Seasonality

The LPG markets in France and the Benelux coundiiesnature, with modest declines in total demarsltd competition with oth
fuels and other energy sources, conservation andhhllenging economic climate. Sales volumes fieetad principally by the severity of t
weather and customer migration to alternative gnésgms, including natural gas and electricity. Bese Antargaz' profitability is sensitive
changes in wholesale LPG costs, Antargaz genesa#its to pass on increases in
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the cost of LPG to customers. There is no assurdrmeever, that Antargaz will always be able tospas product cost increases fully w
product costs rise rapidly. Product cost increas@sbe triggered by periods of severe cold weathgply interruptions, increases in the pr
of base commodities such as crude oil and natas| @r other unforeseen events. High LPG prices maswit in slower than expected gro
due to customer conservation and customers sed&fszgexpensive alternative energy sources. Frardged a significant portion of

electricity from nuclear power plants. Due to thelear power plants, as well as the regulationl@dtecity prices by the French governm
electricity prices in France are generally lesseagive than LPG. As a result, electricity has iasiegly become a more significant compe
to LPG in France than in other countries where perate. In addition, government policies and ineestthat favor alternative energy sou
can result in customers migrating to energy souotlesr than LPG in both France and the Benelux i@

In France, Antargaz competes in all of its prodoetrkets on a national level principally with threBG distribution companie
Totalgaz (owned by Total France), Butagaz (owne&bgiete des Petroles Shell) and Compagnie desi&®Retrole Primagaz (an indepen:
supplier owned by SHV Holding NV), as well as wétliegional competitor, Vitogaz. In recent yearsnpetition has increased as superma
affiliate with LPG distributors to offer their owbrands of cylinders and they are now competitor&rdrgaz. Antargaz has partnered with
supermarket chain in France in this market. If Agda is unsuccessful in expanding its servicesttterosupermarket chains, its market s
through supermarket sales may decline in FrancthdrBenelux countries, Antargaz competes in aitsoproduct markets on a national le
principally with Compagnie des Gaz de Petrole Pgaza as well as with several regional competittmsrecent years, competition |
increased in the Benelux countries as small congpsthave reduced their price offerings. In thehgdands, several LPG distributors o
their own brands of cylinders. Antargaz seeks tordase demand for its butane and propane cylintheoaigh marketing and prodi
innovations. Some of Antargaz' competitors areliaffis of its LPG suppliers. As a result, its cotitpes may obtain product at m¢
competitive prices.

Because many of Antargaz' customers use LPG fdingeaales volume is affected principally by tleveyity of the temperatur
during the heating season months and traditiotfileitfuate from year-tgrear in response to variations in weather, pricesather factors, su
as conservation efforts and the challenging ecooaimate. Demand for LPG is higher during the eoldhonths of the year. Typical
approximately 65% to 70% of Antargaz' retail salelkime occurs, and substantially all of Antarggerating income is earned, during the
months from October through March. For historicdbrmation on weather statistics for Antargaz, ‘8danagement's Discussion and Anal
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Government Regulation

Antargaz' business is subject to various laws aglilations at the national and European levels wadpect to matters such
protection of the environment, the storage and legof hazardous materials and flammable substribe discharge of contaminants intc
environment and the safety of persons and propértelgium and Luxembourg, Antargaz is also subjecprice regulations that pert
Antargaz to increase the price of LPG sold to srhalk, medium bulk, large bulk and cylinder custesn@up to a defined maximum pri
when Antargaz' costs fluctuate.

Properties
Antargaz has 3 primary storage facilities in ogeratOne of these is a refrigerated facility. I#idn, Antargaz is able to use 30,000

cubic meters of capacity of a storage facility, Des, by virtue of Antargaz' 50% ownership of DonG#&. The table below sets forth details
of Antargaz' 3 primary storage facilities:

Antargaz Antargaz
Storage Capacity - Storage Capacity -
Propane Butane
Ownership % (m3) (1) (m3) (1)
Norgal 52.7 22,60( 8,90(
Geogaz Lavera 16.7 17,40( 32,50(
Cobogal 15.C 1,30C 45(C

(1) Cubic meters (1 cubic meter is equivalent to apjpnaiely 264 gallons
Antargaz has 29 secondary storage facilities, hic¢h are wholly owned. The others are partiallyned, through joint ventures.
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Employees
At September 30, 2012, Antargaz had approximatdlgd employees.
INTERNATIONAL PROPANE - FLAGA & OTHER

During Fiscal 2012, our International Proparfdaga & Other LPG distribution business was coneldigirincipally in Europe throu
our wholly owned subsidiaries, Flaga and AvantiGas] in China through our majority owned partngrsk@hinaGas Partners, L.P. Flag
referred to in this section collectively with itsbsidiaries as “Flagalnless the context otherwise requires. Flaga opeiatAustria, the Cze
Republic, Denmark, Finland, Hungary, Norway, PolaRdmania, Slovakia, Sweden and Switzerland. Fagpérations in Finland, Norw
and Sweden were acquired by Flaga during thediratter of Fiscal 2012. AvantiGas operates in thigdd Kingdom.

During Fiscal 2012, Flaga sold approximately 223liom gallons of LPG. Flaga is the largest disttdouof LPG in Austria an
Denmark and one of the largest distributors of LIRGhe Czech Republic, Hungary and Slovakia. Durigcal 2012, AvantiGas st
approximately 140 million gallons of LPG and ourjandy-owned partnership in China sold approximgtel million gallons of LPG.

FLAGA
Products, Services and Marketir

During Fiscal 2012, Flaga sold approximately 223liom gallons of LPG. Flaga serves customers treg UPG for residentic
commercial, industrial, agricultural and automolfilel (“auto gas”purposes. Flaga's customers primarily use LPG datihg, cooking, mot
fuel (including forklifts), construction work, mafacturing, crop drying, power generation and ifiga. Flaga sells LPG in cylinders anc
small, medium and large bulk tanks. At September 2812, Flaga had nearly 70,000 customers and #l®mcylinders in circulatior
Approximately 30% of Flaga's Fiscal 2012 sales €dasn volumes) were cylinder and small bulk, 21%0 agas, 43% large bulk, and |
medium bulk.

Flaga has a total of 25 sales offices throughogtcbuntries it serves, although it does not hales satfices in Norway, Sweden
Finland, largely due to the commercial and indastnature of Flaga's business in those countriakesSoffices generally consist of an of
location where customers can directly purchase LBX&ept for Poland, no single country's total gadlof LPG sold during Fiscal 20
represented more than 15% of Flaga's total gailori&scal 2012. Flaga distributes cylinders dingdt its customers and through the us
distributors who resell the cylinders to end usarder the distributor's pricing and terms. No singlistomer represents or is anticipate
represent more than 5% of total revenues for Flagfh, the exception of one auto gas customer thatessented approximately 11% of Fla
total revenues in Fiscal 2012.

LPG Supply and Storag

Flaga typically enters into an annual LPG supplyeament with TCO/Chevron. During Fiscal 2012, TCk¥@on supplie
approximately 25% of Flaga's LPG requirements, \piiing based on internationally quoted marketgsi Flaga also purchases LPG or
international market and on the domestic marketslet annual term agreements with internationabod gas trading companies, incluc
Vitol and Orlen Gas, and from domestic refinerigsmarily OMV, Unipetrol, Shell and Statoil. In aitidn, LPG purchases are made on
spot market from international oil and gas tradBrging Fiscal 2012, five suppliers accounted fopraximately 54% of Flaga's LPG supply.

Flaga operates 8 main storage facilities, including in Denmark that is located at a deep sea héability, one LPG import termin
in Poland, and 62 secondary storage facilitiesgdlaanages a widespread logistics and transpartagbwork including approximately 2
leased railcars, and also maintains various tradshg and filling agreements with third parties.@.Btored in primary storage facilities
transported to smaller storage facilities by raitrack.

Competition and Seasonality

The retail propane industry in the Western Europgamtries in which Flaga operates is mature, wlitht declines in overall dema
in recent years, due primarily to the expansiomatiural gas, customer conservation and challengeéunomic conditions. In the East
European countries in which Flaga operates, theaddnior LPG is expected to grow. Competition fostomers is based on contract terrr
well as on product prices. Flaga competes with rottleG marketers, including competitors located theo European countries, and ¢
competes with providers of other sources of enguggcipally natural gas, electricity and wood.
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Because many of Flaga's customers use LPG forniggagales volumes in Flaga's sales territoriesaffiected principally by tF
severity of the temperatures during the heating@eanonths and traditionally fluctuate from yeafy&ar in response to variations in weat
prices and other factors, such as conservatiomtefémd the challenging economic climate. Becalsgafs profitability is sensitive to chan
in wholesale LPG costs, Flaga generally seeks $s pa increases in the cost of LPG to customerstelis no assurance, however, that F
will always be able to pass on product cost inaredslly when product costs rise rapidly. In part$laga's sales territories, it is particuli
difficult to pass on rapid increases in the pri€&BG due to the low per capita income of custonirerseveral of its territories and the inten
of competition. Product cost increases can be erig by periods of severe cold weather, supplyrimpgions, increases in the prices of t
commodities such as crude oil and natural gastt@rainforeseen events. High LPG prices may résidtower than expected growth dut
customer conservation and customers seeking lgEnsive alternative energy sources. In many ofd4asples territories, government poli
and incentives that favor alternative energy sairoay result in customers migrating to energy ssiather than LPG. Rules and regulat
applicable to LPG industry operations in many & Bastern European countries where Flaga openaestilhevolving, or are not consister
enforced, causing intensified competitive condgiamthose areas.

Government Regulation

Flaga's business is subject to various laws andlaggns at both the national and European levéll vespect to matters such
protection of the environment and the storage @mdiling of hazardous materials and flammable snbst&a

Employees

At September 30, 2012, Flaga had approximatelyedbployees.
AVANTIGAS
Products, Services and Marketir

During Fiscal 2012, AvantiGas sold approximately0 Jtillion gallons of LPG (of which approximately 8@illion gallons wer
wholesale gallons). At September 30, 2012, AvargiGad approximately 15,500 customers. AvantiGagesecustomers that use LPG
wholesale, aerosol, agricultural, residential, caroial, industrial, and auto gas purposes. AvargiGastomers primarily use LPG for heat
motor fuel (including forklifts), leisure activitie industrial processes and aerosol propellantnéi@as sells LPG in medium and large t
tanks with medium bulk sales representing approtéinad9% of Fiscal 2012 sales (based on volumes) lange bulk representi
approximately 51%.

AvantiGas serves its customer base through a deetlacustomer service center and, therefore, dm¢have sales offices in
United Kingdom. Sales to wholesale customers retesl approximately 57% of gallons sold; aerosstamers 21%; agricultural custom
8%; residential customers 6%; and commercial, itréddsand autogas 8%. Two wholesale customers awadaterosol customers collectiv
represented over 44% of AvantiGas' total revenodsdgcal 2012. No other customer represents ontisipated to represent more than 59
total revenues for AvantiGas.

LPG Supply and Storag

AvantiGas enters into fivgear agreements with Essar Energy plc's Stanloimergf and STASCO's Mossmorran terminal for
supply of an aggregate of approximately 90% of Aaas' LPG requirements, with pricing based onrivagionally quoted market prici
AvantiGas purchased the remainder of its LPG reguénts from other third party suppliers.

AvantiGas operates 8 main storage facilities in l&mg, Scotland and Wales. AvantiGas manages atiogiand transportatis
network, consisting of approximately 75 trucks, ateb maintains various transportation agreemeiits third parties. LPG stored in prim:
storage facilities is transported to smaller stertgilities or customers by truck.

Competition and Seasonality

The retail propane industry in the United Kingdahighly concentrated and is mature, with slighdlides in overall demand in rec
years, due primarily to the expansion of natural, gastomer conservation and challenging econooniditions. Competition for customer
based on contract terms as well as on productrieeantiGas competes with other LPG marketerhénlnited Kingdom.

Because many of AvantiGas' customers use gas &tingepurposes, sales volume in AvantiGas' sateisaiges are
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affected principally by the severity of the temparas during the heating season months and traditjo fluctuate from year-tgear ir
response to variations in weather, prices and ddetors, such as energy conservation efforts hadhallenging economic climate. Bece
AvantiGas' profitability is sensitive to changeswholesale LPG costs, AvantiGas generally seeksafs on increases in the cost of LP!
customers. There is no assurance, however, thatti@as will always be able to pass on product costeases fully when product costs
rapidly. Product cost increases can be triggerecpérjods of severe cold weather, supply interruggjoincreases in the prices of
commodities, such as crude oil and natural gasfteer unforeseen events. High LPG prices may résudlower than expected growth du
customer conservation and customers seeking lgensive alternative energy sources.

Government Regulation

AvantiGas' business is subject to various lawsragdlations at both the national and European $ewéth respect to matters suct
competition, protection of the environment andsdteage and handling of hazardous materials anthfl@ble substances.

Employees
At September 30, 2012, AvantiGas had approximédt&fy employees.
ENERGY SERVICES
Retail Energy Marketing

Energy Services sells natural gas, liquid fuels afettricity to approximately 18,000 commercial aimdlustrial customers
approximately 43,000 locations. Energy Servicegesecustomers in all or portions of PennsylvaniawNersey, Delaware, New York, Ol
Maryland, Massachusetts, Virginia, North Carolima éhe District of Columbia. Energy Services disites natural gas through the use o
transportation systems of 33 utility systems. fiies power to customers through the use of #mesmission systems of 19 utility systems.

Historically, a majority of Energy Services' comritgdsales have been made under fixgite agreements, which typically conta
take-orpay arrangement that permit customers to purchdisecamount of product for a fixed price duringecified period, and to pay
the product even if the customer does not takevelgliof the product. However, a growing number akijy Services' commodity sales
currently being made under requirements contrastder which Energy Services is typically an exalassupplier and will supply as mt
product as the customer requires. Energy Servicasages supply cost volatility related to these exgents by (i) entering into fixeprice
supply arrangements with a diverse group of suppléad holders of interstate pipeline capacity, €itering into exchangeaded future
contracts on the New York Mercantile Exchange) éiitering into over-theounter derivative arrangements with major intéomatl banks ar
major suppliers, (iv) utilizing supply assets titabwns or manages, and (v) utilizing financialnsenission rights to hedge price risk age
certain transmission costs. Energy Services alaeslibe risk for balancing and delivering natuias gnd power to its customers under va
gas pipeline and utility company tariffs. See “Mgament's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Comdiand Results of Operation§farke!
Risk Disclosures.”

Midstream Asset

Energy Services operates a natural gas liquefaciiorage and vaporization facility in Temple, Parviania (“Temple Facility”)anc
propane storage and propagiemixing stations in Bethlehem, Reading, Hunl@reek, and White Deer, Pennsylvania. It also opsrptopar
storage, rail transshipment terminals, and promanenixing stations in Steelton and WilliamsporgnRsylvania. These assets are ust
Energy Services' energy peaking business that geevsupplemental energy, primarily liquefied ndtgas and propanair mixtures, to ge
utilities on interstate pipelines at times of higégmand (generally during periods of coldest winteather). In Fiscal 2012, Energy Serv
completed its fourfold expansion of the Temple Fgcand obtained a FERC operating certificate aimgést 1, 2012. In Fiscal 2013, Ene
Services is expected to expand its energy peakingcges at the Temple Facility and to sell liqudfreatural gas to customers for use by trt
drilling rigs and other motor vehicles. Energy Sees also manages natural gas pipeline and sta@geacts for UGI Utilities, subject tc
competitive bid process, as well as storage capagihed by Energy Services.

A wholly owned subsidiary of Energy Services ownsl aperates underground natural gas storage aatgddhigh pressure pipel
facilities formerly owned by CPG, which have FER@peoval to sell storage services at matkased rates. The storage facilities are locat
the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania and laaiegal storage capacity of 15 million decatheamd a maximum daily withdrawal quan
of 224,000 decatherms. In Fiscal 2012, Energy Sesvieased more than
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50% of the capacity at its underground naturalfgesities to third parties.

In August 2012, FERC approved Energy Services'eptojo add compression at a natural gemage facility in Tioga Count
Pennsylvania. Energy Services received final apgirfor this project from the Pennsylvania DeparttrafrEnvironmental Protection and be
construction work in September 2012. Energy Sesviagpects to complete construction in the Sprin@Q@#3. This project will permit firi
deliveries of natural gas to the storage faciliisotigh the Tennessee Gas Pipeline.

In Fiscal 2012, Energy Services continued makingstments in infrastructure projects to supportdbeelopment of natural gas
the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania. Dufiigral 2012, Energy Services completed the firgsisphof its gathering system to trans
natural gas from Wyoming County, Pennsylvania tarderstate pipeline. During Fiscal 2012, Energyvi®es invested capital to extend -
gathering system to Luzerne County, Pennsylvanth wiplanned connection to another interstate ipipelThis project is expected to
completed during Fiscal 2014.

Future planned investments are expected to covange of new midstream asset opportunities, inoditerstate pipelines, lot
gathering systems and gas storage facilities amplmentary and related investments in naturakgporation, production and refining.

Competition

Energy Services competes with other marketers,uttamts and local utilities to sell natural gaquid fuels, electric power and rela
services to customers in its service area prinlgipath the basis of price, customer service, andabidity. We have faced an increase
competition as new markets for natural gas, liqu@ls, electric power and related services havergatke

Government Regulation

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and termsamdlitions of service of wholesale sales of eleatepacity and energy, as wel
the sales for resale of natural gas and relatedgstoand transportation services. Energy Serviessa tariff on file with FERC pursuant
which it may make power sales to wholesale custsratmarket-based rates. Energy Services also hdethased rate authority for pov
sales to wholesale customers to the extent thatgirervices purchases power in excess of itsl retastomer needs. Two subsidiarie:
Energy Services operate natural gas storage fasilitnder FERC certificate approvals and offer ises/to wholesale customers at FERC
approved markebased rates. Energy Services is also subject RCFEeporting requirements, market manipulation swed other FER
enforcement and regulatory powers.

Energy Services is subject to various federalesssid local environmental, safety and transporidaws and regulations govern
the storage, distribution and transportation ofppree and the operation of bulk storage LPG terminghese laws include, among others
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, CERCLACHean Air Act, the Occupational Safety and Hedlth, the Homeland Security Act
2002, the Emergency Planning and Community Rigltrtow Act, the Clean Water Act and comparable sttdéutes. CERCLA imposes jc
and several liability on certain classes of persmrssidered to have contributed to the releastéreatened release of a “hazardous substan
into the environment without regard to fault or tegality of the original conduct.

Employees
At September 30, 2012, Energy Services, Inc. hadoximately 175 employees.

ELECTRIC GENERATION
Products and Service

UGID has an approximate 5.97% (approximately 102gamett) ownership interest in the Conemaugh geioerastatiol
(“Conemaugh”), a 1,711 megawatt, céiabd generation station located near Johnstownn®gdvania. Conemaugh is owned by a consortit
energy companies and operated by a unit of Gen@ngigninc. UGID also owns and operates the HunBkion located near WilkeBarre
Pennsylvania, a 130-megawatt natural fyeded generating station, which commenced opearatio July 2011. Due to an accident in late
2011, one unit at Hunlock Station was shut downrégrairs but was restarted in June 2012. AnothédrairHunlock Station suffered flo
damage in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2011 but reatarted in early November 2011.

UGID owns and operates a landfill glaeled generation plant near Hegins, Pennsylvanith gross generating capacity of
megawatts. The plant qualifies for renewable energgits. Due to a quantity of sulfur in its supplfylandfill gas that exceeded permiss
levels, the plant was temporarily shut down in &2 but was restarted in October 2012.
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UGID also owns and operates 7.64 megawatts of -polaered generation capacity in Pennsylvania, Mad/land New Jerse
Several other solar generation projects are inldpueent.

Competition

UGID competes with other generation stations on ititerface of PJM Interconnection, LLC (“PIM"§ regional transmissi
organization that coordinates the movement of wdadéeelectricity in certain states, including tketes in which we operate, and bases sal
bid pricing. Generally, each power generator haall share of the total market on PIM.

Government Regulation

UGID owns electric generation facilities that aréhin the control area of PJIM and are dispatche@doordance with a FERC-
approved open access tariff and associated agréemdministered by PIJM. UGID receives certain reesncollected by PJM, determi
under an approved rate schedule. UGID is alsoestiiip FERC reporting requirements, market mantmriarules and other FEF
enforcement and regulatory powers.

Employees
At September 30, 2012, UGID had approximately 2plegees.
GAS UTILITY

Gas Utility consists of the regulated natural gagrithution businesses of our subsidiary, UGI W&k, and UGI Utilities' subsidiari¢
PNG and CPG. Gas Utility serves nearly 600,000ccusts in eastern and central Pennsylvania and aldvendred customers in portions
one Maryland county. Gas Utility is regulated bg fUC and, with respect to its several hundredousts in Maryland, the Maryland Put
Service Commission.

Service Area; Revenue Analys

Gas Utility is authorized to distribute natural gasnearly 600,000 customers in portions of 46 exasand central Pennsylva
counties through its distribution system of appneiely 12,000 miles of gas mains. Contemporary ri@ddée such as plastic or coated s
comprise approximately 85% of Gas Utility's 12,080es of gas mains, with cast iron pipe comprisapproximately 4% and bare steel |
comprising approximately 11% of Gas Utility's gaains. Gas Utility expects to replace the cast portion of its gas mains within 14 ye
and the bare steel portion within 30 years. Theiserrea includes the cities of Allentown, Betlgiehy Easton, Harrisburg, Hazleton, Lanca
Lebanon, Reading, Scranton, WilkBasre, Lock Haven, Pittston, Pottsville, and Willigport, Pennsylvania, and the boroughs of Hone
and Milford, Pennsylvania. Located in Gas Utilitgsrvice area are major production centers forchiaslustries such as specialty me
aluminum, glass and paper product manufacturing Glity also distributes natural gas to severahdired customers in portions of
Maryland county.

System throughput (the total volume of gas soldrtransported for customers within Gas Utilityistdoution system) for Fiscal 20
was approximately 177.6 billion cubic feet (“bcf3ystem sales of gas accounted for approximately 87%ystem throughput, while ¢
transported for residential, commercial and indaktustomers who bought their gas from others actaa for approximately 73% of syst
throughput.

Sources of Supply and Pipeline Capac

Gas Utility is permitted to recover prudently in@d costs of natural gas it sells to its customseg Management's Discussion ¢
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems - Market Risk Disclosuresind Note 8 to Consolidated Financial Statements
Utility meets its service requirements by utiliziagdiverse mix of natural gas purchase contracts miarketers and producers, along
storage and transportation service contracts. Tlesmgements enable Gas Utility to purchase gas fGulf Coast, Midcontinent
Appalachian and Canadian sources. For the traramrtand storage function, Gas Utility has ldegn agreements with a number of pipe
companies, including Texas Eastern Transmissiorp@ation, Columbia Gas Transmission, LLC, Transoantal Gas Pipeline Compa
LLC, Dominion Transmission, Inc., ANR Pipeline Coamy, and Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company, L.L.C.

Gas Supply Contracts
During Fiscal 2012, Gas Utility purchased approxaha79.6 bcf of natural gas for sale to core-madkestomers
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(principally comprised of firm- residential, comm& and industrial customers that purchase thasrfgom Gas Utility (“retail core markéy”
and offsystem sales customers. Approximately 74% of thleimwes purchased were supplied under agreements Mitlsuppliers. T
remaining 22% of gas purchased by Gas Utility wgspied by approximately 20 producers and marketas supply contracts for Gas Uti
are generally no longer than 1 year. Gas Utilisodlas longerm contracts with suppliers for natural gas pegldupply during the months
November through Marcl

Seasonality

Because many of its customers use gas for heatirgppes, Gas Utility's sales are seasonal. DurisgpaF2012, approximately 60%
65% of Gas Utility's sales volume was supplied, apdroximately 80% to 85% of Gas Utility's opergtincome was earned, during the
heating season from October through March.

Competition

Natural gas is a fuel that competes with elecyriaitd oil, and to a lesser extent, with propaneaoad. Competition among these ft
is primarily a function of their comparative priead the relative cost and efficiency of the equipm@latural gas generally benefits fro
competitive price advantage over oil, electriciéyd propane. Fuel oil dealers compete for custonmeedl categories, including industt
customers. Gas Utility responds to this competitigth marketing and sales efforts designed to ne&pand, and grow its customer base.

In substantially all of its service territories, &3dtility is the only regulated gas distributionlit having the right, granted by the P!
or by law, to provide gas distribution servicesac®i the 1980s, larger commercial and industriatocnsrs have been able to purchase
supplies from entities other than natural gas iistion utility companies. As a result of Pennsyliges Natural Gas Choice and Competi
Act, effective July 1, 1999, all of Gas Utility'sstomers, including core-market customers, hava bfferded this opportunity.

A number of Gas Ultility's commercial and industgaktomers have the ability to switch to an alterriael at any time and, therefc
are served on an interruptible basis under rataisate competitively priced with respect to therlate fuel. Margin from these custom
therefore, is affected by the difference or “sprelaetween the customers' delivered cost of gas andustomers' delivered cost of the alter
fuel, as well as the frequency and duration ofrmigtions. See “Gas Utility Regulation and Ratd2ennsylvania Public Utility Commissi
Jurisdiction and Gas Utility Rates.”

Approximately 34% of Gas Utility's commercial amtistrial customers' annual throughput volume,uidiclg certain custome
served under interruptible rates, have locatiors #fford them the opportunity of seeking transpiwh service directly from interst:
pipelines, thereby bypassing Gas Utility. Gas Ytihas approximately 30 of such customers withgpamntation contracts extending bey
Fiscal 2012, 10 of whom are among Gas Utility'gjdst customers in terms of annual volumes, andnidjerity of such customers are ser
under transportation contracts having 3 to 20 yeans. No single customer represents, or is amtiegpto represent, more than 5% of
Utility's total revenues.

Outlook for Gas Service and Supply

Gas Utility anticipates having adequate pipelinpacity, peaking services and other sources of gupydilable to it to meet the fi
requirements of all firm customers on its systenoulgh fiscal year 2013. Supply mix is diversifiedarket priced, and delivered pursuant
number of long-term and shddrm firm transportation and storage arrangementduding transportation contracts held by someGat
Utility's larger customers.

During Fiscal 2012, Gas Utility supplied transptida service to 2 major cgeneration installations and 6 electric generafaailities.
Gas Utility continues to seek new residential, caraial and industrial customers for both firm anteiruptible service. In Fiscal 2012, (
Utility connected approximately 2,000 new commdreiad industrial customers. In the residential nmtudector, Gas Utility connected o
12,000 residential heating customers during FigbaR. Nearly 9,000 of these customers, an increhapproximately 63% from Fiscal 20
converted to natural gas from other energy souroasly oil and electricity, largely due to higH prices and the elimination of electricity r
caps during Fiscal 2011. New home constructionorosts and existing ndmeating gas customers who added gas heating systereplac
other energy sources primarily accounted for tihemwtesidential heating connections in Fiscal 2012.

UGI Utilities continues to monitor and participatehere appropriate, in rulemaking and individuaérand tariff proceedings beft
FERC affecting the rates and the terms and comditimder which Gas Ultility transports and stordsinaa gas. Among these proceedings
those arising out of certain FERC orders and/oelpip filings that relate to (i) the pricing of jgiine services in a competitive ene
marketplace; (i) the flexibility of the terms andnditions of pipeline service tariffs and
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contracts; and (i) pipelines' requests to incecteir base rates, or change the terms and comslitif their storage and transportation services

UGI Utilities' objective in negotiations with intate pipeline and natural gas suppliers, anddngedings before regulatory agenc
is to assure availability of supply, transportatemd storage alternatives to serve market requinesra the lowest cost possible, taking
account the need for security of supply. Consistétit that objective, UGI Utilities negotiates tterms of firm transportation capacity on
pipelines serving it, arranges for appropriate aler and peakhaving resources, negotiates with producers fonpetitively priced ge
purchases and aggressively participates in regylatoceedings related to transportation rights @rets of service.

GAS UTILITY REGULATION AND RATES
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Jurisdictioand Gas Utility Rate:

Gas Uitility is subject to regulation by the PUCtasates, terms and conditions of service, accogntiatters, issuance of securii
contracts and other arrangements with affiliatetities, and various other matters. Rates that GdgyUnay charge for gas service come
two forms: (1) rates designed to recover PGCs; (@hdates designed to recover costs other than PR&tes designed to recover PGCs
reviewed in PGC proceedings. Rates designed toveeamsts other than PGCs are primarily establishegneral base rate proceedings.

UGI Gas has two PGC rates: (1) applicable to snimih, retail coremarket customers consisting of the residential amdl
commercial and industrial classes; and (2) applcatb firm, contractual, highvad factor customers served on three separate. rEte mo:
recent general base rate increase for UGI Gas keeffiective in 1995. In accordance with a statutogchanism, a rate increase for UGI ¢
retail coremarket customers became effective October 1, 2@0@®avith a PGC variable credit equal to a portidrihe margin received fra
customers served under interruptible rates to xtené such interruptible customers use tlpedty pipeline capacity contracted for by UGI
for retail core-market customers.

PNG and CPG each have one PGC rate applicabld tmstbmers. On August 11, 2011, the PUC approve@'§ base rate c:
settlement agreement, which resulted in an $8.Bomibase rate operating revenue increase for P@.increase became effective on Au
30, 2011. On June 21, 2012, the PUC reversed itieredecision related to the $0.9 million increaseevenues associated with the En
Efficiency and Conservation Plan filed by CPG ag pathe August 11, 2011 base rate case settlerdana result, $0.9 million of base r
operating revenue that was collected as part efglian has been refunded to customers. On Augys2@R, the PUC approved PNG's t
rate case settlement agreement, which resulte$i®&5 million base rate operating revenue inaéasPNG, effective August 28, 2009.

The gas service tariffs for UGI Gas, PNG and CP@Gtaio PGC rates applicable to firm retail rate siches. These PGC rates pel
recovery of substantially all of the prudently inad costs of natural gas that UGI Gas, PNG, an@ &é&ll to their customers. PGC rates
reviewed and approved annually by the PUC. UGI B&K;, and CPG may request quarterly or, underioectanditions, monthly adjustme!
to reflect the actual cost of gas. Quarterly adjgsits become effective on 1 day's notice to the BbCare subject to review during the |
annual PGC filing. Each proposed annual PGC rateqgired to be filed with the PUC 6 months prioits effective date. During this peri
the PUC holds hearings to determine whether thpgzed rate reflects a leasist fuel procurement policy consistent with théigation tc
provide safe, adequate and reliable service. Afbenpletion of these hearings, the PUC issues agr grefmitting the collection of gas cost
levels that meet that standard. The PGC mecharsnpeovides for an annual reconciliation.

FERC Market Manipulation Rules and Other FERC Enfaement and Regulatory Powers

Gas Utility is subject to FERC regulations govegnthe manner in which certain jurisdictional sadesransportation are conduct
Section 4A of the Natural Gas Act and Section 22the Federal Power Act prohibit the use or emplegtrof any manipulative or decept
devices or contrivances in connection with the pbase or sale of natural gas or natural gas tratefmor subject to the jurisdiction of FEF
FERC has adopted regulations to implement thesgteta provisions, which apply, to a limited extetat certain sales and transportation by
Gas Utility that are subject to FERC's jurisdictiddas Ultility is subject to certain other regulasoand obligations for FERf&gulate:
activities.
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State Tax Surcharge Claust

UGI Utilities' gas service tariffs contain state tsurcharge clauses. The surcharges are recompditedever any of the tax ra
included in their calculation are changed. Theses#s protect UGI Utilities from the effects ofre@ses in most of the Pennsylvania tax
which it is subject.

Utility Franchises

UGI Utilities, PNG and CPG each hold certificatégpuoblic convenience issued by the PUC and ceftgiandfather rights’predating
the adoption of the Pennsylvania Public Utility @ahd its predecessor statutes, which each of bedieves are adequate to authorize the
carry on their business in substantially all of theitories to which they now render gas servideder applicable Pennsylvania law, {
Utilities, PNG and CPG also have certain rightemiinent domain as well as the right to maintairr tfaeilities in streets and highways in tt
territories.

Other Government Regulation

In addition to regulation by the PUC and FERC, G#hty is subject to various federal, state anddblaws governing environmen
matters, occupational health and safety, pipelafetg and other matters. Gas Utility is subjecthe requirements of the federal Reso
Conservation and Recovery Act, CERCLA and comparatdte statutes with respect to the release @frtiaas substances on property ov
or operated by Gas Utility. See Note 8 to Constdiddrinancial Statements.

Employees
At September 30, 2012, the gas utility operatidnd @I Utilities had approximately 1,300 employees.
ELECTRIC UTILITY AND HVAC/R
ELECTRIC UTILITY

Electric Utility supplies electric service to ové0,000 customers in portions of Luzerne and Wyontngnties in northeaste
Pennsylvania through a system consisting of appratély 2,100 miles of transmission and distribufioes and 13 transmission substati
At September 30, 2012, UGI Utilities' electric ifjiloperations had approximately 70 employees.

In accordance with Electric Utility's default ser@isettlement with the PUC effective January 1,02@lectric Utility is permitted 1
recover prudently incurred electricity costs, imhg costs to obtain supply to meet its customemsrgy requirements, pursuant to a su
plan filed with the PUC. UGI Utilities' electricility operations are subject to regulation by thédPas to rates, terms and conditions of ser
accounting matters, issuance of securities, costi@ud other arrangements with affiliated entitaas] various other matters. The most re
general base rate increase for Electric Utilityamee effective in 1996. PUC default service regatetibecame applicable to Electric Utili
provision of default service effective January @1@ and Electric Utility, consistent with these ulkegions, has received PUC approval of
default service tariff rules applicable for servi@ndered on or after January 1, 2010, (2) a relatrde default service cost rate recov
mechanism to recover the cost of acquiring defserivice supplies for service rendered on or atieudry 1, 2010, (3) a plan for meeting
post-2009 requirements of the Alternative EnerggtfBlio Standards Act (“AEPS Act"which requires Electric Utility to directly or ingictly
acquire certain percentages of its supplies frosigihated alternative energy sources, and (4) anofleble AEPS Act cost recovery r
mechanism to recover the costs of complying witlPSEAct requirements applicable to default servigaplies for service rendered on or ¢
January 1, 2010. Under these rules, default seraies for most customers will be adjusted quarterl

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and termscamtlitions of service of electric transmission lities used for wholesale or ret
choice transactions. Electric Utility owns electiansmission facilities that are within the cohtacea of PJIM and are dispatched in accorc
with a FERCapproved open access tariff and associated agrégradministered by PJM. PJM is a regional transomnserganization thi
regulates and coordinates generation supply andtioéesale delivery of electricity. Electric Utiliteceives certain revenues collected by |
determined under a formulary rate schedule thadjsisted in June of each year to reflect annuahgbs in Electric Utility's electr
transmission revenue requirements, when its trassan facilities are used by third parties. FERE juaisdiction over the rates and terms
conditions of service of wholesale sales of eleatdpacity and energy. Electric Utility has a faoif file with FERC pursuant to which it m
make power sales to wholesale customers at madsetebrates.
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HVAC/R

We conduct our heating, ventilation, awnditioning, refrigeration and electrical contiagtservice business through HVAC/R, wt
serves portions of eastern Pennsylvania and theAwahtic region, including the Philadelphia subugrsl portions of New Jersey and nortl
Delaware. This business serves more than 100,06t@roers in residential, commercial, industrial aegv construction markets. During Fis
2012, HVAC/R generated approximately $82 millioréwvenues and employed approximately 460 people.

BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The table stating the amounts of revenues, opegratioome (loss) and identifiable assets attribatabl each of UGI's reportal
business segments, and to the geographic aredsich we operate, for the 2012, 2011 and 2010 figeats appears in Note 21 to Consolid
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this &®&pnd is incorporated herein by reference.

EMPLOYEES

At September 30, 2012, UGI and its subsidiariesdwt 13,500 employees.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There are many factors that may affect our busiaesisresults of operations. Additional discussiegarding factors that may aff
our business and operating results is includedwsee in this Report.

Decreases in the demand for our energy products as®tvices because of warmer-thamrmal heating season weather
adversely affect our results of operations.

Because many of our customers rely on our energgyats and services to heat their homes and bssisesur results of operatic
are adversely affected by warmer-tharmal heating season weather. Weather conditiane la significant impact on the demand for
energy products and services for both heating gmidwdtural purposes. Accordingly, the volume ofr @nergy products sold is at its higt
during the peak heating season of October througitMand is directly affected by the severity & tinter weather. For example, historice
approximately 65% to 70% of AmeriGas Partners' ahnetail propane volume and Antargaz' annual IréRG volume, and 60% to 65%
Gas Utility's natural gas throughput (the totalwok of gas sold to or transported for customerhiwivur distribution system) has been !
during these months. There can be no assurancedhatl winter weather in our market areas willwda the future.

Our holding company structure could limit our abtl to pay dividends or debt service.

We are a holding company whose material assettharstock of our subsidiaries. Our ability to payidends on our common stc
and to pay principal and accrued interest on obt,deany, depends on the payment of dividendsstdy our principal subsidiaries, AmeriC
Inc., UGI Utilities, Inc. and UGI Enterprises, Infincluding Antargaz). Payments to us by those iglidnses, in turn, depend upon tF
consolidated results of operations and cash fldvwag. operations of our subsidiaries are affected¢dnditions beyond our control, includ
weather, competition in national and internatiomarkets we serve, the costs and availability oppre, butane, natural gas, electricity,
other energy sources and capital market conditidhg. ability of our subsidiaries to make paymeutus is also affected by the level
indebtedness of our subsidiaries, which is subistaaind the restrictions on payments to us impas®ter the terms of such indebtedness.

Our profitability is subject to LPG pricing and irentory risk.

The retail LPG business is a “margin-basbdsiness in which gross profits are dependent tiperexcess of the sales price ovel
LPG supply costs. LPG is a commodity, and, as sii€lunit price is subject to volatile fluctuatiomsresponse to changes in supply or ¢
market conditions. We have no control over thesekataconditions. Consequently, the unit price af tHPG that our subsidiaries and o
marketers purchase can change rapidly over a geoidd of time. Most of our domestic LPG producpply contracts permit suppliers
charge posted prices at the time of delivery or dhgent prices established at major U.S. storametg such as Mont Belvieu, Texas
Conway, Kansas. Most of our international LPG syppntracts are based on internationally quotedketgrrices. Because our subsidia
profitability is sensitive to changes in wholespfepane supply costs, it will be adversely affedtesle cannot pass on increases in the cc
propane to our customers. Due to competitive
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pricing in the industry, our subsidiaries may netadble to pass on product cost increases to otwroess when product costs rise rapidly
when our competitors do not raise their produatgwi Finally, market volatility may cause our sdlzsies to sell LPG at less than the pric
which they purchased it, which would adversely effeur operating results.

Energy efficiency and technology advances, as veallprice induced customeronservation, may result in reduced demand for
energy products and services.

The trend toward increased conservation and teobiwall advances, including installation of improvesulation and the developm
of more efficient furnaces and other heating dessiceay reduce the demand for energy products. $ficd PG and natural gas are subje:
volatile fluctuations in response to changes inpupand other market conditions. During periodshigfh energy commodity costs, our pri
generally increase, which may lead to customeremwasion and attrition. A reduction in demand colelder our revenues and, therefore, lc
our net income and adversely affect our cash fl&tate and/or federal regulation may require mamgatonservation measures, which wc
reduce the demand for our energy products. We ¢gradict the materiality of the effect of futurenservation measures or the effect thai
technological advances in heating, conservatioargngeneration or other devices might have oroperations.

Volatility in credit and capital markets may restti our ability to grow,increase the likelihood of defaults by our custorseanc
counterparties and adversely affect our operatiregults.

The volatility in credit and capital markets mayate additional risks to our businesses in theréutWe are exposed to finant
market risk (including refinancing risk) resultifiggm, among other things, changes in interest ratek conditions in the credit and cay
markets. Developments in the credit markets duttiegpast few years increase our possible exposuteetliquidity, default and credit risks
our suppliers, counterparties associated with dévig financial instruments and our customers. éugh we believe that current finan
market conditions, if they were to continue for fioeeseeable future, will not have a significanpant on our ability to fund our existi
operations, such market conditions could restrigt ability to grow through acquisitions, limit tlseope of major capital projects if acces
credit and capital markets is limited, or adversdfect our operating results.

Economic recession, volatility in the stock markaatd the low interest rate environment may negativehpact our pension liability.

Economic recession, volatility in the stock mar&at the low interest rate environment have hadj@ifgiant impact on our pensi
liability and funded status. Declines in the stockhond market and valuation of stocks or bondmhined with continued low interest ra
could further impact our pension liability and fenbstatus and increase the amount of requiredibatitms to our pension plans.

The adoption of financial reform legislation by th&nited States Congress and related regulations nhaye an adverse effect
our ability to use derivative instruments to hedgsks associated with our business.

Congress adopted the Do#idank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectionid@010, which contains comprehensive finar
reform legislation. That act imposes regulationtio@ over-thezounter derivatives market and entities that pgdte in that market. The
requires the Commaodities Futures Trading CommisgiGRTC"), the U.S. Securities and Exchange Cominis$*'SEC”) and other regulato
to implement the act's provisions. Some rules agdlations under the act have been finalized bditiadal rules and regulations have yet ti
adopted. While the effect on the Company of existimd future rules and regulations under the achaabe determined at this time, i
possible that the rules and regulations under themay increase our cost of using derivative imsgnts to hedge risks associated with
business or may reduce the availability of suchrimsents to protect against risks we encountemelged costs may arise from any
margin, clearing and trad®¢ecution requirements imposed upon individualgaations, as well as from new capital, reportiegordkeeping
compliance and business conduct requirements indpopen our counterparties to the extent those aogtpassed through to us. Pos
limits may be imposed which could further limit caioility to hedge risks. To the extent new ruled asgulations require more collatera
margin for individual transactions, our availahlguidity may be adversely affected. Additionallyew rules and regulations may restrict
ability to monetize or restructure existing derivatcontracts and require us to restructure pastioh our energy marketing and trac
business. As a result, our business and operatisglts may be adversely affected if, as a resulhefact and the rules and regulat
promulgated under the act, we are forced to reduceodify our current use of derivatives.

20




Table of Contents

Supplier defaults may have a negative effect on operating results.

When the Company enters into fixed-price salesraotg with customers, it typically enters into fixgrice purchase contracts w
suppliers. Depending on changes in the market pot@roducts compared to the prices secured ircontracts with suppliers of LPG, natt
gas and electricity, a default of one or more afsuppliers under such contracts could cause parichase those commodities at higher pr
which would have a negative impact on our operatasgilts.

We are dependent on our principal propane supplieshich increases the risks from an interruption supply and transportation.

During Fiscal 2012, AmeriGas Propane purchased 80 of its propane needs from fifteen suppligrsupplies from these sourt
were interrupted, the cost of procuring replacensepplies and transporting those supplies fromradté/e locations might be materially hig
and, at least on a shddrm basis, our earnings could be affected. Addiiily, in certain areas, a single supplier may @ewnore than 50%
AmeriGas Propane's propane requirements. Disruptionsupply in these areas could also have an sevienpact on our earnings. (
international businesses are similarly dependeonupeir suppliers. There is no assurance thatirdarnational businesses will be able
continue to acquire sufficient supplies of LPG teandemand at prices or within time periods thatld@allow them to remain competitive.

Changes in commodity market prices may have a digant negative effect on our liquidity.

Depending on the terms of our contracts with s@ppland some large customers, as well as our usgaotial instruments to redu
volatility in the cost of LPG, electricity or natirgas, and for all of our contracts with the NYMEhanges in the market price of LI
electricity and natural gas can create margin paymkeligations for the Company or one of its sulasids and expose us to significant liquir
risks.

Our operations may be adversely affected by contipetifrom other energy sources.

Our energy products and services face competitiom fother energy sources, some of which are lestlyctor equivalent ener
value. In addition, we cannot predict the effeetttihe development of alternative energy sourceghniiave on our operations.

Our propane businesses compete for customers agasiers of electricity, fuel oil and naturalsg&lectricity is a major competit
of propane and is currently more expensive thapame for space heating, water heating and cookingl oil is also a major competitor
propane and is comparable in price to propane.deas and appliances that burn propane will notatpesn fuel oil and vice versa, a
therefore, a conversion from one fuel to the otfeguires the installation of new equipment. Ourt@oers generally have an incentive
switch to fuel oil only if fuel oil becomes sigrifintly less expensive than propane. Except foaremdustrial and commercial applicatic
propane is generally not competitive with naturas gn areas where natural gas pipelines already bgcause natural gas is generally a
expensive source of energy than propane. The gradpansion of natural gas distribution systemsun service areas has resulted, and
continue to result, in the availability of natugas in some areas that previously depended upgrapeo As long as natural gas remains &
expensive energy source than propane, our propasiedss will lose customers in each region intoclhiatural gas distribution systems
expanded. In France, the statened natural gas monopoly, Gaz de France, hdmipdst extended France's natural gas grid. Iriadddue ti
the prevalence of nuclear electric generation anEe, the cost of electricity is generally lessemgive than that of LPG, particularly when
cost to install new equipment to convert to LP@dasidered.

Our natural gas businesses compete primarily wébtecity and fuel oil, and, to a lesser extentthwpropane and coal. Competit
among these fuels is primarily a function of themparative price and the relative cost and efiicyeof fuel utilization equipment. There «
be no assurance that our natural gas revenuenatiie adversely affected by this competition.

Our ability to increase revenues is adversely aféetby the decline of the retail LPG industry.

The retail LPG distribution industry in the U.S.dasach of the European countries in which we opeisitmature, and has bt
declining over the past several years in the Urades, with no or modest growth in total demarddeen. Given this forecast, we expect
yearto-year industry volumes will be principally affectdéy weather patterns. Therefore, our ability to grawthin the LPG industry
dependent on our ability to acquire other retastribhutors and to achieve internal growth, whicbludes expansion of the domestic ACE
National Accounts programs in the U.S., as welthessuccess of our sales and marketing progranmgnaéekto attract and retain custom
Any failure to retain and grow our customer baseildave an adverse effect on our business, fiahnondition and results of operations.
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Our ability to grow our businesses will be adversaffected if we are nosuccessful in making acquisitions or integrating d
acquisitions we have made.

One of our strategies is to grow through acquisgtim the United States and in international markéte may choose to finance fut
acquisitions with debt, equity, cash or a comboratf the three. We can give no assurances thatilvénd attractive acquisition candidates
the future, that we will be able to acquire suchdidates on economically acceptable terms, thawillebe able to finance acquisitions
economically acceptable terms, that any acquistisifi not be dilutive to earnings or that any aatial debt incurred to finance an acquisi
will not affect our ability to pay dividends.

In addition, the restructuring of the energy maskatthe United States and internationally, inahgdihe privatization of government-
owned utilities and the sale of utility-owned assét creating opportunities for, and competitiooni, well-capitalized competitors, which rr
affect our ability to achieve our business strategy

To the extent we are successful in making acqaissti such acquisitions involve a number of risksesk risks include, but are
limited to, the assumption of material liabilitiethe diversion of management's attention from thenagement of daily operations to
integration of operations, difficulties in the asgiation and retention of employees and difficidtia the assimilation of different cultures .
practices, as well as in the assimilation of braad geographically dispersed personnel and oparatithe failure to successfully integi
acquisitions, including Heritage Propane, couldehan adverse effect on our business, financialiiondand results of operations.

Expanding our midstream asset business by consinghew facilities subjects us to risks.

One of the ways we seek to grow our midstream dmsshess is by constructing new pipelines andagaty systems, expanding
LNG facility and improving our gas storage facéii These construction projects involve numerogslatory, environmental, political a
legal uncertainties beyond our control and reqthes expenditure of significant amounts of capifdlese projects may not be completer
schedule, or at all, or at the anticipated costerddver, our revenues may not increase immediatpbn the expenditure of funds o
particular project. We may construct facilitiesdapture anticipated future growth in production aetnand in an area in which anticipe
growth and demand does not materialize. As a rethdte is the risk that new and expanded fadlitieay not be able to attract eno
customers to achieve our expected investment etuvhich could have a material adverse effect onbusiness, results of operation:
financial condition.

Our need to comply with comprehensive, complex, aothetimes unpredictablgovernment regulations may increase our costs
limit our revenue growth, which may result in reded earnings.

While we generally refer to our Gas Utility and &héc Utility segments as our “regulated segmentisgre are many governmet
regulations that have an impact on our businegsésting statutes and regulations may be revisaéioterpreted and new laws and regulai
may be adopted or become applicable to the Comipetynay affect our businesses in ways that we atgmmedict.

Regulators may not allow timely recovery of costs UGI Utilities in the future, which may adversely affect our results
operations.

In our Gas Utility and Electric Utility segmentsyrodistribution operations are subject to regulatiy the PUC. The PUC, amc
other things, approves the rates that UGI Utiliesl its subsidiaries, PNG and CPG, may charge titiéty customers, thus impacting
returns that UGI Utilities may earn on the asshtt tire dedicated to those operations. We expattUfsl Utilities will periodically file
requests with the PUC to increase base rates dicht@mpany charges customers. If UGI Utilitieseiguired in a rate proceeding to reduce
rates it charges its utility customers, or if UGHlitles is unable to obtain approval for timelytegancreases from the PUC, particularly w
necessary to cover increased costs, UGI Utilitmgenue growth will be limited and earnings mayrdase.

We are subject to operating and litigation risksathmay not be covered by insurance.

Our business operations in the U.S. and other desrdre subject to all of the operating hazardsrasks normally incidental to t
handling, storage and distribution of combustibiedpicts, such as LPG, propane and natural gashangeneration of electricity. These ri
could result in substantial losses due to personaty and/or loss of life, and severe damage td destruction of property and equipmr
arising from explosions and other catastrophic tsencluding acts of terrorism. As a result, we sometimes a defendant in legal proceet
and litigation arising in the ordinary course ofsimess. There can be no assurance that our inguveitidoe adequate to protect us from
material expenses related to pending and futummslar that such levels of insurance will be audéan the future at economical prices.
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We may be unable to respond effectively to commetjtwhich may adversely affect our operating retul

We may be unable to timely respond to changes mvithé energy and utility sectors that may resutrfrregulatory initiatives
further increase competition within our industryic8 regulatory initiatives may create opportunities additional competitors to enter
markets and, as a result, we may be unable to aiaiotir revenues or continue to pursue our culyasiness strategy.

Our net income will decrease if we are required iiocur additional costs tocomply with new governmental safety, hea
transportation, tax and environmental regulations.

We are subject to extensive and changing intemalkjdederal, state and local safety, health, partation, tax and environmental le
and regulations governing the storage, distribugind transportation of our energy products.

New regulations, or a change in the interpretatibexisting regulations, could result in increassgenditures. In addition, for me
of our operations, we are required to obtain pexfndm regulatory authorities. Failure to obtaircomply with these permits or applicable I
could result in civil and criminal fines or the sation of the operations in violation. Governmemn¢gjulations and policies in the United St
and Europe may provide for subsidies or incentiteesustomers who use alternative fuels insteadaoban fuels. These subsidies
incentives may result in reduced demand for ourggnproducts and services.

We are investigating and remediating contaminatiba number of present and former operating siteébe U.S., including form
sites where we or our former subsidiaries operatadufactured gas plants. We have also receiveshgliom third parties that allege that
are responsible for costs to clean up propertiesrevlive or our former subsidiaries operated a matwid gas plant or conducted o
operations. Costs we incur to remediate sites @eitsi Pennsylvania cannot currently be recoverd®U rate proceedings, and insurance
not cover all or even part of these costs. Ouradatasts to clean up these sites may exceed otentuestimates due to factors beyond
control, such as:

» the discovery of presently unknown conditic

» changes in environmental laws and regulat

» judicial rejection of our legal defenses to thed-party claims; ¢

» the insolvency of other responsible parties assites at which we are involve

In addition, if we discover additional contaminatgites, we could be required to incur material gosthich would reduce our 1
income.

Our operations, capital expenditures and financiedsults may be affecteby regulatory changes and/or market responses tabgl
climate change.

There continues to be concern, both nationally emernationally, about climate change and the dbation of greenhouse ¢
(“GHG”) emissions, most notably carbon dioxide, to globimhate change. In addition to carbon dioxide, gremrse gases include, am
others, methane, a component of natural gas. Vgbilee states have adopted laws or regulations tagylthe emission of GHGs for so
industry sectors, there is currently no federalregional legislation mandating the reduction of Gld@issions in the United States.
September 2009, the Environmental Protection AgefiEPA”) issued a final rule establishing a system for mamglareporting of GH(
emissions. In November 2010, the EPA expanded ¢hehr of its GHG reporting requirements to include petroleum and natural ¢
industries. Petroleum and natural gas facilitiebjestt to the rule, which include facilities of ouatural gas distribution and electric
generation businesses, were required to begin Emsssonitoring in January 2011 and to submit dedadnnual reports beginning in Ma
2012. The rule does not require affected facilitesnplement GHG emission controls or reductions.

It is expected that climate change legislation wilhtinue to be part of the legislative and reguratdiscussion for the foreseee
future. Increased regulation of GHG emissions, @gflg in the transportation sector, could impogmniicant additional costs on us and
customers. The impact of such legislation and wguis will depend on a number of factors, inclgd{i) what industry sectors would
impacted, (ii) the timing of required complianci#) ¢the overall GHG emissions cap level, (iv) thkocation of emission allowances to spe:
sources, and (v) the costs and opportunities assacivith compliance. At this time, we cannot peetiie effect that climate change regula
may have on our business, financial condition sults of operations in the future.
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Our international operations could result in incresed risks which may negatively affect our businessults.

We currently operate LPG distribution businesseBumope through our subsidiaries and we continuexfdore the expansion of ¢
international businesses. As a result, we facesriskdoing business abroad that we do not face didicadly. Certain aspects inheren
transacting business internationally could negétiirapact our operating results, including:

« costs and difficulties in staffing and managingmational operation

« tariffs and other trade barrie

« difficulties in enforcing contractual righ

« longer payment cycle

« local political and economic conditions, includitg current financial downturn in the euro z«

» potentially adverse tax consequences, includkstrictions on repatriating earnings and the thwéédouble taxation;’

« fluctuations in currency exchange rates, whichaféect demand and increase our ct

« internal control and risk management practicespaiities

* regulatory requirements and changes in regulatequirements, including Norwegian, Swiss and EU cslitipn laws that me
adversely affect the terms of contracts with cusi@anincluding with respect to exclusive supplyhtgy and stricter regulatic
applicable to the storage and handling of LPG; and

* new and inconsistently enforced LPG industry requarequirements, which can have an adverse effeciur competitive positia

Unforeseen difficulties with the implementation @peration of ourinformation systems could adversely affect our irial controls
and our businesses.

We contracted with thirgharty consultants to assist us with the designianpdementation of an information system that supptne
Partnership's Order-t8ash business processes. The efficient executitdmed?artnership's business is dependent uporrépepfunctioning ¢
its internal systems. Any significant failure or lfnaction of the Partnership's or our other businesits' information systems may resul
disruptions of their operations. Our results of rafiens could be adversely affected if we encountdbreseen problems with respect to
operation of our information systems.

We may not be able to successfully integrate Hegd@aPropane's operations with AmeriGas OLP's opeoais, which could caus
our business to suffer.

In order to obtain the anticipated benefits of #Hoguisition of Heritage Propane, AmeriGas OLP ndedsontinue to combine a
integrate the businesses and operations of HerPagpane with its own. The combination of two lalgesinesses is a complex and cc
process. As a result, AmeriGas OLP is requiredeteote significant management attention and ressuxcéntegrating the business pract
and operations of AmeriGas OLP and Heritage Praopdhe integration process may divert the attentidnour executive officers al
management from day-tday operations and disrupt the business of Ameri@aR and, if implemented ineffectively, precludalization o
the full benefits of the transaction expected hy us

Our failure to meet the challenges involved in ssstully integrating Heritage Propane's operatisitls AmeriGas OLP's operatia
or otherwise to realize any of the anticipated fienef the combination could adversely affect oesults of operations. In addition, the ove
integration of AmeriGas OLP and Heritage Propang reault in unanticipated problems, expenses,liiesi, competitive responses and los
customer relationships. We expect the difficuldésombining our operations to include, among ather

* preserving important strategic and customer reatigps

* maintaining employee morale and retaining key eyg#s

» developing and implementing employment policiefatilitate workforce integratio

« the diversion of management's attention from ongbinsiness concer!

« the integration of multiple information syste!

« regulatory, legal, taxation and other unanticipassdes in integrating operating and financial eys
« coordinating marketing functior

« consolidating corporate and administrative infractinres and eliminating duplicative operations;
« integrating the cultures of AmeriGas OLP and Heggt&ropan:

In addition, even if we are able to successfullggnate our businesses and operations, we mayuliptréalize the expected benefits of
acquisition within the intended time frame, or bt RBurther, our poscquisition results of operations may be affectedalstors different fror
those existing prior to the acquisition and mayfesuas a result of the acquisition. As a result,ceanot assure you that the combinatic
AmeriGas OLP's business and operations with HeziRgpane will result in the
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realization of the full benefits anticipated frohetacquisition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

With the exception of those matters set forth inteNd5 to Consolidated Financial Statements includeliem 8 of this Report, 1
material legal proceedings are pending involving @ompany, any of its subsidiaries, or any of tpeaperties, and no such proceedings
known to be contemplated by governmental autheriither than claims arising in the ordinary cowfsBusiness.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
None.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Information regarding our executive officers islimed in Part Ill of this Report and is incorpoxhie Part | by reference.
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PART II:

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stockhaxge under the symbol “UGIThe following table sets forth the high ¢
low sales prices for the Common Stock on the NewkY3tock Exchange Composite Transactions tapepastesl inThe Wall Street Journ
for each full quarterly period within the two mastent fiscal years:

2012 Fiscal Year High Low

4th Quarter $ 31.87 29.5: $ 29.52
3rd Quarter 29.7 26.3(
2nd Quarter 30.2¢ 26.01
1st Quarter 30.22 24.07
2011 Fiscal Year High Low

4th Quarter $ 32.6¢ $ 25.81
3rd Quarter 33.5: 30.22
2nd Quarter 33.3¢ 30.6:
1st Quarter 32.4¢ 28.57
Dividends

Quarterly dividends on our Common Stock were pailiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 as follows:

2012 Fiscal Year Amount

4th Quarter $ 0.27
3rd Quarter 0.2¢
2nd Quarter 0.2¢
1st Quarter 0.2¢
2011 Fiscal Year Amount

4th Quarter $ 0.2¢€
3rd Quarter 0.2t
2nd Quarter 0.2t
1st Quarter 0.2t

Record Holders

On November 13, 2012, UGI had 7,225 holders ofneeod Common Stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended September 30,

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2012 (a) 2011 2010 2009 2008
FOR THE PERIOD:
Income statement data:
Revenues $ 6,519.. $ 6,091.0 $ 5591.. % 5737.¢ $ 6,648.:
Net income $ 186.6 % 308.2 % 355.7 % 382.C % 305.:
Add net loss (deduct net income) attributabl
noncontrolling interests, principally in
AmeriGas Partners 12.¢ (75.9) (94.7) (123.5) (89.9)
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation $ 199..  § 232.¢ % 261.C % 258.f $ 215.¢
Earnings per common share attributable to
stockholders:
Basic $ 177 % 20¢ % 238 % 23t % 2.01
Diluted $ 1.7¢ % 206 % 236 % 236 % 1.9¢
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 106 $ 1.0z % 09C % 0.78t % 0.75¢
AT PERIOD END:
Balance sheet data:
Total assets $ 9,709. $ 6,663.. $ 6,374.. $ 6,042.¢ $ 5,685.(
Capitalization:
Debt:
Bank loans — UGI Utilities $ 9.2 % —  $ 17.C % 154.C $ 57.C
Bank loans — AmeriGas Propane 49.¢ 95.k 91.C — —
Bank loans — International Propane 21.C 18.¢ 92.4 9.1 79.4
Bank loans — other 85.C 24.: — — —
Long-term debt (including current
maturities):
AmeriGas Propane 2,328.( 933.t 791.2 865.€ 933.4
International Propane 573.¢ 571.c 561.1 613.¢ 589.t
UGI Utilities 600.( 640.( 640.( 640.( 532.(
Other 12.¢ 12.¢ 13.: 13.7 14.2
Total debt 3,679. 2,296. 2,206.: 2,296.: 2,205.!
UGI Corporation stockholders’ equity 2,233.: 1,977. 1,824." 1,591.. 1,417.
Noncontrolling interests, principally in
AmeriGas Partners 1,085." 213.¢ 237.1 225.¢ 159.2
Total capitalization $ 6,998.: $ 4487 % 4,267.¢ 3 4,113 % 3,782.¢
Ratio of capitalization:
Total debt 52.6% 51.2% 51.7% 55.8% 58.2%
UGI Corporation stockholders’ equity 31.%% 44.1% 42.8% 38.7% 37.5%
Noncontrolling interests, principally in
AmeriGas Partners 15.5% 4.7% 5.5% 5.5% 4.2%
100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

(a) Reflects Heritage Propane beginning Januargd2? (see Note 4 to Consolidated Financial Statéshe
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT" S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operations (“MD&Aliscusses our results of operati
and our financial condition. MD&A should be readcionjunction with our ltems 1 & 2, “Business anaparties,” our Item 1A, “Risk Factors”
and our Consolidated Financial Statements in Itelbel®w including “Segment Informatiorificluded in Note 21 to Consolidated Finan
Statements.

Executive Overview

We recorded net income attributable to UGI Corporein Fiscal 2012 of $199.4 million, equal to $a fer diluted share, compares
net income attributable to UGI Corporation in Fis2@11 of $232.9 million, equal to $2.06 per dillitghare. Our results in Fiscal 2012 v
significantly affected by record-setting warm hegtseason weather in the United States and hesgiagon weather in Europe that was wa
than normal and warmer than the prior year. The &#8y and AmeriGas Propane heating seasons eadiedptly in March 2012 as Mar
temperatures in both service territories were nbam 38% warmer than normal. In Europe, only onathof the heating season was ¢
below normal. At our Midstream & Marketingenergy Services business, the Fiscal 2012 weagiseited in lower volumes and margin ft
natural gas marketing activities, and lower and lealatile natural gas prices during Fiscal 201duoed capacity management total ma
Our Midstream & Marketing Electric Generation business unit margins wereweele prior year reflecting the weather's impactdeman:
for electricity and the effects of lower naturakgaices on electricity prices.

Results for Fiscal 2012 were also affected by l{g)danuary 2012 acquisition of Heritage PropaaradriGas Partners (the "Herite
Acquisition") and (2) the October 2011 acquisitiminShell’s LPG distribution businesses in the United Kingd®&uwlgium, the Netherlanc
Luxembourg, Denmark, Finland, Norway and Swedea (8hell Transaction") at our International Prophnsiness segment. On January
2012, AmeriGas Partners completed the acquisitidhesubsidiaries of ETP which operated ESBropane distribution business (collecti
referred to as “Heritage PropandQr total consideration of approximately $2.6 loifli including approximately $1.5 billion in cashd
29,567,362 AmeriGas Partners Common Units. In Gamtab011, we completed the Shell Transaction foalt@ash consideration
€133.6 million ($179.0 million). The results of tleeacquired businesses are included in our consetidasults from their respective date
acquisition (see Note 4 to Consolidated Finandiatesnents).

We believe that each of our business units hascgrif liquidity in the form of revolving credit &dities, and in the case of Ene
Services also an accounts receivable securitizédidlity, to fund business operations in Fiscal 20

Looking ahead, our results in Fiscal 2013 will hiuenced by a number of factors including heasiegson temperatures, the level
volatility of commaodity prices for natural gas, LP@8ectricity and oil, and economic conditions e tU.S. and Europe. During the last se\
years, we have taken a number of steps towardexatielg our future growth including the April 20fransfer of CPG's underground nat
gas storage assets to our Midstream & Marketingnbss; the completion of the conversion and expansf the Hunlock Creek gdsed
electricity generating station in July 2011; thedber 2011 Shell Transaction; and the Partnerstapguisition of Heritage Propane in Jan
2012. In addition, at our Midstream & Marketingrergy Services business we are continuing workwgathering system in the Marce
Shale region in northern Pennsylvania and we camgléhe expansion of our Temple, Pennsylvania, ljledit during Fiscal 2012. With t
return of normal weather patterns, we hope to teafpenefits from these growth initiatives in FIs2@13 and beyond.

Results of Operations

The following analyses compare the Company’s reseiitoperations for (1) Fiscal 2012 with Fiscal 2Gind (2) Fiscal 201vith the
year endeSeptember 30, 2010 (“Fiscal 2010 ).
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Fiscal 2012 Compared with Fiscal 2011
Consolidated Results

Net Income Attributable to UGI Corporation by Business Unit:

Variance - Favorable

2012 2011 (Unfavorable)
% of % of

(Dollars in millions) Amount Total Amount Total Amount % Change
AmeriGas Propane $ 15.¢ 8.0% $ 39.¢ 17.% $ (24.0) (60.2)%
International Propane 65.1 32.6% 41.C 17.€% 24.1 58.6 %
Gas Utility 80.t 40.%% 99.5 42.6% (18.¢) (18.9%
Midstream & Marketing 36.4 18.2% 52.t 22.5% (16.7 (30.9)%
Corporate & Other 15 0.7% 0.2 0.2% 1.3 N.M.
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation $ 199.¢ 100.% $ 232.¢ 100.(% $ (33.5) (14.9%

N.M. — Variance is not meaningful.

Highlights — Fiscal 2012 versus Fiscal 2011

» Our U.S. and European business units were adyeaffelcted by significantly warmer heatisgason temperatures during Fi
2012. The Fiscal 2012 heating season in the UrBeda an abrupt end in March 2012.

» Fiscal 2012 consolidated results were impactedhieyHeritage Acquisition at AmeriGas Propane andShell Transaction
Europe. Results include combined pre-tax acquisidiond transition expenses totaling approximately $lion (aftertax impac
of $13.3 million equal to $0.12 per diluted share).

* AmeriGas Propane Fiscal 2012 results include.a illion aftertax loss ($0.02 per diluted share) on extinguishtmen deh
while Fiscal 2011 results include a $10.3 millidrertax loss ($0.09 per diluted share) on extisgmients of debt.

e Midstream & Marketing net income was lower in Fis2@12 reflecting the effects of warmer weathematural gas volumes st
and lower unit margins from our Electric Generatirsiness. Lower and less volatile natural gaseprio Fiscal 2012 reduc
capacity management income.

e Fiscal 2012 International Propane net incomeefitad from a lower effective income tax rate. Ris2011 Antargazresult:
include $9.4 million ($0.08 per diluted share) frohe reversal of a nontaxable reserve associatédthe French Competitis
Authority Matter.

Increase
AmeriGas Propane 2012 2011 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 2,921.¢ $ 2,538.( $ 383.¢ 15.1%
Total margin (a) $ 1,201.¢ $ 932.7 $ 269.: 28.£%
Partnership EBITDA (b) $ 324.7 $ 297.1 $ 27.€ 9.3%
Operating income $ 170.: $ 242.¢ $ (72.¢) (29.9%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 1,017t 874.; 143.% 16.4%
Degree days — % (warmer) than normal (c) (18.6% (12.0% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sale:

(b) Partnership EBITDA (earnings before interest expeimscome taxes and depreciation and amortizagsboyld not be considered as
alternative to net income (as an indicator of opegaperformance) and is not a measure of perfoomanr financial condition und
accounting principles generally accepted in thetééhtates of America (“GAAP"Management uses Partnership EBITDA as the pri
measure of segment profitability for the AmeriGasfane segment (see Note 21 to Consolidated FialaBtatements). Partners
EBITDA for Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 includes-tae losses of $13.3 million and $38.1 million asated with extinguishments
debt. Partnership EBITDA and operating income figsc®8l 2012 also includes acquisition and transitexpenses of $46.2 milli
associated with Heritage Propane.
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(c) Deviation from average heating degree daysttier 30-year period 1972000 based upon national weather statistics pradvige the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administrati“NOAA”) for 335 airports in the United States, exding Alaska.

Based upon heating degrday data, temperatures in the Partnership's seteicéories during Fiscal 2012 averaged 18.6% vea
than normal and 18.3% warmer than Fiscal 2011.Wihter heating season also came to an early erfdtesihperatures in the month of Ma
averaging 38% warmer than normal. Notwithstandimg tecord warm weather's impact on our legacy AGasiPropane volumes, re
propane gallons sold were 143.3 million gallonsatgethan in the prior year reflecting the impdadtieritage Propane.

Retail propane revenues increased $362.8 millioiduriscal 2012 primarily reflecting higher retaitlumes sold. The higher rer
volumes sold reflects incremental gallons sold eissed with Heritage Propane partially offset bg #ffects of weathareduced volumes
AmeriGas Propane's legacy operations. Wholesalpape revenues decreased $45.7 million principa&fiecting lower wholesale volum
sold ($28.8 million) and lower average wholesaleppne selling prices ($16.9 million). Average dailfiolesale propane commodity pri
during Fiscal 2012 at Mont Belvieu, Texas, onehaf major supply points in the U.S., were approx@lya0% lower than such prices dur
Fiscal 2011. Total revenues from fee income aneérotimcillary sales and services in Fiscal 2012 v&&5 million higher than Fiscal 2C
reflecting such revenues from Heritage PropanealTaatst of sales increased $114.4 million prindipegflecting incremental cost of sales fr
Heritage Propane offset in part by both the preslpunentioned lower retail and wholesale volumds &y our legacy AmeriGas Prope
operations and the lower average propane commpditgs.

Total margin increased $269.2 million in Fiscal 2G&flecting higher total propane margin ($220.Tiam) and higher total marg
from ancillary sales and services ($48.5 millioFfe increases principally reflect incremental marfgom Heritage Propane partially offset
lower total propane margin from legacy AmeriGaspree operations resulting from the significantlymvar weather.

Partnership EBITDA (which includes the losses ominggiishments of debt) in Fiscal 2012 increased.@avillion principally
reflecting the higher total margin ($269.2 millioajpd a $24.8 million lower loss from extinguishneenf debt partially offset by higk
operating and administrative expenses ($268.1anjliprimarily attributable to Heritage Propane cBIs2012 operating expenses include $
million of acquisition and transition expenses a&s#ed with Heritage Propane. Operating income ¢tvhexcludes the losses
extinguishments of debt) decreased $72.6 millioRigtal 2012 principally reflecting the higher fateargin ($269.2 million) more than off:
by the increased operating expenses ($268.1 njilhod greater depreciation and amortization expébgé.4 million) principally associat
with Heritage Propane.

Increase
International Propane 2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 1,946.( $ 1,488. $ 457.2 30.7%
Total margin (a) $ 620.z $ 517.¢ $ 102.3 19.8%
Operating income $ 111.¢ $ 86.1 $ 25.7 29.8%
Income before income taxes $ 80.€ $ 57.C $ 23.€ 41.%%
Retail gallons sold (millions) (b) 576.5 429.7 146.¢ 34.2%
Antargaz degree days — % (warmer) than normal (c) (10.9% (7.9% — —
Flaga degree days — % (warmer) than normal (c) (8.9% (4.6% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sale:
(b) Excludes retail gallons from operations in Ch
(c) Deviation from average heating degree daysi®130-year period 1972000 at locations in our Antargaz and Flaga serndngtories

International Propane operating results in Fis€dl22include the operating results from the ShednEaction. Based upon hea
degree day data, temperatures across Europe vggriéicsintly warmer than normal and warmer than ghier year. Weather at Antargaz \
approximately 10.3% warmer than normal in Fiscdl26ompared to weather that was approximately W@¥mer than normal in Fiscal 20
Temperatures in Flaga's central and eastern Eumopeerations were approximately 8.8% warmer thamabin Fiscal 2012 compared
temperatures that were approximately 4.6% warman thormal in Fiscal 2011. During Fiscal 2012, tiwverage unweighted wholesa
commodity price for propane in northwest Europe sagroximately
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4% higher than such prices in Fiscal 2011, whikedkierage umveighted wholesale commaodity price for butane waeximately 5% hight
than Fiscal 2011. Retail LPG gallons sold were &éighan the prior year reflecting incremental vohsnof approximately 175 million gallc
associated with the Shell Transaction partiallyseffby the effects of warmer and erratic weathetrepas on volumes sold in our leg:
International Propane operations.

Our International Propane baserrency results are translated into U.S. doll@seld upon exchange rates experienced during e
the reporting periods. The functional currency sfgnificant portion of our International Propamsults is denominated in euros. During Fi
2012 and Fiscal 2011, the averageweighted translation rate was approximately $1.80 $1.40 per euro, respectively. The differenc
exchange rates did not have a significant impadhternational Propane net income.

International Propane revenues increased $4571®mihotwithstanding the effects of the signifitlgnvarmer weather, principal
reflecting the effects of the Shell Transactionpfagimately $569 million) partially offset by loweevenues from our legacy European |
distribution businesses due in large part to theces of the weaker euro. Cost of sales increas&d £325.8 million in Fiscal 2012 from $97
million in Fiscal 2011 principally reflecting inameental cost of sales from the Shell Transactiopri@amately $443 million) offset by low
cost of sales from our legacy European LPG distignubusinesses due in large part to the effecteefveaker euro.

Total International Propane margin increased $168l8n principally reflecting incremental margiftom the Shell Transacti
(approximately $125.8 million) and higher unit miasgat our Antargaz legacy operations partiallyseffby the effects of the lower volume
our legacy Antargaz and Flaga units resulting fthenwarmer weather.

International Propane operating income in Fiscdl2@as $25.7 million higher than Fiscal 2011 pipadly reflecting the higher tot
margin ($102.3 million) resulting from the Shellafisaction offset by incremental expenses assoaidtedhese acquired businesses, inclu
operating and administrative expenses, depreciatahacquisition integration costs. Fiscal 2012rafireg and administrative expenses inc
approximately $7.0 million of Shell Transactionris&tion expenses. Fiscal 2011 operating incomaudes $9.4 million of other income fr(
the reversal at Antargaz of a nontaxable resersecésted with the FrendBompetition Authority Matter. The $23.6 million irgase in incon
before income taxes principally reflects the pregly mentioned increase in operating income ($2illfon) partially offset by a $2.7 millic
increase in interest expense, principally highterest expense on Antargaz' lolegm debt and higher Flaga debt outstanding. Netrire fron
International Propane operations in Fiscal 2012he&d from a lower International Propane effeciiveome tax rate resulting from the img
of tax efficient structuring of certain of our intational operations, the realization of $4.6 miiliof previously unrecognized foreign
credits, and a higher proportion of pre-tax incomkewer statutory tax-rate countries as a resuthe Shell Transaction.

Increase

Gas Utility 2012 2011 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 785.¢ $ 1,026« % (241.0 (23.5%
Total margin (a) $ 382.¢ $ 415.¢ % (32.9 (7.9%
Operating income $ 172.2 $ 199.¢ $ (27.9 (13.9)%
Income before income taxes $ 132.] $ 1592 $ (27.3) (17.0%
System throughput — billions of cubic feet (“bcf”)

Core market 59.2 70.£ (11.2) (15.9%

Total 177.¢ 173.2 4.4 2E5%
Degree days — % (warmer) colder than normal (b) (16.9% 3.5% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less totl af sale:

(b) Deviation from average heating degree daysthier 15-year period 1995309 based upon weather statistics provided byNdgona
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) fairports located within Gas Utility’s service téory.

Temperatures in the Gas Utility service territamnyHiscal 2012 based upon heating degree days véeB&clwarmer than normal &
approximately 18.7% warmer than the prior year.aldistribution system throughput was slightly teglthan last year, notwithstanding
significantly warmer weather, principally refleajigreater throughput to certain non-weather-semsitiv-margin interruptible delivery servi
customers. Excluding total volumes to interruptibédivery service customers, Gas Utility systenotighput declined 14.3 bcf in Fiscal 2!
principally reflecting the effects of the signifitdy warmer weather
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on throughput to core market customers (11.2 buf) lawer firm delivery service volumes. Gas Utistgore market customers comprise firm
residential, commercial and industrial (“retail @anarket”)customers who purchase their gas from Gas Ultilily, @0 a much lesser exte
residential and small commercial customers wholmse their gas from alternate suppliers.

Gas Utility revenues decreased $241.0 million dyffilscal 2012 principally reflecting a decline evenues from retail congarke
customers ($169.4 million) and lower revenues fraffasystem sales ($68.1 million). The decreaseetail coremarket revenues principa
reflects the effects on gas cost recovery reventiise lower retail corenarket volumes ($91.9 million) and lower averagechased gas cc
("PGC") rates resulting from lower natural gas esi¢$43.2 million). Increases or decreases inlretme-market revenues and cost of s
principally result from changes in retail carearket volumes and the level of gas costs colletttesligh the PGC recovery mechanism. U
the PGC recovery mechanism, Gas Utility recordscthet of gas associated with sales to retail comeket customers at amounts include
PGC rates. The difference between actual gas eostshe amounts included in rates is deferred erb#iance sheet as a regulatory ass
liability and represents amounts to be collectednfior refunded to customers in a future periodaAssult of this PGC recovery mechan
increases or decreases in the cost of gas assbeidte retail core-market customers have no diedfgct on retail corenarket margin. G
Utility's cost of gas was $402.5 million in Fis@012 compared with $610.6 million in Fiscal 201fleeting the previously mentioned lov
retail core-market sales ($91.9 million), the loweerage PGC rates ($43.2 million) and the abovetioeed lower off-system sales.

Gas Utility total margin decreased $32.9 milliorFiscal 2012. The decrease principally reflectsdowore market total margin ($2
million) and firm delivery service total margin (84million). Fiscal 2012 Gas Utility total margindludes a fullyear of incremental marc
from the August 2011 base rate increase at CP@mbaimately $9.0 million.

The decreases in Gas Utility operating income awedme before income taxes during Fiscal 2012 prailyi reflects the previous
mentioned decrease in total margin ($32.9 millipaitially offset by lower operating and administratexpenses.

Midstream & Marketing 2012 2011 Decrease
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues (a) $ 853.C % 1,059.. $ (206.7) (19.9%
Total margin (b) $ 1285 $ 139.7 % (11.2) (8.0)%
Operating income $ 62.£ % 82.¢ $ (20.5) (24.7%
Income before income taxes $ 57.¢ $ 80.2 $ (22.¢) (28.2%

(a) Amounts are net of intercompany revenues betw&idstream & Marketing's Energy Services and Eledeneration segments.
(b) Total margin represents total revenues less toist of sales.

Midstream & Marketing Fiscal 2012 results were ictpd by significantly warmer than normal heatsggson temperatures and lo
and less volatile natural gas prices. Midstream &rkéting total revenues decreased $206.7 millioRiscal 2012 principally reflecting low
total revenues from natural gas marketing actigi{fg211.6 million), the result of lower averageunat gas prices and lower volumes sold
to the warmer weather and, to a much lesser eXtemér electric generation revenues ($6.1 millianyl capacity management revenues |
million). These decreases were partially offsegBater retail power revenues ($8.9 million), retileg higher sales, and higher storage ser
revenues ($7.5 million).

The $11.2 million decrease in Midstream & Marke®ngptal margin principally reflects lower natugds marketing total marg
($17.4 million), lower capacity management totalrgma ($5.8 million), principally the result of tHewer and less volatile natural gas pri
and lower electric generation total margin ($2.1liom) partially offset by greater retail power,tneal gas storage and gas gathering
margin. The decrease in electric generation totaigm principally reflects the effects of lower @lgcity prices due in large part to the
effects on electricity prices of lower natural geises.

Midstream & Marketing's operating income in Fis2@ll2 was $20.5 million lower than the priggar period reflecting the decreas
total margin ($11.2 million) and greater operatiadministrative and depreciation expenses assdciaith electric generation assets (§
million), including incremental expenses associatétth the repowered Hunlock Station and higher el maintenance expenses assoc
with the Conemaugh generation station, and greatergy marketing and storage services' operatidgadministrative expenses. The dec
in income before income taxes reflects the lowearapng income ($20.5
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million) and greater interest expense principaliymergy Services' credit facility borrowings.

Interest Expense.Our consolidated interest expense was $83.5 miltigher in Fiscal 2012 reflecting higher AmeriGamfane intere
expense ($79.1 million) on debt issued to fund ltegitage Acquisition; greater International Propamnterest expense ($2.7 million); ¢
slightly higher Midstream & Marketing interest expge.

Income Taxes.Our effective income tax rate in Fiscal 2012 waesaggr than in Fiscal 2011 principally reflectingrach smaller share of pre-
tax income from AmeriGas Partners which incomeesggally not subject to entifgvel income taxes. Excluding the impact on theatfe
income tax rate of AmeriGas Partners' fme-income not subject to tax, the Fiscal 2012 atffe tax rate was lower than in Fiscal 2
reflecting, in large part, the effects of the poasly mentioned lower International Propane incaaxerate. The Fiscal 2011 effective tax
was reduced by, among other things, the effechefreversal of the $9.4 million reserve associatéd the French Competition Author
Matter at Antargaz which was not subject to tax thelregulatory effects of greater state tax deatien (as further described below un
“UGI Utilities Income Taxes”).

Fiscal 2011 Compared with Fiscal 2010
Consolidated Results

Net Income Attributable to UGI Corporation by Business Unit:

Variance - Favorable

2011 2010 (Unfavorable)
% of % of

(Dollars in millions) Amount Total Amount Total Amount % Change
AmeriGas Propane $ 39.¢ 17.1% $ 47.2 18.1% $ (7.9 (15.6%
International Propane 41.C 17.€% 58.¢ 22.5% (17.9 (30.9%
Gas Utility 99.5 42.6% 83.1 31.8% 16.2 19.5%
Midstream & Marketing 52.t 22.5% 68.2 26.1% (15.9) (23.0%
Corporate & Other 0.2 0.2% 3.€ 1.5% (3.9) N.M.
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation  $ 232.¢ 100.(% $ 261.( 100.(% $ (28.7) (10.8%

N.M. — Variance is not meaningful.

Highlights — Fiscal 2011 versus Fiscal 2010

e Gas Utility results in Fiscal 2011 reflect thenlefits of colder heatingeason weather. Gas Utility results in Fiscal 2@alkt
include lower state income tax expense resultiamfthe regulatory effects of greater state tax @gption.

» Antargaz’'Fiscal 2011 results were negatively affected bymearthan normal late winter and spring weatherltieguin an earl
end to the heating season. Antarg&sults also include $9.4 million from the reversih nontaxable reserve associated witl
French Competition Authority Matter. Antargaz resuh Fiscal 2011 were approximately $7.3 millieaver than in Fiscal 20:
due to year-over-year differences in euro to dallarency rates.

* AmeriGas Propane Fiscal 2011 results includé@3million aftertax loss on extinguishments of debt while Fiscal@@esult
include a $3.3 million after-tax loss on interesterhedges.

e Midstream & Marketing net income was lower irs¢al 2011 as Fiscal 2010 included a $17.2 milliterdax gain from the sa
of Atlantic Energy.

Increase
AmeriGas Propane 2011 2010 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 2,538.( $ 2,320. $ 217.5 9.4%
Total margin (a) $ 932.% $ 925.2 $ 7.t 0.8 %
Partnership EBITDA (b) $ 297.1 $ 321.( $ (23.9 (7.9)%
Operating income $ 242.¢ $ 235.¢ $ 7.1 3.C%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 874.2 893.¢ (19.2) (2.0)%
Degree days — % (warmer) than normal (c) (1.0% (2.9% — —
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(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sale:

(b) Partnership EBITDA (earnings before interest expemscome taxes and depreciation and amortizagboyld not be considered as
alternative to net income (as an indicator of ofsegaperformance) and is not a measure of perfoomaor financial condition und
GAAP. Management uses Partnership EBITDA as theay measure of segment profitability for the An@a$ Propane segment (
Note 21 to Consolidated Financial Statements).neeship EBITDA for Fiscal 2011 includes -tax losses of $38.1 associated \
extinguishments of debt. Partnership operatingrmeand EBITDA for Fiscal 2010 includes a pag-loss of $12.2 million associated v
the discontinuance of interest rate hedges and-gaprloss of $7 million associated with an inceeisa litigation accrual.

(c) Deviation from average heating degree dayshier30-year period 1972000 based upon national weather statistics pravigeNOAA foi
335 airports in the United States, excluding Alaska

Based upon heating degree-day data, average tetomgsrén the Partnership’service territories were 1.0% warmer than nordoging
Fiscal 2011 compared with weather that was appratéin 2.3% warmer than normal in Fiscal 2010. Retedpane gallons sold declir
principally due to the effects of an early endtie heating season in our southern regions, custoomservation and the impact on Ameri
Propane’s prior-year volumes of a strong crop-dyygeason partially offset by volumes acquired thhoacquisitions.

Retail propane revenues increased $177.3 milliomduFiscal 2011 reflecting higher average retaiés prices ($220.2 million) partia
offset by lower retail volumes sold ($42.9 milliohyholesale propane revenues increased $24.4 mlimcipally reflecting higher wholes:
selling prices ($29.9 million) partially offset Isjightly lower wholesale volumes sold ($5.5 milljoAverage wholesale propane prices at
Belvieu, Texas, a major supply location in the Uvgere approximately 27% higher in Fiscal 2011 carefd with average wholesale prop
prices during Fiscal 2010. Revenues from fee incantkancillary sales and services increased $1#i0min Fiscal 2011. Total cost of sa
increased $210.2 million, to $1,605.3 million, mwipally reflecting the higher Fiscal 2011 wholesatepane product costs.

Total margin was $7.5 million higher in Fiscal 2044 higher nompropane margin from fee income and certain angitbates and servic
was offset in part by lower retail propane totargia ($2.9 million). The lower retail propane totahrgin reflects the effects of the lower re
volumes sold ($17.5 million) partially offset byetleffects of slightly higher average retail unitrgias ($14.6 million).

The $23.9 million decrease in EBITDA during Fis@011 includes (1) losses on the extinguishment®atnership Senior Nol
($38.1 million) and (2) modestly higher operatimgladministrative expenses ($10.9 million). Theatisg effects of these items on the che
in Partnership EBITDA were partially offset by ¢he absence of a $12.2 million loss recorded ind2010 resulting from the discontinua
of interest rate hedges; (2) higher other inconte7(#illion); and (3) the previously mentioned dezaotal margin ($7.5 million). The higt
operating and administrative expenses in Fiscall2incipally includes greater compensation andefitn expenses ($13.2 million) &
vehicle fuel expenses ($8.3 million) partially @fdy lower self-insured liability and casualty erges ($6.3 million).

Operating income (which excludes the loss on existgnents of debt) increased $7.1 million in Fi@l1 principally reflecting (1) tl
previously mentioned higher total margin ($7.5 ioil); (2) the absence of the loss on interest hatedges recorded in Fiscal 2010 ($:
million); and (3) the higher other income ($5.7Iiait) partially offset by the higher operating aadministrative expenses ($10.9 million)
greater depreciation and amortization ($7.3 mi)lion

Increase
International Propane 2011 2010 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 1,488.° $ 1,059.! $ 429.2 40.E%
Total margin (a) $ 517.¢ $ 477 .4 $ 40.t 8.E%
Operating income $ 86.1 $ 117.( $ (30.9 (26.9)%
Income before income taxes $ 57.C $ 89.t $ (32.5) (36.9%
Retail gallons sold (millions) (b) 429.7 350.: 79.4 22.1%
Antargaz degree days — % (warmer) than normal (c) (7.8% (0.5% — —
Flaga degree days — % (warmer) than normal (c) (4.6)% (0.5% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sale:
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(b) Excludes retail gallons from operations in Ch
(c) Deviation from average heating degree dayshfer30-year period 1972000 at locations in our Antargaz and Flaga senéogtories

Based upon heating degree-day data, temperaturésitargaz’ service territory were approximately 7.8% warmeantmormal an
warmer than Fiscal 2010. Temperatures in Flaga'giceterritory were also warmer than normal andmex than the prior year. Antargaz’
retail volumes declined principally due to the warririscal 2011 weather and, to a lesser extergprduced customer conservation resul
from higher year-oveyear LPG product prices. LPG wholesale productegricmse rapidly principally during the first quarté Fiscal 201
compared with more gradual price increases durisgafF 2010. Based upon posted wholesale LPG piicesrthwest Europe, Fiscal 2C
average eurdased propane and butane costs were approxime@éty Hegher than in Fiscal 2010. The increase inl tagtail gallons sol
reflects the effects of Flaga acquisitions madeata Fiscal 2010 and early Fiscal 2011.

Our International Propane baserrency results are translated into U.S. dollaseld upon exchange rates experienced during eahk
reporting periods. The dollar was generally strorgy#ring the 2011 heating season months and wehka@ng the remainder of Fiscal 20
The effects of these differences in exchange ratgsced Antargaz Fiscal 2011 net income compardaktgear by approximately $7.3 milli
or 6 cents per diluted share.

International Propane revenues increased $4291@mdr 40.5% principally reflecting higher reversufom Antargaz ($163.5 millio
and Flaga ($254.9 million). The increase in Antargavenues principally reflects the effects of leighverage retail selling prices and hig
wholesale revenues. The higher Flaga revenuestdfie effects of the previously mentioned acquisg and higher average retail prices.
higher average retail prices resulted from the ipresly mentioned year-overear increase in wholesale LPG product costs. Gbsale:
increased to $970.8 million in Fiscal 2011 from $38million in Fiscal 2010 period principally refiing the effects on cost of sales of hi¢
LPG commodity costs and the previously mentiongghdii Flaga retail and higher Antargaz wholesalemwels sold.

Total margin increased $40.5 million or 8.5% prpatly reflecting higher total margin from Flaga 8% million) partially offset by lowe
total margin from Antargaz ($20.4 million). The irase in Flaga’ total margin reflects the greater retail gall@wdd. The decrease
Antargaz’ total margin principally reflects the lower retaiblumes sold and the effects of rapidly rising LB®duct costs on unit marg
primarily during the first quarter of Fiscal 2011.

International Propane operating income and incoeferb income taxes decreased $30.9 million and5§3@lion, respectively. Tk
decreases principally reflect the lower Antargaaltmargin ($20.4 million) and slightly higher opéing and administrative costs offset by
reversal of the nontaxable reserve at Antargazcistsa with the French Competition Authority Mat{88.4 million). At Flaga, the previous
mentioned higher total margin was substantiallgetfby higher operating, administrative and depi&m expenses ($60.1 million) principe
associated with the acquired businesses. Inten@ti®ropane operating income and income beforemectaxes also reflects a $6.1 mill
pre-tax loss on currency hedges used to economicatige the U.S. dollar amount of a substantiaigrorof the euracdenominated purcha
price of the Shell Transaction.

Increase

Gas Utility 2011 2010 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 1,026.c. $ 1,047t $ (21.)) (2.0%
Total margin (a) $ 4156 % 394.1 $ 21.% 5%
Operating income $ 199.¢ $ 175.: $ 24.: 13.€%
Income before income taxes $ 159.: $ 134.¢ $ 24.4 18.1%
System throughput — billions of cubic feet (“bcf”)

Core market 70.4 60.2 10.1 16.7%

Total 173.2 153.¢ 19.c 12.5%
Degree days — % colder (warmer) than normal (b) 3.5% (4.5% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sale:

(b) Deviation from average heating degree daysthier 15-year period 1995309 based upon weather statistics provided byNdgona
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) fairports located within Gas Utility’s service téory.

Temperatures in the Gas Utility service territoagéd upon heating degree days were 3.5% coldentiramal in Fiscal
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2011 compared with temperatures that were 4.5% emathan normal in Fiscal 2010. Total distributigrstem throughput increased 19.3
reflecting higher throughput to certain lanargin interruptible delivery service customerg, #ifects of the colder weather on core marke
delivery service customers and, to a lesser exteistomer growth from conversion activity.

Gas Utility revenues in Fiscal 2011 were lower thiarthe prior year principally reflecting a decliie revenues from coraxarke
customers ($33.4 million) partially offset by a $a4nillion increase in revenues from low-margin-s§tem sales. The decrease in core m
revenues principally resulted from lower averagaireore market PGC rates reflecting lower natgia prices ($83.5 million) offset by
effects of the higher throughput. Gas Utilgytost of gas was $610.6 million in Fiscal 2011 parad with $653.4 million in Fiscal 20
principally reflecting the lower average PGC raiffset in part by an increase in retail core-madaes.

Gas Utility total margin increased $21.7 millionkirscal 2011. The increase is largely the resu#t $21.8 million increase in core ma
margin reflecting the increase in core market tghqut.

Gas Utility operating income and income before meotaxes in Fiscal 2011 increased $24.3 million $24.4 million, respectivel
principally the result of the previously mentioniedrease in total margin ($21.7 million) and higle¢her income ($4.7 million) including
$3.2 million postretirement benefit plan curtailmheain. These increases were partially offset iyhtly higher operating and administral
expenses including higher pension expense.

Increase
Midstream & Marketing 2011 2010 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 1,059." $ 1,145.¢ $ (86.2) (7.5)%
Total margin (a) $ 1397 % 1352 % 4.5 3.3%
Operating income $ 82.¢ $ 120.C % (37.0) (30.9%
Income before income taxes $ 80.z $ 119.¢  $ (39.6) (33.1)%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sale:

Midstream & Marketing total revenues decreased Z8@llion in Fiscal 2011 principally due to (1) thbsence of revenues from Atlai
Energy’s import and transshipment facility ($90.8 millioa)d (2) lower total revenues from natural gas mtémg activities ($46.9 milliot
attributable to lower natural gas prices. Theseadses in revenues were partially offset princyplayl an increase in retail power sales reve
($39.3 million) and incremental natural gas storayenues ($7.9 million).

Fiscal 2011 total margin from Midstream & Marketimgis modestly higher than in Fiscal 2010 as greséural gas storage inco
($8.4 million), energy peaking margin ($4.6 milljorand natural gas and retail power marketing mma¢§b.7 million) was offset by low
electric generation total margin and the absenaearfjin from Atlantic Energy ($8.0 million). The @ease in electric generation total ma
principally reflects lower spot prices for eleciyc increased coal costs at the Conemaugh elégtgenerating station and lower margin ft
UGID’s Hunlock Creek electricity generating statiofhe Hunlock Creek codired generating station ceased operations in Mxy02tc
transition to a natural gas-fired generating statibhe natural gafired generating station at Hunlock Creek commenapeérations in Ju
2011. Due to an accident in late July 2011, oneairtHunlock Creek was shut down for repair andlarésd in early summer 2012. Another
at Hunlock Creek suffered flood damage during theth quarter of Fiscal 2011 and restarted in dddyember 2011.

The significant decrease in Midstream & Marketingferating income principally reflects the abseofcthe pretax gain from the Fisc
2010 sale of Atlantic Energy ($36.5 million). Thectine in income before income taxes reflects therehse in operating income and gre
interest expense ($2.5 million) principally theuk®f the change in accounting for Energy Serviéeaceivables Facility and fees and cha
associated with Energy Services’ credit agreensad Notes 5 and 18 to Consolidated Financial Stattsh

Interest Expense.Our consolidated interest expense was modestlyehighFiscal 2011 principally reflecting higher Mideam & Marketin
interest expense, due in part to the change inuatitg for the Energy Services’ Receivables Fagilitnd higher Antargaz longrm dek
interest expense partially offset by lower inteeegtense on Partnership debt from lower interéssran refinanced long-term debt.

Income Taxes.Our effective income tax rate was lower in Fiscdl 2 reflecting the effects of (1) the impact ofdeal tax credits associa
with solar energy projects; (2) the reversal of $#e4 million nontaxable reserve associated with Fhrench Competition Authority Matter
Antargaz; and (3) a reduction in UGI Utilities’ mme taxes reflecting the regulatory effects of grestate
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tax depreciation (as described below under “UGliti¢ts Income Taxes”).

Financial Condition and Liquidity

We depend on both internal and external sourcdisjaiflity to provide funds for working capital arid fund capital requirements. C
shortterm cash requirements not met by cash from operatire generally satisfied with borrowings undedit facilities and, in the case
Midstream & Marketing, also from a receivables pase facility. Longerm cash requirements not met by cash from opsmtire general
met through issuance of long-term debt or equitysses.

Our cash and cash equivalents, excluding cashnmdity futures brokerage accounts that is resti¢tom withdrawal, totale319.¢
million at September 30, 2012 , compared with $238illion at September 30, 2011 . Excluding casth eash equivalents that reside at UGI’
operating subsidiaries, at September 30, 2012 aadl 2UGI had $107.9 million and $81.4 millipmespectively, of cash and cash equival
Such cash is available to pay dividends on UGI Com®tock and for investment purposes.

The primary sources of UG’ cash and cash equivalents are the dividends #redt oash payments made to UGI or its corp:
subsidiaries by its principal business units.

AmeriGas Propane’ ability to pay dividends to UGI is dependent updistributions it receives from AmeriGas Partnefg
September 30, 2012 , our 27% effective ownershierést in the Partnership consisted of approxima28.8 million Common Units ar
combined 2% general partner interests. Approxirgatgldays after the end of each fiscal quarterPenership distributes all of its Availa
Cash (as defined in the Fourth Amended and Resfsgegement of Limited Partnership of AmeriGas Parsnthe “Partnership Agreement”
relating to such fiscal quarter. AmeriGas Propategeneral partner of AmeriGas Partners, L.P.niigledd to receive incentive distributic
when AmeriGas Partners, L.B.quarterly distribution exceeds $0.605 per limifgaitner unit (see Note 14 to Consolidated Fina
Statements).

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 20d0Qr principal business units paid cash dividesuat$ made other cash payments to
and its subsidiaries as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2012 2011 2010
(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propane $ 78 $ 56.6 $ 44 £
UGI Utilities 70.€ 99.t 74.C
International Propane 14.¢€ 32.¢ 38.¢
Midstream & Marketing 55.C 30.C 32.t
Total $ 219.1 % 219.2 % 189.7

In Fiscal 2012, Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010, Mitstn & Marketing received capital contributions franG! totaling $30.1 millior
$45.7 million and $51.0 million, respectively, tonfl major LNG storage and electric generation eapitojects as well as Marcellus St
infrastructure projects. Dividends in Fiscal 201@nfi Midstream & Marketing were used to fund a portof the Shell Transaction wh
totaled $179.0 million in cash. Dividends in Fis28lL0 from Midstream & Marketing included proceédsn the sale of Atlantic Energy, LL(

On April 24, 2012, UGI's Board of Directors apprdvan increase in the quarterly dividend rate on @@&mmon Stock to $0.27 ¢
common share or $1.08 per common share on an abasial This dividend reflected a 4% increase ftoenprevious quarterly dividend rate
$0.26. The new quarterly dividend rate was effectisth the dividend payable on July 1, 2012, tarshalders of record on June 15, 2012.

On April 23, 2012, the General Partner's Board ot&ors approved a quarterly distribution of $0@) Common Unit equal to
annual rate of $3.20 per Common Unit. This distifureflected an approximate 5% increase frompitevious quarterly rate of $0.7625
Common Unit. The new quarterly rate was effectivthuhe distribution payable on May 18, 2012, tdtlhwiders of record on May 10, 20.
Previously, on January 18, 2012, the General PestBeard of Directors approved a quarterly distiiin of $0.7625 per Common Unit eq
to an annual rate of $3.05 per Common Unit. Thritiution reflected an increase of 3% from thevfmes quarter's regular quarte
distribution rate of $0.74 per Common Unit.

As a result of the issuance of 29,567,362 AmeriBagners Common Units to ETP in conjunction witk theritage Acquisition ai
related General Partner Common Unit transactioss ote 4 to Consolidated Financial Statements) iz
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issuance of 7 million AmeriGas Partners Common &Jpitrsuant to AmeriGas Partners' public offerireg (Slote 14 to Consolidated Finan
Statements), during Fiscal 2012, the Company recbed$196.3 million increase in UGI Corporationcktmlders' equity (which amount is
of deferred income taxes) and an associated $3@illidn pre-tax decrease in noncontrolling intesesguity.

Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities

The Company’s debt outstanding at September 302 2Gbtaled $3,679.4 million (including current midties of longterm debt ¢
$166.7 million and bank loan borrowings of $165.1liom ) compared to debt outstanding at Septen3@gr2011 , 0f$2,296.4 millior
(including current maturities of long-term debt $47.4 million and bank loan borrowings of $138.7liom ). Total debt outstanding
September 30, 2012, consists of (1) $2,377.9aniltif Partnership debt; (2) $594.9 million ( €46aiflion ) of International Propane debt;
$609.2 million of UGI Utilities’ debt; (4) $85.0 flion of Midstream & Marketing debt; and (5) $12illion of other debt. For a detall
description of the Company’s debt, see below antdSdo Consolidated Financial Statements.

Due to the seasonal nature of the Compauhyisinesses, operating cash flows are generatigast during the second and third fi
quarters when customers pay for natural gas, LR&&}rizity and other energy products consumed duthre peak heating season mor
Conversely, operating cash flows are generallfeit fowest levels during the first and fourth quarters when the Compasyhvestment i
working capital, principally inventories and acctaireceivable, is generally greatest. AmeriGas &mepand UGI Utilities primarily use be
loans to satisfy their seasonal operating cash fleeds. Energy Services historically has used éiseRables Facility to satisfy its operal
cash flow needs. Energy Services also has a $1li0mmiredit facility which it can use for workingapital and general corporate purpc
Flaga principally uses borrowings under its cragditeements to satisfy its operating cash flow ndedeng Fiscal 2012, Fiscal 2011 and Fi
2010, Antargaz generally funded its operating ¢t needs without using its revolving credit fatbds.

AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas Partners’ total debt at September 30, 20@2ludes $2,250.8 million of AmeriGas PartneB&nior Notes,
55.6 million of HOLP senior secured notes, $21.Biom of other long-term debt and $49.9 millionAferiGas OLP bank loan borrowings.

In order to finance the cash portion of the Hesgtagcquisition, on January 12, 2012, AmeriGas FieaBorp. and AmeriGas Finar
LLC (the “Issuers”issued $550 million principal amount of 6.75% Notee May 2020 and $1,000 million principal amouh? ®0% Note
due May 2022. The 6.75% Notes and the 7.00% Naotetully and unconditionally guaranteed on a ses&nured basis by AmeriGas Partr
The 6.75% and 7.00% Notes and the guarantees muid é right of payment with all of AmeriGas Pats' existing senior notes.
connection with the Heritage Acquisition, AmeriGBartners, AmeriGas Finance Corp., AmeriGas Findrdg@ and UGI entered into
Contingent Residual Support Agreement ("CRSA") vi|iifiP pursuant to which ETP will provide contingemssidual support of $1.5 billion
debt ("Supported Debt" as defined in the CRSA).

On March 28, 2012, AmeriGas Partners announced hblters of approximately $383.5 million in aggregarincipal amount «
outstanding 6.50% Senior Notes due May 2021 (th80% Notes”)had validly tendered their notes in connection vilib Partnershir
March 14, 2012, offer to purchase for cash up t@0$@illion of the 6.50% Notes. Tendered 6.50% Natethe amount of $200 million we
redeemed on March 28, 2012, at an effective pricE06%. During June 2012, AmeriGas Partners re@asett approximately $19.2 milli
aggregate principal amount of outstanding 7.00%eBloThe Partnership recorded a net loss on exthmeént of debt of $13.3 millic
associated with these transactions.

AmeriGas OLP has a $525 million unsecured crediéeament (“2011 AmeriGas Credit Agreememtfich expires on October 15, 20
At September 30, 2012 and 2011 , there were $49l®mand $95.5 millionof borrowings outstanding under the 2011 AmeriGasdd
Agreement at average interest rates of 2.72% &892, respectively. Borrowings under the 2011 AmeriGasdit Agreement are classifiec
bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheetsn@®iiscal 2012, the 2011 Credit Agreement was aegmo, among other things, incre
the total amount available to $525 million from $3#illion previously, extend its expiration date@atober 2016, and amend certain finar
covenants as a result of the acquisition of Heeitagppane.

Issued and outstanding letters of credit under2®EL AmeriGas Credit Agreement, which reduce thewarhavailable for borrowing
totaled $47.9 million and $35.7 millioat September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Tieeage daily and peak bank loan borrow
outstanding under the 2011 AmeriGas Credit Agree¢rdaring Fiscal 2012 were $95.3 million and $23&ion , respectively. The avers
daily and peak bank loan borrowings outstandingeudimeriGas OLP credit agreements during Fiscall2@&re $151.1 million an§23¢t
million , respectively.

Based upon existing cash balances, cash expectee generated from operations and borrowings aMailander the 2011 AmeriC
Credit Agreement, the Partnerstiphanagement believes that the Partnership witidbe to meet its anticipated contractual commitisi@mi
projected cash needs during Fiscal 2013 .

38




Table of Contents

International Propane. International Propane’s total debt at Septembe28Q2 , includes $ 488.7 million 80 million) outstanding und
Antargaz’ 2011 Senior Facilities term loan and anbmed $79.6 million (€61.9 million) outstanding dem Flagas term loans. Tot
International Propane debt outstanding at SepteBer2012 also includes (1) combined borrowings $@fL.0 million (€16.3 million
outstanding under Flaga’s working capital facistend (2) $ 5.6 million (€4.4 million) of other Igiterm debt.

Antargaz. Antargaz has a variable-rate term loan agreemihta consortium of banks (“2011 Senior Facilitlhgreement”).The 2011 Senit
Facilities Agreement consists of (1) a €380 milliariable-rate term loan and (2) 40Emillion credit facility. Scheduled maturitiesder the
term loan are €38 million due May 2014, €34.2 milldue May 2015, and €307.8 million due March 204@argaz has entered into phyed,
receivevariable interest rate swaps to fix the underlyingibor rate of interest on the term loan at arraye rate of approximately 2.4!
through September 2015 and, thereafter, at a fadpproximately 3.71% through the date of the téwan’s final maturity in March 2016. ,
September 30, 2012 , the effective interest ratédimtargaz’ term loan was 4.66%. UGI has guarantgedo €.00 million of payments und
the 2011 Senior Facilities Agreement.

Antargaz’management believes that it will be able to meeaitticipated contractual commitments and projecssth needs during Fis
2013 with cash generated from operations and bangswnder its 2011 Senior Facilities Agreement.

Flaga . Flaga has a €40 million ($ 51.4 million ) euro-tdhserm loan of which €26.7 million matures in Aug2616 and £3.3 million mature
in September 2016. This term loan bears intereshat to twelvemonth euribor rates (as chosen by Flaga from tingnte) plus a margi
Flaga has effectively fixed the euribor compondrntsointerest rate on this term loan through Seylter 2016 at 2.68% by entering into inte
rate swap agreements. The effective interest rathie term loan at September 30, 2012, was 5.18%.

In December 2011, Flaga entered into a €19.1 mil{{v 24.6 million ) euro-based variabigte term loan agreement. Proceeds fror
term loan were used, in large part, to fund Flagxsober 2011 acquisition of ShallLPG propane businesses in Finland, Norway, Swade
Denmark. The term loan matures in October 2016k@ads interest at thrementh euribor rates plus a margin. Flaga has éffelgtfixed the
euribor component of the interest rate on this tkram at 1.79% by entering into an interest ratapsagreement. The effective interest rat
this term loan at September 30, 2012 , was 4.35%.

Flaga also has a euro-based variable-rate term Wdaoh had an outstanding principal balance of €&il8on ($ 3.6 million) on
September 30, 2012. Semi-annual principal paymein€®.7 million are due on December 31 and June 30 gaahthrough June 2014. Fl
has effectively fixed the euribor component of thierest rate on this term loan at 2.16% by engeitito an interest rate swap agreement.
effective interest rate on this term loan at Sep@en30, 2012, was 5.04%.

At September 30, 2012, Flaga has two principal waylcapital facilities (the "Flaga Credit Agreem&itcomprising (1) a 46 million
multi-currency working capital facility which inaties an uncommitted €6 million overdraft facilithgt“Flaga MultiCurrency Working Capit
Facility”) and (2) a euro-denominated working capfacility that provides for borrowings and issuas of guarantees totalind Zmillion (the
“Euro Facility”). The Flaga Multi€urrency Working Capital Facility expires in Septem 2014 and the Euro Facility expires in Septe
2013. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, there weted€illion ($15.3 million) and £2.3 million ($16.5 million) of borrowings outstand
under the Flaga Credit Agreements, respectivelgs&€ramounts are reflected as bank loans on theolitated Balance Sheets.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the weiglateeFage interest rates on the Flaga Credit Agreemeere 2.31% and 3.39
respectively. Issued and outstanding guaranteeishwhduce available borrowings under the Flagadi€igreements, totaled1®.2 millior
($24.7 million) at September 30, 2012. The avedajly and peak bank loan borrowings outstandingeutide Flaga Credit Agreements du
Fiscal 2012 were €15.5 million and €8 million, respectively. The average daily arehlp bank loan borrowings outstanding under F
principal working capital facilities during Fisc2011 were €16.4 million and €18.0 million, respesty.

Based upon cash generated from operations andviiog® under its working capital facilities, Flagahanagement believes it will
able to meet its anticipated contractual commitmanid projected cash needs during Fiscal 2013 .

UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities’ total debt at September 30, 2012cludes long-term debt comprising $ 383.0 millionS&nior Notes, £17.(
million of Medium-Term Notes and $9.2 million oftdaloan borrowings.

UGI Utilities has a credit agreement (the “UGI liids 2011 Credit Agreementiyith a group of banks providing for borrowings u
$300 million (including a $100 million sublimit fdetters of credit) which expires in October 20B®rrowings under the UGI Utilities 20
Credit Agreement are classified as bank loans. éxdt&@nber 30, 2012, there were $9.2 millafrborrowings outstanding under UGI Utilit
2011 Credit Agreement. There were no amounts mdstg at September 30, 2011.

During Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, average dailykdoan borrowings were $16.2 million and $17.8iam, respectively,
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and peak bank loan borrowings totaled $70.6 miliad $90 million, respectively.

Based upon cash expected to be generated from @Glitg Bnd Electric Utility operations and borrovgie available under the U
Utilities 2011 Credit Agreement, UGI Utilitieshanagement believes that it will be able to mesitticipated contractual commitments
projected cash needs during Fiscal 2013 .

Midstream & Marketing. Energy Services has an unsecured credit agreeritererfly Services Credit Agreementi)ith a group of lende
providing for borrowings of up to $170 million (ilucling a $50 million sublimit for letters of crefivhich expires in August 2013. The Ene
Services Credit Agreement can be used for generglocate purposes of Energy Services and its sialoigid and to fund dividend payme
provided that, after giving effect to such dividgmalyments, Energy Services maintains a specifigéol o Consolidated Total Indebtednes
EBITDA, each as defined in the Energy Services {Lradreement. Borrowings outstanding under the BpeBervices Credit Agreem
totaled $85.0 millionat September 30, 2012. Energy Services intendstand its credit agreement and increase its bangeapacity prior t
its scheduled expiration.

Energy Services also has a $200 million receivabplexhase facility (“Receivables Facility”) with dasuer of receivablesacke:
commercial paper. The Receivables Facility is attyescheduled to expire in April 2013, althougle Receivables Facility may terminate p
to such date due to the termination of commitmenitthe Receivables Facility’s back purchasers. Energy Services uses the Recei
Facility to fund working capital, margin calls umdeommodity futures contracts, capital expenditudigidends and for general corpol
purposes. Energy Services intends to extend iteiRatzies Facility prior to its scheduled expiratiorApril 2013.

Under the Receivables Facility, Energy Servicesdfiers, on an ongoing basis and without recoutsdrdade accounts receivable tc
wholly owned, special purpose subsidiary, EnergwiSes Funding Corporation (“ESFC"jyhich is consolidated for financial staterr
purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subjecetmio conditions, may from time to time sell, amdivided interest in some or all of -
receivables to a commercial paper conduit of a magmk. ESFC was created and has been structursol&te its assets from creditors
Energy Services and its affiliates, including UGhrough September 30, 2010, this tetep transaction was accounted for as a st
receivables following GAAP for accounting for tréers and servicing of financial assets and extisiguients of liabilities. Effective Octobel
2010, the Company adopted a new accounting staridatcchanged the accounting for the Receivabledifya Beginning October 1, 201
trade receivables transferred to the commerciaéipapnduit remain on the Compasyjalance sheet and the Company reflects a liabijua
to the amount advanced by the commercial paperubriddditionally, beginning October 1, 2010, ther@pany records interest expense
amounts owed to the commercial paper conduit.

At September 30, 2012 , the outstanding balancESFC trade receivables was $43.5 milliohwhich no amount was sold to
commercial paper conduit. At September 30, 201k ,autstanding balance of ESFC trade receivablas$a.1 million and there w&i4.:
million that was sold to the commercial paper canduad reflected as bank loans on the ConsolidBddnce Sheet. During Fiscal 20aac
Fiscal 2011 , peak sales of receivables were $&lllon and $31.7 million , respectively, and avgeadaily amounts sold wefd5.6 millior
and $1.3 million , respectively.

Based upon cash expected to be generated from tigpesraborrowings available under the Energy Sexwi€redit Agreement a
Receivables Facility, and capital contributionsnirdJGIl, management believes that Energy Servicek heilable to meet its anticipa
contractual commitments and projected cash neetsgdiscal 2013 .

Cash Flows

Operating Activities. Year-toyear variations in cash flow from operations carsigaificantly affected by changes in operating kitog capita
especially during periods of significant changesriergy commodity prices.

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $70million in Fiscal 2012 , $554.7 million in Figc2011 and $598.8 milliom Fisca
2010 . Cash flow from operating activities befotemges in operating working capital was $622.5iomlin Fiscal 2012, $697.6 milliom
Fiscal 2011 and $663.8 million in Fiscal 2010he decrease in cash flow from operating acéisitiefore changes in operating working ca
in Fiscal 2012 compared to Fiscal 2011 reflectslange part, the effects of the lower operatingultssin Fiscal 2012 and lower cash fl
associated with settled commodity derivative caniraChanges in operating working capital providesed) operating cash flow &85.2
million in Fiscal 2012 , $(142.9) million in FiscaD11 and $(65.0) million in Fiscal 201€ash flow from changes in operating working ca
principally reflects the impacts of changes in L&l natural gas prices on operating working captainarily accounts receivable, invento
and accounts payable, and the timing and amounatofral gas cost recoveries or refunds throughl@idisy’ s PGC recovery mechanism. -
higher cash provided by changes in operating wgrkampital in Fiscal 2012 compared with Fiscal 2@k fely reflects, among other things,
timing of the Heritage Acquisition on cash receifstam Heritage Propane customers and the effectevedr volumes sold due to the we
weather on changes in accounts receivable.
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Investing Activities . Investing activity cash flow is principally affiedd by expenditures for property, plant and equiptmeash paid fc
acquisitions of businesses; changes in restricisti balances and proceeds from sales of assetsadleflow used by investing activities \
$1,904.5 million in Fiscal 2012 , $415.4 million kiscal 2011 and $399.3 million in Fiscal 201Dhe significant increase in cash flow use
Fiscal 2012 principally reflects cash paid for tHeritage Acquisition (net of cash acquired) of apgmately $1.4 billion. Cash used
acquisitions of businesses in Fiscal 2012 alsaudes the Shell Transaction. Expenditures for ptyp@lant and equipment totalekB39.+
million in Fiscal 2012, $360.7 million in Fiscal 20 and $347.3 milliorin Fiscal 2010. Cash from changes in restrictech dasfuture:
brokerage accounts provided cash of $14.2 millioRiscal 2012 and $17.6 million Fiscal 2011, aneldusash of $27.8 million in Fiscal 20
The amount of restricted cash required in suchwasos generally the result of changes in undeghdommodity prices. During Fiscal 20
we received $66.6 million in cash proceeds fromsidle of Atlantic Energy.

Financing Activities. Cash flow provided (used) by financing activitieasa$1,278.5 million in Fiscal 2012 , $(152.1) roill in Fiscal2011
and $(213.6) million in Fiscal 2010 . Changes iatcfiow from financing activities are primarily dtee issuances and repayments of loeigr
debt; net bank loan borrowings; dividends and ithistions on UGI Common Stock and AmeriGas Parti@simon Units and issuances
UGI and AmeriGas Partners equity instruments.

In order to finance the cash portion of the Hegtagquisition, on January 12, 2012, AmeriGas Pastigsued $550 million princig
amount of 6.75% Notes due 2020 and $1.0 billiongipal amount of 7.00% Notes due 2022. In March22@meriGas Partners sold 7 milli
Common Units in an underwritten public offering amskd a portion of the net proceeds to repay $2illiomof outstanding 6.50% Sen
Notes due May 2021, to reduce bank loan borrowargsfor general corporate purposes. In June 20&&ri&as Partners repurchased $
million aggregate principal amount of outstanding0?6 Notes. Repayments of AmeriGas Partners dehtdas transaction fees and expe
associated with these extinguishments in Fisca22Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly h€ladmmon Units in Fiscal 2012 increa
over Fiscal 2011 reflecting the greater numberafh@on Units outstanding and higher Fiscal 2012 tgqusrper-unit distribution rates.

During Fiscal 2011, AmeriGas Partners redeemed $4llin principal amount of 7.25% AmeriGas Parsi&enior Notes due 2015 :
$14.6 million principal amount of 8.875% Senior Betdue May 2011 with proceeds from the issuanc®@d million principal amount
6.50% AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes due 2021. dusimg Fiscal 2011, AmeriGas Partners redeeme@ &#8ion principal amount of its
1/8% Senior Notes due 2016 with proceeds fromgkeance of $450 million principal amount of its38&2 Senior Notes due 2019. A portiot
the proceeds from the issuances of the Senior Nates also used to reduce AmeriGas OLP bank loammwings. Repayments of AmeriC
Partners debt includes $30.6 million of transacfiees and expenses associated with these extimgeigh in Fiscal 2011. Also during Fis
2011, Antargaz repaid its maturin@8D million Senior Facilities Agreement borrowingih the proceeds from its new 2011 Senior Faet
Agreement and Flaga repaid €21 million of matutiengn loan debt with the proceeds from its new €4llan euro-denominated term loan.

Capital Expenditures

In the following table, we present capital expemdis (which exclude acquisitions but include céapitases) by our business segment
Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010 . We plewide amounts we expect to spend in Fiscal 200% expect to finance FiscaD1:
capital expenditures principally from cash genetdtg operations, borrowings under credit faciligesl cash on hand.

Year Ended September 30, 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Millions of dollars) (estimate)

AmeriGas Propane $ 130.C $ 103.1 $ 772 $ 83.2
International Propane 70.C 64.2 65.£ 59.C
Gas Utility 111.( 109.( 91.c 73.t
Midstream & Marketing 185.( 60.4 112.¢ 116.¢
Other 10.C 6.5 8.¢ 20.¢
Total $ 506.C $ 3432 % 355.6 $ 352.¢

Midstream & Marketings capital expenditures in Fiscal 2012, Fiscal 284d Fiscal 2010 principally reflect capital expeuaris relate
to natural gas storage, electric generation anccéllais Shale projects. These Midstream & Marketiagital expenditures were financet
large part by capital contributions from UGI andltdrom operations. Estimated AmeriGas PropaneaFR&@13 capital expenditures inclt
$20.0 million related to Heritage integration aities. AmeriGas Propane Fiscal 2012 capital expganes include $17.6 million of transiti
capital expenditures relating to Heritage Propategration activities.
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In 2010, the Company announced plans to investoxppately $300 million over the next few years afrastructure projects to supg
the development of natural gas in the Marcellus&Shegion. To date the Company has invested or dteurto invest more than half of t
amount. One major example is the Company's recamthounced expansion of the Auburn gathering systemich builds on a previo
investment to move gas for Citrus Energy AppalachizC. The 30mile extension will link Marcellus production togiranscontinental G
Pipeline. The timing and extent of the Companygatment in Marcellus infrastructure will dependaonumber of factors including the tim
of development of Marcellus gas production, madahpetition, any required regulatory approvals eodstruction schedules. The Comp
has a number of projects under development, inctuttie previously announced Commonwealth Pipelingept.

Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments

The Company has contractual cash obligations tkteind beyond Fiscal 2012. Such obligations inclsdeeduled repayments of long-
term debt, interest on long-term fixedte debt, operating lease payments, unconditipnaethase obligations for pipeline capacity, pipe
transportation and natural gas storage servicesamditments to purchase natural gas, LPG andrigiegt capital expenditures and derivat
financial instruments. The following table presemsntractual cash obligations with naffiliates under agreements existing as
September 30, 2012:

Payments Due by Period

Fiscal Fiscal

Fiscal 2014 - 2016 -
(Millions of dollars) Total 2013 2015 2017 Thereafter
Long-term debt (a) $ 3,514 $ 166.1 $ 138.¢ % 752.¢ $ 2,456.¢
Interest on long-term fixed rate debt (b) 1,735.: 228.7 410.¢ 356.( 739.¢
Operating leases 318.¢ 77.L 107.¢ 64.7 68.€
AmeriGas Propane supply contracts 319.: 141.¢ 174.7 3.2 —
International Propane supply contracts 571.2 226.¢ 286.¢ 58.C —
Midstream & Marketing supply contracts 227.2 171.1 56.1 — —
UGI Utilities supply, storage and transportatio
contracts 463.2 173.¢ 156.¢ 69.¢ 62.7
Derivative financial instruments (c) 91.t 85.1 5.8 — —
Other purchase obligations (d) 34.¢ 34.¢ — — —
Total $ 7275 $ 1,305 $ 1,337t $ 1,304. $ 3,327.¢

(a) Based upon stated maturity da
(b) Based upon stated interest rates adjusted forfbet® of interest rate swa

(c) Represents the sum of amounts due from us if derésdéinancial instrument liabilities were settledl the September 30, 2012, amo
reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet (bciueing amounts associated with interest rate syvaps

(d) Includes material capital expenditure obligati

Other noncurrent liabilities included in our Coridated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2012, palhcipomprise refundable tank &
cylinder deposits (as further described in Noteo2Cbnsolidated Financial Statements under the map®Refundable Tank and Cylinc
Deposits”);litigation, property and casualty liabilities anbligations under environmental remediation agredmgee Note 15 to Consolida
Financial Statements); pension and other postnatirg benefit liabilities recorded in accordancehwagitcounting guidance relating to empic
retirement plans (see Note 7 to Consolidated FiadStatements); and liabilities associated withative compensation plans (see Note :
Consolidated Financial Statements). These liabdlitire not included in the table of ContractualhGabligations and Commitments bece
they are estimates of future payments and not actially fixed as to timing or amount. We believe will be required to make contributic
to UGI Utilities’ pension plan (as further descibéelow under “U.S. Pension Plani) Fiscal 2013 of approximately $16.0 milli
Contributions to the UGI Pension Plan in years InelyBiscal 2013 will depend in large part on the actpof future returns and interest rate
pension plan assets. Certain of our operating laasegements, primarily vehicle leases with reingilease terms of one to ten years, |
residual value guarantees. Although such fair \ahtethe end of the leases have historically exatéite guaranteed amount, at Septemb
2012, the maximum potential amount of future paytmemder lease guarantees assuming the leasechemquipvas deemed worthless !
approximately $14 million.
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Significant Acquisitions and Dispositions

On January 12, 2012 (the “Acquisition DateAmeriGas Partners completed the Heritage Acquisitior total consideration
approximately $2.6 billion comprising $1.5 billiam cash and 29,567,362 AmeriGas Partners Commots Wiith a fair value of approximate
$1.1 billion. The Heritage Acquisition was consuntetipursuant to the Contribution Agreement, by ambng AmeriGas Partners, E
Energy Transfer Partners GP, L.P., the generahgadf ETP, and Heritage ETC, L.P. The acquiredrass conducts its propane operatiot
41 states. According to LBas Magazine rankings published on February 1, 26iRitage Propane was the third largest retaipane
distributor in the United States, delivering ov@05million gallons to more than one million retpilopane customers in 2011. The Heri
Acquisition is consistent with our growth strateggiene of which is to grow our core business thnoagquisitions.

The cash portion of the Heritage Acquisition wasaficed by the issuance by AmeriGas Finance Coigb.AameriGas Finance LL!
wholly owned finance subsidiaries of AmeriGas Pengnof $550 million principal amount of 6.75% Ne#nd $1.0 billion principal amount
7.00% Notes. For further information on the 6.75%id¢$ and 7.00% Notes, see Note 5 to ConsolidateahEial Statements.

The results of operations of Heritage Propanerarieided in the Consolidated Statements of Incomeesihe Acquisition Date. For mq
information on the Heritage Acquisition, see Not® £ onsolidated Financial Statements.

In October 2011, we acquired ShellLPG distribution businesses in the United Kingddelgium, the Netherlands, Luxembot
Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden for €133.6ioml{ $179.0 million) in cash (see Note 4 to Comaikd Financial Statements).

On July 30, 2010, Energy Services sold all ofntgiiest in its secontier, wholly owned subsidiary, Atlantic Energy, DCP Midstrear
Partners, L.P. for $49.0 million cash plus an antdaninventory and other working capital. Atlanfimergy owns and operates a 20 mil
gallon marine import and transshipment facilitydted in the port of Chesapeake, Virginia. The Camgpacorded a $36.5 million ptex gair
on the sale which amount is included in other inepret, in the Fiscal 2010 Consolidated Statemklmoome. The gain increased Fiscal 2
net income attributable to UGI Corporation by $1miflion or $0.16 per diluted share (see Note €amsolidated Financial Statements).

U.S. Pension Plan

In the U.S., we currently sponsor one defined bepehsion plan for employees hired prior to Japudar2009, of UGI, UGI Utilities
PNG, CPG and certain of UGI's other domestic whalyned subsidiaries (“U.S. Pension PlarThe fair value of the U.S. Pension Pl
assets totaled $351.5 million and $289.7 million September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. At edeipér 30, 2012 and 2011,
underfunded positions of the U.S. Pension Plarindéfas the excess of the projected benefit oltigat(*“PBOs”) over the U.S. Pension Plan’
assets, were $192.1 million and $167.0 millionpessively.

We believe we are in compliance with regulationsyegoing defined benefit pension plans, including fioyee Retirement Incor
Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”yules and regulations. We anticipate that we wallrbquired to make contributions to the U.S. Pen§iar
during Fiscal 2013 of approximately $16.0 millidtretax pension cost associated with the U.S. PendemiR Fiscal 2012 was $15.3 millic
Pre-tax pension cost associated with the U.S. Berdan in Fiscal 2013 is expected to be approxip&20.0 million.

GAAP guidance associated with pension and othetrgtrement plans generally requires recognitionanf asset or liability in tt
statement of financial position reflecting the feddstatus of pension and other postretirement liepkins with current year chang
recognized in shareholdersfuity unless such amounts are subject to regylawmovery. Through September 30, 2012, we haverdec
cumulative after-tax charges to UGI Corporatiortgckholders’equity of $22.9 million and recorded regulatoryeasdotaling $188.2 millic
in order to reflect the funded status of our pemsiad other postretirement benefit plans. For aenggtailed discussion of the U.S. Pen
Plan and our other postretirement benefit plaresNsgte 7 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Related Party Transactions

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 20%&,did not enter into any relatgarty transactions that had a material effect on
financial condition, results of operations or célstws.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

UGI primarily enters into guarantee arrangementbaimalf of its consolidated subsidiaries. Thesaragrements are not
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subject to the recognition and measurement guidegiaéng to guarantees under GAAP.

We do not have any off-balanskeet arrangements that are expected to have aiahatiect on our financial condition, change
financial condition, revenues or expenses, residltgerations, liquidity, capital expenditures apital resources.

Utility Matters

On April 14, 2012, legislation enabling gas andtele utilities in Pennsylvania to seek surchargeowery of eligible capital investmen
distribution system infrastructure improvement pot§ became effective. The surcharge enabled bietfigation is known as a distributi
system improvement charge (“DSICThe primary benefit to a company from a DSIC surgias the elimination of regulatory lag, or deld
rate recognition, that occurs under traditiona¢msdking relating to qualifying capital expendityrés up to five percent of distribution rat
To be eligible for a DSIC, a utility must have @lla general rate filing within five years of itstifien seeking permission to include a DSI(
its tariff. Filings to implement a DSIC surchargayrbe filed no earlier than January 2, 2013.

On October 3, 2012, UGI Utilities and the PUC Bured Investigation and Enforcement (“PUC Staf§bmitted a Joint Settlem:
Petition (“Joint Settlement{p settle all requlatory compliance issues raiseithé PUC Staff's formal complaint, issued on Juhe2012 ("PU(
Staff Complaint"), pertaining to a natural gas esfn which occurred on February 9, 2011, in Albewri, Pennsylvania and resulted in -
deaths, several personal injuries and significaop@rty damage (the “Incident”The PUC Staff Complaint had alleged that UGI Uéktha
committed six violations of gas safety regulati@ms UGI Utilities' operating procedures relatedtsocast iron main replacement and
odorant monitoring programs, and its emergencyaes® to the Incident. As part of the Joint Settietn&/GI Utilities has agreed (i) to t
assessment of a $0.4 million civil penalty; (ii)aocelerate the time frame for UGI Utilities, CR®d PNG to replace the remainder of its caxs
iron mains to 14 years, and (iii) to install oddraronitoring and injection equipment in its natugak system at a number of supply points
does not concede to having violated any regulatiooperating procedure. Under the Joint Settlemg@t, Utilities, CPG and PNG have a
agreed to not seek recovery of the related anrasdlaf capital return requirements through a DSICaf period of 24 months but are permi
to retain the current 3gear timeframe for replacing the remainder of thogire steel mains. On October 31, 2012, the PUGrastnative lav
judge issued an initial decision approving thelegtént. The provisions of the Joint Settlement Wwidcome effective if the initial decisi
becomes final or if the PUC determines to review itfitial decision and issues a final order appigvihe terms and conditions of the J
Settlement without modification. The Company does lrelieve that the cost of complying with the regonents of the Joint Settlement \
have a material impact on UGI Utilities' consol&thfinancial position, results of operations orclisws.

On January 14, 2011, CPG filed a request with tHE Ro increase its operating revenues by $16.5anithnnually. Among other thing
the increased revenues would fund system improveam operations necessary to maintain safe diatleenatural gas service and fund |
programs that would provide rebates and other e for customers to install new high-efficieneguipment (collectively, Energy an
Efficiency Conservation Program”). On June 23, 2CJoint Petition for Approval of Settlement of Msues (“Joint Petition™vas filed witt
the PUC based upon agreements with the activeepaigarding the requested base operating revaorgase. On August 11, 2011, the F
approved the settlement agreement which resulted increase in annual base rate revenues of $Bi@mnas well as $0.9 million in revent
per year for use in CP&Energy and Efficiency Conservation Program. Tivedase became effective August 30, 2011. DuriegaF2012, th
PUC reversed its earlier decision related to theéd $fillion increase in revenues associated with Emergy and Efficiency Conservat
Program and required CPG to refund revenue it odidated for that program.

On October 21, 2010, the Federal Energy Regula@@ammission (“FERC”) approved and later affirmed C®@pplication to abandot
storage service and approved the transfer of igdi Meeker and Wharton natural gas storage fasilialong with related assets, to |
Storage Company, a subsidiary of Energy Serviche.AUC approved the transfer subject to, among tiiregs, a reduction in base rates
CPG's agreement to charge PGC customers, for a pefittdte® years, no more for storage services franrdnsferred assets than they wi
have paid before the transfer, to the extent uSedApril 1, 2011, the storage facilities were demdled to UGI and subsequently contribute
UGI Storage Company. The net book value of theagmifacility assets was $10.9 million. Compliandthuwhe provisions of the PUC Ort
approving the transfer of the storage assets dithanee a material impact on the results of openataf Gas Utility. Concurrent with the April
2011 transfer, CPG entered into a one-year firmag®service agreement with UGI Storage Company.

On December 1, 2010, PNG filed an application wlith PUC for expedited review and approval of tladfer of a 9 mile natural ¢
pipeline, related facilities, and right of way loed in Mehoopany, Pennsylvania (the “Auburn Line"Energy Services. The PUC approvec
transfer and in September 2011 the Auburn Linedwagended to UGI and subsequently contributedrierfy Services. The net book valu
the Auburn Line was $1.1 million.

UGI Utilities Income Taxes
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In 2010, U.S. federal tax legislation was enactest Bllows taxpayers to fully deduct qualifying itapexpenditures incurred af
September 8, 2010, through the end of calendar ,2@h&n such property is placed in service befor&220n accordance with existi
Pennsylvania tax statutes, Pennsylvania taxpayeralso permitted to fully deduct such qualifyirpital expenditures for Pennsylvania <
corporate net income tax purposes. Pennsylvanigy utitemaking practice permits the flow throughratepayers of state tax benefits f
accelerated tax depreciation. UGI Utilitigs'scal 2011 and, to a lesser extent, Fiscal 204 sax rates reflect the beneficial effects of
greater state tax depreciation. The additionabsiatl federal tax depreciation deductions descidlbede reduce federal and state income
otherwise payable and increase UGI Utilities deféincome tax liabilities.

Manufactured Gas Plants

UGI Utilities

CPG is party to a Consent Order and Agreement (“CRIXA”") with the Pennsylvania Department of Enviramal Protection (“DEP”
requiring CPG to perform a specified level of aitids associated with environmental investigatiod eemediation work at certain propertie
Pennsylvania on which manufactured gas plant (“MGfefated facilities were operated (“CPG MGP Préipst) and to plug a minimu
number of non-producing natural gas wells per yFaaddition, PNG is a party to a Mullite Remediation Consent Order and Agree
(“PNG-COA”") with the DEP. The PN®&OA requires PNG to perform annually a specifieeeleof activities associated with environme
investigation and remediation work at certain prips on which MGP-related facilities were operad®NG MGP Properties”)Under thes
agreements, environmental expenditures relatintheoCPG MGP Properties and the PNG MGP Propertesapped at $1.8 million a
$1.1 million, respectively, in any calendar yeaneTCPG-COA terminates at the end of 2013. The R terminates in 2019 but may
terminated by either party effective at the endmyf twoyear period beginning with the original effectivatel in March 2004. At September
2012 and 2011, our accrued liabilities for enviremtal investigation and remediation costs relatettié CPG-COA and the PNGOA totalet
$15.0 million and $17.9 million, respectively. Iccardance with GAAP related to rategulated entities, we have recorded assoc
regulatory assets in equal amounts.

From the late 1800s through the ndi@lo0s, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiariesrasl and operated a number of MGPs prior ti
general availability of natural gas. Some constitseof coal tars and other residues of the manufeadtgas process are today consid
hazardous substances under the Superfund Law apdenaresent on the sites of former MGPs. Betwed82 land 1953, UGI Utilities own
the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsidvamd elsewhere and also operated the businekseme gas companies under agreer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Public Utilitglding Company Act of 1935, by the early 1950s UGilities divested all of its utilit
operations other than certain Pennsylvania opemstiacluding those which now constitute UGI Gad Rtectric Utility.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for invgation and remediation of hazardous substancesraisiylvania MGP sites to be mate
to its results of operations because (1) UGI Gasuisently permitted to include in rates, througiiufe base rate proceedings, a fixes
average of such prudently incurred remediationscast (2) CPG and PNG are currently getting regntaecovery of estimated environme
investigation and remediation costs associated Ratinsylvania sites. At September 30, 2012, neflfleeundiscounted nor the accrued liab
for environmental investigation and cleanup costdfGl Gas was material.

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sitestside Pennsylvania on which private parties allbt@Ps were formerly owned
operated by it or owned or operated by its formédrsiliaries. Such parties are investigating thermxbf environmental contamination
performing environmental remediation.

Management believes that under applicable law Utditigs should not be liable in those instancesvhrich a former subsidiary owned
operated an MGP. There could be, however, sigmfifature costs of an uncertain amount associatétdl environmental damage causec
MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI Utilities dikgciperated, or that were owned or operated by éorsubsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a col
were to conclude that (1) the subsidiargeparate corporate form should be disregardé€?)) &Gl Utilities should be considered to have t
an operator because of its conduct with respeit$ gubsidiary’s MGP.

For additional information on the MGP sites outsidd®ennsylvania currently subject to thdrty claims, see Note 15 to Consolidi
Financial Statements.

AmeriGas Propan

By letter dated March 6, 2008, the New York Staep&tment of Environmental Conservation (“DE@0tified AmeriGas OLP th
DEC had placed property owned by the Partnershipairanac Lake, New York on its Registry of Inactiezardous Waste Disposal Site:
site characterization study performed by DEC dsetbcontamination related to former MGP operations
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on the site. DEC has classified the site as afggni threat to public health or environment witinther action required. The Partnership
researched the history of the site and its ownprstierest in the site. The Partnership has rewete preliminary site characterization st
prepared by the DEC, the extent of contaminatiod #re possible existence of other potentially respge parties. The Partners
communicated the results of its research to DE@aimuary 2009 and is awaiting a response beforeydoig additional investigation. Beca
of the preliminary nature of available environméimiéormation, the ultimate amount of expected ole@ costs cannot be reasonably estim

In connection with the Heritage Acquisition on Janul2, 2012, a predecessor of Titan LLC is pugatiyt the beneficial holder of tit
with respect to three former MGPs discussed beldve. Contribution Agreement provides for indemnifica from ETP for certain expen:
associated with remediation of these sites.

By letter dated September 30, 2010, the EPA nadtifigan LLC that it may be a potentially responsilplarty (“PRP”)for cleanup cos
associated with contamination at a former MGP iar&@hont, New Hampshire. In June 2010, the Marylattdrney General (“MAG)
identified Titan LLC as a PRP in connection witmtamination at a former MGP in Chestertown, Marglamd requested that Titan L
participate in characterization and remediationviigs. Titan LLC has supplied the EPA and MAG hvitorporate and bankruptcy informai
for its predecessors to support its claim thas nat liable for any remediation costs at the siBesause of the preliminary nature of avail
environmental information, the ultimate amount xpected clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimat

In 1996, a predecessor company of Titan LLC perémnan environmental assessment of its property anniBigton, Vermont ai
discovered that the site was a former MGP. At tina¢, Titan LLC’s predecessor informed the company that previawshed and operated 1
MGP of potential liability under CERCLA. Titan LLBas not received any requests to remediate or ¢gososts associated with the ¢
Because of the preliminary nature of available mmnental information, the ultimate amount of expdcclean up costs cannot be reasor
estimated.

We cannot predict with certainty the final resufsany of the MGP matters referenced above. Howevés reasonably possible ti
some of them could be resolved unfavorably to ubrasult in losses in excess of recorded amoun&saW unable to estimate any pos:
losses in excess of recorded amounts. Although wveetly believe, after consultation with coungiblat damages or settlements, if ¢
recovered by the plaintiffs in such claims or agsiavill not have a material adverse effect on aoaricial position, damages or settlem
could be material to our operating results or dishkis in future periods depending on the nature timéhg of future developments with resg
to these matters and the amounts of future operadisults and cash flows.

Market Risk Disclosures

Our primary market risk exposures are (1) commogitige risk; (2) interest rate risk; and (3) fomeigurrency exchange rate ri
Although we use derivative financial and commoditstruments to reduce market price risk associaftéit forecasted transactions, we do
use derivative financial and commodity instrumdatsspeculative or trading purposes.

Commodity Price Risk

The risk associated with fluctuations in the prities Partnership and our International Propaneatipgis pay for LPG is principally
result of market forces reflecting changes in sy@pid demand for propane and other energy comresdiiiheir profitability is sensitive
changes in LPG supply costs. Increases in supis @e generally passed on to customers. Thedpsinip and International Propane may
however, always be able to pass through produttimogases fully or on a timely basis, particylavhen product costs rise rapidly. In orde
reduce the volatility of LPG market price risk, tRartnership uses contracts for the forward pueclassale of propane, propane fixardce
supply agreements and over-tt@dnter derivative commaodity instruments includipiice swap and option contracts. In addition, Agea
hedges a portion of its future U.S. dollar denor@dd PG product purchases through the use of fahi@eign exchange contracts as fur
described below. Our International Propane operatitave used over-the-counter derivative commad#tyuments and may from time-tione
enter into other derivative contracts, similar hose used by the Partnership, to reduce marketasskciated with a portion of their L
purchases. Over-thepunter derivative commaodity instruments used tigleeforecasted purchases of propane are geneedtligdsat expiratio
of the contract.

Gas Utility's tariffs contain clauses that pernatavery of all of the prudently incurred costs atural gas it sells to its customi
including the cost of financial instruments usech&alge purchased gas costs. The recovery clausegl@ifor periodic adjustments for -
difference between the total amounts actually cttieé from customers through PGC rates and the esable costs incurred. Because of
ratemaking mechanism, there is limited commodiigeorisk associated with our Gas Utility operatio@ss Utility uses derivative financ
instruments including natural gas futures and optiontracts traded on the New York Mercantile Exgjfea(“NYMEX") to reduce volatility i
the cost of gas it purchases for its retail corekeiacustomers.
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The cost of these derivative financial instrumengt,of any associated gains or losses, is inclim&hs Utility's PGC recovery mechanism.

Electric Utility's DS tariffs contain clauses whiplermit recovery of all prudently incurred powessts) including the cost of financ
instruments used to hedge electricity costs, thnahg application of DS rates. Because of thismaténg mechanism, there is limited po
cost risk, including the cost of financial transsis rights (“FTRs")and forward electricity purchase contracts, assediavith our Electri
Utility operations.

In addition, Gas Utility and Electric Utility frortime to time enter into exchangi@ded gasoline futures and swap contracts forrtop
of gasoline volumes expected to be used in tharaijpns. These gasoline futures and swap contaaetecorded at fair value with change
fair value reflected in other income. The amounuwoifealized gains on these contracts and assoaiatethes under contract at Septembe
2012, were not material.

Midstream & Marketing purchases FTRs to economjchitdge certain transmission costs that may becited with its fixedprice
electricity sales contracts. In addition, Midstre&nMarketing uses NYMEX futures contracts to ecommatly hedge the gross mar
associated with the purchase and anticipated $aterof natural gas or propane. Although Midstré&aMarketing's FTRs and NYMEX futur
contracts associated with the purchase and lataifated sale of natural gas and propane are giypeffective as economic hedges, the
not currently qualify for hedge accounting treattnen

In order to manage market price risk relating thssantially all of Midstream & Marketing's fixgakice sales contracts for natural gas
electricity, Midstream & Marketing enters into NYMEand over-the-counter natural gas and electritityres contracts or enters into fixed
price supply arrangements. Midstream & Marketirgpalses NYMEX and over-thesunter electricity futures contracts to hedge rigo of its
anticipated sales of electricity from its electyicgeneration facilities. Although Midstream & Mating's fixedprice supply arrangemel
mitigate most risks associated with its fixedee sales contracts, should any of the supplieder these arrangements fail to perform, incre
if any, in the cost of replacement natural gaslectdcity would adversely impact Midstream & Matk®y's results. In order to reduce this
of supplier nonperformance, Midstream & Marketirgstdiversified its purchases across a number gilieup. Midstream & Marketing h
entered into and may continue to enter into fipeide propane sales agreements. In order to matiegenarket price risk relating
substantially all of its fixed-price propane sadggeements, Midstream & Marketing enters into psiwap and option contracts.

UGID has entered into fixegrice sales agreements for a portion of the eldttrexpected to be generated by its electric g
assets. In the event that these generation assetlsl wot be able to produce all of the electricigeded to supply electricity under th
agreements, UGID would be required to purchaseralitg on the spot market or under contract withey electricity suppliers. According
increases in the cost of replacement power couwdtheely impact the UGID's results.

Interest Rate Risk

We have both fixed-rate and variable-rate debt.n@ba in interest rates impact the cash flows ofbérrate debt but generally do |
impact their fair value. Conversely, changes ieiiest rates impact the fair value of fixed-ratetdelt do not impact their cash flows.

Our variable-rate debt includes bank loan borrowiagd Antargaz’ and Flaga’'s varialblte term loans. These debt agreements
interest rates that are generally indexed to steont- market interest rates. Antargaz and Flaga leffeetively fixed the underlying eurit
interest rates on their term loans through thdiedaled maturity dates through the use of intaastswaps. At September 30, 2012, comk
borrowings outstanding under variable-rate debeaments, excluding Antargaz’ and Flaga’'s effecyivieled-rate term loan debt, total
$165.1 million. Excluding Antargaz’ and Flaga'sesflively fixedrate term loan debt and based upon average bomgewantstanding und
remaining variable-rate borrowings, an increasshiortterm interest rates of 100 basis points (1%) wdwlde increased our Fiscal 2012
Fiscal 2011 interest expense by approximately $liion and $2.0 million, respectively. The remagmcbf our debt outstanding is subjec
fixed rates of interest. A 100 basis point increasenarket interest rates would result in decreasedbe fair value of this fixedate debt ¢
$160.1 million and $104.1 million at September 3012 and 2011, respectively. A 100 basis pointeses® in market interest rates would re
in increases in the fair value of this fixed-ra@btof $137.0 million and $96.1 million at SeptemB@, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Longterm debt associated with our domestic businességpically issued at fixed rates of interest baspdn market rates for de
having similar terms and credit ratings. As thesggiterm debt issues mature, we may refinance suchwiéiibnew debt having interest ra
reflecting then-current market conditions. In orderreduce interest rate risk associated with neEamediumterm forecasted issuances
fixed-rate debt, from time to time we enter intteirest rate protection agreements (“IRPAS”).

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
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Our primary currency exchange rate risk is assediatith the U.S. dollar versus the euro. The Udllad value of our foreign curren
denominated assets and liabilities will fluctuai¢hvehanges in the associated foreign currency &axgh rates. We use derivative instrumer
hedge portions of our net investments in foreighsadiaries (“net investment hedgesRealized gains or losses on net investment hi
remain in accumulated other comprehensive incontiesuth foreign operations are liquidated. At Sapber 30, 2012, there were no unse
net investment hedges outstanding. With respeatitmet investments in our International Propareratons, a 10% decline in the value of
associated foreign currencies versus the U.S.deleluding the effects of any net investment lesdgvould reduce their aggregate net |
value at September 30, 2012, by approximately $88lin, which amount would be reflected in otleamprehensive income.

In addition, in order to reduce volatility, Antamyhedges a portion of its anticipated U.S. dollenaminated LPG product purcha
during the months of October through March throdlgé use of forward foreign exchange contracts. atmunt of dolladenominate
purchases of LPG associated with such contractsrgiy represents approximately 15% — 30% of edthaollardenominated purchases
occur during the heating-season months of Octabbtarch.

Derivative Financial Instrument Credit Risk

We are exposed to risk of loss in the event of edigopmance by our derivative financial instrumeotiaterparties. Our derivati
financial instrument counterparties principally qmse large energy companies and major U.S. aretnational financial institutions. V
maintain credit policies with regard to our coupteties that we believe reduce overall credit rifkese policies include evaluating .
monitoring our counterparties' financial conditidgncluding their credit ratings, and entering ifigreements with counterparties that go
credit limits.

Certain of our derivative instrument agreements foalthe posting of collateral by the counterpastyby the Company in the forms
letters of credit, parental guarantees or cashitidally, our natural gas and electricity exchattigaled futures and option contracts gene
require cash deposits in margin accounts. Declinesatural gas, LPG and electricity product cosia cequire our business units to |
collateral with counterparties or make margin dépa® brokerage accounts. At September 30, 20122811, restricted cash in broker
accounts totaled $3.0 million and $17.2 milliorspectively.

The following table summarizes the fair values obettled market risk sensitive derivative instruteesmssets and (liabilities) held
September 30, 2012 and 2011. The table also inglti=changes in fair value of derivative instruteghat would result if there were a 1
adverse change in (1) the market prices of LPGolgess natural gas, electricity and electricitynsaission congestion charges; (2) the thre
month and one-month Euribor rates; and (3) the evadti the euro versus the U.S. dollar. Gas Utilitgisd Electric Utilitys derivativi
instruments other than gasoline futures and swapracts are excluded from the table below becangeaasociated net gains or losses
refundable to or recoverable from customers in @taroce with Gas Utility and Electric Utility ratekiag.

Asset (Liability)

Change in
(Millions of dollars) Fair Value Fair Value
September 30, 2012:
Commodity price risk $ 437 $ (35.9
Interest rate risk (71.9 (2.9
Foreign currency exchange rate risk 1.8 (15.9
September 30, 2011:
Commodity price risk $ (25.6) $ (35.9)
Interest rate risk (44.49) (8.2
Foreign currency exchange rate risk 1.¢ (16.5)

Because a significant portion of our derivativetiasents qualify as hedges under GAAP, we expeat ¢thanges in the fair value
derivative instruments used to manage commodityreagy or interest rate market risk would be suftslly offset by gains or losses on
associated anticipated transactions.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Accounting policies and estimates discussed indbition are those that we consider to be the prigtal to an understanding of ¢
financial statements because they involve sigmfipgadgments and uncertainties. Changes in theliggsoand estimates
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could have a material effect on the financial stegets. The application of these accounting policied estimates necessarily reqt
managemen$ most subjective or complex judgments regarditigneses and projected outcomes of future eventshlvbould have a mater
impact on the financial statements. Managementéeégswed these critical accounting policies, anel ¢lstimates and assumptions assoc
with them, with the Compang’Audit Committee. In addition, management hasenged the following disclosures regarding the apgpion o
these critical accounting policies and estimateth \lie Audit Committee. Also, see Note 2 to Cordaikd Financial Statements wt
discusses the significant accounting policies Wmhave selected from acceptable alternatives.

Litigation Accruals and Environmental Remediation Liabilities. We are involved in litigation regarding pendingicia and legal actions tt
arise in the normal course of business. In additid@l Utilities and its former subsidiaries owneddaoperated a number of MGPs
Pennsylvania and elsewhere, and PNG and CPG owmtd@erated a number of MGP sites located in Pévensia, at which hazardo
substances may be present. In accordance with G&AEn a loss is considered probable and reasoesliyable, we record a liability in t
amount of our best estimate for the ultimate I¥gken there is a range of possible loss with eqkelithood, liabilities recorded are based u
the low end of such range. The likelihood of a legth respect to a particular contingency is oftéfficult to predict and determining
reasonable estimate of the loss or a range oflfedsiss may not be practicable based upon them#ton available and the potential efft
of future events and decisions by third partied thil determine the ultimate resolution of the tiagency. Reasonable estimates inv
management judgments based on a broad range ofmiatfion and prior experience. These judgments awewed quarterly as mc
information is received and the amounts reservedugdated as necessary. Such estimated reserveslifiemymaterially from the actu
liability and such reserves may change materialynare information becomes available and estimagserves are adjusted.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.Gas Utility and Electric Utility are subject to rdgtion by the PUC. In accordance with accour
guidance associated with raegulated entities, we record the effects of ragulation in our financial statements as regula@sgets (
regulatory liabilities. We continually assess wieethhe regulatory assets are probable of futurevery by evaluating the regulat
environment, recent rate orders and public statésnissued by the PUC, and the status of any pendiémggulation legislation. If futu
recovery of regulatory assets ceases to be praobidgleelimination of those regulatory assets waddersely impact our results of operati
and cash flows. As of September 30, 2012 , ourla¢ony assets totaled $338.4 millionSee Notes 2 and 8 to Consolidated Fina
Statements.

Depreciation and Amortization of Long-Lived Assets.We compute depreciation on UGI Utilitieproperty, plant and equipment o
straightline basis over the average remaining lives ofdsous classes of depreciable property and orother property, plant and equipm
on a straightine basis over estimated useful lives generalhgiiag from 2 to 40 years. We also use amortizati@thods and determine a
values of intangible assets subject to amortizatising reasonable assumptions and projections. geélsam the estimated useful lives
property, plant and equipment and changes in iitddsm@sset amortization methods or values coulde teavnaterial effect on our results
operations. As of September 30, 2012 , our netgrtgpplant and equipment totaled $4,233.1 millzond we recorded depreciation expens
$264.2 million during Fiscal 2012 . As of SeptemB@r 2012, our net intangible assets subject to amortizaidaled $521.0 million and v
recorded amortization expense on intangible assdigct to amortization of $44.5 million during a$2012 .

Purchase Price Allocations.From time to time, the Company enters into matebiadiness combinations. In accordance with accog
guidance associated with business combinationspuinehase price is allocated to the various asssjgired and liabilities assumed at t
estimated fair value. Fair values of assets acduamed liabilities assumed are based upon availai@mation and we may involve
independent third party to perform appraisals.riating fair values can be complex and subject dgoificant business judgment and rr
commonly impacts property, plant and equipmentiatehgible assets, including those with indefidites. Generally, we have, if necess
up to one year from the acquisition date to firmlize purchase price allocation.

Impairment of Goodwill. We do not amortize goodwill, but test it at leazt@ally for impairment at the reporting unit levAlreporting unit i
the operating segment, or a business one levelvbttle operating segment (a component), if discfie@ncial information is prepared &
regularly reviewed by segment management. Compsnaré¢ aggregated if they have similar economic atteristics. Certain of tl
Companys operating segments have goodwill resulting framtpase business combinations. In accordance WAARG each of our reportir
units with goodwill is required to perform impairnteests annually or whenever events or circumstmmedicate that the value of good'
may be impaired. We determine fair values for eathhe reporting units generally using an incom@rapch unless market values
available. For purposes of the income approachy#due is determined based upon the present \wdlestimated future cash flows discour
at an appropriate risiidjusted rate. Cash flow estimates used to edtafalis values involve management judgments basea lormad range
information and historical results. We use ourriméd forecasts to estimate future cash flows astlide an estimate of lontgrm future growt
rates based upon our most recent reviews of thggtkmm outlook for each reporting unit. We are regdito recognize an impairment che
under GAAP if the carrying amount of a reportingt@xceeds its fair value and the carrying amotihe reporting unit's goodwill

49




Table of Contents

exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill. fhe extent estimated cash flows are revised dowdhwthe reporting unit may be requirec
write down all or a portion of its goodwill whichauld adversely impact our results of operationse Qompany adopted new accoun
guidance regarding goodwill impairment during Fis2@12 (see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statés) which permits us, in cert
circumstances, to perform a qualitative approactiet@rmine if it is more likely than not that tharying value of a reporting unit is gree
than its fair value. As of September 30, 2012 , gnwdwill totaled $2,818.3 millionWe did not record any impairments of goodwillFisca
2012 , Fiscal 2011 or Fiscal 2010 .

Pension Plan AssumptionsPension plan assumptions are significant inputd¢oactuarial models that measure pension bengfgation:

and pension expense. The cost of providing benefitker the U.S. Pension Plan is dependent on ltigtonformation such as employee ¢

length of service, level of compensation and theiaaate of return on plan assets. In additiomtage assumptions relating to the future

used to determine pension expense including theodidg rate applied to benefit obligations, the expé rate of return on plan assets ant

rate of compensation increase, among others. Aséélie U.S. Pension Plan are held in trust andisoprincipally of equity and fixed incot

mutual funds. Changes in plan assumptions as wdlLatuations in actual equity or fixed income Retrreturns could have a material imj

on future pension costs. We believe the two mastal assumptions are (1) the expected rate ofrmedn plan assets and (2) the discount

A decrease in the expected rate of return on UeBsiBn Plan assets of 50 basis points to a rafe2686 would result in an increase in pag-
pension cost of approximately $1.8 million in Fis2813. A decrease in the discount rate of 50 hyawiists to a rate of 3.70% would result ir

increase in pre-tax pension cost of approximat8&l $nillion in Fiscal 2013.

Income Taxes.We use the asset and liability method of accourfiingncome taxes. Under this method, income tgpeease is recognized -
the amount of taxes payable or refundable for threeat year and for deferred tax liabilities andeds for the future tax consequences of e
that have been recognized in our financial statésn@ntax returns. Positions taken by an entitigsinax returns must satisfy a more-likely-than
not recognition threshold assuming the positiont bé examined by tax authorities with full knowtgsl of relevant information. We
assumptions, judgments and estimates to determineuorent provision for income taxes. We also assumptions, judgments and estimat
determine our deferred tax assets and liabilitie$ any valuation allowance to be recorded againdéfarred tax asset. Our assumpti
judgments and estimates relative to the currentigiam for income tax give consideration to curreax laws, our interpretation of current
laws and possible outcomes of current and futuit@wconducted by foreign and domestic tax autiesitChanges in tax law or ¢
interpretation of such and the resolution of curged future tax audits could significantly imp#o® amounts provided for income taxes in
consolidated financial statements. Our assumptijoiiggments and estimates relative to the amouneédrred income taxes take into acct
estimates of the amount of future taxable incometudl taxable income or future estimates of taxabtmme could render our curr
assumptions, judgments and estimates inaccurangel in the assumptions, judgments and estimagataned above could cause our ac
income tax obligations to differ significantly frowur estimates. As of September 30, 2012 , ourdeé&trred tax liabilities totale®878.:
million .

Newly Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Pronccements

See Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statementa fliscussion of the effects of accounting guidameeadopted in Fiscal 203 wel
as recently issued accounting guidance not yettadop

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Kelr Risk” are contained in Item 7 - ManagemsnDiscussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations urthlercaption “Market Risk Disclosures” and are ipovated by reference.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Managemens Annual Report on Internal Control Over Finan&aporting and the financial statements and findrstéement schedul
referred to in the Index contained on page F-hisfReport are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@)

(b)

()

The Company's disclosure controls and proceduresi@signed to provide reasonable assurance thanfdrenation required to t
disclosed by the Company in reports filed underBkehange Act is (i) recorded, processed, sumnrianed reported within the tir
periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, @hdaccumulated and communicated to our managémeauding the Chie
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, gspeopriate to allow timely decisions regarding riegd disclosure. The Compar
management, with the participation of the Compa@yief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officevaluated the effectiven:
of the Company's disclosure controls and procedasesf the end of the period covered by this Ref@ased on that evaluation,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officewncluded that the Company's disclosure contrmudsprocedures, as of the ent
the period covered by this Report, were effectiviha reasonable assurance level.

For “Management's Annual Report on Internahtea over Financial Reportingdee Item 8 of this Report (which informatior
incorporated herein by reference).

During the most recent fiscal quarter, other thiaanges resulting from the acquisition of Heritagep@ne discussed below, no che
in the Company's internal control over financigbaging occurred that has materially affected, sordasonably likely to materia
affect, the Company's internal control over finahceporting.

On January 12, 2012, AmeriGas Partners acquireilagerPropane. The Partnership is currently inpttoeess of integrating Herits
Propane's operations, processes and internal tarfiee Note 4 to Consolidated Financial Statenfentsdditional information on tl
acquisition of Heritage Propane.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI:
ITEMS 10 THROUGH 14.

In accordance with General Instruction G(3), anckgx as set forth below, the information requirgdtbms 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 is
incorporated in this Report by reference to thofeing portions of UGI's Proxy Statement, whichveié filed with the SEC by December 31,
2012.

Captions of Proxy Statement
Information Incorporated by Reference

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaoea Election of Directors Nominees; Corporate Governance; Bc
Independence; Board Committees; Communications it
Board; Securities Ownership of Management - Sectiéa) -
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance; Repoft tloe
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

The Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Offiegrd Senio
Financial Officers of UGI Corporation is availabkgthout
charge on the Comparsy/’'website, www.ugicorp.com or |
writing to Hugh J. Gallagher, Treasurer, UGI Cogim, P
O. Box 858, Valley Forge, PA 19482.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation Compensation of Directors; Report of the Compensatnc
Management Development Committee of the Board
Directors; Compensation  Discussion and  Analy
Compensation of Executive Officers; Compensatiom@ittee
Interlocks and Insider Participation

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners  Securities Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owne3sgurities
Management and Related Stockholder Matters Ownership of Management
ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,Rirettor Election of Directors —Board Independence and Bo
Independence Committees; Policy for Approval of Related Per
Transactions
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services Our Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

Equity Compensation Tabl

The following table sets forth information as o tend of Fiscal 2012 with respect to compensatiansounder which our equity
securities are authorized for issuance.

Number of securities

Number of securities to be Weighted average remaining available for future
issued upon exercise of exercise price of issuance under equity
outstanding options, outstanding options, compensation plans
warrants and rights warrants and rights (excluding securities reflected
Plan category (a) (b) in column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 8,036,77. (1) $ 26.6¢€ 1,436,67.
885,33t (2) $ 0
Equity compensation plans n
approved by security holde 21,00 (3) $ 12.6¢
Total 8,943,111 $ 26.6z (4)

52






Table of Contents

(1) Represents 8,036,772 stock options under the 20eégctdrs' Stock Incentive Plan and the UGI Corgorat2004 Omnibus Equi
Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of Decé&mB006.

(2) Represents 885,338 phantom share units under the&Coi@oration 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plarended and Restated a:
December 5, 2006.

(3) Column (a) represents 21,000 stock optiongutite 2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan. Unither 2002 NorRQualified Stock Optio
Plan, the option exercise price is not less thad%d®f the fair market value of the Company's commstotk on the date of gra
Generally, options become exercisable in threeleapuaual installments beginning on the first anréaey of the grant date. All options
noniransferable and generally exercisable only whike hiolder is employed by the Company or an aféiliatith exceptions for exerc
following retirement, disability and death. Opticar® subject to adjustment in the event of rechgiti#on, stock splits, mergers and of
similar corporate transactions affecting the Comnyfsaoommon stock.

(4) Weightedaverage exercise price of outstanding options;uebed phantom share un
The information concerning the Company’s executiffeers required by Item 10 is set forth below.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Name Age Position

Lon R. Greenberg 62 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

John L. Walsh 57 President and Chief Operating Officer

Kirk R. Oliver 54 Chief Financial Officer

Davinder S. Athwal 45 Vice President - Accounting and Financial Contrad &hief Risk Officer
Jerry E. Sheridan 47 President and Chief Executive Officer, AmeriGaspRre, Inc.

Robert F. Beard 47 President and Chief Executive Officer, UGI Utilgjdnc.

Bradley C. Hall 59 Vice President - New Business Development

Monica M. Gaudiosi 49 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

All officers are elected for a one-year term atdhganizational meetings of the respective Boafd3i@ctors held each year.
There are no family relationships between any efdfiicers or between any of the officers and aihe directors.

Lon R. Greenberg

Mr. Greenberg has been Chairman of the Board oédbirs of UGI since 1996 and Chief Executive Offisence 1995. He w.
formerly President (1994 to 2005), Vice Chairmanhaf Board (1995 to 1996), and Senior Vice Presidéegal and Corporate Developm
(1989 to 1994). Mr. Greenberg also serves as aciref UGI Utilities, Inc., AmeriGas Propane, InAqua America, Inc. and Ameripri
Financial, Inc. As previously announced, Mr. Gresngbwill retire from his position as Chief ExecwiOfficer of UGI in the spring of 20.
and will serve as Non-Executive Chairman of ther8a# Directors following his retirement.

John L. Walsh

Mr. Walsh is a Director and President and Chief@fieg Officer of UGI Corporation (since 2005). dddition, Mr. Walsh serves
Vice Chairman of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (since 2@0% UGI Utilities, Inc. (since 2005). Previoushe also served as President and (
Executive Officer of UGI Utilities, Inc. (2009 td021). Mr. Walsh was the Chief Executive of the Isithal and Special Products Division
the BOC Group plc (industrial gases), a positiomsgumed in 2001. He was also an Executive DiredtBOC (2001 to 2005). He joined B(
in 1986 as Vice PresideSpecial Gases and held various senior managemsitiops in BOC, including President of Process Gahitions
North America (2000 to 2001) and President of BQGcEss Plants (1996 to 2000). Mr. Walsh also semges Director of UGI Utilities, In
and AmeriGas Propane, Inc. As previously announbéd,Walsh will be named President and Chief ExeeuOfficer of UGI upon Mi
Greenberg's retirement in the spring of 2013.
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Kirk R. Oliver

Mr. Oliver is Chief Financial Officer of UGI (sind®ctober 2012). From December 2011 until Septerabé&e, Mr. Oliver served

Senior Managing Director & Chief Operating Officefr InfraREIT Capital Partners, LLC, a partnershi@ttinvests in infrastructure ass
primarily electric transmission and gas pipelinseds. Prior to joining InfraREIT Capital, Mr. Oliveerved as Senior Vice President and (
Financial Officer of Allegheny Energy, Inc., an @léc utility company, from 2008 to 2011, and aSenior Executive at Hunt Power, LLC
company that develops and invests in electric aasdugility projects, from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Oliveerved in various positions at TXU Cc
(now Energy Future Holdings Corp.), an electridtigtribution, generation and transmission companyexas, from 1998 to 2006, including
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offifrem 2004 to 2006, Senior Vice President, Finafinom 2000 to 2003 and Vice Presidi
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary from 1998 to .1Bé6r to joining TXU Corp., Mr. Oliver spent elew years as an investment banker ir
Global Power and Energy Group at Lehman Brothedssgnyears at Motorola Inc.

Davinder S. Athwal

Mr. Athwal is Vice President Accounting and Financial Control and Chief RisKi€r (since January 2009). He previously serve
the Global Mergers & Acquisitions Controller of NelrNetworks, Inc., a global supplier of telecomnwations equipment and solutions fr
2007 through 2008. Mr. Athwal served as Directdnlfal Revenue Governance for Nortel Networks, fram 2006 through 2007. Mr. Athw
previously served in both accounting and risk manaant roles for IBM Corporation, a globally intefgé innovation and technology comp
(2003 to 2006).

Jerry E. Sheridan

Mr. Sheridan is President, Chief Executive Offiaad a Director of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (sincedd&012). Previously, he sen
as Vice President - Operations and Chief Operdifiiger (2011 to 2012) and as Vice Presiderinrance and Chief Financial Officer (200!
2011) of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Mr. Sheridan sem®dPresident and Chief Executive Officer (2002@05) of Potters Industries, Inc.
global manufacturer of engineered glass materiats & whollyowned subsidiary of PQ Corporation. In addition,. Bheridan served
Executive Vice President (2003 to 2005) and as Yiesident and Chief Financial Officer (1999 to 2006f PQ Corporation, a global produ
of inorganic specialty chemicals. Mr. Sheridan adsoves on the Management Board of the Engineera@ridls Division of JM Huber,
privately held company (since 2012).

Robert F. Beard

Mr. Beard is President and Chief Executive OfficérUGI Utilities, Inc. (since September 2011). Heeyjously served as Vi
President - Marketing, Rates and Gas Supply (2612011) and Vice PresidentSouthern Region (2008 to 2010) of UGI Utilitiescl Fron
2006 until 2008, Mr. Beard served as Vice Presidébperations and Engineering of PPL Gas Utilitiespdaation and, from 2002 until 20(
he served as Director - Operations and Engine@filRPL Gas Utilities Corporation.

Bradley C. Hall

Mr. Hall is Vice President New Business Development (since October 1994)alde serves as President of UGI Enterprises
(since 1994) and UGI Energy Services, Inc. (sin@®85). He joined the Company in 1982 and held varipasitions in UGI Utilities, Inc
including Vice President - Marketing and Rates.

Monica M. Gaudiosi

Ms. Gaudiosi is Vice President, General Counsel @&ctetary (since April 2012). She also servesias Fresident and Secretary
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. and UGI Utilities, Inc. ¢g@nApril 2012). Prior to joining UGI, Ms. Gaudiosérved as Senior Vice President
General Counsel (2007 to 2012) and Senior Viceidrasand Associate General Counsel (2005 to 2603%puthern Union Company. Priol
joining Southern Union Company in 2005, Ms. Gaudiwedd various positions with General Electric GapiCorporation (1997 to 200
Before joining General Electric Capital Corporatitms. Gaudiosi was an associate at the law firmduiton & Williams (1994 to 1997) a
Sutherland, Asbill & Brennan (1988 to 1994).
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PART IV:

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)

Documents filed as part of this report

(1) Financial Statements
Included under Item 8 are the following financitements and supplementary data:
Management’s Report on Internal Control over FimgrReporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 3@,8012011
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@&&ptember 30, 2012 , 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended September 30, 2012 , 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled September 30, 2012 , 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity ®ytars ended September 30, 2012 , 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedule:
| — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@ompany)
Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years eth@eptember 30, 2012 , 2011 and 2010

We have omitted all other financial statement sakeibecause the required information is (1) nes@nt; (2) not present
amounts sufficient to require submission of theesiehe; or (3) included elsewhere in the financiatesments or related notes.

(3) List of Exhibits:

The exhibits filed as part of this report are alfofes (exhibits incorporated by reference are sethf with the name of tl
registrant, the type of report and registration banor last date of the period for which it wagdil and the exhibit number

such filing):
Incorporation by Reference
Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit
1.1 Underwriting Agreement, dated AmeriGas Form 8-K 1.1
January 5, 2012, by and among Partners, L.P. (1/5/2012)

Partnership, the Issuers, AmeriGas
Propane, Inc., AmeriGas Propane
L.P., Credit Suisse Securities
(USA) LLC, Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC and Wells Fargo
Securities, LLC, as representatives
of the several underwriters named
therein
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit
1.2 Underwriting Agreement, dated AmeriGas Form 8-K 1.1
March 15, 2012, by and among Partners, L.P. (3/15/12)

Partnership, AmeriGas Propane,
Inc., AmeriGas Propane, L.P.,
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC,
Barclays Capital Inc., Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., Credit Suisse
Securities (USA) LLC, J.P.
Morgan Securities LLC, Merrill
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated and UBS Securities
LLC, as representatives of the
several underwriters named

therein.
2.1 Contribution and Redemption AmeriGas Form 8-K (10/15/11) 2.1
Agreement, dated October 15, Partners, L.P.

2011, by and among AmeriGas
Partners, L.P., Energy Transfer
Partners, L.P., Energy Transfer
Partners GP, L.P. and Heritage

ETC, L.P.
2.2 Amendment No. 1, dated as of AmeriGas Form 8-K 2.1
December 1, 2011, to the Partners, L.P. (12/1/11)

Contribution and Redemption
Agreement, dated as of October
15, 2011, by and among Energy
Transfer Partners, L.P., Energy
Transfer Partners GP, L.P.,
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas
Partners, L.P.

2.3 Amendment No. 2, dated as of AmeriGas Form 8-K 2.1
January 11, 2012, to the Partners, L.P. (1/11/12)
Contribution and Redemption
Agreement, dated as of October
15, 2012, by and among Energy
Transfer Partners, L.P., Energy
Transfer Partners GP, L.P.,
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas
Partners, L.P.

2.4 Letter Agreement, dated as of AmeriGas Form 8-K 2.1
January 11, 2012, by and among Partners, L.P. (1/11/12)
Energy Transfer Partners, L.P.,
Energy Transfer Partners GP, L.
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas
Partners, L.P.

3.1 (Second) Amended and Restated UGl Form 10-Q (6/30/05) 3.1
Articles of Incorporation of the
Company as amended through
June 6, 2005

3.2 Bylaws of UGI as amended UGl Form 8-K (9/28/04) 3.2
through September 28, 2004

56




Table of Contents

Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No.

Exhibit

Registrant

Filing

Exhibit

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Instruments defining the rights of
security holders, including
indentures. (The Company agrees
to furnish to the Commission upon
request a copy of any instrument
defining the rights of holders of
long-term debt not required to be
filed pursuant to Item 601(b)(4) of
Regulation S-K)

The description of the Company's
Common Stock contained in the
Company's registration statement
filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended

UGI's (Second) Amended and
Restated Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws referred to in 3.1 and
3.2 above

Fourth Amended and Restated
Agreement of Limited Partnership
of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. dated
as of July 27, 2009

Amendment No. 1 to Fourth
Amended and Restated Agreem
of Limited Partnership of
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. dated as
of March 13, 2012.

Indenture, dated as of January 20,
2011, by and among AmeriGas
Partners, L.P., AmeriGas Finance
Corp. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee

First Supplemental Indenture,
dated as of January 20, 2011, to
Indenture dated as of January 20,
2011, by and among AmeriGas
Partners, L.P., AmeriGas Finance
Corp. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee

Second Supplemental Indenture,
dated as of August 10, 2011, to
Indenture dated as of January 20,
2011, by and among AmeriGas
Partners, L.P., AmeriGas Finance
Corp. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee

UGl

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.
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Form 8-B/A (4/17/96)

Form 10-Q (6/30/09)

Form 8-K

(3/14/12)

Form 10-Q (12/31/10)

Form 8-K (1/19/11)

Form 8-K (8/10/11)

3.(4)

3.1

3.1

4.1

4.1

4.1
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit
4.9 Indenture, dated as of August 1, Utilities Registration Statement No. 334(c)
1993, by and between UGI 77514
Utilities, Inc., as Issuer, and U.S. (4/8/94)

Bank National Association, as
successor trustee, incorporated by
reference to the Registration
Statement on

Form S-3 filed on April 8, 1994

4.10 Supplemental Indenture, dated as Utilities Form 8-K (9/12/06) 4.2
of September 15, 2006, by and
between UGI Utilities, Inc., as
Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, successor trustee to
Wachovia Bank, National

Association
411 Indenture, dated as of January 12, AmeriGas Form 8-K 4.1
2012, among AmeriGas Finance Partners, L.P. (1/12/12)

Corp., AmeriGas Finance LLC,
AmeriGas Partners, L.P., as
guarantor, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee.

412 First Supplemental Indenture, AmeriGas Form 8-K 4.2
dated as of January 12, 2012, Partners, L.P. (1/12/12)
among AmeriGas Finance Corp.,
AmeriGas Finance LLC,
AmeriGas Partners, L.P., as
guarantor, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee.

413 Form of Fixed Rate Mediufifrerm Utilities Form 8-K (8/26/94) 4(i)
Note

414 Form of Fixed Rate Series B Utilities Form 8-K (8/1/96) 4(i)
Medium-Term Note

4.15 Form of Floating Rate Series B Utilities Form 8-K (8/1/96) 4(ii)
Medium-Term Note

4.16 Officer's Certificate establishing Utilities Form 8-K (8/26/94) 4(iv)
Medium-Term Notes Series

4.17 Form of Officer's Certificate Utilities Form 8-K (8/1/96) 4(iv)

establishing Series B Medium-
Term Notes under the Indenture

4.18 Form of Officers' Certificate Utilities Form 8-K (5/21/02) 4.2
establishing Series C Medium-
Term Notes under the Indenture

4.19 Forms of Floating Rate and Fixed Utilities Form 8-K (5/21/02) 4.1
Rate Series C Medium-Term
Notes
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No.

Exhibit

Registrant

Filing

Exhibit

10.1**

10.2**

10.3**

10.4**

10.5**

10.6**

10.7**

10.8**

10.9**

10.10**

10.11**

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus
Equity Compensation Plan
Amended and Restated as of
December 5, 2006

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus
Equity Compensation Plan
Amended and Restated as of
December 5, 2006 - Terms and
Conditions as amended and
restated effective July 30, 2012.

UGI Corporation Amended and
Restated 2004 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan Sub-Plan for
French Employees and Corporate
Officers effective May 20, 2008

UGI Corporation Amended and
Restated Directors' Deferred
Compensation Plan as of January
1, 2005

UGI Corporation 2000 Directors'
Stock Option Plan Amended and
Restated as of May 24, 2005

UGI Corporation 1997 Stock
Option and Dividend Equivalent
Plan Amended and Restated as of
May 24, 2005

UGI Corporation 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan Amended and
Restated as of May 24, 2005

UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral
Plan As Amended and Restated
Effective June 1, 2010

UGI Corporation Senior Executi
Employee Severance Plan as in
effect as of January 1, 2008

UGI Corporation Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan and
Supplemental Savings Plan, as
Amended and Restated effective
January 1, 2009

Amendment 2009-1 to the UGI
Corporation Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan and
Supplemental Savings Plan as
Amended and Restated effective
January 1, 2009

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

59

Form 8-K (2/27/07)

Form 10-K (9/30/11)

Form 10-Q (6/30/08)

Form 10-K (9/30/10)

Form 10-K (9/30/06)

Form 10-K (9/30/10)

Form 10-K (9/30/06)

Form 10-Q (6/30/10)

Form 10-Q (3/31/08)

Form 10-K (9/30/09)

Form 10-Q (12/31/09)
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10.2

10.1

10.5

10.13

10.7

10.14

10.1

10.1

10.11

10.1
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No.

Exhibit

Registrant

Filing

Exhibit

10.12**

10.13**

10.14**

10.15**

10.16**

10.16a**

10.17**

10.18**

10.19**

*10.20**

UGI Corporation 2009
Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan For New
Employees as Amended and
Restated as of October 1, 2010

UGI Corporation Executive
Annual Bonus Plan effective as of
October 1, 2006

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000
Long-Term Incentive Plan on
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.|
as Amended and Restated
effective January 1, 2005

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan on
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
effective July 30, 2010

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan on
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
effective July 30, 2010 - Terms
and Conditions

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan on
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
Performance Unit Grant Letter for

Employees dated January 1, 2012.

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus
Equity Compensation Plan
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant
Letter for Mr. Grady dated Janus
17, 2012

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan on
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.|
Phantom Unit Grant Letter for Mr.
Grady dated as of January 17,
2012

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan on
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.|
Performance Unit Grant Letter for
Mr. Grady dated January 17, 2012

Form of UGI Corporation 2004
Omnibus Equity Compensation
Plan Performance Unit Grant
Letter for Ms. Monica M.
Gaudiosi for the 2010-12
Performance Period, dated as of
April 23, 2012

UGl

UGl

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas

Partners, L.P.
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Form 10-Q (12/31/09)

Form 10-K (9/30/07)

Form 10-K (9/30/08)

Form 8-K (7/30/10)

Form 10-K (9/30/10)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

10.2

10.8

10.7

10.2

10.1

10.11

10.9

10.7

10.8
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit

*10.21** Form of UGI Corporation 2004
Omnibus Equity Compensation
Plan Performance Unit Grant
Letter for Ms. Monica M.
Gaudiosi for the 2011-13
Performance Period, dated as of

April 23, 2012
10.22** AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Non- AmeriGas Form 10-Q (3/31/12) 10.5
Qualified Deferred Compensation Partners, L.P.

Plan, as Amended and Restated
effective January 1, 2012.

10.23** AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Senior AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.12
Executive Employee Severance Partners, L.P. (9/30/02)
Plan, as in effect January 1, 2008.

10.24** AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive AmeriGas Form 10-K (9/30/08) 10.4
Employee Severance Plan, as in Partners, L.P.
effect January 1, 2008

10.25** AmeriGas Propane, Inc. AmeriGas Form 10-Q (12/31/09) 10.1
Supplemental Executive Partners, L.P.

Retirement Plan, as Amended and
Restated effective January 1, 2009

10.26** AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive AmeriGas Form 10-K (9/30/07) 10.19
Annual Bonus Plan, effective as of Partners, L.P.
October 1, 2006

10.27** Summary of Antargaz UGl Form 10-K (9/30/09) 10.20
Supplemental Retirement Plans
effective as of September 1, 2009

10.28** UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl Form 10-Q 10.16
Equity Compensation Plan Stock (3/31/12)
Unit Grant Letter for Non
Employee Directors, dated Janu
9, 2012

10.29** UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl Form 10-Q (3/31/12) 10.10
Equity Compensation Plan
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant
Letter for Non Employee
Directors, dated January 9, 2012

10.30** UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl Form 10-Q 10.11
Equity Compensation Plan (3/31/12)
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant
Letter for UGI Employees, dated
January 1, 2012
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No.

Exhibit Registrant

Filing

Exhibit

10.31**

10.32**

10.33**

10.34**

10.35**

10.36**

*10.37**

10.38**

10.39**

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl
Equity Compensation Plan

Nonqualified Stock Option Grant

Letter for AmeriGas Employees,

dated January 1, 2012

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl
Equity Compensation Plan

Nonqualified Stock Option Grant

Letter for UGI Utilities

Employees, dated January 1, 2012

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl
Equity Compensation Plan

Performance Unit Grant Letter for

UGI Employees, dated January 1,

2012

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus UGl
Equity Compensation Plan

Performance Unit Grant Letter for

UGI Utilities Employees, dated

January 1, 2012

UGI Corporation Amended and UGl
Restated 2004 Omnibus Equity

Compensation Plan Sub-Plan for

French Employees and Corporate

Officers Stock Option Grant Lett

effective January 1, 2012

UGI Corporation Amended and UGl
Restated 2004 Omnibus Equity

Compensation Plan Sub-Plan for

French Employees and Corporate

Officers Performance Unit Grant

Letter effective January 1, 2012

Description of oral compensation
arrangements for Messrs.
Greenberg, Walsh, Hall, and
Oliver and Ms. Gaudiosi

Description of oral compensation AmeriGas

arrangement for Mr. Sheridan Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 AmeriGas

Long-Term Incentive Plan on Partners, L.P.

Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.|
as amended and restated effective
January 1, 2005, Restricted Unit
Grant Letter dated as of
December 31, 2009
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Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-Q
(3/31/12)

Form 10-K
(9/30/11)

Form 10-K

(9/30/11)

Form 10-K (9/30/12)

Form 10-Q (3/31/10)

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.33

10.34

10.29

10.2
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Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No.

Exhibit

Registrant

Filing

Exhibit

*10.40**

10.41**

10.42**

10.43**

10.44**

10.45

10.46

10.47

Summary of Director
Compensation as of October 1,
2012

Form of Change in Control
Agreement Amended and Resta
as of May 12, 2008 for Messrs.
Greenberg and Walsh

Change in Control Agreement for
Monica M. Gaudiosi dated as of
April 23, 2012

Form of Confidentiality and Post-
Employment Activities Agreemei

with AmeriGas Propane, Inc. for

Mr. Bissell

Settlement Agreement dated
October 12, 2011 among AGZ
Holding, Antargaz and Mr.
Varagne

Trademark License Agreement
dated April 19, 1995 among UGI
Corporation, AmeriGas, Inc.,
AmeriGas Propane, Inc.,
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. and
AmeriGas Propane, L.P.

Trademark License Agreement,
dated April 19, 1995 among
AmeriGas Propane, Inc.,
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. and
AmeriGas Propane, L.P.

Credit Agreement dated as of
June 21, 2011, as amended
through and including Amendme
No. 4 thereto dated April 18, 201

by and among AmeriGas Propane,

L.P., as Borrower, AmeriGas
Propane, Inc., as a Guarantor,
Wells Fargo Bank, National
Assaociation, as Administrative
Agent, Swingline Lender and
Issuing Lender (“Agent”), Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, as Sole
Lead Arranger and Sole Book
Manager and the financial
institutions from time to time par
thereto

UGl

UGl

AmeriGas
Partners, L.P.

UGl

UGl

AmeriGas
Partners, L.P.

AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
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Form 8-K (10/12/11)
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Exhibit
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Filing

Exhibit

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

Release of Liens and Termination
of Security Documents dated as of
November 6, 2006 by and among
AmeriGas Propane, Inc., Petrolane
Incorporated, AmeriGas Propane,
L.P., AmeriGas Propane Parts &
Service, Inc. and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as Collateral
Agent for the Secured Creditors,
pursuant to the Intercreditor and
Agency Agreement dated as of
April 19, 1995

Receivables Purchase Agreement,
dated as of November 30, 2001, as
amended through and including
Amendment No. 8 thereto dated
April 22, 2010 and Amendment
No. 9 thereto dated August 26,
2010, by and among UGI Energy
Services, Inc., as servicer, Energy
Services Funding Corporation, as
seller, Market Street Funding,

LLC, as issuer, and PNC Bank,
National Association, as
administrator

Amendment No. 10, dated as of
April 21, 2011 to Receivables
Purchase Agreement, dated as of
November 30, 2001(as amended,
supplemented or modified from
time to time), by and among UGI
Energy Services, Inc. as servicer,
Energy Services Funding
Corporation, as seller, Market
Street Funding LLC, as issuer, and
PNC Bank, National Association,
as administrator

Amendment No. 11, dated as of
April 19, 2012, to Receivables
Purchase Agreement, dated as of
November 30, 2001 (as amended,
supplemented or modified from
time to time), by and among UGI
Energy Services, Inc., as servicer,
Energy Services Funding
Corporation, as seller, Market
Street Funding LLC, as issuer, and
PNC Bank, National Association,
as administrator

AmeriGas
Partners, L.P.

UGl

UGl

UGl
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Form 8-K (4/21/11)

Form 8-K
(4/19/12)
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Exhibit
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Exhibit

10.52

10.53

10.54

Credit Agreement, dated as of
May 25, 2011 among UGI
Utilities, Inc., as borrower, and
PNC Bank, National Association,
as administrative agent, Citizens
Bank of Pennsylvania, as
syndication agent, PNC Capital
Markets LLC and RBS Citizens,
N.A., as joint lead arrangers and
joint bookrunners, and PNC Bank,
National Association, Citizens
Bank of Pennsylvania, Citibank,
N.A., Credit Suisse AG, Cayman
Islands Branch, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, The Bank of
New York Mellon, and the other
financial institutions from time to
time parties thereto

Purchase and Sale Agreement,
dated as of November 30, 2001, as
amended through and including
Amendment No. 3 thereto dated
August 26, 2010, by and between
UGI Energy Services, Inc. and
Energy Services Funding
Corporation

Credit Agreement, dated as of
August 26, 2010, among UGI
Energy Services, Inc., as borrown
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
as administrative agent, PNC
Bank, National Association, as
syndication agent, and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association
and Credit Suisse AG, Cayman
Islands Branch, as co-
documentation agents

Utilities

UGl

UGl
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10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

Senior Facilities Agreement dated
March 16, 2011 by and among
AGZ Holding, as Parent and
Borrower, Antargaz, as Borrower,
BNP Paribas, Caisse Régionale de
Crédit Agricole Mutuel de Paris et
d'lle de France, Credit Lyonnais
and Natixis, as Mandated Lead
Arrangers and Bookrunners,
Barclays Bank PLC, Banque
Commerciale pour le Marché de
I'Entreprise and ING Belgium SA,
Succursale en France, as
Mandated Lead Arrangers,

Natixis, as Facility Agent and
Security Agent, Banco Bilbao
Vizcaya Argentaria, Crédit du
Nord, HSBC France, Crédit Suisse
International, Bred Banque
Populaire and Banque Palatine, as
Arrangers and the Financial
Institutions named therein

Pledge of Financial Instruments
Account relating to Financial
Instruments held by AGZ Holding
in Antargaz, dated March 16,
2011, by and among AGZ
Holding, as Pledgor, Natixis, as
Security Agent and Bank Account
Holder, and the Lenders, as
Beneficiaries

Pledge of Financial Instruments
Account relating to Financial
Instruments held by Antargaz in
certain subsidiary companies,
dated March 16, 2011, by and
among Antargaz, as Pledgor,
Natixis, as Security Agent and
Bank Account Holder, and the
Lenders, as Beneficiaries

Master Agreement for Assignment
of Receivables dated March 16,
2011 between AGZ Holding, as
Assignor, Natixis, as Security
Agent, and the Beneficiaries

Master Agreement for Assignment
of Receivables dated March 16,
2011 between Antargaz, as
Assignor, Natixis, as Security
Agent, and the Beneficiaries

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl

UGl
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Form 10-Q (3/31/11)
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10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

First Demand Guarantee dated
March 16, 2011 by UGI
Corporation in favor of Natixis
and the Lenders set forth in the
Senior Facilities Agreement dated
March 16, 2011

FSS Service Agreement No.
79028 dated March 29, 2012
between Columbia Gas
Transmission, LLC and UGI
Utilities, Inc.

Firm Storage and Delivery Service
Agreement (Rate GSS) dated

July 1, 1996 between
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line
Corporation and PG Energy

Service Agreement For Use Under
Seller's GSS Rate Schedule dated
July 9, 2012 between
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line
Company, LLC and UGI Penn
Natural Gas, Inc.

SST Service Agreement

No. 79133 dated March 29, 2012
between Columbia Gas
Transmission, LLC and UGI
Utilities, Inc.

FTS-1 Service Agreement

No. 46283 dated November 1,
1993, as amended by that certain
letter agreement dated May 5,
2004 between Columbia Gulf
Transmission Company and UGI
Utilities, Inc.

FTS Service Agreement

No. 46284 dated November 1,
1993, as amended by that certain
letter agreement dated May 5,
2004, between Columbia
Transmission Corporation and
UGI Utilities, Inc.

Amendment to FTS-1 Service
Agreement No. 46283 and FTS
Service Agreement No. 46284
each dated November 1, 1993, as
amended by that certain letter
agreement dated May 5, 2004
dated November 1, 1993

UGl

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities
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10.68

10.69

14

*21
*23

*31.1

*31.2

*32

*101.INS
*101.SCH

*101.CAL

*101.DEF

Contingent Residential Support AmeriGas
Agreement dated as of January 12,  Partners, L.P.
2012, among Energy Transfer
Partners, L.P., AmeriGas Finance
LLC, AmeriGas Finance Corp.,

AmeriGas Partners, L.P., and for
certain limited purposes only, UGI
Corporation

Unitholder Agreement, dated as of AmeriGas Partners,
January 12, 2012, by and among L.P.
Heritage ETC, L.P., AmeriGas
Partners, L.P., and, for limited
purposes, Energy Transfer
Partners, L.P., Energy Transfer
Partners GP, L.P., and Energy
Transfer Equity, L.P.

Code of Ethics for principal UGl
executive, financial and
accounting officers

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Certification by the Chief
Executive Officer relating to the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Certification by the Chief

Financial Officer relating to the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Certification by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer relating to the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

XBRL.Instance

XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Schema

XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Calculation Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Definition Linkbase
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Form 8-K
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit
*101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Labels Linkbase
*101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension

Presentation Linkbase
* Filed herewitr

**  As required by Item 14(a)(3), this exhibit is idéietl as a compensatory plan or arrangen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&fdhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this Repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedly authorized.

UGI CORPORATION

Date: November 20, 2012 By: /s/ Kirk R. Oliver

Kirk R. Oliver
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed belowovember 20, 2012by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant ie tapacities indicated.

Signature Title
s/ Lon R. Greenberg Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Lon R. Greenberg (Principal Executive Officer) and Director

/sl Kirk R. Oliver
Kirk R. Oliver Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige

/s/ John L. Walsh

President and Chief Operating Officer (Principak@jting

John L. Walsh Officer) and Director

/sl Davinder S. Athwal Vice President — Accounting and Financial Control,
Davinder S. Athwal Chief Risk Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl Stephen D. Ban Director

Stephen D. Ban

/s/ Richard W. Gochnauer Director
Richard W. Gochnauer

/sl Frank S. Hermance Director
Frank S. Hermance

/sl Ernest E. Jones Director
Ernest E. Jones

/s/ Anne Pol Director
Anne Pol
/s/ M. Shawn Puccio Director

M. Shawn Puccio

/sl Marvin O. Schlanger Director
Marvin O. Schlanger

/sl Roger B. Vincent Director
Roger B. Vincent
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR INCLUSION IN ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
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UGI CORPORATION
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Pages
Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Remaoyti F-3
Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm F-4
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 3Q,&#12011 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseS@ptember 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéoyears ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F-7
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@ided September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F-8
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity felydars ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F9
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-11
Financial Statement Schedules:
For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 drfd 20
| — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Re@ompany) S1
Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S4

We have omitted all other financial statement salesibecause the required information is eithem¢t)present; (2) not present in amol
sufficient to require submission of the schedulg(3) included elsewhere in the financial staterm@mtrelated notes.
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Report of Management
Financial Statements

The Companys consolidated financial statements and other &ighrinformation contained in this Annual Repore gorepared t
management, which is responsible for their fairngdegrity and objectivity. The consolidated fircéal statements and related information v
prepared in accordance with accounting principlesegally accepted in the United States of Amerita iaclude amounts that are basel
management’s best judgments and estimates.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors iswqgmsed of three members, none of whom is an employehe Company. Tt
Committee is responsible for (i) overseeing theafficial reporting process and the adequacy of iatecontrol and (ii) monitoring tt
independence and performance of the Commamdependent registered public accounting firm iternal auditors. The Committee is ¢
responsible for maintaining direct channels of camioation among the Board of Directors, managernamd, both the independent registt
public accounting firm and the internal auditors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registpublic accounting firm, is engaged to perforadits of our consolidate
financial statements. These audits are performet@ordance with the standards of the Public Compantounting Oversight Board (Unit
States). Our independent registered public accogritrm was given unrestricted access to all finaneecords and related data, incluc
minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directorsl aommittees of the Board. The Company believas dll representations made to
independent registered public accounting firm dythmeir audits were valid and appropriate.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglasing for the Company. In order
evaluate the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting, as required by Section 404tleé Sarbane®xley Act of 200z
management has conducted an assessment, incladitiggt of the Compang’internal control over financial reporting, usitihge criteria il
Internal Control — Integrated Framework, issuedthg Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@iway Commission COSC
Framework”).

Internal control over financial reporting refersth® process, designed under the supervision aridipation of management includi
our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financ@fficer, to provide reasonable, but not absolassurance regarding the reliability
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordante agicounting principles generally acce|
in the United States of America and includes peficand procedures that, among other things, pra@dsonable assurance that assel
safeguarded and that transactions are executeatdordance with managementauthorization and are properly recorded to petird
preparation of reliable financial information. Bese of its inherent limitations, internal contraleo financial reporting may not prevent
detect misstatements. Also, projections of anywatadn of effectiveness to future periods are stibfe the risk that controls may becc
inadequate due to changing conditions, or the @egfeompliance with the policies or procedures mheteriorate.

Based on its assessment, management has conchatethe Compang’ internal control over financial reporting waseetive as ¢
September 30, 2012based on the COSO Framework. Pricewaterhouse@obp®, our independent registered public accogrtiimm, audite:
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contradr financial reporting as of September 30, 2048 stated in their report, which app
herein.

/sl Lon R. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Kirk R. Oliver
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Davinder S. Athwal
Chief Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of U®tgdration:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bedasheets and the related consolidated stateménteame, of comprehensi
income, of changes in equity and of cash flows gmedairly, in all material respects, the financgdsition of UGI Corporation and
subsidiaries at September 30, 2012 and 20drid the results of their operations and theih dasvs for each of the three years in the pe
ended September 30, 20i{2 conformity with accounting principles generaligcepted in the United States of America. In addjtin ou
opinion, the financial statement schedules listedhie index appearing under Item 15 (a)(2) pregeinly, in all material respects, t
information set forth therein when read in conjimttwith the related consolidated financial statataeAlso in our opinion, the Compe
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveeintl control over financial reporting as of Septem30, 2012 based on criteria establishet
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatainthe Treadway Commission (COSO).
Companys management is responsible for these financismstents and financial statement schedules, fortaiaing effective internal contr
over financial reporting and for its assessmenthef effectiveness of internal control over finahegporting, included in the accompany
Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is to express opinions oesthfinancial statements,
the financial statement schedules, and on the Coygdnternal control over financial reporting basedaur integrated audits. We condu
our audits in accordance with the standards oPtitdic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require the
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonalderance about whether the financial statementfreeeof material misstatement and whe
effective internal control over financial reportingas maintained in all material respects. Our audit the financial statements inclu
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingtheunts and disclosures in the financial statesyessessing the accounting principles
and significant estimates made by management, ealdating the overall financial statement preséotatOur audit of internal control o\
financial reporting included obtaining an undersdiag of internal control over financial reportingssessing the risk that a material weak
exists, and testing and evaluating the design pedabting effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed risk. Our audits also incl
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahadits provide a reasonable basis fol
opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is apess designed to provide reasonable assurancelireg¢he reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princig
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdfose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readsleaassurance regarding prevention or timely deteaf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢t@isstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomedénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 20, 201
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Millions of dollars)

September 30,
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 319.¢ 238.t
Restricted cash 3.C 17.2
Accounts receivable (less allowances for doubttgbants of $36.1 and $36.8, respectively) 632.¢ 546.7
Accrued utility revenues 16.¢ 14.¢
Inventories 356.¢ 363.(
Deferred income taxes 56.¢ 44.¢
Income taxes recoverable 32.2 19.2
Utility regulatory assets 6.5 8.€
Derivative financial instruments 13.2 10.Z
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 66.5 43.C
Total current assets 1,504.! 1,306.:
Property, plant and equipment
Utilities 2,295. 2,201.(
Non-utility 4,223 3,083.!
6,519.: 5,284.!
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,286.() (2,080.()
Net property, plant, and equipment 4,233.. 3,204.!
Goodwill 2,818. 1,562.:
Intangible assets, net 658.2 147.¢
Other assets 495.¢ 442
Total assets $ 9,709.° 6,663.
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 166.5 47.4
Bank loans 165.1 138.1
Accounts payable 411.3 399.¢
Employee compensation and benefits accrued 91.1 73.¢
Deposits and advances 252.¢ 161.t
Derivative financial instruments 100.¢ 49.7%
Accrued interest 721 27.¢
Other current liabilities 226.2 179.
Total current liabilities 1,487.( 1,077.¢
Debt and other liabilities
Long-term debt 3,347.¢ 2,110.:
Deferred income taxes 935.( 709.2
Deferred investment tax credits 4.€ 5.C
Other noncurrent liabilities 616.7 569.¢
Total liabilities 6,390.¢ 4,472..
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Equity:
UGI Corporation stockholders’ equity:
UGI Common Stock, without par value (authorized9,800,000 shares; issued - 115,624,594
and 115,507,094 shares, respectively) 1,157.° 937.¢
Retained earnings 1,166.: 1,085.¢



Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, at cost
Total UGI Corporation stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests, principally in AmeriGaarhers
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients.
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Revenues
Utilities $ 882.t 1,135.! $ 1,167.
Non-utility 5,636. 4,955.¢ 4,423."
6,519.: 6,091.: 5,591.-
Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation shown below):
Utilities 459.1 678.t 730.t
Non-utility 3,652.: 3,332. 2,853.!
Operating and administrative expenses 1,591.° 1,266. 1,177.
Utility taxes other than income taxes 17.c 16.€ 18.€
Depreciation 264.2 201.2 187.¢
Amortization 51.¢ 26.7 22.¢
Other income, net (38.9) (46.5) (58.0)
5,997.¢ 5,475.: 4,932..
Operating income 521.: 616.( 659.2
Loss from equity investees 0.3 (0.9 (2.2
Loss on extinguishments of debt (13.9 (38.]) —
Interest expense (2215 (138.0 (133.9
Income before income taxes 286.2 439.( 523.c
Income taxes (99.€) (130.%) (167.6
Net income 186.€ 308.2 355.7
Add net loss (deduct net income) attributable tocomtrolling interests, principally
in AmeriGas Partners 12.¢ (75.9) (94.9)
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation $ 199.¢ 232¢ % 261.(
Earnings per common share attributable to UGI Gatan stockholders:
Basic $ 1.77 20¢ $ 2.3¢
Diluted $ 1.7¢ 20€ $ 2.3¢€
Average common shares outstanding (thousands):
Basic 112,58: 111,67: 109,58t
Diluted 113,43: 112,94. 110,51:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigsients.
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Millions of dollars)

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 186.¢ $ 308.2 $ 355.7
Net losses on derivative instruments (net of ta%4#.8, $(15.4) and $(29.2),
respectively) (227.7) (10.9) (16.8)
Reclassifications of net losses on derivative imagnts (net of tax of $(36.9),
$(20.4) and $(25.3), respectively) 87.C 11.€ 22.¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments (net »fofe$2.8, $4.5 and $7.9,
respectively) (20.6¢) (14.0 (39.9
Foreign currency gains and losses on long-term-icdmpany transactions (net o
tax of $0.7, $0.4 and $0.0, respectively) a.7) (0.9 —
Benefit plans (net of tax of $6.0, $(0.1) and $12e8pectively) (11.5 0.1 (18.7)
Reclassifications of benefit plans actuarial losaes prior service costs to net
income (net of tax of $(0.5), $(0.4) and $(2.9%pectively) 0.7 0.€ 4.z
Reclassifications of pension plans actuarial lossekprior service costs to
regulatory assets (net of tax of $(59.1)) — — 83.c
Comprehensive income 114.2 295.1 391.C
Add comprehensive loss (deduct comprehensive inpatiréutable to
noncontrolling interests, principally in AmeriGaarkhers 38.¢ (69.¢) (101.9
Comprehensive income attributable to UGI Corporatio $ 153.2 § 225:  § 289.¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgtsients.




Table of Contents

UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Millions of dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sales of Atlantic Energy, LLC
Deferred income taxes, net
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Stock-based compensation expense
Net change in realized gains and losses deferredsisflow hedges
Loss on extinguishments of debt
Other, net
Net change in:
Accounts receivable and accrued utility revenues
Inventories
Utility deferred fuel costs, net of changes in utied derivatives
Accounts payable
Other current assets
Other current liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired
Net proceeds from sale of Atlantic Energy, LLC
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash
Other, net
Net cash used by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends on UGI Common Stock
Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly heldh@oon Units
Issuances of debt
Repayments of debt
Receivables Facility net (repayments) borrowings
Increase (decrease) in bank loans
Issuances of UGI Common Stock
Issuances of AmeriGas Partners Common Units
Other
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

Cash and cash equivalents increase (decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents:
End of year
Beginning of year
Increase (decrease)
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for:
Interest

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
186.6 $ 308.: 355.7
316.( 227.¢ 210.

— — (36.5)
82.¢ 82.7 62.
26.F 20.C 27.1
14.F 15.€ 13.2
(6.6) 12.2 23.¢
13.2 38.1 —
(10.7) (7.1) 7.7
65. (66.0) (94.6)
89. (40.7) 34.:
1.7) 12.€ (18.5)
(78.7) 19.2 47.1
(12.5) 1.9 (9.4)
23.2 (66.9) (23.9

707.7 554.7 598.¢
(339.9) (360.7) (347.9)
(1,580.%) (52.5) (83.0)

— — 66.
14.2 17.€ (27.9)
1.2 (19.6) (7.9)

(1,904.%) (415.9) (399.9)
(119.7) (113.9) (98.6)
(181.7) (93.7) (89.1)
1,550.: 1,480.¢ —
(299.9) (1,383.9) (94.5)
(14.9) 2.2 —
417 (74.6) 37.¢
232 27.: 27.F
276.¢ — —

1. 3.5 3.

1,278 (152.]) (213.6)
(0.3) (9.4) (5.9
81Z $ (22.2) (19.9)
319.¢ $ 238. 260.7
238. 260.7 280.1
81Z $ (22.2) (19.9)
168.6 $ 135.( 130.F



Income taxes $ 332 % 48¢€ $ 128.t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Common stock, without par value
Balance, beginning of year $ 937.¢ % 906.1 % 875.¢
Common Stock issued:
Employee and director plans 13.€ 14.5 14.4
Dividend reinvestment plan 2.2 2.2 1.7
Excess tax benefits realized on equity-based cosgtiem 1.8 3.8 4.z
Stock-based compensation expense 8.3 10.€ 10.2
Adjustments to reflect change in ownership of AiBas Partners, net of tax 194.4 — —
Balance, end of year $ 1,157 $ 937.2 % 906.1
Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,085.¢ $ 966.71 $ 804.:
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation 199.¢ 232.¢ 261.(
Cash dividends on Common Stock ($1.06, $1.02 areDdeer share, respectively) (119.) (113.9) (98.6)
Balance, end of year $ 1,166.. $ 1,085.6 % 966.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance, beginning of year $ (1779 % (10.) % (38.9
Net losses on derivative instruments, net of tax (67.9) (23.9) (37.9)
Reclassification of net losses on derivative insteats, net of tax 54.2 29.¢ 37.2
Benefit plans, principally actuarial (losses) gaimst of tax (11.5) 0.1 (18.7)
Reclassification of benefit plans actuarial losmed prior service costs, net of tax, to net
income 0.7 0.€ 4.z
Reclassifications of pension plans actuarial lossesprior service cost, net of tax, to
regulatory assets — — 83.2
Adjustments to reflect change in ownership of AiBas Partners, net of tax 1.8 — —
Foreign currency losses on long-term intra-compeaaysactions, net of tax 1.7 (0.8 —
Foreign currency translation adjustments, netf ta (20.6¢) (14.0 (39.9
Balance, end of year $ (62.0 $ a7y $ (120.3)
Treasury stock
Balance, beginning of year $ (27.¢9) $ (38.2 % (49.6)
Common Stock issued:
Employee and director plans 6.4 9.7 10.€
Dividend reinvestment plan 0.6 0.7 0.€
Reacquired common stock - employee and directarspla (8.9 — —
Balance, end of year $ (287 $ (27.¢) $ (38.2)
Total UGI Corporation stockholders’ equity $ 2,233.. $ 1,977, $ 1,824
Noncontrolling interests
Balance, beginning of year $ 213< % 2371 % 225.¢
Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrollingeiests, principally in AmeriGas
Partners (12.¢) 75.2 94.7
Net (losses) gains on derivative instruments (59.9) 12.€ 21.C
Reclassification of net losses (gains) on deriwalnstruments 33.7 (18.7) (14.3)
Dividends and distributions (182.7) (94.0 (89.1)
AmeriGas Partners Common Unit public offering 276.¢ — —
AmeriGas Partners Common Units issued for Heritaggpuisition 1,132.¢ — —
Adjustments to reflect change in ownership of AiBais Partners (3219 — —
Other 5.5 0.5 (0.6)
Balance, end of year $ 1,085 $ 2132 $ 237.1




Total equity $ 3,318.f $ 2,191.0 % 2,061.¢




Table of Contents

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgtsients.
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UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

Index to Notes

Note 1 — Nature of Operations

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 — Accounting Changes

Note 4 — Acquisitions and Dispositions

Note 5 — Debt

Note 6 — Income Taxes

Note 7 — Employee Retirement Plans

Note 8 — Utility Regulatory Assets and Liabilitiesand Regulatory Matters
Note 9 — Inventories

Note 10 — Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Note 12 — Series Preferred Stock

Note 13 — Common Stock and Equity-Based Compensatio

Note 14 — Partnership Distributions and Common UnitOffering

Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies

Note 16 — Fair Value Measurements

Note 17 — Disclosures About Derivative Instrumentand Hedging Activities
Note 18 — Energy Services Accounts Receivable Seitization Facility
Note 19 — Other Income, Net

Note 20 — Quarterly Data (unaudited)

Note 21 — Segment Information

Note 1— Nature of Operations

UGI Corporation (“UGI”)is a holding company that, through subsidiaries afitiates, distributes and markets energy prosiwantc
related services. In the United States, we (1)thesgeneral partner and own limited partner intsrés a retail propane marketing i
distribution business; (2) own and operate natyasland electric distribution utilities; (3) own @t a portion of electricity generation faciliti
and (4) own and operate an energy marketing, neidstrinfrastructure, storage and energy servicemdass Internationally, we market ¢
distribute propane and other liquefied petroleursega(“‘LPG”)in Europe and China. We refer to UGI and its codstdéd subsidiarit
collectively as “the Company” or “we.”

We conduct a domestic propane marketing and digtoib business through AmeriGas Partners, L.P. @A@Gas Partners™g publicly
traded limited partnership, its principal operatsupsidiary AmeriGas Propane, L.P. (“AmeriGas OL&)l, as a result of the January 12, 2
acquisition of Heritage Propane from Energy Trand?®artners, L.P. ("ETP"), AmeriGas OLP's principglerating subsidiary, Herita
Operating, L.P. ("HOLP"). In addition, from Janudrg, 2012, through the date of its merger with amtd AmeriGas OLP in August 2012,
also conducted business through AmeriGas OLP'satipgrsubsidiary, Titan Propane LLC ("Titan LLC"high was also acquired on Jant
12, 2012, from ETP (see Note 4 for additional infation about the acquisition of Heritage PropaA@)eriGas OLP, HOLP and Titan Ll
(prior to its merger with and into AmeriGas OLP)e aeferred to herein as the "Operating PartnesshidmeriGas Partners, AmeriGas C
and HOLP are Delaware limited partnerships. UGlisolly owned second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas Propdne. (the “General Partner”
serves as the general partner of AmeriGas ParfmetsAmeriGas OLP. We refer to AmeriGas Partnersitndubsidiaries together athé
Partnership” and the General Partner and its siaivsd, including the Partnership, as “AmeriGaspRare.” At September 30, 2012the
General Partner held a 1% general partner intenedt25.3% limited partner interest in AmeriGas e, and held an effectivi&7.1%
ownership interest in AmeriGas OLP. Our limitedtparship interest in AmeriGas Partners compriseg58882AmeriGas Partners Comm
Units (“Common Units”). The remaining 73.7% intar@s AmeriGas Partners comprises 39,477,0@8nmon Units held by the public ¢
29,567,362 Common Units held by ETP as a resuli@ficquisition of Heritage Propane.

Our wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Enterprises, Ifi&nterprises”),through subsidiaries, conducts (1) an LPG distidrubusiness i
France, Belgium, the Netherlands and Luxembourgntéfgaz”); ) an LPG distribution business in central, namhand eastern Eura
(“Flaga™; (3) an LPG distribution business in the United Kiogd("AvantiGas"); and (4) an LPG distribution buesis in the Nantong region
China. We refer to our foreign LPG operations atliely as “International Propane.”

Enterprises, through UGI Energy Services, Inc. €y Services”)and its subsidiaries, conducts an energy marketimgstrear
infrastructure, storage, natural gas gatheringeanredtgy services business primarily in the Mid-Atiamegion of the
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United States. In addition, Energy Services’ whalyned subsidiary, UGI Development Company (“UGI3vns all or a portion of electi
generation facilities located in Pennsylvania. Ehlegsinesses are referred to herein collectiveljvidstream & Marketing.”Enterprises als
conducts heating, ventilation, air-conditioningfrigeration and electrical contracting businesseshie Mid-Atlantic region through firgter
subsidiaries.

Our natural gas and electric distribution utilitydinesses are conducted through our wholly ownbedigiary, UGI Utilities, Inc. (UGI
Utilities™), and its subsidiaries UGI Penn Natu@as, Inc. (“PNG”) and UGI Central Penn Gas, IN€RG"). UGI Utilities, PNG and CPG ov
and operate natural gas distribution utilities @stern, northeastern and central Pennsylvaniaraadportion of one Maryland county. U
Utilities also owns and operates an electric digtion utility in northeastern Pennsylvania (“ElctUtility”). UGI Utilities’ natural ga
distribution utility is referred to as “UGI Gas."@J Gas, PNG and CPG are collectively referred t6Gess Utility.” Gas Utility is subject 1
regulation by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Consgion (“PUC”")and, with respect to a small service territory e dMaryland county, tt
Maryland Public Service Commission, and Electriditytis subject to regulation by the PUC. Gas liitiland Electric Utility are collective
referred to as “Utilities.”

Note 2— Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentatiol

Our consolidated financial statements are preparextcordance with accounting principles generaligepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”).

The preparation of financial statements in accordamith GAAP requires management to make estimaidsassumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenegpenses and costs. These estimates are basedhagemens knowledge of current ever
historical experience and various other assumptiobasare believed to be reasonable under theroBtances. Accordingly, actual results |
be different from these estimates and assumptions.

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassifiembhform to the current-year presentation.
Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of UGI and its controlled subsidiary companwhich, except for tl
Partnership, are majority owned. We report the gdrpublic’'s and ETP's interests in the Partnership, anddsutsivnership interests in ot
consolidated but less than 1008wned subsidiaries, as noncontrolling interests. &liminate all significant intercompany accountd
transactions when we consolidate. Entities in whighdo not have control but have significant inflae over operating and financial polic
are accounted for by the equity method. Undistetutet earnings of our equity investees includecbimsolidated retained earnings were
material at September 30, 2012 . Investments imbss entities that are not publicly traded andlinch we hold less than 2086 voting right:
are accounted for using the cost method. Such timesds are recorded in other assets and totaled $8@ $72.4 at September 30, 2@t2
2011, respectively.

Effects of Regulatior

UGI Utilities accounts for the financial effects igulation in accordance with the Financial Acamg Standards Board’s (“FASB'”
guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (“Ap©80 related to regulated entities whose rates astgded to recover the costs
providing service. In accordance with this guidanoeurred costs and estimated future expendittinas would otherwise be chargec
expense are capitalized and recorded as regulassgts when it is probable that the incurred ocomstsstimated future expenditures will
recovered in rates in the future. Similarly, weogmize regulatory liabilities when it is probablet regulators will require customer refu
through future rates or when revenue is collectethfcustomers for expenditures that have not yehtecurred. Generally, regulatory as
are amortized into expense and regulatory liabdiire amortized into income over the period aitédrby the regulator.

For additional information regarding the effectsatie regulation on our utility operations, seed\®t
Fair Value Measurements

We apply fair value measurements to certain assetdiabilities, principally our commodity, foreignurrency and interest rate deriva
instruments. Fair value in GAAP is defined as thegthat would be received to sell an asset ail atransfer a liability (an exit price) in
orderly transaction between market participanthatmeasurement date. Fair value is based upomasisas that market participants wo
use when pricing an asset or liability, includirsg@mptions about risk and risks
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inherent in valuation techniques and inputs to aduns. This includes not only the credit standifigounterparties and credit enhancernr
but also the impact of our own nonperformance dekour liabilities. Fair value measurements reqtfir@ we assume that the transac
occurs in the principal market for the asset dbiligy or, in the absence of a principal markeg tnost advantageous market for the ass
liability (the market for which the reporting emptitvould be able to maximize the amount receivechmimize the amount paid). We evalt
the need for credit adjustments to our derivathatrument fair values in accordance with the resfonents noted above. Such adjustments
not material to the fair values of our derivatimstruments.

We use the following fair value hierarchy, whichiopitizes the inputs to valuation techniques usedheasure fair value into three br
levels:

» Level 1 —Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fanidal assets and liabilities that we have thditabio access at tt
measurement date. Instruments categorized in Lewansist of our exchangeaded commodity futures and option contracts aoo
exchange-traded commodity futures and non exchtraged electricity forward contracts whose undedyis identical to an exchange-
traded contract.

e Level 2 —Inputs other than quoted prices included within élel that are either directly or indirectly obsdrleafor the asset or liabilit
including quoted prices for similar assets or liéibs in active markets, quoted prices for ideatior similar assets or liabilities in inact
markets, inputs other than quoted prices that bhsemvable for the asset or liability, and inputst thre derived from observable market
by correlation or other means. Instruments categdriin Level 2 include noaxchange traded derivatives such as over the o
commodity price swap and option contracts, interate swaps and interest rate protection agreemfenésgn currency forward contrac
financial transmission rights (“FTRs”) and non eanbe-traded electricity forward contracts that doqualify for Level 1.

* Level 3 —Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability irdthg situations where there is little, if any, ketractivity for the asset
liability. We did not have any derivative financiaktruments categorized as Level 3 at Septemhe2®I® or 2011 .

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priotdygquoted prices in active markets (Level 1) dmallowest priority to unobservable ¢
(Level 3). In some cases, the inputs to measure/éftie might fall into different levels of the faialue hierarchy. The lowest level input th:
significant to a fair value measurement in its reyi determines the applicable level in the faiugahierarchy. Assessing the significance
particular input to the fair value measurementsrentirety requires judgment, considering facgmscific to the asset or liability. See Note
for additional information on fair value measureitsen

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments and hedgictiyities in accordance with guidance provided bg EASB which requires that
derivative instruments be recognized as eithertsigsdiabilities and measured at fair value. Theoainting for changes in fair value depe
upon the purpose of the derivative instrument ahdther it is designated and qualifies for hedg®acting.

A substantial portion of our derivative financiaktruments are designated and qualify as cashtkxniges or net investment hedge:
addition, gains and losses on certain derivatimarfcial instruments used by Gas Utility and EledtHility are included in regulatory asset:
liabilities in accordance with FASB guidance regagdaccounting for rateegulated entities. For cash flow hedges, changései fair value ¢
the derivative financial instruments are recordeddcumulated other comprehensive income (“AOGI"honcontrolling interests, to the exi
effective at offsetting changes in the hedged itenti| earnings are affected by the hedged item.di¥eontinue cash flow hedge accountir
the occurrence of the forecasted transaction israéted to be no longer probable. Gains and lossaset investment hedges which relal
our foreign operations are included in AOCI untiick foreign net investment is sold or liquidatecrt@in of our derivative financi
instruments, although generally effective as ecandradges, do not qualify for hedge accountingtineat. Changes in the fair values of tt
derivative instruments are reflected in net inco@ash flows from derivative financial instrumentsher than net investment hedges,
included in cash flows from operating activitieast flows from net investment hedges are includaghsh flows from investing activities.

For a more detailed description of the derivatiwstiuments we use, our accounting for derivatiees,objectives for using them &
related supplemental information required by GAA&e Note 17.

Foreign Currency Translation
Balance sheets of international subsidiaries arestated into U.S. dollars using the exchangeatiiee balance sheet date.
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Income statements and equity investee resultsranslated into U.S. dollars using an average exghaate for each reporting period. Wt
the local currency is the functional currency, $lation adjustments are recorded in other compsiheincome.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenues from the sale of LPG are recognized jpatigi upon delivery. Midstream & Marketing recomgvenues when energy prodt
are delivered or services are provided to custoni®esenues from the sale of appliances and equiparerrecognized at the later of sal
installation. Revenues from repair or maintenameeises are recognized upon completion of services.

UGI Utilities’ regulated revenues are recognized as natural ghslectricity are delivered and include estimatewants for distributio
service and commodities rendered but not billeth@tend of each month. We reflect the impact of Gty and Electric Utility rate increas
or decreases at the time they become effective.

We present revenuelated taxes collected from customers and remittethxing authorities, principally sales and uzxes, on a n
basis. Electric Utility gross receipts taxes amduded in total revenues in accordance with regujapractice.

LPG Delivery Expense

Expenses associated with the delivery of LPG taotuers of the Partnership and our Internationap®ne operations (including vehi
expenses, expenses of delivery personnel, vehégair and maintenance and general liability exp@nsee classified as operating
administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statemaf Income. Depreciation expense associated thighPartnership and Internatic
Propane delivery vehicles is classified in deptgmiaon the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Income Taxes

AmeriGas Partners and the Operating Partnershgadardirectly subject to federal income taxestdag, their taxable income or los
allocated to the individual partners. We recordome taxes on (1) our share of the Partnership'rrent taxable income or loss and (2]
differences between the book and tax basis of mugstment in the Partnership. The Operating Paiies have subsidiaries which operal
corporate form and are directly subject to fedaral state income taxes. Legislation in certairestatiows for taxation of partnership incc
and the accompanying financial statements reflate $ncome taxes resulting from such legislation.

Gas Utility and Electric Utility record deferredcmme taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Incosalting from the use
accelerated tax depreciation methods based uponrampecognized for ratemaking purposes. Theyralsord a deferred income tax liabi
for tax benefits, principally the result of accelied tax depreciation for state income tax purpases are flowed through to ratepayers w
temporary differences originate and record a reéggfancome tax asset for the probable increadeiture revenues that will result when
temporary differences reverse.

We are amortizing deferred investment tax creditated to UGI Utilities’plant additions over the service lives of the edaproperty
UGI Utilities reduces its deferred income tax lldpifor the future tax benefits that will occur eh investment tax credits, which are
taxable, are amortized. We also reduce the regylatcome tax asset for the probable reductioruimre revenues that will result when s
deferred investment tax credits amortize. Investntax credits associated with Midstream & Marketsgualifying solar energy prope
under the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act@d&are reflected in income tax expense when stabepty is placed in service.

We record interest on tax deficiencies and incoaxepenalties in income taxes on the Consolidatete®ients of Income. Fdiisca
2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010 , interest fimepexpense of $(0.1) , $0.2 and $(Q.®spectively, was recognized in income taxeshe
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Earnings Per Common Shar

Basic earnings per share attributable to UGI Cation stockholders reflect the weightaderage number of common shares outstar
Diluted earnings per share include the effectsilotide stock options and common stock awardshmfollowing table, we present shares 1
in computing basic and diluted earnings per sharé&iscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010 :
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(Thousands of shares) 2012 (a) 2011(a) 2010

Average common shares outstanding for basic cortipata 112,58: 111,67- 109,58
Incremental shares issuable for stock options anthwon stock awards 851 1,27( 92¢
Average common shares outstanding for diluted caatioun 113,43 112,94 110,51

(a) For Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, there wegragimately 81 shares and 3,76Bares, respectively, associated with outstandiock
option awards that were not included in the comjneof diluted earnings per share because th&cefvas antidilutive.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income comprises net income and attr@prehensive income (loss). Other comprehensigenie (loss) principal
results from gains and losses on derivative insénisiqualifying as cash flow hedges, actuarialgaimd losses on postretirement benefit |
and foreign currency translation adjustments amelijo currency long-term intreempany transactions. Other comprehensive inconkésita
2010 also includes the reclassification of $83.3aifiarial losses associated with a UGI Utilitigshsion plan to regulatory assets and def
income taxes as a result of an August 2010 PUC eedrarding regulatory treatment of such pensiam’glfunded status (see Note 8).

The components of AOCI at September 30, 2012 add &fllow:

Foreign
Derivative Currency
Postretirement Instruments Net Translation
Benefit Plans Losses Adjustments Total
Balance, September 30, 2012 $ (22.9 $ (58.§) $ 19.7 $ (62.0)
Balance, September 30, 2011 $ (12.1) $ 4760 $ 420 % (17.%)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with maturities ofrdie months or less when purchased are classifiedsfisequivalents.
Restricted Casl

Restricted cash represents those cash balancearicoonmodity futures and option brokerage accouwitich are restricted fro
withdrawal.

Inventories

Our inventories are stated at the lower of cosinarket. We determine cost using an average costaddor natural gas, propane :
other LPG; specific identification for appliancesid the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method for adther inventories.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Related Depremat

We record property, plant and equipment at origotet. The amounts assigned to property, planteguipment of acquired busines
are based upon estimated fair value at date ofigitiqn.

We record depreciation expense on non-utility pkmd equipment on a straigiie basis over estimated economic useful livegjiray
from 15 to 40 years for buildings and improvemgiitso 40 years for storage and customer tankscgiiders; 25 to 35years for electricit
generation facilities; and 2 to 12 years for vidscequipment and office furniture and fixturess@ to install Partnership and Antargagznec
tanks, net of amounts billed to customers, aretaliged and amortized over the estimated peridokokfit not exceeding ten years.

We record depreciation expense for Utilities’ plant equipment on a straiglitte basis over the estimated average remainirgg lof th
various classes of its depreciable property. Degtien expense as a percentage of the related gavatepreciable base for Gas Utility
2.2% in Fiscal 2012 , 2.3% in Fiscal 2011 and 2iB%iscal 2010. Depreciation expense as a percentage of theedetaterage deprecia
base for Electric Utility was 2.4% in Fiscal 2012.6% in Fiscal 2011 and 2.6% in Fiscal 20MYhen Utilities retire depreciable utility pl:
and equipment, we charge the original cost to actated depreciation for financial accounting pugms
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We include in property, plant and equipment costeiated with computer software we develop orinlita use in our businesses.
amortize computer software costs on a straightbiz&s over expected periods of benefit not excegfifteen year®nce the installed softwe
is ready for its intended use.

No depreciation expense is included in cost ofssaiehe Consolidated Statements of Income.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with GAAP relating to intangible assee amortize intangible assets over their estichaseful lives unless we deterrr
their lives to be indefinite. We review identifigbintangible assets subject to amortization foraimpent whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that the associated cargtingunts may not be recoverable. Determining whietheémpairment loss occurred requ
comparing the carrying amount to the sum of undisted cash flows expected to be generated by tet.datangible assets with indefir
lives are not amortized but are tested annuallynigrairment and written down to fair value as reedi

We do not amortize goodwill, but test it at leashaally for impairment at the reporting unit leval.reporting unit is the operati
segment, or a business one level below the opgraigment (a component) if discrete financial imfation is prepared and regularly revie
by segment management. Components are aggregatesiragle reporting unit if they have similar econio characteristics. We are require
recognize an impairment charge under GAAP if theyirag amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fatue and the carrying amount of
reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fedtue of that goodwill. We determine fair values éach of our reporting units generally us
discounted cash flows to establish fair values sslmarket values are available. The Company adapedaccounting guidance regarc
goodwill impairment during Fiscal 2012 which persnits, in certain circumstances, to perform a catal# approach to determine if it is m
likely than not that the carrying value of a repagtunit is greater than its fair value (see Note 3

No provisions for goodwill or other intangible assmpairments were recorded during Fiscal 2012scdi 2011 or Fiscal 2010N¢
amortization expense is included in cost of sal@hé Consolidated Statements of Income (see Nigte 1

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the impairment of lofiged assets whenever events or changes in cireunoss indicate that the carrying amount of
assets may not be recoverable. We evaluate redolitgrdased upon undiscounted future cash flowgeexed to be generated by such as
No material provisions for impairments were recordaringFiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 or Fiscal 2010 .

Deferred Debt Issuance Cos

Included in other assets on our Consolidated Bald®tweets are net deferred debt issuance costs6d #nd $30.7 aSeptember 3
2012 and 2017 respectively. We are amortizing these costs diverterms of the related debt. The increase inrceefedebt issuance co
during Fiscal 2012 largely resulted from the Parthg's issuance of debt to fund the acquisitionlefitage Propane (see Notes 4 and 5).

Refundable Tank and Cylinder Deposi

Included in other noncurrent liabilities on our Golidated Balance Sheets are customer paid depwsitsntargaz owned tanks ¢
cylinders of $205.1 and $204.4 at September 302 20t 2011 respectively. Deposits are refundable to custeméren the tanks or cylinds
are returned in accordance with contract terms.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to environmental laws and regulatintended to mitigate or remove the effect of jpg&rations and improve or maint
the quality of the environment. These laws and ls@gns require the removal or remedy of the effattthe environment of the disposa
release of certain specified hazardous substan@esrant or former operating sites.

Environmental reserves are accrued when assessimditate that it is probable that a liability hlasen incurred and an amount
reasonably be estimated. Amounts recorded as emw@ntal liabilities on the balance sheets represenbest estimate of costs expected 1
incurred or, if no best estimate can be made, tingmam liability associated with a range of

F-16




Table of Contents

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

expected environmental investigation and remediatiosts. Our estimated liability for environmentaintamination is reduced to refl
anticipated participation of other responsible iparbut is not reduced for possible recovery frasurance carriers. In those instances for w
the amount and timing of cash payments associatddemvironmental investigation and cleanup ar@abty determinable, we discount si
liabilities to reflect the time value of money. Weend to pursue recovery of incurred costs throalgappropriate means, including regula
relief. UGI Gas is permitted to amortize as rema@ts site-specific environmental investigatiod aamediation costs, net of related third
party payments, associated with Pennsylvania dit€d.Gas is currently permitted to include in ratdsough future base rate proceeding
five -year average of such prudently incurred remediatimsts, and CPG and PNG are currently receivinglaggry recovery of estimat
environmental investigation and remediation cost®eiated with Pennsylvania sites. For furtherrmition, see Note 15.

Employee Retirement Plar

We use a market-related value of plan assets arekpected londerm rate of return to determine the expected metur assets of o
pension and other postretirement plans. The masdtated value of plan assets, other than equitgstments, is based upon fair values.
market-related value of equity investments is dabed by rolling forward the prior-year's marketated value with contributior
disbursements and the expected return on plansag3e¢ third of the difference between the expeatetithe actual value is then added
subtracted from the expected value to determin@¢wemarket-related value (see Note 7).

Equity-Based Compensation

All of our equity-based compensation, principalbngorising UGI stock options, grants of UGI stdzksed equity instruments and gr:
of AmeriGas Partners equity instruments (togethigh WGI stock-based equity instruments, “Unitsdye measured at fair value on the ¢
date, date of modification or end of the periodapplicable. Compensation expense is recognized stnaightine basis over the requis
service period. Depending upon the settlement t@fntise awards, all or a portion of the fair vabfeequitybased awards may be presente
a liability or as equity in our Consolidated Balan8heets. Equitpased compensation costs associated with the poofidJnit award
classified as equity are measured based upondkgimated fair value on the date of grant or modtfon. Equitybased compensation cc
associated with the portion of Unit awards classifas liabilities are measured based upon thematsd fair value at the grant date
remeasured as of the end of each period.

We have calculated a tax windfall pool using thertdut method. We record deferred tax assets fardsvthat we expect will result
deductions on our income tax returns based onrtfmiat of compensation cost recognized and thetetgttax rate in the jurisdiction in whi
we will receive a deduction. Differences between deferred tax assets recognized for financialtegppurposes and the actual tax bel
received on the income tax return are recordedami@on Stock (if the tax benefit exceeds the defietex asset) or in the Consolide
Statements of Income (if the deferred tax assetede the tax benefit and no tax windfall pool existm previous awards).

For additional information on our equity-based cemgation plans and related disclosures, see Note 13

Note 3— Accounting Changes

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asset Impairmentn July 2012, the FASB issued guidance on testigfinitelived intangible assets, other ti
goodwill, for impairment. The new guidance perngitdities to first assess qualitative factors tedaine whether it is more likely than not 1
the fair value of an indefiniteved intangible asset is less than its carryingoant. If the entity determines on the basis of e factors th:
the fair value of the indefinitbved intangible asset is not more likely than imopaired, the entity would not need to calculate ¥alue of th
asset. The new guidance does not revise the regeirteto test indefinitéived intangible assets annually for impairmentatbidition, the ne
guidance does not amend the requirement to test thesets for impairment between annual testsii¢fis a change in events or circumstal
We adopted the new guidance in the fourth quaftéiszal 2012.

Goodwill Impairment.In September 2011, the FASB issued guidance oimgegbodwill for impairment. The new guidance pdsr@ntities t
first assess qualitative factors to determine wéeithis more likely than not that the fair valuleaoreporting unit is less than its carrying amu
as a basis for determining whether it is necestaperform the twastep goodwill impairment test in GAAP. Previousdance required i
entity to test goodwill for impairment at least aafly by comparing the fair value of a reportingitumith its carrying amount, includir
goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit lisss than the carrying amount, then the secondaddtdpe test must be performed to measur
amount of the impairment loss, if any. Under they igelidance,
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an entity is not required to calculate fair valdeaaeporting unit unless the entity determineg this more likely than not that its fair value
less than its carrying amount. The new guidance do¢ change how goodwill is calculated or assigoe®@porting units, nor does it revise
requirements to test goodwill annually for impairmhéNe adopted the new guidance for Fiscal 2012.

Fair Value Measurementsin May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance on falu& measurements and related disclosure requitenEm
new guidance results in common fair value measuneiered disclosure requirements in GAAP and Intéonat Financial Reporting Standa
(“IFRS™). The new guidance applies to all reporting entitlest are required or permitted to measure or dssckhe fair value of an as:
liability or an instrument classified in sharehalleequity. Among other things, the new guidance retigquantitative information ab
unobservable inputs, valuation processes and Bétysénalysis associated with fair value measunetseategorized within Level 3 of the 1
value hierarchy. The new guidance became effeéiveur interim period ending March 31, 2012, asdeaquired to be applied prospectiv
The adoption of this accounting guidance did nethamaterial impact on our financial statements.

New Accounting Standard Not Yet Adopted

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilitiln December 2011, the FASB issued new accountindggae regarding disclosures at
offsetting assets and liabilities. The new guidarempiires an entity to disclose information abdfgeiting and related arrangements to er
users of financial statements to understand thexetff those arrangements on its financial positidre amendments will enhance disclos
by requiring improved information about financiaktruments and derivative instruments that areseiff) offset in accordance with ot
GAAP or (2) subject to an enforceable master ngtiirangement or similar agreement, irrespectiveitidther they are offset in the bala
sheet. The new guidance is effective for annuadntégg periods beginning on or after January 1,2(Hiscal 2014), and interim periods wit
those annual periods. We are currently evaluatisgrhpact of the new guidance on our future disoles.

Note 4— Acquisitions & Dispositions

On January 12, 2012 (the “Acquisition DateAmeriGas Partners completed the acquisition of tdge Propane from ETP for tc
consideration of $2,598.2 , comprising $1,465.@ash and 29,567,362 AmeriGas Partners Common Wtitsa fair value of $1,132.@he
“Heritage Acquisition”).The Acquisition Date cash consideration for theitdge Acquisition was subject to purchase priceistdjents bas:
on working capital, cash and the amount of indetxed of Heritage Propane (“Working Capital Adjugitif)eand certain excess cash proct
resulting from ETP's sale of HOLP's former cylinégsichange business (“HPX"). In April 2012, Ameri@Gartners paid $25.6f additiona
cash consideration as a result of the Working @apitjustment and in June 2012, AmeriGas Partrersived $18.9n cash representing 1
excess cash proceeds from the sale of HPX. TheadgeriAcquisition was consummated pursuant to aroribn and Redemption Agreem
dated October 15, 2011, as amended (the “Contobutigreement”) by and among AmeriGas Partners, ETP, Energy Trafdeners Gl
L.P., the general partner of ETP (“ETP GP”), anditdge ETC, L.P. (the “Contributor’)The acquired business conducted its pro
operations in 41 states through HOLP and Titan LIACcording to LPGas Magazine rankings published on February 1, 26iE2itag
Propane was the third largest retail propane Histor in the United States, delivering over 500lioml gallons to more than one milliaetail
propane customers in 2011. The Heritage Acquisisaronsistent with our growth strategies, one bicl is to grow our core business thro
acquisitions.

Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, the Coutdb contributed to AmeriGas Partners a 99.99®8tted partner interest in HOLP
100% membership interest in Heritage Operating GR;, a Delaware limited liability company and a det of a 0.001%general partni
interest in HOLP; a 99.99%mited partner interest in Titan Energy Partné&r®., a Delaware limited partnership and the sotentper of Tita
LLC; and a 100% membership interest in Titan Enggg®; L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability compangdaholder of a 0.01%eneral partni
interest in Titan Energy Partners, L.P. As a resfiithe Heritage Acquisition, the General Partrierorder to maintain its general part
interests in AmeriGas Partners and AmeriGas OLR{rituted 934,327 Common Units to the Partnershiypirty a fair value of $41.7Thes:
Common Units were subsequently cancelled.

The cash portion of the Heritage Acquisition wamficed by the issuance by AmeriGas Finance CotpAameriGas Finance LLC, whol
owned finance subsidiaries of AmeriGas Partners ‘(tsuers”), of $550 principal amount of 6.75% iBemMotes due May 2020 (the6.75%
Note¢”) and $1,000 principal amount of 7.00% Senior Nodele May 2022 (the “ 7.00% Notes”). For furtheoimation on the 6.75%lote:
and the 7.00% Notes, see Note 5.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 3@, 2eflects the final allocation of the purchasé&erto the assets acquired
liabilities assumed for the Heritage Propane bussircombination. The purchase price paid comprisesriGas Partners Common Units iss
having a fair value of $1,132.6 , and total cashsaeration of $1,472.2 including cash acquire®®.7. The fair value of the AmeriG
Partners Common Units issued to ETP was basedeotidking price on the Acquisition Date
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subject to a discount to reflect certain contradi@nsfer restrictions for a period of approximgtsvelve months. The purchase price alloce
is as follows:

Assets acquired:

Current assets $ 301.¢
Property, plant & equipment 890.2
Customer relationships (estimated useful life ofy&&rs) 418.¢
Trademarks and tradenames 91.1
Goodwill 1,217
Other assets 9.¢
Total assets acquired $ 2,929.:

Liabilities assumed:

Current liabilities $ (238.)
Long-term debt (62.9)
Other noncurrent liabilities (23.9
Total liabilities assumed $ (324.9
Total $ 2,604.¢

Goodwill associated with the Heritage Acquisitionnpipally results from synergies expected from bamng the operations and frc
assembled workforce. The tax effects of such golbdwil be realized over a fifteenyear period. We allocated the purchase price ¢
acquisition to identifiable intangible assets basedstimated fair values. Tradenames and trademaare valued using the relief from roy:i
method and customer relationships were valued wsidigcounted cash flow method. The relief fromattymethod estimates our theoret
royalty savings from ownership of the tradenames ademarks. Key assumptions used in this metholdde discount rates, royalty ra
growth rates and sales projections and are thargg®mns most sensitive and susceptible to changheysrequire significant managem
judgment. The key assumptions used in the custoelationship discounted cash flow method includgcaiunt rates, growth rates and ¢
flow projections and are the assumptions most seasand susceptible to change as they requireifgignt management judgment.
allocated the purchase price of the acquisitiopraperty, plant and equipment based on estimafeddhies primarily using replacement ¢
and market value methods.

Transaction expenses associated with the Heritagguigition, which are included in operating and &dstrative expenses in t
Consolidated Statement of Income, totaled $5t3Fiscal 2012. The results of operations of Heyé Propane are included in the Consolic
Statements of Income since the Acquisition Date. aAsesult of achieving planned strategic operatamgl marketing milestones, it
impracticable to determine the impact of the Hget&ropane operations on the revenues and eawofitigs Company.

The following presents unaudited pro forma incoragesnent and earnings per share data as if theéagerAcquisition had occurred
October 1, 2010:

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011
Revenues $ 7,010.¢ $ 7,522.(
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation $ 197.¢ $ 223.%

Earnings per common share attributable to UGI Carpan
stockholders:

Basic $ 1.7¢ $ 2.0C
Diluted $ 172 $ 1.9€

The unaudited pro forma results of operations cefléeritage Propang’historical operating results after giving efféatadjustmen
directly attributable to the transaction that axperted to have a continuing effect. The unaudiedforma consolidated results of operat
are not necessarily indicative of the results thatild have occurred had the Heritage Acquisitioouoed on the date indicated nor are
necessarily indicative of future operating results.
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In accordance with the Contribution Agreement, ERE the Partnership entered into a transition sesvagreement and ETP, HPX anc
Partnership also entered into a transition serviggeement (collectively, the “TSAYhereby each party may be a provider and receif
certain services to the other. The principal sewiénclude general business continuity, informatienhnology, accounting, tax ¢
administrative services. Services under the TSAlwlprovided through the expiration of the terdatiag to each service or until such time
mutually agreed by the parties. Amounts associatddsuch services were not material.

In October 2011, we acquired ShellLPG distribution businesses in (1) Belgium, thethérlands, Luxembourg through Antargaz;
Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden through Flagd;(3) the United Kingdom through UGI Midlands liied (a secondier subsidiary ¢
Enterprises), for €133.6 ( $179)0in cash ("Shell Transaction"). Also during Fis@012, AmeriGas OLP acquired a number of sm
domestic retail propane distribution businesses$ft8.5in cash. During Fiscal 2011, AmeriGas OLP acquiaedumber of domestic ret
propane distribution businesses for $3#h@ash, and Flaga acquired a propane distribliigsiness in Poland for total cash consideratic
approximately $19.0 . During Fiscal 2010, AmeriGaisP acquired a number of domestic retail propamséridution businesses for $34ir3
cash, and our International Propane operations i@ypropane distribution businesses in Denmarkngday and Switzerland, and
additional 46% interest in our retail business hir@, for total cash consideration of $48.7 .

On July 30, 2010, Energy Services sold all of hteriest in its second-tier, wholly owned subsidiatiantic Energy, LLC (Atlantic
Energy”) to DCP Midstream Partners, L.P. for $4i8.@ash plus an amount for inventory and other waylcapital. Atlantic Energy owns a
operates a 20 milliogallon marine import and transshipment facilitydted in the port of Chesapeake, Virginia. The Cawp@corded
$36.5 pretax gain on the sale which amount is included imeotincome, net in the Fiscal 2010 ConsolidatedeStant of Income. The ge
increased Fiscal 2010 net income attributable té O&@poration by $17.2 . Atlantic Energyincome from operations was not material in F
2010.
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Note 5— Debt

Long-term debt comprises the following at Septendter

AmeriGas Propane:
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes:
7.00%, due May 2022
6.75%, due May 2020
6.50%, due May 2021
6.25%, due August 2019
HOLP Senior Secured Notes
Other
Total AmeriGas Propane
International Propane:
Antargaz 2011 Senior Facilities term loan, dueulgroMarch 2016
Flaga term loan, due through September 2016
Flaga term loan, due October 2016
Flaga term loan, due through June 2014
Other
Total International Propane
UGI Utilities:
Senior Notes:
6.375%, due September 2013
5.75%, due September 2016
6.21%, due September 2036
Medium- Term Notes:
5.53%, due September 2012
5.37%, due August 2013
5.16%, due May 2015
7.37%, due October 2015
5.64%, due December 2015
6.17%, due June 2017
7.25%, due November 2017
5.67%, due January 2018
6.50%, due August 2033
6.13%, due October 2034
Total UGI Utilities
Other
Total long-term debt
Less: current maturities

Total long-term debt due after one year
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2012 2011
$ 980.f $ —
550.( —
270.C 470.C
450.( 450.(
55.¢€ —
21.€ 13.F
2,328.( 933.f
488.7 508.7
51.2 53.F
24.¢ —
3.6 5.€
5.6 3.
573.¢ 571.:
108.( 108.(
175.( 175.C
100.( 100.(
— 40.(
25. 25.
20.( 20.(
22.( 22.(
50.( 50.(
20.C 20.C
20.( 20.(
20.C 20.C
20.( 20.(
20.C 20.C
600.( 640.(
12.4 12.¢
3,514 2,157,
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Scheduled principal repayments of long-term deltidifiscal years 2013 to 2017 follow:

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
AmeriGas Propane $ 30.C % 10 $ 8¢ % 6. $ 4.€
UGI Utilities 133.( — 20.C 247.( 20.C
International Propane 2.t 52.¢ 45.C 448.2 25.1
Other 0.€ 0.€ 0.t 0.€ 0.€
Total $ 166.1 $ 64.. $ 74.4 % 7025 % 50.2

AmeriGas Propane

In order to finance the cash portion of the Hestégquisition, on January 12, 2012, the “Issuesstied $550 principal amount ®75%
Notes dueMay 2020 and $1,000 principal amount of 7.00% Natae May 2022 . The 6.75% Notes and the 7.008tes are fully an
unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecursi iy AmeriGas Partners. The Issuers have thé tagredeem the 6.75%otes, in whol
or in part, at any time on or after May 20, 2016d @& redeem the 7.00% Notes, in whole or in @rany time on or after May 20, 2017
subject to certain restrictions. A premium appliesedemptions of the 6.75% Notes and 7.08&4es through May 2018 and May 2C
respectively. On or prior to May 20, 2015 , theulss may also redeem, at a premium and subjedrtaie restrictions, up to 35%f each ¢
the 6.75% Notes and the 7.0096tes with the proceeds of an AmeriGas Partnenstergd public equity offering. The 6.75% Notes dine
7.00% Notes and the guarantees rank equal in ofgjpayment with all of AmeriGas Partnelsxisting Senior Notes. In connection with
Heritage Acquisition, AmeriGas Partners, AmeriGasaRce Corp., AmeriGas Finance LLC and UGI entdred a Contingent Residt
Support Agreement ("CRSA") with ETP pursuant toethiETP will provide contingent, residual suppor$af500of debt ("Supported Debt"
defined in the CRSA).

On March 28, 2012, AmeriGas Partners announcedhbiaters of approximately $383iB6 aggregate principal amount of outstan
6.50% Senior Notes due May 2021 (the “ 6.50% Nofe€presenting approximately 82% of the total $grificipal amount outstanding, |
validly tendered their notes in connection with ®a&rtnership’s March 14, 2012, offer to purchasectish up to $200 of the 6.50Motes
Tendered 6.50% Notes in the amount of $200 wereemaéd on March 28, 2012, at an effective price0&P4using an approximate prorat
factor of 52.3% of total notes tendered. Duringel@012, AmeriGas Partners repurchased approxim@igly2aggregate principal amount
outstanding 7.00% Notes. The Partnership recordeet boss of $13.8n these extinguishments of debt which amountfisated on the Fisc
2012 Consolidated Statement of Income under thBarafoss on extinguishments of debt. The net teskiced net income attributable to (
Corporation by $2.2 during Fiscal 2012.

In January 2011, AmeriGas Partners issued $47@ipahamount of 6.50% Notes due May 20Z2lhe proceeds from the issuance ol
6.50% Notes were used in February 2011 to repayri@as Partners’ $415 principal amount of its 7.25&aior Notes due May 201ursuar
to a tender offer and subsequent redemption. Iitiaddin February 2011, AmeriGas Partners redeetheautstanding $14@incipal amour
of its 8.875% Senior Notes due May 2011 . The Rastiip incurred a loss of $1808 these extinguishments of debt which amountfisaiec
on the Fiscal 2011 Consolidated Statement of Incaméer the caption loss on extinguishments of d&hts loss reduced net inco
attributable to UGI Corporation by $5.2 during Eik2011.

In August 2011, AmeriGas Partners issued $450 mpah@mount of 6.25% Senior Notes due August 2018 { 6.25% Senior Notey”
The proceeds from the issuance of the 6.25% Séites were used to repay $350 principal amount meAGas Partners 7.125%enio
Notes dueMay 2016 pursuant to a tender offer and subseqaei@mption. The Partnership incurred a loss of 3&8.this extinguishment
debt which amount is reflected on the Fiscal 20bhgdlidated Statement of Income under the capties bn extinguishments of debt. 1
loss reduced net income attributable to UGI Conpameby $5.2 during Fiscal 2011.

The 6.50% and 6.25%enior Notes generally may be redeemed at ourmgpiorsuant to a tender offer). A redemption preamapplie:
through May 2019 (with respect to the 6.50% Notes) through August 2017 (with respect to the 6.288tes). In addition, in the event t
AmeriGas Partners completes a registered publieriaff of Common Units, the Partnership may, atoj¢ion, redeem up to 35%f the
outstanding 6.50% Notes (through May 20, 2014 B%#6 of the outstanding 6.25% Notes (through Aug0st2014), each at a premiul
AmeriGas Partners may, under certain circumstaimoeslving excess sales proceeds from the dispositib assets not reinvested in
business or a change of control, be required &r off prepay its 6.50% and 6.25% Senior Notes.

F-22




Table of Contents

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

As a result of the Heritage Acquisition, the Parsh@'s total long-term debt at September 30, 201udes $62.®f Heritage Propat
long-term debt including $ 55.6 of HOLP Senior SeduNotes (including unamortized premium of $}4.Zhe face interest rates on the H(
Notes range fron7.26% to 8.87% with an effective interest rate af586. The HOLP Senior Secured Notes are collateraltaedHOLP'
receivables, contracts, equipment, inventory, ganetangibles, cash and HOLP capital stock.

In June 2011, AmeriGas OLP entered into an unsdatnedit agreement (the “AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreet”) with a group of banl
providing for borrowings up to $325 (including a0®lsublimit for letters of credit). During Fiscal 2Q1the AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreem
was amended to, among other things, increase talkatmount available to $525 , extend its expiratiate to October 201,6and amend certe
financial covenants as a result of the Heritage udgijion. The AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreement pesmAimeriGas OLP to borrow
prevailing interest rates, including the base raéfined as the higher of the Federal Funds rate @/50% or the agent bank’s prime rate a
a two-week, one-, two-, three-, or six-month Euttaddrate, as defined in the AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreemgos a margin. The margin
base rate borrowings (which ranges from 0.75% #5%. ), Eurodollar Rate borrowings (which rangesnfré.75% to 2.75%9, and th
AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreement facility fee ratenigh ranges from 0.30% to 0.50% ) are dependent époeriGas Partnersatio of debt t
earnings before interest expense, income taxesedeagion and amortization (“EBITDA")each as defined in the AmeriGas 2011 C
Agreement.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011 , there were $4®19$85.50f borrowings outstanding under the AmeriGas 201@d& Agreemen
respectively, which amounts are reflected as baakd on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The weightrage interest rates on
AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreement borrowings at Sep&r80, 2012 and 2011 , were 2.72% and 2.29% ec#isply. AtSeptember 30, 20
and 2011 , issued and outstanding letters of ¢retiich reduce available borrowings under the Afas 2011 Credit Agreement, totafl7.¢
and $35.7 , respectively.

Restrictive Covenants.The AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes restrict thitybif the Partnership and AmeriGas OLP to, amottter things
incur additional indebtedness, make investmentyjritiens, issue preferred interests, prepay subated indebtedness, and effect merq
consolidations and sales of assets. Under the AasrPartners Senior Notes Indentures, AmeriGaadtaris generally permitted to make ¢
distributions equal to Available Cash, as definad, of the end of the immediately preceding quaifecertain conditions are met.
September 30, 2012hese restrictions did not limit the amount ofallable Cash. See Note 14 for definition of Avaitatash included in tl
Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of LimitethBeship of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“Partnergkgpeement”).

The HOLP Senior Secured Notes contain restrictivgenants including the maintenance of financialez@mnts and limitations on 1
disposition of assets, changes in ownership, anfditiindebtedness, restrictive payments and thatiore of liens. The financial covena
require HOLP to maintain a ratio of combined Funtietbbtedness to combined EBITDA (as defined) bedewain thresholds and to maint
a minimum ratio of combined EBITDA to combined Irgst Expense (as defined).

The AmeriGas 2011 Credit Agreement restricts thmuirence of additional indebtedness and also cestertain liens, guarante
investments, loans and advances, payments, meog&rsplidations, asset transfers, transactions afftlates, sales of assets, acquisitions
other transactions. The AmeriGas 2011 Credit Ageremequires that the Partnership and AmeriGas @haRtain ratios of total indebtedn
to EBITDA, as defined, below certain thresholdsatidition, the Partnership must maintain a mininratio of EBITDA to interest expense,
defined, as calculated on a rolling foguwarter basis. Generally, as long as no defaudt&xir would result, the Partnership and AmeriGaR
are permitted to make cash distributions not moeguently than quarterly in an amount not to exceedilable cash, as defined, for
immediately preceding calendar quarter.

International Propane

In March 2011, Antargaz entered into a five -yeaniSr Facilities Agreement with a consortium of k&ar(*2011 Senior Facilitie
Agreement”) consisting of a €380 variable-rate tésem and a €40redit facility. The proceeds from the 2011 Seacilities Agreement ter
loan were used to repay Antargaz’ then-existing@edracilities Agreement term loan due March 2011.

Scheduled maturities under the term loan are €23y 2014, €34.2 due May 2015, and €3@u8 March 2016. Borrowings under
2011 Senior Facilities Agreement bear interestinat otwo-, three- or sixaonth euribor, plus a margin, as defined by thel28é&nior Facilitie
Agreement. There were no amounts outstanding uheée2011 Senior Facilities Agreement at SeptemBe2312 or 2011 The margin on tt
term loan and credit facility borrowings (which g&s from 1.75% to 2.50% ) is dependent upon thie wit Antargaz’total net debt {
EBITDA, each as defined in the 2011 Senior FaesitAgreement. Antargaz has entered into pay-fisatkivevariable interest rate swaps
fix the underlying euribor rate of interest on teem
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loan at an average rate of approximately 2.45%utiindSeptember 2015 and, thereafter, at a rater@®@through the date of the term loan’
final maturity in March 2016. At September 30, 2Q1Be effective interest rate on Antargaz’ termnavas 4.66% The 2011 Senior Faciliti
Agreement is collateralized by substantially alPoftargaz’ shares in its subsidiaries and by sulbistidy all of its accounts receivables.

In December 2011, Flaga entered into a €19.1 ease variableate term loan agreement. Proceeds from the team \eere used,
large part, to fund Flaga’s October 2011 acquisitid Shell's LPG propane businesses in Finlandwdgr Sweden and Denmarkhe tern
loan matures in October 2016 and bears interabred¢-month euribor rates plus a margin . The maogi such borrowings ranges frdnil7:
% to 2.525% and is based upon certain consolidated equityrrren assets and debt to EBITDA ratios. Flagadffestively fixed the euriby
component of the interest rate on this term loah.@® % by entering into an interest rate swap agreendrd. effective interest rate on t
term loan at September 30, 2012, was 4.35% .

In September 2011, Flaga entered into a €40 eweebaariable-rate term loan of which €26.7 matimesugust 2016 and €13®Bature
in September 2016 . A portion of the proceeds ftbmloan were used to repay its €24.0 euro-basddblarate term loan which matur
during Fiscal 2011. The €40 euro-based term loamnsbimterest at one- to twelveonth euribor rates (as chosen by Flaga from tionénte
plus a margin. The margin on such borrowings rarfiges 0.23% to 2.55%nd is based upon certain consolidated equityrmmein assets a
debt to EBITDA ratios. Flaga has effectively fixggk euribor component of its interest rate on thim loan through September 201&&88%
by entering into interest rate swap agreements.€feetive interest rates on Flaga's term loanSegtember 30, 2012 and 2011, wBr&8%
and 4.76% , respectively.

As of September 30, 2012 and 2011 , Flaga als@ leaso-based variable-rate term loan which hadand#ng principal balances o2&
($3.6 ) and €4.2 ( $5.6 ), respectively. This téoan matures in June 2014 and bears interestegtionth euribor rates plus a margin.
margin on such borrowings ranges from 2.625% t®@%.and is based upon certain equity, return on assetsdebt to EBITDA ratios
determined on a UGI consolidated basis. Semi-anptiatipal payments of €0.@re due on December 31 and June 30 each year H
June 2014. Flaga has effectively fixed the eurdmmponent of the interest rate on this term loa2& H%by entering into an interest rate s\
agreement. As of September 30, 2012 and 2011eftbetive interest rate on this term loan was 5.04%

At September 30, 2012 , Flaga has two principalkingr capital facilities (the “Flaga Credit Agreent&h comprising (1) a €46 multi-
currency working capital facility which includes ancommitted €6 overdraft facility (the “Multi-Cwmncy Working Capital Facility”) and (23)
euro-denominated working capital facility that pides for borrowings and issuances of guaranteadirtgt€12 (the Euro Working Capit:
Facility”). The Multi-Currency Working Capital Facility expires in Septean2014 and the Euro Working Capital Facility e&piin Septemb
2013. At September 30, 2012 and 2011 , there wie9€( $15.3 ) and €12.3 ( $16)5f borrowings outstanding under the Flaga C
Agreements. These amounts are reflected as bank tovathe Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Borrowings under the Flaga Credit Agreements gdiyebear interest at market rates (a daily eurcebdasate or threeaonth euribc
rates) plus a margin. The weighted-average inteatst on Flaga Credit Agreements borrowings ateBeiper 30, 2012 and 2011, we&x&1%
and 3.39% respectively. Issued and outstanding lettergedit which reduce available borrowings underRlega Credit Agreements, tota
€19.2 ($24.7 ) and €12.1 ( $16.2) at Septembe23D2 and 2011 , respectively.

Restrictive Covenants and GuaranteesThe 2011 Senior Facilities Agreement restrictsabiity of Antargaz to, among other things, in
additional indebtedness, make investments, inems|iand effect mergers, consolidations and sélassets, and requires Antargaz to mai

a ratio of net debt to EBITDA on a French generallgepted accounting basis, as defined in the agnee that shall not exceed 3.50 to 1.00
Under this agreement, Antargaz is generally peeahitb make restricted payments, such as dividdmiseévent of default exists or would e
upon payment of such restricted payment. UGI hasagueed up to €100 of payments under the 201 bSEacilities Agreement.

The Flaga term loans, working capital facilitiesdanterest rate swap agreements are guaranteed@y Ik addition, under certe
conditions regarding changes in certain finana@étbs of UGI, the lending banks may accelerateyeyant of the debt.

UGI Utilities

UGI Utilities has an unsecured credit agreemeng ({dGI Utilities 2011 Credit Agreement\vith a group of banks providing 1
borrowings up to $300 (including a $180blimit for letters of credit) which expires in ober 2015. Under the UGI Utilities 2011 Crt
Agreement, UGI Utilities may borrow at various paéing market interest rates, including LIBOR ahé banksprime rate, plus a margin. T
margin on such borrowings ranges from 0.0% to 2ab%bis based upon the credit ratings of certairbtebiness of UGI Utilities. UGI Utilitic
had $9.2 of borrowings outstanding under the UGIitlds 2011 Credit Agreement
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at September 30, 201ghich amount is reflected in bank loans on the Gbdated Balance Sheet. UGI Utilities had no boiirgg outstandin
under the UGI Utilities 2011 Credit Agreement aptenber 30, 2011. The weightesdlerage interest rate on UGI Utilities 2011 Ci
Agreement borrowings at September 30, 2012 wa$4d.2&sued and outstanding letters of credit, whedfuce available borrowings under
UGI Utilities 2011 Credit Agreement, totaled $2tGB@ptember 30, 2012 and 2011 .

Restrictive Covenants.UGI Utilities 2011 Credit Agreement requires UGIillties not to exceed a ratio of Consolidated Deb€onsolidate
Total Capital, as defined, of 0.65 to 1.00 .

Energy Services

Energy Services has an unsecured credit agreerfiénerfly Services Credit Agreementijith a group of lenders providing 1
borrowings of up to $170 (including a $SQblimit for letters of credit) which expires in dust 2013. The Energy Services Credit Agree
can be used for general corporate purposes of Er&ggrices and its subsidiaries. In addition, Ene3grvices may not pay a dividend unl
after giving effect to such dividend payment, théa of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to EBITI®Ach as defined in the Energy Serv
Credit Agreement, does not exceed 2.00 to 1.00eréThwere $85 and $16f borrowings outstanding under the Energy ServiCesdi
Agreement at September 30, 2012 and 2011 , regpBctThese amounts are reflected as bank loatiseo@onsolidated Balance Sheets.

Borrowings under the Energy Services Credit Agragnbear interest at either (i) a rate derived fiolBOR (the “LIBO Rate”)plus
3.0% for each Eurodollar Revolving Loan (as defimethe Energy Services Credit Agreement) or [i§ Alternate Base Rate plus 2.0%he
Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the Energy SesvCredit Agreement) is generally the greateraptie Agent Banls prime rate, (b) tt
federal funds rate plus 0.50% and (c) the one-mbiB© Rate plus 1.0% . The weightederage interest rate on the Energy Services (
Agreement borrowings at September 30, 2012 and 20Was 3.25%. The Energy Services Credit Agreement is guarantae certail
subsidiaries of Energy Services.

Restrictive Covenants.The Energy Services Credit Agreement restricts ability of Energy Services to dispose of assetfgcefcertail
consolidations or mergers, incur indebtedness aadagty obligations, create liens, make acquisstioninvestments, make certain dividen
other distributions and make any material changethe nature of its businesses. In addition, thern Services Credit Agreement requ
Energy Services to not exceed a ratio of Consdtldital Indebtedness, as defined, to ConsolidaRIdDA, as defined; a minimum ratio
Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Exgeras defined; a maximum ratio of Consolidated Motdebtedness to Consolidated T
Capitalization, as defined, at any time when Caddatéd Total Indebtedness is greater than $25@1 a minimum Consolidated Net Worth
defined, of $150 .

Energy Services also has a $200 receivables seatidh facility (see Note 18).
Restricted Net Assets

At September 30, 2012 , the amount of net assetiGifs consolidated subsidiaries that was restricteoh fmnsfer to UGI under de
agreements, subsidiary partnership agreementsegndatory requirements under foreign laws totalgareximately $1,400 .

Note 6— Income Taxes

Income before income taxes comprises the following:

2012 2011 2010
Domestic $ 227.:  $ 388.6 $ 448.¢
Foreign 58.¢ 50.Z 74.5
Total income before income taxes $ 2862 § 439.C $ 523

The provisions for income taxes consist of theofwlhg:
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2012 2011 2010
Current expense (benefit):
Federal $ (104 % 244 $ 60.5
State 11.2 14.5 20.4
Foreign 18.¢ 15.C 25.¢
Investment tax credit (2.9 (5.9 .7
Total current expense 16.7 48.1 105.(
Deferred expense (benefit):
Federal 76.2 79.5 54t
State 5.2 2.4 6.4
Foreign 1.8 1.4 2.1
Investment tax credit amortization (0.3 (0.9 (0.4)
Total deferred expense 82.¢ 82.7 62.€
Total income tax expense $ 996 § 130.6  $ 167.¢

Federal income taxes for Fiscal 2012 and FiscaD20# net of foreign tax credits of $5.2 and $2dspectively.

A reconciliation from the U.S. federal statutory tate to our effective tax rate is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
U.S. federal statutory tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Difference in tax rate due to:
Noncontrolling interests not subject to tax 1.3 (6.0) (6.4
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 3.8 2.2 3.t
Valuation allowance adjustments (1.6 — (0.2
Effects of foreign operations (3.6) (0.6) (0.6)
Other, net (0.7 (0.9 0.7
Effective tax rate 34.€ % 29.€ % 32.L%

The effects of foreign operations in the table abder Fiscal 2012 reflects the impact of tax e#fiti structuring of certain of ¢
international operations and, as a result of thellSfransaction, also reflects a greater proportibpretax income in countries in which
statutory income tax rate is less than the U.Sutstey tax rate. The tax restructuring of certairoor international operations also permitte:
to reduce our foreign tax credit valuation allowahy $4.6during Fiscal 2012 which is included as valuatilaveance adjustments in the ta
above.

Earnings of the Company's foreign subsidiariesyareerally subject to U.S. taxation upon repatriatmthe U.S. and the Company's
provision reflects the related incremental U.S. éxcept for certain foreign subsidiaries whose mnitted earnings are considered tc
indefinitely reinvested. Because of the availapilitf U.S. foreign tax credits, it is likely no U.ax would be due if such earnings w
repatriated.

Pennsylvania utility ratemaking practice permite filiow through to ratepayers of state tax benefitsulting from accelerated 1
depreciation. For Fiscal 2012, Fiscal 2011 and&Fi2010, the beneficial effects of state tax fldwotigh of accelerated depreciation redi
income tax expense by $3.2 , $7.9 and $2&spectively. The state tax flow through amoumtSiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 reflect the im
of 2010 U.S. Federal tax legislation that allowaspayers to fully deduct qualifying capital expduodgs incurred after September 8, 2!
through the end of calendar 2011, when such prpjeplaced in service before 2012. This legishatias also permitted for Pennsylvania ¢
corporate income tax purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities (assets) comprise thedwihg at September 30:

2012 2011
Excess book basis over tax basis of property, gladtequipment $ 582.C $ 490.¢
Investment in AmeriGas Partners 293.2 172.5
Intangible assets and goodwill 61.2 52.1
Utility regulatory assets 140.¢ 124.5
Foreign currency translation adjustment 3.€ 8.5
Other 6.€ 7.2
Gross deferred tax liabilities 1,087.: 855.¢
Pension plan liabilities (72.9) (62.8)
Employee-related benefits (43.0 (42.9)
Operating loss carryforwards (38.0 (31.9)
Foreign tax credit carryforwards (55.5) (60.2)
Utility regulatory liabilities (11.9) (12.9
Derivative financial instruments (37.9) (30.5)
Other (31.9 (32.9
Gross deferred tax assets (290.€) (273.2)
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 81.¢ 81.C
Net deferred tax liabilities $ 8782 664.:

At September 30, 2012, foreign net operating I@syforwards principally relating to Flaga and e@rtoperations of Antargaz tota
$50.2 and $5.3 respectively, with no expiration dates. We hategesnet operating loss carryforwards primarilyatielg to certain subsidiari
which approximate $213.3 and expire through 2082e. also have operating loss carryforwards of $1i8r&ertain operations of AmeriC
Propane that expire through 2032 . At SeptembeRB02, deferred tax assets relating to operating tarryforwards include $12far Flaga
$1.8 for Antargaz, $0.9 for UGI International Halds BV, $5.2 for AmeriGas Propane and $ifdOcertain other subsidiaries. A valual
allowance of $17.2as been provided for deferred tax assets relatsthte net operating loss carryforwards and aitete deferred tax ass
of certain subsidiaries because, on a state rdperasis, it is more likely than not that thessets will expire unused. A valuation allowanc
$1.0was provided for certain acquisition loss carryfards for certain operations of AmeriGas Propanabse it is more likely than not tl
these assets will expire unused. A valuation altovesof $7.9vas also provided for deferred tax assets relat@@tain operations of Antarg
Flaga and UGI International Holdings BV. Operatiactivities and tax deductions related to the esera@f nonqualified stock optior
contributed to the state net operating losses alisd above. We first recognize the utilization t@ftes net operating losses from operat
(which exclude the impact of tax deductions forreises of norgualified stock options) to reduce income tax eeehen, to the extent st
net operating loss carryforwards, if realized, teelto nongualified stock option deductions, the resultingndfés will be credited to UC
Corporation stockholders’ equity.

We have foreign tax credit carryforwards of appmeadely $55.5 expiring through 202@sulting from the actual and planned repatric
of Antargaz’accumulated earnings since acquisition which ackudable in U.S. taxable income. Because we exiettthese credits w
expire unused, a valuation allowance has been giedvior the entire foreign tax credit carryforwanmhount. The valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets decreased by $0.3 in Fisc® @04 to a decrease in unusable foreign tax cretli#gl.6 partially offset by adjustments
unusable net operating losses obtained in conmeutith overseas acquisitions of $1.7 , an incréaseusable state operating losses of $1.¢
and unusable net operating losses in connectidnamtAmeriGas Propane acquisition of $1.0 .

We conduct business and file tax returns in the.,Un8merous states, local jurisdictions and in Eeaand certain other Europt
countries. Our U.S. federal income tax returnssatded through the 2009 tax year, our Frenchetxms are settled through the 2008 tax
our Belgian tax returns are settled through 200Y @ur Netherlands tax returns are settled throul@%2Our Austrian tax returns are set
through 2008 and our other central and easterngearotax returns are effectively settled for vagigaars from 2005 to 2010. State and ¢
income tax returns in the U.S. are generally suligeexamination for a period of three to five y@after the filing of the respective returns.

F-27




Table of Contents

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

As of September 30, 2012 , we have unrecognizeohiectax benefits totaling $3.1 including relatedraed interest of $0.21f thest
unrecognized tax benefits were subsequently rezedni1.9vould be recorded as a benefit to income taxeherConsolidated Statemen
Income and, therefore, would impact the reportégctife tax rate. Generally, a net reduction inemagnized tax benefits could occur bec.
of the expiration of the statute of limitationsdartain jurisdictions or as a result of settlememith tax authorities. Included in the balanc
September 30, 2012 , are $bfltax positions for which the deductibility is hig certain but for which there is uncertainty abthe timing o
such deductibility. Because of the impact of defértax accounting, the disallowance of the curdaduction would not affect the ann
effective tax rate but would accelerate the paynwntash to the taxing authority to an earlier périThere are no expected change
unrecognized tax benefits and related interestémext twelve months.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amseurftunrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Balance at September 30, 2009 $ 2.2
Additions for tax positions of the current year 4.2
Reductions as a result of tax positions taken iior years (0.2
Settlements with tax authorities (2.0
Balance at September 30, 2010 5.4
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.4
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1.C
Settlements with tax authorities (0.5
Balance at September 30, 2011 6.3
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.t
Additions for tax positions of prior years 0.€
Settlements with tax authorities (4.5
Balance at September 30, 2012 $ 2.€

Note 7— Employee Retirement Plans

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Bhs.In the U.S., we currently sponsor one defined hepehsion plan for employe
hired prior to January 1, 2009, of UGI, UGI Utdi§, PNG, CPG and certain of U&lbther domestic wholly owned subsidiaries. Effes
December 31, 2010, we merged our tleaisting two U.S. defined benefit pension plansering these employees ("U.S. Pension F
Merger"). The Company's two U.S. pension plansrpnathe Pension Plans Merger, and the single peS8sion plan after the Pension P
Merger, are hereafter referred to as the "U.S.iBar®an."

We also provide postretirement health care benefitsertain retirees and active employees and gtireiment life insurance benefits
nearly all domestic active and retired employees.atldition, Antargaz employees are covered by icedafined benefit pension a
postretirement plans. Although the disclosurehientibles below include amounts related to the yataplans, such amounts are not material

The following table provides a reconciliation oktprojected benefit obligations (“PBOgjf the U.S. Pension Plan and the Anta
pension plans, the accumulated benefit obligat{éABOs”) of our other postretirement benefit plans, plaresssand the funded status
pension and other postretirement plans as of Sdyge80, 2012 and 2011ABO is the present value of benefits earned te #ath benefit
based upon current compensation levels. PBO is ABf@ased to reflect estimated future compensation.
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Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
2012 2011 2012
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations — beginning of year $ 462.¢ % 471.¢ % 205 $ 22.¢
Service cost 9.3 8.8 0.4 0.4
Interest cost 25.1 24.1 1.1 1.1
Actuarial loss (gain) 82.4 (22.0) 3.2 (2.9
Plan amendments 0.1 — 1.C (0.2
Acquisitions 14.¢ — — —
Foreign currency (0.7) (0.7 (0.7 —
Benefits paid (20.9) (29.9) (1.9 ()]
Benefit obligations — end of year $ 573.2 % 462.¢ $ 247 % 20.t
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets — beginning of year $ 290.C % 287.¢ % 98 $ 10.C
Actual gain on plan assets 51.2 2.€ 1.7 0.1
Foreign currency (0.5 — — —
Employer contributions 32.2 19.2 1.1 1.1
Acquisitions 17.: — — —
Benefits paid (20.9) (29.9) (1.9 (1.9
Fair value of plan assets — end of year $ 369.¢ $ 290.C $ 112 $ 9.6
Funded status of the plans — end of year $ (203.5) $ (172.9 $ (13.5) $ (10.7)
(Liabilities) recorded in the balance sheet:
Unfunded liabilities — included in other currerdbilies  $ (15.¢) $ (276 $ 0.6) % (0.6)
Unfunded liabilities — included in other noncurrdinbilities (187.%) (145.9 (12.9) (20.7)
Net amount recognized $ (203.5)) $ 72,9 $ (135 $ (10.9)
Amounts recorded in UGI Corporation stockholders’ ejuity
(pre-tax):
Prior service credit $ 0.1 $ 0.2 $ (0.1)) $ (0.7
Net actuarial loss (gain) 25.C 13.€ 0.4 (0.9
Total $ 252 % 134 % 2 3 (0.9
Amounts recorded in regulatory assets and liabilits (pre-
tax):
Prior service cost (credit) $ 15 $ 1.8 % (2. $ (3.2
Net actuarial loss 184.t 146.¢ 5.€ 6.3
Total $ 186.C $ 148.7 $ 3C ¢ 3.1

In Fiscal 2013 , we estimate that we will amortgmroximately $15.4 of net actuarial losses andl$(ff prior service credits from Ut

stockholders’ equity and regulatory assets intogetenefit cost.

Actuarial assumptions for our domestic plans asedeed below. Assumptions for the Antargaz plaesbesed upon market conditi
in France. The discount rates at September 30sme 10 measure the yeamd benefit obligations and the earnings effeatdHe subseque
year. The discount rate assumption was determigesklecting a hypothetical portfolio of high qugldorporate bonds appropriate to pro
for the projected benefit payments of the planse ditscount rate was then developed as the sintgethat equates the market value of

bonds purchased to the discounted value of thespltemefit
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payments. The expected rate of return on assetsnation is based on the current and expected adlseations as well as historical ¢
expected returns on various categories of plantagae further described below).

Pension Plan Other Postretirement Benefits
2012 2011 (a) 2010 2009 2012 2011 2010 2009
Weighted-average
assumptions:
Discount rate 4.2(% 5.3(% 5.00% 5.5(% 4.2(% 5.3(% 5.00% 5.5(%
Expected return on plan
assets 7.7%% 8.0(% 8.5(% 8.5(% 5.2(% 5.5(% 5.5(% 5.5(%
Rate of increase in salary
levels 3.28% 3.5(% 3.7%% 3.7%% 3.25% 3.5(% 3.7%% 3.7%%

(&) The discount rates used during Fiscal 201datoulate pension expense were rates of Si¥ugh December 31, 2010 (the date o
U.S. Pension Plans Merger) and 5.5% for the reneaiofiFiscal 2011.

The ABOs for the U.S. Pension Plan were $496.4%1.0 as of September 30, 2012 and 2011 , resphcti

Net periodic pension expense and other postretinetrenefit cost includes the following components:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Service cost $ 93 ¢ 88 $ 87 $ 04 $ 04 $ 0.4
Interest cost 25.1 24.1 23.t 11 11 1.1
Expected return on assets (26.2) (25.9) (25.9) (0.5) (0.5 (0.5
Curtailment gain — — — — 3.2 —
Settlement loss — — 1.C — — —

Amortization of:

Prior service cost (benefit) 0.2 0.2 — (0.3 (0.7) (0.9
Actuarial loss 8.4 7.5 5.¢ 0.2 0.4 0.1
Net benefit cost (income) 16.¢ 14.¢ 13.2 1.C (2.5) 0.7
Change in associated regulatory liabilities — — — 3.2 3.1 3.1

Net benefit cost after change in regulatory lidigi $ 16.6  $ 14.6  § 135§ 42 0€ $ 3.€

U.S. Pension Plan's assets are held in trust. duisgeneral policy to fund amounts for U.S. Pemditan benefits equal to at least
minimum required contribution set forth in appli@lemployee benefit laws. From time to time we nayour discretion, contribute additio
amounts. During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fi26a0 , we made cash contributions to the U.Ssi®anPlan of $31.2 , $18.7 and $3.4
respectively. We believe that in Fiscal 2013 wd & required to make contributions to the U.S.dRk@nPlan totaling approximately $16 .

UGI Utilities has established a Voluntary Employe@sneficiary Association (“VEBA”)trust to pay retiree health care and life insur
benefits by depositing into the VEBA the annual amtoof postretirement benefits costs determineceu@AAP. The difference between s
amounts and amounts included in UGI Gas’ and Htetftility’ s rates is deferred for future recovery from, dumd to, ratepayers. T
required contributions to the VEBA during Fiscall20are not expected to be material.
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Expected payments for pension benefits and forrgihstretirement welfare benefits are as follows:

Other

Pension Postretirement

Benefits Benefits
Fiscal 2013 22.2 1.¢
Fiscal 2014 23.2 1.¢
Fiscal 2015 24.¢€ 1.¢
Fiscal 2016 27.4 1.¢
Fiscal 2017 28.C 1.8
Fiscal 2018 - 2022 158.( 8.7

The assumed domestic health care cost trend regeg.@26 for Fiscal 2013, decreasing to 5.0%4-iscal 2017. A one percentage p
change in the assumed health care cost trend ratddwot have a material impact on the Fiscal 206ttzr postretirement benefit cost
September 30, 2012 , other postretirement ben&id A

We also sponsor unfunded and non-qualified suppiMah@xecutive retirement plans. At September 31,22and 2011 the PBOs ¢
these plans were $29.5 and $25.6 , respectivelyratterded net costs for these plans of $3.0 inaFi2@12 , $3.0 in Fiscal 2011 and $#6
Fiscal 2010 . These costs are not included inah&s$ above. Amounts recorded in UGI's stockholdegsity for these plans include ptax
losses of $11.0 and $7.6 at September 30, 2012@hdl, respectively, principally representing unrecogdiactuarial losses. We expec
amortize approximately $0.7 of such pre-tax actldosses into retiree benefit cost in Fiscal 2013

U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA Assetd.he assets of the U.S. Pension Plan and the VEBAald in trust. The investment policies and
allocation strategies for the assets in thesestrarg determined by an investment committee comgrifficers of UGI and UGI Utilities. Tt
overall investment objective of the U.S. PensioanPand the VEBA is to achieve the best ldagn rates of return within prudent ¢
reasonable levels of risk. To achieve the statgelctilie, investments are made principally in puiglicaded diversified equity and fixed inco

mutual funds and UGl Common Stock.

The targets, target ranges and actual allocatimnihé U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA trust assetgptethber 30 are as follows:

U.S. Pension Plan

Actual Target _
Asset Permitted
2012 2011 Allocation Range
Equity investments:
Domestic 53.5% 49.4% 52.5% 40.0% - 65.0%
International 10.5% 10.7% 12.5% 7.5% - 17.5%
Total 64.(% 60.1% 65.(% 60.0% - 70.0%
Fixed income funds & cash equivalents 36.(% 39.% 35.% 30.0% - 40.0%
Total 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
VEBA
Actual Target _
Asset Permitted
2012 2011 Allocation Range
Domestic equity investments 68.5% 62.2% 65.(% 60.0% - 70.0%
Fixed income funds & cash equivalents 31.5% 37.8% 35.(% 30.0% - 40.0%
Total 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
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Domestic equity investments include investmentsiige-cap mutual funds indexed to the S&P 500 atislely managed mid- and small-
cap mutual funds. Investments in international gquiutual funds are indexed to various Morgan ®aitomposite indices. The fixed inca
investments comprise investments designed to mtatetduration of the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bomdiex. According to statute, 1
aggregate holdings of all qualifying employer sé&@s may not exceed 10%f the fair value of trust assets at the time ofcphase. UC
Common Stock represented 7.5% and 7.6% of U.S.i¢teR$an assets at September 30, 2012 and 20%peatvely. At September 30, 2012
there were no significant concentrations of riskfifged as greater than 1086 the fair value of total assets) associated aitly individua
company, industry sector or international geograpégion.

GAAP establishes a hierarchy that prioritizes ¥ailue measurements based upon the inputs and ieadethniques used to measure
value. This fair value hierarchy groups assets thtee levels, as described in Note 2. We maxirfieeuse of observable inputs and minir
the use of unobservable inputs when determiningvidue. The fair values of U.S. Pension Plan aB@X trust assets are derived from qut
market prices as substantially all of these ins&mi® have active markets. Cash equivalents aredati the fund unit net asset value
reported by the trustee.

The fair values of the U.S. Pension Plan and VEBAttassets at September 30, 2012 and 2011 , bydass are as follows:

U.S. Pension Plan

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
September 30, 2012:
Equity investments:
Domestic $ 188.2 $ — % — % 188.:
International 36.¢ — — 36.¢
Fixed income 123.: — — 123.:
Cash equivalents — 3.1 — 3.1
Total $ 348.2  $ 31 % — % 351.
September 30, 2011:
Equity investments:
Domestic $ 1431 % — ¢ — 143.]
International 31.C — — 31.C
Fixed income 113.¢ — — 113.€
Cash equivalents — 2.C — 2.C
Total $ 2877 $ 2C % — % 289.7
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September 30, 2012:

Domestic equity

Fixed income

Cash equivalents
Total

September 30, 2011:

Domestic equity
Fixed income
Cash equivalents
Total

VEBA
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$ WA — ¢ — 3 7.7
3.4 — — 3.4
— 0.1 — 0.1
$ 111 $ 01 $ — 3 11.2
$ 6.1 $ — ¢ — 3 6.1
e — — 3.8
— 0.4 — 0.4
$ 94 % 04 % — 3 9.¢

The expected lonterm rates of return on U.S. Pension Plan and VEB#t assets have been developed using a besaésiiinexpecte
returns, volatilities and correlations for eachedsdass. The estimates are based on historicalataparket performance data and fu
expectations provided by independent consultanisuré expectations are determined by using sinaratithat provide a wide range
scenarios of future market performance. The mas&etitions in these simulations consider the ltargn relationships between equities
fixed income as well as current market conditionthe start of the simulation. The expected ragirzewith a riskfree rate of return with oth
factors being added such as inflation, duratioeditrspreads and equity risk premiums. The ratestafn derived from this process are apy
to our target asset allocation to develop a redsematurn assumption.

Defined Contribution Plans. We sponsor 401(k) savings plans for eligible emeésyof UGI and certain of UGI'domestic subsidiarit
Generally, participants in these plans may contelauportion of their compensation on either a kefax basis, or on both a befdee anc
aftertax basis. These plans also provide for employeichiag contributions at various rates. The cosbenefits under the savings pl
totaled $13.7 in Fiscal 2012 , $10.4 in Fiscal 28ad $9.8 in Fiscal 2010 .
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Note 8— Utility Requlatory Assets and Liabilities and Reguétory Matters

The following regulatory assets and liabilitiesagated with Utilities are included in our accompizg balance sheets at September 30:

2012 2011
Regulatory assets:
Income taxes recoverable $ 103.2 $ 97.¢
Underfunded pension and postretirement plans 188.2 150.%
Environmental costs 16.¢ 19.t
Deferred fuel and power costs 11.€ 12.2
Removal costs, net 12.7 12.:
Other 5.¢ 7.6
Total regulatory assets $ 338.2 % 300.¢
Regulatory liabilities:
Postretirement benefits $ 13.1 % 11.5
Environmental overcollections 2.¢ 4.7
Deferred fuel and power refunds 4.4 6.€
State tax benefits — distribution system repairs 7.4 6.2
Other 0.t 0.7
Total regulatory liabilities $ 285§ 29.

Income taxes recoverabl. This regulatory asset is the result of recordinéeded tax liabilities pertaining to temporary tdiference
principally as a result of the pass through topayers of accelerated tax depreciation for statente tax purposes, and the flow throug
accelerated tax depreciation for federal incomeptaposes for certain years prior to 1981. Theserdsl taxes have been reduced by defi
tax assets pertaining to utility deferred investhten credits. Utilities has recorded regulatorgame tax assets related to these deferre
liabilities representing future revenues recovardbiough the ratemaking process over the avesgaining depreciable lives of the associ
property ranging from 1 to approximately 50 years.

Underfunded pension and other postretirement plarbhis regulatory asset represents the portion afr@@rvice cost and net actuarial lo:
associated with pension and other postretiremeneftie which are probable of being recovered thiofigure rates based upon establis
regulatory practices. These regulatory assetsdjustad annually or more frequently under cert@ioumnstances when the funded status o
plans is recorded in accordance with GAAP. Theséscare amortized over the average remaining figingce lives of plan participants.

Environmental cost:. Environmental costs represent amounts actuallytdpeldGl Gas to clean up sites in Pennsylvania el as the portio
of estimated probable future environmental reméatiadind investigation costs principally at manufaetl gas plant (“MGP"sites that CP
and PNG expect to incur in conjunction with remédia consent orders and agreements with the Perarsigl Department of Environmer
Protection (see Note 15). UGI Gas is currently peech to include in rates, through future base mgateceedings, a fivgear average
prudently incurred remediation costs at Pennsybvasites. PNG and CPG are currently recovering afmba to continue to reco\
environmental remediation and investigation castsase rate revenues. At September 30, 2@ period over which PNG and CPG expe
recover these costs will depend upon future rentiediactivity.

Deferred fuel and powe— costs and refundsGas Utility’s tariffs and, commencing January 11@QElectric Utility’s default service (“DS”
tariffs (as further described below under “Electdiility DS Rates”)contain clauses which permit recovery of all prutjeimcurred purchase
gas and power costs through the application ofiased gas cost (“PGCtates in the case of Gas Utility and DS rates endase of Electr
Utility. The clauses provide for periodic adjustrteeto PGC and DS rates for differences betweenotiaé amount of purchased gas and ele
generation supply costs collected from custometisracoverable costs incurred. Net undercollectetiscare classified as a regulatory asse
net overcollections are classified as a reguldiahyjlity.

Gas Utility uses derivative financial instrumendsréduce volatility in the cost of gas it purchagasfirm- residential, commercial a
industrial (“retail core-market”) customers. Reatizand unrealized gains or losses on natural gastee
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financial instruments are included in deferred fuests or refunds. Net unrealized gains (lossesjuoh contracts at September 30, 28&h2
2011 were $5.3 and $(3.1) , respectively.

Electric Utility enters into forward electricity pthase contracts to meet a substantial portiotsdadléctricity supply needs. During Fis
2010, Electric Utility determined that it could fanger assert that it would take physical delivefysubstantially all of the electricity it h
contracted for under its forward power purchaseagents and, as a result, such contracts no lapgdified for the normal purchases .
normal sales exception under GAAP related to dévigdinancial instruments. As a result, Electritility’ s electricity supply contracts
required to be recorded on the balance sheetavdaie with an associated adjustment to regulagmsets or liabilities in accordance v
GAAP relating to rate-regulated entities. At Septem30, 2012 and 2011 , the fair values of Eledfititity’ s electricity supply contracts wt
losses of $9.2 and $8, tespectively, which amounts are reflected in entrderivative financial instruments and other norent liabilities o
the Consolidated Balance Sheets with equal anettifig amounts reflected in deferred fuel and povests in the table above.

In order to reduce volatility associated with a stahtial portion of its electric transmission costiyen costs, Electric Utility obtail
financial transmission rights (“FTRsS"-TRs are derivative financial instruments thatténthe holder to receive compensation for eleity
transmission congestion charges when there isfinmuit electricity transmission capacity on theatic transmission grid. Because Ele«
Utility is entitled to fully recover its DS cost®mmencing January 1, 2010, realized and unrealizéas or losses on FTRs associated
periods beginning January 1, 2010 are includeceferded fuel and power costs or deferred fuel anwlgp refunds. At September 30, 204rx
2011, such gains or losses were not material.

Removal costs, ne. This regulatory asset represents costs incurrédyfrealvage, associated with the retirement ofe@pble utility plant. A
September 30, 2012 , UGI Utilities expects to recdtiese costs over periods of 1 to 5 years .

Postretirement benefit. Gas Utility and Electric Utility are recovering avigg postretirement benefit costs at amounts pesthlty the PUC |
prior base rate proceedings. With respect to UG &ad Electric Utility, the difference between #raounts recovered through rates anc
actual costs incurred in accordance with accountargpostretirement benefits are being deferred ftaure refund to or recovery frc
ratepayers. Such amounts are reflected in regyl&tdrilities in the table above.

Environmental overcollectionsThis regulatory liability represents the differermtween amounts recovered in rates and actua oastrre:
(net of insurance proceeds) associated with th@stesf a consent order agreement between CPG anddhasylvania Department
Environmental Protection to remediate certain dastsites.

State income tax benefit— distribution system repairsThis regulatory liability represents Pennsylvaniates income tax benefits, net
federal income tax expense, resulting from the dido for income tax purposes of repair and maiatee costs associated with Gas Utilit
Electric Utility assets which are capitalized fegulatory and GAAP reporting. The tax benefits asged with these repair and maintene
deductions will be reflected as a reduction to medax expense over the remaining tax lives oféfsed book assets.

Other . Other regulatory assets comprise a number of it@eisading, among others, deferred postretiremests;adeferred asset retirerr
costs, deferred rate case expenses, customer éhmgitEmentation costs and deferred software devedop costs. At September 30, 2012GI
Utilities expects to recover these costs over isrimf approximately 1 to 5 years .

UGI Utilities’ regulatory liabilities relating to gstretirement benefits, environmental overcollewiand state tax benefits distributior
system repairs are included in other noncurrebiliiees on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Udltids does not recover a rate of returr
its regulatory assets.

Other Regulatory Matters

Distribution System Improvement Charge LegislaticOn April 14, 2012, legislation enabling gas anctgle utilities in Pennsylvania to se
surcharge recovery of eligible capital investmenmdistribution system infrastructure improvementjpcts became effective. The surchi
enabled by the legislation is known as a distrioutsystem improvement charge (“DSICThe primary benefit to a company from a D
surcharge is the elimination of regulatory lagdetayed rate recognition, that occurs under trawliti ratemaking relating to qualifying cap
expenditures, for up to fivgercent of distribution rates. To be eligible fdD8IC, a utility must have filed a general ratenfijl within five year
of its petition seeking permission to include a O$ its tariff. Filings to implement a DSIC surcha may be filed no earlier than Januai
2013.

Allentown, Pennsylvania Natural Gas IncidenOn October 3, 2012, UGI Utilities and the PUC Bure&Investigation and
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Enforcement (“PUC Staff”) submitted a Joint SettdgnPetition (“Joint Settlementtd settle all regulatory compliance issues raisetthé PU(
Staff's formal complaint, issued on June 11, 20P2JC Staff Complaint)", pertaining to a natural gaglosion which occurred on Februar
2011, in Allentown, Pennsylvania and resulted ire fdeaths, several personal injuries and signifipaoperty damage (the “IncidentJhe
PUC Staff Complaint had alleged that UGI Utilitiead committed siwiolations of gas safety regulations and UGI U#Et operatin
procedures related to its cast iron main replacémeth gas odorant monitoring programs, and its garary response to the Incident. As pa
the Joint Settlement, UGI Utilities has agreedtd@ithe assessment of a $@iil penalty; (ii) to accelerate the time framea 1dGl Utilities,
CPG, and PNG to replace the remainder of its cantrains to 14ears, and (iii) to install odorant monitoring aingection equipment in i
natural gas system at a number of supply pointsdbes not concede to having violated any regulatiooperating procedure. Under the J
Settlement, UGI Utilities, CPG and PNG have alseead to not seek recovery of the related annudlafasapital return requirements throug
DSIC for a period of 24 months but are permittedet@in the current 3G/ear timeframe for replacing the remainder of thaire steel mair
On October 31, 2012, the PUC administrative lawggudssued an initial decision approving the settiein The provisions of the Ja
Settlement will become effective if the initial dgon becomes final or if the PUC determines tdaevthe initial decision and issues a fi
order approving the terms and conditions of thaetXsettlement without modification. The Company sloet believe that the cost of comply
with the requirements of the Joint Settlement wélre a material impact on UGI Utilities' consolethffinancial position, results of operati
or cash flows.

CPG Base Rate FilingOn January 14, 2011, CPG filed a request with HE Fo increase its operating revenues by $Haudually. Amon
other things, the increased revenues would funttsygmprovements and operations necessary to nrasdée and reliable natural gas ser
and fund new programs that would provide rebataets ather incentives for customers to install newhkédficiency equipment (collectivel
“Energy and Efficiency Conservation Program”). @mé 23, 2011, a Joint Petition for Approval of etient of All Issues (“Joint Petitiop”
was filed with the PUC based upon agreements \ighatctive parties regarding the requested basatipgrevenue increase. On August
2011, the PUC approved the settlement agreemerhwhsulted in an increase in annual base ratenueseof $8.0 as well as $0rBrevenue
per year for use in CP&Energy and Efficiency Conservation Program. Tloegase became effective August 30, 2011. DuriegaFi2012, th
PUC reversed its earlier decision related to th® B@rease in revenue associated with the EnergyEdficiency Conservation Program ¢
required CPG to refund revenue it had collectedHat program.

Electric Utility DS RatesBeginning January 1, 2010, Electric Utility opesatender a DS rate mechanism approved by the PUGitbas fo
full recovery of all DS costs incurred on and afianuary 1, 2010. Prior to January 1, 2010, thmdeand conditions under which Elec
Utility provided provider of last resort (“POLR%ervice, and rules governing the rates that maghleged for such service through Decer
31, 2009, were established in a series of PUC apprsettlements (collectively, the “POLR Settlenienin accordance with the POI
Settlement, Electric Utility could increase its P®tates up to certain limits through December 302

Transfers of Assets On October 21, 2010, the Federal Energy Regula@wynmission (“FERC”) approved and later affirmed CPG
application to abandon a storage service and apdrthe transfer of its Tioga, Meeker and Whartotunah gas storage facilities, along v
related assets, to UGI Storage Company, a subgidiaEnergy Services. The PUC approved the transfbject to, among other things
reduction in base rates and CBGgreement to charge PGC customers, for a pefidhree years, no more for storage services froe
transferred assets than they would have paid bélheréransfer, to the extent used. On April 1, 2Gh# storage facilities were dividende:
UGI and subsequently contributed to UGI Storage @ammy. The net book value of the storage facilityeds was $10.9Compliance with tF
provisions of the PUC Order approving the transfethe storage assets did not have a material impac¢he results of operations of (
Utility. Concurrent with the April 1, 2011 transf€PG entered into a one -year firm storage seaggeement with UGI Storage Company.

On December 1, 2010, PNG filed an application lith PUC for expedited review and approval of tlamgsfer of a 9mile natural ge
pipeline, related facilities, and right of way lted in Mehoopany, Pennsylvania (the “Auburn Ling"Energy Services. The PUC approvec
transfer and in September 2011 the Auburn Line didisended to UGI and subsequently contributedrierBy Services. The net book valu
the Auburn Line was $1.1 .
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Note 9— Inventories

Inventories comprise the following at September 30:

2012 2011
Non-utility LPG and natural gas $ 240.7 $ 222
Gas Utility natural gas 57.7 95.¢
Materials, supplies and other 58.t 45.2
Total inventories $ 356.¢ $ 363.(

At September 30, 2012 , UGI Utilities is a partythoee storage contract administrative agreemé8stSAAs”), two of which expire il
October 2012 and onef which expires in October 2013. Pursuant to these predecessor SCAAs, UGI Utilities has, amorgothings
released certain storage and transportation cdstfac the terms of the SCAAs. UGI Utilities als@rsferred certain associated sto
inventories upon commencement of the SCAAs, witleiee a transfer of storage inventories at the @nithe SCAAs, and makes payme
associated with refilling storage inventories dgrihe terms of the SCAAs. The historical cost dlira gas storage inventories released L
the SCAAs, which represents a portion of Gas Wtsittotal natural gas storage inventories, and aoliange receivable (representing amc
of natural gas inventories used by the other pattighe agreement but not yet replenished), ataded in the caption “Gas Utility natural gas’
in the table above. The carrying values of gasagmiinventories released under the SCAAs to ndliaséds at September 30, 2012 a?@fl ]
comprising 3.8 billion cubic feet (“bcf”) and 3i&cf of natural gas was $11.4 and $19.@spectively. Effective November 1, 2012, |
Utilities entered into two new SCAAS having ternigtoee years.

Note 10— Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise the follgnah September 30:

2012 2011

Utilities:

Distribution $ 2,047 % 1,951.¢

Transmission 85.4 83.4

General and other, including work in process 162.5 165.5
Total Utilities 2,295.° 2,201.(
Non-utility:

Land 175.C 98.t

Buildings and improvements 283.c 214.¢

Transportation equipment 246.5 112.¢

Equipment, primarily cylinders and tanks 3,041.: 2,127.¢

Electric generation 254.: 230.(

Other, including work in process 223.% 300.(
Total non-utility 4,223. 3,083.!
Total property, plant and equipment $ 6,519.0 § 5,284.1

Note 11— Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets comprise the folluyvat September 30:
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2012 2011
Goodwill (not subject to amortization) $ 2,818 $ 1,562..
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships, noncompete agreementstaed o $ 691.¢ $ 232.]
Trademarks and tradenames (not subject to amaotiat 137.2 47.¢
Gross carrying amount 829.1 280.(
Accumulated amortization (170.9 (132.7)
Intangible assets, net $ 658.: $ 147.¢
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill arecdigs:
International Propane
AmeriGas Gas Flaga & Corporate &
Propane Utility  Energy Service  Antargaz Other Other Total
Balance September 30, 2010 $ 683.1 $ 180.1 $ 28 % 6027 $ 87.C $ 7C $ 1,562.°
Goodwill acquired 13.1 — — — — — 13.1
Purchase accounting adjustmel 0.1 2.C — — (3.2 — (1.
Foreign currency translation — — — (20.9) (1.6 — (12.5)
Balance September 30, 2011 696.% 182.1 2.8 591.¢ 82.2 7.C 1,562.:
Goodwill acquired 1,223.: — — 46.4 13.7 — 1,283..
Purchase accounting adjustmel (0.2 — — — — — (0.2
Foreign currency translation — — — (26.2) (0.7) — (26.9)
Balance September 30, 2012 $ 1919 $ 1821 $ 28 ¢ 612.C $ 952 $ 7C $ 28181

We amortize customer relationships and noncompgteaent intangibles over their estimated peridd=enefit which do not exceelb
years. Amortization expense of intangible assedas %44.5 in Fiscal 2012 , $20.4 in Fiscal 2011 &m8.9 in Fiscal 2010 Estimate
amortization expense of intangible assets duriegtixt five fiscal years is as follows: Fiscal 2643551.8 ; Fiscal 2014 — $50.5 ; Fis@4l1t
— $47.4 ; Fiscal 2016 — $41.3 ; Fiscal 2017 — $35.@ere were no accumulated impairment lossese8ber 30, 2012 .

Note 12— Series Preferred Stock

UGI has 10,000,008hares of UGI Series Preferred Stock authorizedsfurance, including both series subject to anéseiot subject
mandatory redemption. We had no shares of UGI Séhieferred Stock outstanding at September 30, 802011 .

UGI Utilities has 2,000,008hares of UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock arited for issuance, including both series subjecinc
series not subject to mandatory redemption. At @aper 30, 2012 and 201 lthere were no shares of UGI Utilities Series &refd Stoc

outstanding.

F-38




Table of Contents

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

Note 13— Common Stock and EquityBased Compensation

UGI Common Stock share activity for Fiscal 2010sckl 2011 and Fiscal 2012 follows:

Issued Treasury Outstanding

Balance, September 30, 2009 115,261,29 (6,514,58) 108,746,70
Issued:

Employee and director plans 139,00( 1,390,20 1,529,20

Dividend reinvestment plan — 97,67: 97,67
Balance, September 30, 2010 115,400,29 (5,026,70) 110,373,58
Issued:

Employee and director plans 106,80( 1,263,06! 1,369,86

Dividend reinvestment plan — 92,57( 92,57(
Balance, September 30, 2011 115,507,09 (3,671,07) 111,836,02
Issued:

Employee and director plans 117,50( 824,92! 942,42!

Dividend reinvestment plan — 104,99« 104,99:
Shares reacquired - employee and director plans — (263,02() (263,02()
Balance, September 30, 2012 115,624,59 (3,004,17) 112,620,42

As a result of the January 2012 issuance of 2936@7AmeriGas Partners Common Units to ETP in conjumctidgth the Heritag
Acquisition and related General Partner Common Waitsactions (see Note 4), and the March 2012m=si0f 7,000,008meriGas Partne
Common Units pursuant to AmeriGas Partners’ pubffering (see Note 14), the Company recorded a Bl@®6rease in UGI Corporatit
stockholders’ equity (which amount is net of defedrmcome taxes) and an associated $321.4agrdecrease in noncontrolling interests eq

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company grants equity-based awards to emplaymeson-employee directors comprising UGI stoctiomg, grants of UGI stock-
based equity instruments and grants of AmeriGam@&a Common Unibased equity instruments as further described bhelda recognize
total pre-tax equity-based compensation expensd 45 ( $8.7 after-tax), $15.6 ( $10.3 after-tanyl $13.2 ( $8.7 after-tax) in Fiscal 2012
Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010 , respectively.

UGI Equity-Based Compensation Plans and AwardsUnder the UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Congagion Plan Amended &
Restated as of December 5, 2006 (the “OECR®,may grant options to acquire shares of UGI Comi8tock, stock appreciation rig
(“SARs”), UGI Units (comprising “Stock Units” andUGI Performance Units”) and other equity-based aw&dp key employees and non
employee directors. The exercise price for optimay not be less than the fair market value on thatglate. Awards granted under the O
may vest immediately or ratably over a period o&rge and stock options can be exercised no later thn years from the grant datén
addition, the OECP provides that awards of UGI &mitay also provide for the crediting of dividendie@lents to participantsaccounts
Except in the event of retirement, death or disgbikach grant, unless paid, will terminate whiea participant ceases to be employed. T
are certain change of control and retirement dliggibconditions that, if met, generally result atcelerated vesting or elimination of furt
service requirements.

Under the OECP, awards representing up to 15,00G08res of UGI Common Stock may be granted. The mmaxi number of shar
that may be issued pursuant to grants other thwok stptions or SARs is 3,200,00@ividend equivalents on UGI Unit awards to emgle:
will be paid in cash. Dividend equivalents on remployee director awards are accumulated in additiStock Units. UGI Unit awards gran
to employees and naemployee directors are settled in shares of Com&took and cash. UGI Unit awards granted to Antaasgaployees a
settled in shares of Common Stock. With respedt® Performance Unit awards, the actual numberhafres (or their cash equivale
ultimately issued, and the actual amount of divilequivalents paid, is generally dependent upomathévement of market performance g
and service conditions. It is our practice to iss@asury shares to satisfy substantially all apgaercises and UGI Unit awards. We do
expect to repurchase shares on the market forpungoses during Fiscal 201Beginning during Fiscal 2012, options grantedarrttie OEC
may be net exercised whereby shares equal to tiengmice and grantee's minimum applicable paytatlwithholding are withheld from t
number
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of shares payable ("net exercise"). We record shaiehheld under option net exercises as sharesjugad.

UGI Stock Option Awards Stock option transactions under the OECP and pesdec plans for Fiscal 2010 , Fiscal 2011 and FR@E

follow:

Shares under option — September 30, 2009
Granted

Cancelled

Exercised

Shares under option — September 30, 2010
Granted

Cancelled

Exercised

Shares under option — September 30, 2011
Granted

Cancelled

Exercised

Shares under option — September 30, 2012
Options exercisable — September 30, 2010
Options exercisable — September 30, 2011
Options exercisable — September 30, 2012
Non-vested options — September 30, 2012

Weighted
Weighted Total Average
Average Intrinsic Contract Term
Shares Option Price Value (Years)
7,501,49. $ 22.7¢ % 23.2 6.4
1,394,300 $ 24.3i
(62,50) $ 25.12
(1,276,24) $ 18.0¢ $ 11.7
7,557,04 $ 2381 $ 36.2 6.5
1,443,55 $ 31.5¢
(235,43) $ 27.7¢
(1,091,98) $ 209t 3 11.¢
7,673,17 $ 2558 $ 15.1 6.2
1,508,05 $ 29.2¢
(321,60) $ 27.7¢
(801,85) $ 20.9¢ % 7.2
8,057,77. $ 26.6: $ 41.4 6.1
4,706,371 $ 22.9¢
4,879,78 $ 24.1¢
5,317,69 $ 2532 % 34.2 5.0
2,740,07. $ 29.1: % 7.2 8.3

Cash received from stock option exercises and &gdsdctax benefits were $16.8 and $2.3 , $22.9%38 , and $23.1 and $4ir8 Fisca
2012, Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010 , respectivatyof September 30, 2012 , there was $f.@nrecognized compensation cost associatec
unvested stock options that is expected to be rézed over a weighted-average period of 2 years.

The following table presents additional informatietating to stock options outstanding and exebtésat September 30, 2012 :

Options outstanding at September 30, 2012:
Number of options

Weighted average remaining contractual life (inrgga

Weighted average exercise price

Options exercisable at September 30, 2012:
Number of options
Weighted average exercise price

Range of exercise prices

Under $20.00 - $25.01 - Over
$20.00 $25.00 $30.00 $30.00
162,30( 2,996,471 3,529,04. 1,369,95
1.5 55 6.2 7.6
$ 16.9: $ 23.2¢ % 27.9¢ % 31.5¢
162,30( 2,546,171 2,164,90! 444,31¢
$ 16.9:2 $ 2312 % 27.2¢ $ 31.6(

UGI Stock Option Fair Value Information.The per share weightesterage fair value of stock options granted underaption plans we
$4.31 in Fiscal 2012 , $5.40 in Fiscal 2011 andt$4n Fiscal 2010 . These amounts were determisatyla BlackScholes option pricir
model which values options based on the stock paiche grant date, the expected life of the optthe estimated volatility of the sto
expected dividend payments and the risk-free intaste over the expected life of the option.
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The expected life of option awards represents gr@g of time during which option grants are expddo be outstanding and is derived f
historical exercise patterns. Expected volatil#yased on historical volatility of the price of USCommon Stock. Expected dividend yiel
based on historical UGI dividend rates. The rigefinterest rate is based on U.S. Treasury bontisterims comparable to the options in el
on the date of grant.

The assumptions we used for valuing option graatsg Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010aaréollows:

2012 2011 2010
Expected life of option 5.75 years 5.75 years 5.75 years
Weighted average volatility 24.7% 24.3% 24.0%
Weighted average dividend yield 3.5% 3.4% 3.3%
Expected volatility 24.7% 23.8% - 24.3% 24.0%
Expected dividend yield 3.3% - 3.7% 3.1% - 3.4% 3.3% - 3.4%
Risk free rate 0.8% - 1.1% 1.2%-2.4% 1.7% - 3.1%

UGI Unit Awards. UGI Stock Unit and UGI Performance Unit awards tintihe grantee to shares of UGI Common Stock sh @mce th
service condition is met and, with respect to U@if&rmance Unit awards, subject to market perfoceaconditions. UGI Performance L
grant recipients are awarded a target number dbfeance Units. The number of UGI Performance Ualtenately paid at the end of 1
performance period (generally three years) mayighen or lower than the target amount, or even ,zbased on UG$ Total Sharehold
Return (“TSR”) percentile rank relative to companie the Standard & Poar'Utilities Index for grants prior to January 1120and the Russ
Midcap Utility Index (excluding telecommunicationropanies) for grants on or after January 1, 20UIG(“comparator group”Based on tF
TSR percentile rank, grantees may receive 0% t8@260Dthe target award granted. If USITSR ranks below the 40th percentile compar
the UGI comparator group, the employee will nopbél. At the 40th percentile, the employee willdzéd an award equal to 50% of the ta
award; at the 50th percentile, 100%; and at thahlp@rcentile, 200% The actual amount of the award is interpolata@vben these percent
rankings. Dividend equivalents are paid in casly onl UGI Performance Units that eventually vest.

The fair value of UGI Stock Units on the grant deste=qual to the market price of UGI Stock on thang date. Under GAAP, Ut
Performance Units are equity awards with a mablested condition which, if settled in shares, rasimtthe recognition of compensation «
over the requisite employee service period regasdté whether the markbased condition is satisfied. The fair values ofl BR@rformanc
Units are estimated using a Monte Carlo valuati@deh The fair value associated with the targetrdvisaccounted for as equity and the
value of the award over the target, as well adigllend equivalents, is accounted for as a lighilThe expected term of the UGI Performe
Unit awards is three yeabmsed on the performance period. Expected vojeitlibased on the historical volatility of UGI CoramStock over
three-year period. The risk-free interest rateaisdal on the yields on U.S. Treasury bonds at e of grant. Volatility for alcompanies in tf
UGI comparator group is based on historical vatstil

The following table summarizes the weighted aver@gmimptions used to determine the fair value of B&formance Unit awards &
related compensation costs:

Grants Awarded in Fiscal

2012 2011 2010
Risk free rate 0.4% 1.C% 1.7%
Expected life 3 year 3 year 3 year
Expected volatility 22.2% 27.€% 28.(%
Dividend yield 3.5% 3.2% 3.2%

The weighted-average grant date fair value of U&fd*mance Unit awards was estimated to be $202bits granted in Fiscal 2012
$35.19 for Units granted in Fiscal 2011 and $22d6Units granted in Fiscal 2010 .
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The following table summarizes UGI Unit award aityifor Fiscal 2012 :

Total Vested Non-Vested
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date
UGl Fair Value ve] Fair Value ve] Fair Value
Units (per Unit) Units (per Unit) Units (per Unit)
September 30, 2011 900,28: $ 24.1: 598,95! % 21.41 301,32¢ $ 29.5¢
UGI Performance Units:
Granted 197,400 $ 27.2¢ 33,51¢ $ 29.1¢ 163,88: $ 26.8¢
Forfeited (51,41) $ 27.9¢ — 8 — (51,41) $ 27.9¢
Vested — — 110,08: $ 29.0¢ (110,08) $ 29.0¢
Performance criteria not met (170,48) $ 27.8: (170,48) $ 27.8: — —
UGI Stock Units:
Granted (a) 42,44  $ 29.6¢ 40,94t  $ 29.5: 1500 $ 34.0¢
Vested — 3 — — 3 — — % —
Unit awards paid (32,89¢) $ 26.17 (32,899 $ 26.17 — % —
September 30, 2012 885,33¢ $ 24.0¢ 580,12 $ 21.7: 305,21t $ 28.5¢

(a)
2011 and Fiscal 2010 were 61,945 and 27,060 , casply.

Generally, shares granted under UGI Stock bhviirds are paid approximately 70% in shard&l Stock Unit awards granted in Fis

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2018e Company paid UGI Performance Unit and UGkkstonit awards in shares &

cash as follows:

2012 2011 2010
UGI Performance Unit awards:
Number of original awards granted 210,75( 197,91 193,98:
Fiscal year granted 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Payment of awards:
Shares of UGI Common Stock issued — 142,49: 123,16¢
Cash paid $ — ¢ 75 % 2.€
UGI Stock Unit awards:
Number of original awards granted 32,89¢ 22,40( —
Payment of awards:
Shares of UGI Common Stock issued 21,757 17,54t —
Cash paid $ 02 % 02 $ =

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 201@e, granted UGI Unit awards representing 239,8485,470 and 231,716hares
respectively, having weighted-average grant datesédues per Unit of $27.68 , $34.78 and $22.6%pectively.

As of September 30, 2012 , there was a total ofaqimately $5.2 of unrecognized compensation cesbeiated with 885,338GI Unit
awards outstanding that is expected to be recodrizer a weighted-average period of Y@ars. The total fair values of UGI Units thattee
during Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 201€ev#3.6 , $6.8 and $5.0 , respectively. As of Saper 30, 2012 and 201 Xotal liabilities o
$5.0 and $6.0 respectively, associated with UGI Unit awardsraftected in employee compensation and benefitsuad and other noncurr

liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

At September 30, 2012 , 1,436,672 shares of Contock were available for future grants under theCBEof which up td.,436,67:

may be issued pursuant to future grants otherst@uk options or SARs.
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AmeriGas Partners Equil-Based Compensation Plans and Award$nder the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 Ldmgm Incentive Plan ¢
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“2010 ProparenB| the General Partner may award to employedsnanemployee directors grants
AmeriGas Partners Units (comprising “AmeriGas Stblekts” and “AmeriGas Performance Units§ptions, unit appreciation rights and ot
Common Unit-based awards. The 2010 Propane Plaresded the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Teganiive Plan (2000 Propar
Plan™) which expired on December 31, 2009, andawgd the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Discretionary Lbegn Incentive Plan for Non-
Executive Key Employees (“Nonexecutive Propane 'Blarhe total aggregate number of Common Units that beyssued under the 2(
Propane Plan is 2,800,000 he exercise price for options may not be leas the fair market value on the date of grant. Alsagranted und
the 2010 Propane Plan may vest immediately or lsa@er a period of years, and options can be ésedno later than ten years from
grant date . In addition, the 2010 Propane Plariges that Common Unltased awards may also provide for the creditin@aimon Uni
distribution equivalents to participants’ accounts.

Recipients of AmeriGas Performance Unit awards amarded a target number of AmeriGas PerformancdsUilhe number
AmeriGas Performance Units ultimately paid at thd ef the performance period (generally three yearay be higher or lower than the tal
number based upon AmeriGas Partners’ Total Uni#itoReturn (“TUR”)percentile rank relative to entities in a peer grd@ercentile rankin
and payout percentages are generally the sameses tised for the UGI Performance Unit awards. Aayn@on Unit distribution equivaler
earned are paid in cash. Generally, except in Hemteof retirement, death or disability, each granmtless paid, will terminate when
participant ceases to be employed by the GeneratdtaThere are certain change of control andemignt eligibility conditions that, if mu
generally result in accelerated vesting or elimorabf further service requirements.

As a result of the Heritage Acquisition, certainritieye Propane employees were awarded AmeriGasrRehce Units, AmeriGas Stc
Units (in the form of phantom units), or a combioatof AmeriGas Performance Units and AmeriGas IStonits. The terms of tt
Performance Unit awards granted to Heritage Propamgloyees are generally the same as those ded@ilmyve. The AmeriGas Stock Ui
awards granted to Heritage employees vest in temuelith certain awards beginning to vest in Jan@ai3 through January 2016. Certai
the AmeriGas Stock Unit awards provide for acceéztavesting under certain conditions. Under certainditions all or a portion of the
awards could be forfeited. The AmeriGas Stock Wmiards granted to Heritage Propane employees mduidthe crediting of distributic
equivalents to participants' accounts.

Under GAAP, AmeriGas Performance Units are equitgrals with a marketbased condition which, if settled in Common Unigsults i
the recognition of compensation cost over the tguemployee service period regardless of whettieemarketased condition is satisfie
The fair values of AmeriGas Performance Units atineated using a Monte Carlo valuation model. Tdie ¥alue associated with the tai
award and the award above the target, if any, wiitlhbe paid in Common Units, is accounted foreagiity and the fair value of all Comnm
Unit distribution equivalents, which will be paid cash, is accounted for as a liability. The expederm of the AmeriGas Performance |
awards is three years based on the performancedpéikpected volatility is based on the historiealatility of Common Units over a three-
year period. The ri-free interest rate is based on the rates on U&astliry bonds at the time of grant. Volatility fdrlenited partnerships i
the peer group is based on historical volatility.

The following table summarizes the weightaderage assumptions used to determine the faiealAmeriGas Performance Unit awe
and related compensation costs:

Grants Awarded in Fiscal

2012 2011 2010
Risk-free rate 0.4% 1.C% 1.7%
Expected life 3 year 3 year 3 year
Expected volatility 23.(% 34.€% 35.(%
Dividend yield 6.4% 5.8% 6.8%

The General Partner granted awards under the 26dfafe Plan representing 248,818 , 49,287 and B Conmon Units in Fisc
2012, Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010 , respectivgyjng weighted-average grant date fair valuesQmenmon Unit subject to award of $43.22
$53.19 and $41.39 , respectively. At Septembe2802 , 2,517,41€ommon Units were available for future award gramser the 201
Propane Plan.
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The following table summarizes AmeriGas Common Waised award activity for Fiscal 2012 :

Total Vested Non-Vested
Number of Number of Number of
AmeriGas AmeriGas AmeriGas
Partners Weighted Partners Weighted Partners Weighted
Common Average Common Average Common Average
Units Grant Date Units Grant Date Units Grant Date
Subject Fair Value Subject Fair Value Subject Fair Value
to Award (per Unit) to Award (per Unit) to Award (per Unit)
September 30, 2011 155,35t $ 41.7¢ 62,63¢ $ 38.2( 92,71¢ % 44.2;
AmeriGas Performance Units:
Granted 55,15( $ 48.2¢ 8,665 $ 48.2¢ 46,48° $ 48.2¢
Forfeited (15,069 $ 50.3i — % — (15,069 $ 50.3
Vested — % — 36,83 $ 39.2¢ (36,83) $ 39.2¢
Performance criteria not v (48,63) % 32.1% (48,639) $ 32.17 — ¢ —
AmeriGas Stock Unit:
Granted 193,66¢ $ 41.77 66,24 $ 41.8] 127,42: % 41.7¢
Forfeited (10,360 $ 41.4z — % — (10,360 $ 41.4;
Vested — % — 6,05( $ 35.0¢ (6,050 $ 35.0¢
Awards paic (66,146 $ 40.72 (66,146 $ 40.72 — % —
September 30, 2012 263,96° $ 44.7( 65,65. $ 45 .4 198,31¢ $ 44.4;

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 20t ,Partnership paid AmeriGas Common UWrased awards in Common Units and
as follows:

2012 (a) 2011 2010
Number of Common Units subject to original awardsnged 60,20( 41,06¢ 49,65(
Fiscal year granted 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Payment of awards:
AmeriGas Partners Common Units issued 3,50( 35,781 42,12:
Cash paid $ 01 $ 12 $ 1.2

(a) In addition, 40,516 AmeriGas Stock Units, aBddin cash, were paid to Heritage Propane emptogssociated with awards granted in Fiscal 2012.

As of September 30, 2012 , there was a total ofamately $3.0 of unrecognized compensation cesbeaiated with 263,96Zommot
Units subject to award that is expected to be neizegl over a weighted-average period of 2.0 yeHms. total fair value of Common Unit-
based awards that vested during Fiscal 2012 , IR28d4 and Fiscal 2010 was $5.1 , $2.0 and $28pactively. As of September 30, 2GR
2011 , total liabilities of $1.1 and $1.2 assodatéth Common Unitbased awards are reflected in employee compensatisibenefits accru
and other noncurrent liabilities in the ConsolideBalance Sheets.

Note 14— Partnership Distributions and Common Unit Offering

The Partnership makes distributions to its partaprroximatelyd5 days after the end of each fiscal quarter iota amount equal to
Available Cash for such quarter . Available Cashegelly means:

1. all cash on hand at the end of such qui
2. plus all additional cash on hand as of the datetérmination resulting from borrowings after timel @f such quarte

3. less the amount of cash reserves established gaheral Partner in its reasonable discre
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The General Partner may establish reserves fopribyger conduct of the Partnershifgusiness and for distributions during the neut
quarters.

Distributions of Available Cash are made 98% toitlh partners and 2% to the General Partner (reptieg) a 1%General Partn
interest in AmeriGas Partners and 1.01% interestnmeriGas OLP) until Available Cash exceeds theiMum Quarterly Distribution 0$0.5¢
and the First Target Distribution of $0.055 per @oom Unit (or a total of $0.605 per Common UrWhen Available Cash exceeds $0.60%
Common Unit in any quarter, the General Partnet witeive a greater percentage of the total Patigrdistribution (the itcentive
distribution”) but only with respect to the amotnytwhich the distribution per Common Unit to lindtpartners exceeds $0.605 .

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 201Be Partnership made quarterly distributions n@on Unitholders in excess
$0.605per limited partner unit. As a result, the Gendétaftner has received a greater percentage of thieRartnership distribution than
aggregate 2%eneral partner interest in AmeriGas OLP and Amasi®artners. The total amount of distributions iveck by the Gener
Partner with respect to its aggregate 2% generahgraownership interests totaled $19.7 in Fis€dl2, $9.0 in Fiscal 2011 and $6mOFisca
2010 . Included in these amounts are incentiveibligions received by the General Partner durirsg#i2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2@f0
$13.0, $5.0 and $3.0, respectively.

In March 2012, AmeriGas Partners sold 7,000,000 @omUnits in an underwritten public offering atabfic offering price of$41.2¢
per unit. The net proceeds of the public offeriotaling $276.6 and the associated capital conidhatfrom the General Partner totali$g.¢
were used to redeem $200 of 6.5@@nior Notes pursuant to a tender offer, to rechenek loan borrowings and for general partnel
purposes.

Note 15— Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

We lease various buildings and other facilities aabicles, computer and office equipment under atpey leases. Certain of our lez
contain renewal and purchase options and also icostep-rent provisions. Our aggregate rental egpdor such leases was $7h9Fisca
2012 , $69.8 in Fiscal 2011 and $70.6 in Fiscali201

Minimum future payments under operating leases with-affiliates that have initial or remaining noncarat#é terms in excess of ¢
year are as follows

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
AmeriGas Propane $ 62.C $ 48.6 $ 394 $ 30.2 $ 231 $ 63.¢
UGI Utilities 54 4.3 34 3.1 1.8 2.2
International Propane 8.C 5.€ 3.4 2.€ 2.4 2.2
Other 2.C 1.7 1.2 1.1 0.3 0.1
Total $ 774 $ 60.4 $ 475 $ 371 $ 27€ $ 68.€

Our businesses enter into contracts of varyingtlengnd terms to meet their supply, pipeline trarsgion, storage, capacity and ene¢
needs. Gas Utility has gas supply agreements witdyzcers and marketers with terms not exceedingyeae Gas Utility also has agreem:
for firm pipeline transportation and natural gagrage services, which Gas Utility may terminatevatious dates through Fiscal 2022.
Utility’ s costs associated with transportation and stocagecity agreements are included in its annual RB@Qs with the PUC and a
recoverable through PGC rates. In addition, Ga#itytias shorterm gas supply agreements which permit it to pasehcertain of its g
supply needs on a firm or interruptible basis aitsparket prices. Electric Utility purchases its efimity needs under contracts with vari
suppliers and on the spot market. Contracts wittdiypecers for energy needs expire at various datesigh Fiscal 2014. Midstream
Marketing enters into fixegtice contracts with suppliers to purchase natgasl and electricity to meet its sales commitmeaeerally, thes
contracts have terms of less than two years. Thétahip enters into fixed-price and variapléce contracts to purchase a portion o
supply requirements. These contracts currently hewms that do not exceed four years. Internatidtralpane enters into variakbeicec
contracts to purchase a portion of its supply neguénts that currently do not exceed four years.
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The following table presents contractual obligasiomith nonaffiliates under Gas Utility, Electric Utility, Mitream & Marketing
AmeriGas Propane and International Propane supfilyage and service contracts existing at SepteB8thez012 :

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
UGI Utilities supply, storage and
transportation contracts $ 173.¢ $ 95.C $ 61.6 $ 432 % 26.5 $ 62.7
Midstream & Marketing supply
contracts 171.1 51.4 4.7 — — —
AmeriGas Propane supply contracts 141 .4 87.C 87.7 3.2 — —
International Propane supply contracts 226.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢ 58.C — —
Total $ 712.¢ % 376.¢ $ 297.¢ $ 1045 % 26t $ 62.7

The Partnership and International Propane alsa émtte other contracts to purchase LPG to meet lsuggguirements. Generally, the
contracts are one - to three -year agreementscubjannual price and quantity adjustments.

Contingencies
Environmental Matter

CPG is party to a Consent Order and Agreement (“CRIXA") with the Pennsylvania Department of Enviramtal Protection (“DEP”
requiring CPG to perform a specified level of aitids associated with environmental investigatiod eemediation work at certain propertie
Pennsylvania on which manufactured gas plant (“MGfefated facilities were operated (“CPG MGP Préipst) and to plug a minimu
number of non-producing natural gas wells per ygaaddition, PNG is a party to a Mullite Remediation Consent Order and Agree
(“PNG-COA") with the DEP. The PN®&OA requires PNG to perform annually a specifieeeleof activities associated with environme
investigation and remediation work at certain prips on which MGP-related facilities were operad®NG MGP Properties”)Under thes
agreements, environmental expenditures relatintheoCPG MGP Properties and the PNG MGP Propertiesapped at $1.8 and $1.1
respectively, in any calendar year. The CPG-COAnieates at the end of 2013. The PI®A terminates in 2019 but may be terminate
either party effective at the end of any two-yearigd beginning with the original effective dateNMarch 2004. At September 30, 2048c
2011 , our accrued liabilities for environmentalastigation and remediation costs related to th&C®A and the PNG-COA totale®il5.(
and $17.9 , respectively. In accordance with GA&Rted to rateegulated entities, we have recorded associatadategy assets in eqt
amounts.

From the late 1800s through the ndi@lo0s, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiariesrasl and operated a number of MGPs prior ti
general availability of natural gas. Some constitseof coal tars and other residues of the manufadtgas process are today consid
hazardous substances under the Superfund Law apdenaresent on the sites of former MGPs. Betwed82 land 1953, UGI Utilities own
the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsidvamd elsewhere and also operated the businekseme gas companies under agreer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Public Utilitglding Company Act of 1935, by the early 1950s UGilities divested all of its utilit
operations other than certain Pennsylvania opemstiacluding those which now constitute UGI Gad Rtectric Utility.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for invgation and remediation of hazardous substancesraisiylvania MGP sites to be mate
to its results of operations because (1) UGI Gasuisently permitted to include in rates, througitufe base rate proceedings, a fiyea
average of such prudently incurred remediation sc@std (2) CPG and PNG are currently receiving edgu}y recovery of estimat
environmental investigation and remediation costoeiated with Pennsylvania sites. At SeptembefB02, neither the undiscounted nor
accrued liability for environmental investigationdacleanup costs for UGI Gas was material.

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sitestside Pennsylvania on which private parties allbt@Ps were formerly owned
operated by it or owned or operated by its formédrsiliaries. Such parties are investigating thermxbf environmental contamination
performing environmental remediation.

Management believes that under applicable law Utditigs should not be liable in those instancesvhrich a former subsidiary owned
operated an MGP. There could be, however, sigmfifature costs of an uncertain amount associatéttl emvironmental damage causec
MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI Utilities dilgcperated, or that were owned or operated
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by former subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a coustere to conclude that (1) the subsidiargeparate corporate form should be disregarc
(2) UGI Utilities should be considered to have basroperator because of its conduct with respeits subsidiary’'s MGP.

Sag Harbor, New York MatterBy letter dated June 24, 2004, KeySpan Energey$pan”)informed UGI Utilities that KeySpan has sg
$2.3 and expects to spend another g1tlean up an MGP site it owns in Sag Harbor, Néwk. KeySpan believes that UGI Utilities
responsible for approximately 50% of these costa eessult of UGI Utilities'alleged direct ownership and operation of the pfeornh 1885 ti
1902. By letter dated June 6, 2006, KeySpan regahtat the New York Department of Environmental S&mation has approved a remedy
the site that is estimated to cost approximately $KeySpan has indicated that the cost could beigisas $2Q There have been no rec
developments in this matter.

Omaha, NebraskaBy letter dated October 20, 2011, the City of @mand the Metropolitan Utilities District (“MUDhotified UGI Utilities
that they had been requested by the United Stateisdmental Protection Agency (“EPAt) remediate a former manufactured gas plan
located in Omaha, Nebraska. According to a repapared on behalf of the EPA identifying potenyiaésponsible parties, a former subsid
of a UGI Utilities’ predecessor is identified as an owner and opeodthie site. The City of Omaha and MUD have receebshat UGI Utilitie:
participate in the cost of remediation for thi®sBecause of the preliminary nature of availabdrenmental information, the ultimate ama
of expected clean up costs cannot be reasonaldyatst. In addition, UGI Utilities believes thathids strong defenses to any claims that
arise relating to the remediation of this site.|Byer dated November 10, 2011, the EPA notified UGlities of its investigation of the site
Omaha, Nebraska, and issued an information reqoeasG| Utilities. UGI Utilities responded to the BPs information request on January
2012, and is cooperating with its investigation.

AmeriGas OLP Saranac LakBYy letter dated March 6, 2008, the New York Staep@rtment of Environmental Conservation (“DE@Gbtified
AmeriGas OLP that DEC had placed property ownedhgyPartnership in Saranac Lake, New York, on igiftry of Inactive Hazardo
Waste Disposal Sites. A site characterization stugljormed by DEC disclosed contamination relateébtmer MGP operations on the <
DEC has classified the site as a significant thte@tublic health or environment with further actiequired. The Partnership has researche
history of the site and its ownership interestha site. The Partnership has reviewed the prelirpiside characterization study prepared by
DEC, the extent of contamination and the possikistence of other potentially responsible partiédse Partnership communicated the resul
its research to DEC in January 2009 and is awadingsponse before doing any additional investigatBecause of the preliminary natur
available environmental information, the ultimabtecunt of expected clean up costs cannot be realgoestimated.

HOLP San Bernardincin July 2001, HOLP acquired a company that hadiptesly received a request for information from EfeA regardin
potential contribution to a widespread groundwatartamination problem in San Bernardino, Califorkiaown as the Newmark Groundw:
Contamination. Although the EPA has indicated that groundwater contamination may be attributablesteases of solvents from a fori
military base located within the subject area ti@turred prior to the construction of the facilitgquired by HOLP, it is possible that the E
may seek to recover all or a portion of groundwagenediation costs from private parties under tben@rehensive Environmental Respo
Compensation, and Liability Act (“CERCLA”"). No fallw-up correspondence has been received from the &Pthe matter since HOL®’
acquisition of the predecessor company in 2001e@8apon information currently available to HOLPFsibelieved that HOLR' liability if suct
action were to be taken by the EPA would not haweaterial adverse effect on our financial conditiwmesults of operations.

Titan LLC Claremont, Chestertown and Benningtonconnection with the Heritage Acquisition on Jarnul2, 2012, a predecessor of T
LLC is purportedly the beneficial holder of titlattv respect to three former MGPs discussed beldve. Tontribution Agreement provides
indemnification from ETP for certain expenses agded with remediation of these sites.

Claremont, New Hampshire and Chestertown, MarylaBy.letter dated September 30, 2010, the EPA wratifiitan LLC that it may be
potentially responsible party (“PRPf9r cleanup costs associated with contaminatiom farmer MGP in Claremont, New Hampshire. In .
2010, the Maryland Attorney General (“MAGTentified Titan LLC as a PRP in connection withntamination at a former MGP
Chestertown, Maryland, and requested that Titan ba@icipate in characterization and remediatiativeies. Titan LLC has supplied the El
and MAG with corporate and bankruptcy information its predecessors to support its claim that iitasliable for any remediation costs at
sites. Because of the preliminary nature of avéglamvironmental information, the ultimate amouftegpected clean up costs canno
reasonably estimated.

Bennington, Vermontln 1996, a predecessor company of Titan LLC perém an environmental assessment of its propememmington
Vermont and discovered that the site was a form&PMALt that time, Titan LLG predecessor informed the company that previomstyec
and operated the MGP of potential liability undéERICLA. Titan LLC has not received any requestsetmadiate or provide costs associ
with the site. Because of the preliminary naturanadilable environmental
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information, the ultimate amount of expected cleprcosts cannot be reasonably estimated.

Other Matters

AmeriGas Cylinder InvestigatioOn or about October 21, 2009, the General Paraesived a notice that the Offices of the Distrittiofney:
of Santa Clara, Sonoma, Ventura, San Joaquin aesh&rCounties and the City Attorney of San Diedw (tDistrict Attorneys”)have
commenced an investigation into AmeriGas OLP'snddr labeling and filling practices in California a result of the Partnership's decisic
2008 to reduce the volume of propane in cylindesglis to consumers from 17 pounds topboinds. At that time, the District Attorneys iss
an administrative subpoena seeking documents dodriation relating to those practices. We have grdpd to the administrative subpot
On or about July 20, 2011, the General Partnerivedea second subpoena from the District Attornéyise subpoena sought additic
information and documents regarding AmeriGas OkRlimder exchange program and we responded tostiigioena. In connection with t
matter, the District Attorneys have alleged potntiolations of California's antitrust laws, Calihia's slacKill law, and California's principi
false advertising statute. We believe we have gtdefenses to these allegations.

Federal Trade Commission Investigation of Propandl @ylinder Filling Practices.On or about November 4, 2011, the General Pe
received notice that the Federal Trade CommissiBii (") is conducting an antitrust and consumer protectinestigation into certa
practices of the Partnership that relate to thindil of portable propane cylinders. On Februar®Q}l2, the Partnership received a (
Investigative Demand from the FTC that requestaidmmts and information concerning, among othergifi) the Partnership’decision, i
2008, to reduce the volume of propane in cylindesells to consumers from 17 pounds to 15 poundk (&) crossfilling, related servic
arrangements and communications regarding the dorggvith competitors. The Partnership believeg thavill have good defenses to ¢
claims that may result from this investigation. Afe not able to assess the financial impact tivisstigation or any related claims may hav
the Partnership.

Purported Class Action Lawsuin 2005, Samuel and Brenda Swiger (the “Swigefd what purports to be a class action lawsuithe
Circuit Court of Harrison County, West Virginia,agst UGI, an insurance subsidiary of UGI, certgfiicers of UGI and the General Parti
and their insurance carriers and insurance adaidtethis lawsuit, the Swigers are seeking comaiemg and punitive damages on behalf o
putative class for alleged violations of the WedtgiWiia Insurance Unfair Trade Practice Act, neglige, intentional misconduct, and ¢
conspiracy. The Court has not certified the class, & October 2008, stayed the lawsuit pendingluti®n of a separate, but related, ¢
action lawsuit filed against AmeriGas OLP in Monatig County, which was settled in Fiscal 2011. Véédve we have good defenses tc
claims in this action.

BP America Production Company v. Amerigas Propdane, On July 15, 2011, BP America Production CompanyP("Bfiled a complair
against AmeriGas OLP in the District Court of Den@ounty, Colorado, alleging, among other thinggabh of contract and breach of
covenant of good faith and fair dealing relatingtoounts billed for certain goods and servicesigea/to BP since 2005 (the “ServicesThe
Services relate to the installation of propaneddet¢quipment and appliances, and the supply ofammpto approximately 40@sidentic
customers at the request of and for the accouBPofThe complaint seeks an unspecified amountretdiindirect, consequential, special
compensatory damages, including attorndgs’s, costs and interest and other appropriatefrdfialso seeks an accounting to determin
amount of the alleged overcharges related to tineices. We have substantially completed our ingasgtdn of this matter and, based upor
results of that investigation, we believe we hasedydefenses to the claims set forth in the compkand the amount of loss will not hav
material impact on our results of operations andricial condition.

Antargaz Competition Authority MatteOn July 21, 2009, Antargaz received a Stateme@bpéctions (“StatementTrom France's Autorité (
la concurrence (“Competition AuthorityWyith respect to the investigation of Antargaz bg theneral Division of Competition, Consump
and Fraud Punishment. The Statement alleged th&trgaz engaged in certain antimpetitive practices in violation of French conifpat
laws related to the cylinder market during the @@&drom 1999 through 2004. On December 17, 2016 ,Gbmpetition Authority issued
decision dismissing all objections against Antargdre appeal period expired without an appeal béiad. As a result of the decision, dur
the threemonth period ended December 31, 2010, the Compewgrsed its previously recorded nontaxable acdarathis matter whic
increased Fiscal 2011 net income by $9.4 .

We cannot predict the final results of any of thvimnmental or other pending claims or legal awialescribed above. However, i
reasonably possible that some of them could bawedainfavorably to us and result in losses in egaa recorded amounts. We are unak
estimate any possible losses in excess of recadezlints. Although we currently believe, after cdiagion with counsel, that damages
settlements, if any, recovered by the plaintiffsirch claims or actions will not have a materialaade effect on our financial position, damz
or settlements could be material to our operatiegults or cash flows in future periods dependingtlem nature and timing of futt
developments with respect to these matters andrtfwaints of future operating
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results and cash flows. In addition to the mattixscribed above, there are other pending claimsegyad actions arising in the normal cours
our businesses. We believe, after consultation withnsel, the final outcome of such other matteits not have a material effect on ¢
consolidated financial position, results of operasi or cash flows.

Note 16— Fair Value Measurements

Derivative Financial Instruments

The following table presents our financial asseis fnancial liabilities that are measured at faitue on a recurring basis for each ol
fair value hierarchy levels, including both current noncurrent portions, as of September 30, 20822011 :

Asset (Liability)

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
September 30, 2012:
Assets:
Derivative financial instruments:
Commodity contracts $ 8€ 9 45 % — 3 13.1
Foreign currency contracts $ — 3 1€ $ — 1.8
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments:
Commodity contracts $ (7.8 $ (53.2 $ — (61.0
Interest rate contracts $ — $ (719 ¢ — 3 (71.9
September 30, 2011:
Assets:
Derivative financial instruments:
Commodity contracts $ 3E % 32 % — 3 6.€
Foreign currency contracts $ — 3 52 $ — 5.2
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments:
Commodity contracts $ (28.7) $ (16.) $ — (44.2)
Foreign currency contracts $ — % (339 % — 3 (3.9
Interest rate contracts $ — 3 (44.9 % — (44.9

The fair values of our Level 1 exchange-traded coutity futures and option contracts and non exchdraged commodity futures a
forward contracts are based upon activgipted market prices for identical assets andliiss. The remainder of our derivative finan
instruments are designated as Level 2. The fairegabf certain noexchange traded commodity derivatives are based imgticative pric
quotations available through brokers, industry eniziblications or recent market transactions afate@ market indicators. For commot
option contracts not traded on an exchange, weauBéack Scholes option pricing model that considére value and volatility of tf
underlying commodity. The fair values of interester contracts and foreign currency contracts asedapon thirgsarty quotes or indicati
values based on recent market transactions. There mo transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 dutiegeriods presented.

Other Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of other financial instrumeéntduded in current assets and current liabilifezecept for current maturities of long-
term debt) approximate their fair values becaugbaif short-term nature. At September 30, 2002 carrying
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amount and estimated fair value of our long-ternbtd@ncluding current maturities) were $3,514.3 a$8,787.6, respectively. A
September 30, 2011 , the carrying amount and eg@nfir value of our long-term debt (including @mt maturities) were $2,157ahc
$2,223.4 , respectively. We estimate the fair vafilongterm debt by using current market rates and byodisting future cash flows usi
rates available for similar type debt (Level 2).

Financial instruments other than derivative finahaistruments, such as our shtatm investments and trade accounts receivabléd
expose us to concentrations of credit risk. We tliour credit risk from short-term investments bwesting only in investmergrade
commercial paper, money market mutual funds, stesguaranteed by the U.S. Government or its ageramd FDIC insured bank depo:
The credit risk from trade accounts receivableinstéd because we have a large customer base vexinds across many different U
markets and several foreign countries. For infoiomatregarding concentrations of credit risk asseciawith our derivative financi
instruments, see Note 17.

Note 17— Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedgin Activities

We are exposed to certain market risks relateduitamogoing business operations. Management usestieg financial and commodi
instruments, among other things, to manage thegs.riThe primary risks managed by derivative imsents are (1) commodity price ri
(2) interest rate risk and (3) foreign currencylexge rate risk. Although we use derivative finaheind commodity instruments to red
market risk associated with forecasted transactisesdo not use derivative financial and commoditstruments for speculative or trad
purposes. The use of derivative instruments isrotbatl by our risk management and credit policidsclv govern, among other things,
derivative instruments we camse, counterparty credit limits and contract au#fabion limits. Because most of our derivative iostent:
generally qualify as hedges under GAAP or are stilife regulatory rate recovery mechanisms, we axfiext changes in the fair value
derivative instruments used to manage commoditgrést rate or currency exchange rate risk woulsiuxstantially offset by gains or losse:
the associated anticipated transactions.

Commodity Price Risk

In order to manage market price risk associatet thi¢ Partnership’s fixegrice programs which permit customers to lock ia phice:
they pay for propane principally during the montisOctober through March, the Partnership uses-thescounter derivative commod
instruments, principally price swap contracts. thlition, the Partnership, certain other domestisil®ess units and our International Proy
operations also use over-theunter price swap and option contracts to redweencodity price volatility associated with a portioh theil
forecasted LPG purchases. In addition, from timértee, the Partnership enters into price swap ageeds to reduce shaeym commodit
price volatility and to provide market price riskpport to some of its wholesale customers whichgamerally not designated as hedge:
accounting purposes.

Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses that perngtovery of all of the prudently incurred costs afural gas it sells to retail corearke
customers. As permitted and agreed to by the PUSupuat to Gas Utilitys annual PGC filings, Gas Utility currently usesaNéork Mercantile
Exchange (“NYMEX")natural gas futures and option contracts to redocemodity price volatility associated with a portiof the natural g:
it purchases for its retail core-market customatsSeptember 30, 2012 and 2011 , the volumes afrabgas associated with Gas Utilgy’
unsettled NYMEX natural gas futures and option cacts totaled 19.2 million dekatherms and 1®nillion dekatherms, respectively.
September 30, 2012 , the maximum period over widieb Utility is hedging natural gas market pricd iis 12 months. Gains and losses
natural gas futures contracts and any gains orralagas option contracts are recorded in regulagssets or liabilities on the Consolid:
Balance Sheets in accordance with FASB’s guidam@SiC 980 related to rategulated entities and reflected in cost of saiesugh the PG
mechanism (see Note 8).

Electric Utility's DS tariffs permit the recovery all prudently incurred costs of electricity itliseto DS customers including the cos
financial instruments used to hedge electricityt&oElectric Utility enters into forward electrigippurchase contracts to meet a subste
portion of its electricity supply needs. During ¢at 2010, Electric Utility determined that it could longer assert that it would take phys
delivery of substantially all of the electricityhiid contracted for under its forward power purehagreements and, as a result, such contra
longer qualified for the normal purchases and nbisakes exception under GAAP related to derivatimancial instruments. Accordingly, t
fair value of these contracts are required to lwegrized on the balance sheet. At September 3@ a6d 2011, the fair values of Electr
Utility’s forward purchase power agreements conipgdosses of $9.2 and $8,7respectively, are reflected in current derivatiweancia
instrument liabilities and other noncurrent liatids in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Shéetccordance with ASC 980 relate
rate-regulated entities, Electric Utility has reded equal and offsetting amounts in regulatory tasgd September 30, 2012 and 2Q1the
volumes of Electric Utility’s forward electricity ygpchase contracts were 570.4 million kilowatt hoarsl 788.6 million kilowatt hours
respectively. At September 30, 2012 , the maximeniog over which these contracts extend is 20 hwont
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In order to reduce volatility associated with a stahtial portion of its electricity transmissionngestion costs, Electric Utility obtal
FTRs through an annual allocation process and bghpges of FTRs at monthly auctions. Midstream &HRdting purchases FTRs
economically hedge electricity transmission corigaestosts associated with its fixgdice electricity sales contracts. FTRs are deine
financial instruments that entitle the holder toei®e compensation for electricity transmissiongasiion charges that result when the
insufficient electricity transmission capacity dretelectric transmission grid. Because Electriditytis entitled to fully recover its DS co:
commencing January 1, 2010, gains and losses artriEl®ltility FTRs associated with periods begirmion or after January 1, 2010,
recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities inadance with ASC 980 and reflected in cost of sélesugh the DS recovery mechanism
Note 8). Gains and losses associated with perioids o January 2010 are reflected in cost of saf<September 30, 2012 and 2011he
volumes associated with Electric Utility FTRs te@l189.7 million kilowatt hours and 2081illion kilowatt hours, respectively. Midstrean
Marketing’s FTRs are recorded at fair value witlamges in fair value reflected in cost of salesSAptember 30, 2012 and 201the volume
associated with Midstream & Marketing’s FTRs toth#88.8 million kilowatt hours and 1,418.6 mili&ilowatt hours, respectively.

In order to manage market price risk relating f@diprice sales contracts for natural gas and elestriMidstream & Marketing ente
into NYMEX and over-thesounter natural gas and electricity futures consradidstream & Marketing also uses NYMEX and otres counte
electricity futures contracts to hedge the priceagdortion of its anticipated future sales of aieityy from its electric generation facilities.
addition, beginning April 1, 2011, Midstream & Mating uses NYMEX futures contracts to economichklylge the gross margin associ
with the purchase and anticipated later sale afrahtjas or propane. Because the contracts assoeidth the anticipated sale of stored na
gas or propane do not qualify for hedge accourttiegtment, any gains or losses on the derivativéracts are recognized in earnings pric
gains or losses from the sale of the stored gasefdtember 30, 2012 , the volumes associated widlstiam & Marketings natural gas ai
propane storage NYMEX contracts totaled 4.3 millilekatherms and 3.1 million gallons, respectively

In order to reduce operating expense volatility,| Wdlities from time to time enters into NYMEX galine futures and swap contracts
a portion of gasoline volumes expected to be useld operation of its vehicles and equipment. Bisged volumes, fair values and effect:
net income were not material for all periods présen

At September 30, 2012 and 201Wve had the following outstanding derivative condity instruments volumes that qualify for he
accounting treatment:

Volumes
Commodity 2012 2011
LPG (millions of gallons) 243.¢ 138.(
Natural gas (millions of dekatherms, net) 23.€ 26.1
Electricity calls (millions of kilowatt hours) 1,415, 1,219.¢
Electricity puts (millions of kilowatt hours) 135.: 204.¢

At September 30, 2012the maximum period over which we are hedging exposure to the variability in cash flows assocdiatéth
LPG commodity price risk is 26 months with a weaghaverage of Smonths; the maximum period over which we are heglgur exposure
the variability in cash flows associated with natuigas commaodity price risk (excluding Gas Utilitg)39 months with a weighted average
11 months; and the maximum period over which we a&msging our exposure to the variability in cash #oassociated with electricity pr
risk (excluding Electric Utility) is 36 months felectricity call contracts, with a weighted avezag 10 months, and I@onths for electricit
put contracts, with a weighted average of 8 manttsSeptember 30, 201,2the maximum period over which we are economich#égging
electricity congestion with FTRs (excluding Electtitility) is 8 months.

We account for commaodity price risk contracts (otthen those contracts that are not eligible fatgeeaccounting and Gas Utility &
Electric Utility contracts that are subject to risgary treatment) as cash flow hedges. Changédseiffdir values of contracts qualifying for ¢
flow hedge accounting are recorded in AOCI andhwitspect to the Partnership, noncontrolling irgeseto the extent effective in offsett
changes in the underlying commodity price risk. Wiearnings are affected by the hedged commodiinsga losses are recorded in cos
sales in the Consolidated Statements of Incom&eptember 30, 201,2he amount of net losses associated with commdite risk hedge
expected to be reclassified into earnings duriegniext twelve months based upon current fair vak&§3.0 .

F-51




Table of Contents

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

Interest Rate Ris

Antargaz’ and Flaga’s long-term debt agreementg liaterest rates that are generally indexed totgshon market interest rates. Antar
has entered into pay-fixed, receive-variable irderate swap agreements to hedge the underlyinigogwate of interest on its variabtate tern
loan, and Flaga has entered into pay-fixed, reeear@ble interest rate swap agreements to hedgarttierlying euribor rate of interest o
substantial portion of its term loans, in each daseugh the respective scheduled maturity datesf/ASeptember 30, 2012 and 2Q1fe tota
notional amounts of variable-rate debt subjechterest rate swap agreements were €441.9 and €4@%&Rectively.

Our domestic businesses’ long-term debt is typicabued at fixed rates of interest. As these lmrgy debt issues mature, we typic
refinance such debt with new debt having interagts reflecting theourrent market conditions. In order to reduce miarkée risk on th
underlying benchmark rate of interest associatéd méar- to medium-term forecasted issuances eflfiate debt, from time to time we er
into interest rate protection agreements (“IRPA&Y) September 30, 2012 and 2011 , the total notiameunt of unsettled IRPAs w&4.73.(
and $173.0, respectively. Our current unsettléd@ARontracts hedge forecasted interest paymentsiassd with the issuance of UGI Utilities’
long-term debt forecasted to occur in SeptembeB201

UGI Utilities reclassified pre-tax losses of $@t@m AOCI into income during Fiscal 2012 as a resiithe discontinuance of cash fl
hedge accounting for a portion of expected intepagiments associated with the issuance of teng- debt originally anticipated to occul
September 2012. Such losses are included in athemie, net, in the Consolidated Statements of liecom

We account for interest rate swaps and IRPAs dsftaw hedges. Changes in the fair values of irsierate swaps and IRPAs are reco
in AOCI and, with respect to the Partnership, noiling interests, to the extent effective inggffting changes in the underlying interest
risk, until earnings are affected by the hedgedresgt expense. At such time, gains and lossegeapeded in interest expense. ¢ptember 3
2012 , the amount of net losses associated witdrdat rate hedges (excluding pay-fixed, recemgable interest rate swaps) expected t
reclassified into earnings during the next twehanths is $0.8 .

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R

In order to reduce volatility, Antargaz hedges &ipa of its anticipated U.S. dollatenominated LPG product purchases through th
of forward foreign currency exchange contracts. @ahwunt of dolladenominated purchases of LPG associated with sotiacts general
represents approximately 15% to 30% of estimatdldrddenominated purchases of LPG to occur durirgtteatingseason months of Octol
through March. At September 30, 2012 and 2011 ywere hedging a total of $174.5 and $133.9 of Udladdenominated LPG purchas
respectively. At September 30, 201the maximum period over which we are hedgingeyrosure to the variability in cash flows assod
with dollar-denominated purchases of LPG is 30 th®mvith a weighted average of Ihonths. We also enter into forward foreign curg
exchange contracts to reduce the volatility ofth8. dollar value on a portion of our InternatioRabpane euroenominated net investmel
At September 30, 2012 , we had no euro-dominatédnmestment hedges. At September 30, 2011 , we Wwedging a total of €14.& oul
euro-denominated net investments.

We account for foreign currency exchange contrastociated with anticipated purchases of U.S. ddéaominated LPG as cash fl
hedges. Changes in the fair values of these foreigrency exchange contracts are recorded in A@Cthe extent effective in offsetti
changes in the underlying currency exchange rake until earnings are affected by the hedged LBf&hase, at which time gains and lo:
are recorded in cost of sales. At September 302 2Qfie amount of net gains associated with currgaty risk (other than net investm
hedges) expected to be reclassified into earningagl the next twelve months based upon currentvigiues is $1.8 Gains and losses on
investment hedges are included in AOCI until suarleifyn operations are liquidated.

In September 2011, in order to economically hedgeU.S. dollar amount of a substantial portiontef Shell Transaction's associz
eurodenominated purchase price, we entered into foreigrency exchange contracts. These contracts ieeceded at fair value with gains
losses recorded in other income, net.

Derivative Financial Instrument Credit Ri:

We are exposed to risk of loss in the event of edigpmance by our derivative financial instrumeotaterparties. Our derivati
financial instrument counterparties principally gmmse large energy companies and major U.S. aratnational financial institutions. V
maintain credit policies with regard to our couptaties that we believe reduce overall credit riERese policies include evaluating .
monitoring our counterpartiesinancial condition, including their credit ratingand entering into agreements with counterpattias gover
credit limits or entering into netting agreememattallow for offsetting counterparty
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receivable and payable balances for certain figdrichnsactions, as deemed appropriate. Certathesfe agreements call for the postin
collateral by the counterparty or by the Companthia form of letters of credit, parental guaranteesash. Additionally, our natural gas .
electricity exchange-traded futures and optionstremts generally require cash deposits in brokesgmunts. At September 30, 2042¢
2011, restricted cash in brokerage accounts th8e0 and $17.2respectively. Although we have concentrationsretlit risk associated wi
derivative financial instruments, the maximum anmtafrioss, based upon the gross fair values ofith@sative financial instruments, we wo
incur if these counterparties failed to performading to the terms of their contracts was not miat@t September 30, 201Zertain of th
Partnership’s derivative contracts have credit-redlated contingent features that may require tratipg of additional collateral in the even
a downgrade of the Partnership’s debt rating. Att&aber 30, 2012 , if the credit-risklated contingent features were triggered, theuarnot
collateral required to be posted would not be niter

The following table provides information regardithge balance sheet location and fair value of dévigaassets and liabilities existing
of September 30, 2012 and 2011 :

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities

Fair Value Fair Value

September 30, September 30,

Balance Sheet
Location 2012 2011

Balance Sheet
Location 2012 2011

Derivatives Designated as
Hedging Instruments:

Commodity contracts Derivative financial

Derivative financial instruments
instruments and Other noncurrent
and Other assets 6.5 $ 1.1 liabilities $ (50.7) $ (325
Foreign currency contracts Derivative financial
Derivative financial instruments
instruments and Other noncurrent
and Other assets 1.8 5.2 liabilities — —
Interest rate contracts Derivative financial
instruments
and Other noncurrent
— — liabilities (71.9) (44.9
Total Derivatives Designated as
Hedging Instruments $ 8.2 $ 6.2 $ (1226 $ (76.9
Derivatives Accounted for Under
ASC 980:
Commodity contracts Derivative financial Derivative financial
instruments instruments and Other
$ 5.3 $ — noncurrent liabilities $ 949 $ (@119
Derivatives Not Designated as
Hedging Instruments:
Foreign currency contracts Derivative financial
$ — — 3 — instruments $ — 3 (3.9
Commodity contracts Derivative financial
instruments
and Other assets 1.3 5.8 (0.9 —
Total Derivatives Not Designated
as Hedging Instruments $ 1.3 $ 5.8 $ 09 $ (3.9
Total Derivatives $ 14¢ $ 121 $§ (1329 § (919
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The following tables provide information on theesffs of derivative instruments in the Consolidedéatement of Income and change
AOCI and noncontrolling interest for Fiscal 20121&9011 :

Gain or (Loss) Gain or (Loss)
Recognized in Reclassified from Location of Gain or (Loss)
AOCI and AOCI and Noncontrolling Reclassified from
Noncontrolling Interests Interests into Income AOCI and Noncontrolling
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 Interests into Income
Cash Flow Hedges:
Commodity contracts $ (1350 % 22 $ (417 $ (1159 $ (1749 $ (21.0 Cost of sales
Foreign currency contracts (0.5 6.S 3.2 2.1 (0.8 0.7 Cost of sales
Interest expense /other

Interest rate contracts (36.9) (35.9 (12.6) (11.5 (14.7) (28.9) income
Total $ (1729 $ (26.7) $ (B1I) $ (1249 $ (329 $ (485

Net Investment Hedges:
Foreign currency contracts $ 06 § 02 §  5C

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging

Instruments:
Gain or (Loss) Location of
Recognized in Income Gain or (Loss)
2012 2011 2010 Recognized in Income
Commodity contracts $ (16.§ $ 21 8 1.2 Cost of sales
Operating expenses / othe
Commodity contracts 0.2 0.3 0.2 income
Foreign currency contracts 0.t (6.2) — Other income
Total $ (16.) $ 3.7 $ 1t

The amounts of derivative gains or losses repregpmeffectiveness, and the amounts of gains ssde recognized in income as a rt
of excluding derivatives from ineffectiveness tegtiwere not material for Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2@d Fiscal 2010 .

As a result of the Partnership’s refinancing of7it$25%Senior Notes (see Note 5), during the three moatided September 30, 20
the Partnership discontinued cash flow hedge adowufor settled but unamortized IRPA losses asgedi with the Senior Notes and recol
a loss of $2.&vhich amount is included in loss on extinguishmenftslebt on the Fiscal 2011 Consolidated Staternéiicome. During th
three months ended March 31, 2010, the Partnesshighagement determined that it was likely thatRagnership would not issue $160
long-term debt during the summer of 2010 due toRbenership’s strong cash flow and anticipatee@rmsibn of all or a portion of its then-
existing credit agreement. As a result, the Pastriprdiscontinued cash flow hedge accounting treatnfor IRPAs associated with t
previously anticipated Fiscal 2010 $150 long-tembtdssuance and recorded a $18s& which is reflected in other income, net, ia Fisca
2010 Consolidated Statement of Income.

We are also a party to a number of other contthetshave elements of a derivative instrument. &rmsitracts include, among oth
binding purchase orders, contracts which providete purchase and delivery, or sale, of natura) gRG and electricity, and service contr
that require the counterparty to provide commosfttyrage, transportation or capacity service to rmaenormal sales commitments. Altho
many of these contracts have the requisite elen@nasderivative instrument, these contracts qudtit normal purchases and normal s
exception accounting under GAAP because they peofadthe delivery of products or services in qutges that are expected to be used ir
normal course of operating our business and the pini the contract is based on an underlying thatirectly associated with the price of
product or service being purchased or sold.
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Note 18— Energy Services Accounts Receivable Securitizatidfacility

Energy Services has a $200 receivables purchasigyféReceivables Facility”) with an issuer of ceivablesbacked commercial pag
currently scheduled to expire in April 2013, altgbuthe Receivables Facility may terminate priorstch date due to the terminatior
commitments of the Receivables Facility’s back-upcpasers.

Under the Receivables Facility, Energy Servicesdsfiers, on an ongoing basis and without recoutsdrade accounts receivable tc
wholly owned, special-purpose subsidiary, Energyvies Funding Corporation (“ESFC"hich is consolidated for financial staterr
purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subjecetimia conditions, may from time to time sell, amdivided interest in the receivables 1
commercial paper conduit of a major bank. ESFC evaated and has been structured to isolate it¢safseen creditors of Energy Services
its affiliates, including UGI. This two-step tramsian is accounted for as a sale of receivabldeviahg the FASBS guidance for accounting
transfers of financial assets and extinguishmehtgbilities. Energy Services continues to seryiadminister and collect trade receivable
behalf of the commercial paper issuer and ESFC.

Effective October 1, 2010, the Company adoptedve arxounting standard that changes the accourtinthé Receivables Facility ol
prospective basis. Effective October 1, 2010, tradeivables sold to the commercial paper con@uitain on the Comparg/balance sheet; 1
Company reflects a liability equal to the amountaatted by the commercial paper conduit; and the [iaom records interest expense
amounts sold to the commercial paper conduit. Radddctober 1, 2010, trade accounts receivable teotle commercial paper conduit w
removed from the balance sheet and any lossed@mafaaccounts receivable were reflected in oith@yme, net.

During Fiscal 2012 , Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 20Edergy Services transferred trade receivablesitigt$i836.0 , $1,134.9 and $1,147.3
respectively, to ESFC. During Fiscal 2012 , Fi@l1 and Fiscal 2010 , ESFC sold an aggregate @28&8.0 and $254.6respectively, ¢
undivided interests in its trade receivables to dcbmmercial paper conduit. At September 30, 20ft#e outstanding balance of ESFC ti
receivables was $43d& which no amount was sold to the commercial papeduit. At September 30, 2011, the outstandingra of ESF
trade receivables was $52.1 and there was $old3to the commercial paper conduit and reflectedhe Consolidated Balance Sheet as
loans. Losses on sales of receivables to the coamh@aper conduit during Fiscal 2012 and Fiscdll2@vhich amounts are included in inte
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Incataed $1.0 and $1.2respectively. Losses on sales of receivableseaaommercial pap
conduit during Fiscal 2010, which amount is incldide other income, net, were $1.5 .

Note 19— Other Income, Net

Other income, net, comprises the following:

2012 2011 2010
Interest and interest-related income $ 24 $ 2 08 2.¢
Antargaz Competition Authority matter — 9.4 —
Utility non-tariff service income 2.7 6.4 2.4
Foreign currency hedge gain (loss) 0.t (6.2) —
Gain on sale of Atlantic Energy, LLC — — 36.t
Finance charges 18.¢ 15.1 11.2
Partnership interest rate protection agreement loss — — (12.2)
Other, net 13.¢ 19.4 17.1
Total other income, net $ 385 § 465 $ 58.(

Note 20— Quarterly Data (unaudited)

The following unaudited quarterly data includesuatthents (consisting only of normal recurring atipents with the exception of thc
indicated below) which we consider necessary féaimpresentation unless otherwise indicated. Quartgrly results fluctuate because of
seasonal nature of our businesses.
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December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,

2011 (a) 2010 (b) 2012 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 2011 2012 2011 (e)
Revenues $ 1688¢ $ 1,765¢ $ 2427t $ 2181( $ 1277. $ 1,105« $ 1,125°7 $ 1,039.
Operating
income (loss) $ 188.1 $ 2522 % 380.6 % 357.C % (19.2) $ 172 $ (28.6) % (10.5)
Loss from
equity investee: $ 0.) % 02 % — 3 0.9 % 0.) % 02 % 0.2) $ 0.2
(Loss) gain on
extinguishments
of debt $ — % — 8 (13.9) $ (18.¢) $ 01 $ — 8 —  $ (19.3
Net income
(loss) $ 1101 $ 155.C $ 227.C % 215.¢ $ (76.5) 9 (135 $ (740 $ (48.9

Net income

(loss)

attributable to

UGl

Corporation $ 87.C $ 1131  $ 1332  § 1492  $ 6.9 $ (7.2) $ a4.79 $ (22.9)
Earnings

(loss) per share

attributable to

UGl

stockholders:

Basic $0.78 $1.02 $1.19 $1.34 $(0.06) $(0.06) $(0.13) $(0.20)
Diluted $0.77 $1.01 $1.18 $1.32 $(0.06) $(0.06) $(0.13) $(0.20)

(a) Includes adjustment to foreign tax credit asilon allowance which increased net income by $5.$0.05per diluted shar

(b) Includes the reversal of previously recorded naaibtéex accrual associated with the Antargaz Compatiiuthority Matter which increas
operating income and net income attributable to G@Giporation by $9.4 or $0.08 per diluted share (Sete 15).

(c) Includes loss on extinguishment of Partnerstmg-term debt which decreased net income attultdatto UGI Corporation by $2.2 $0.0:2
per diluted share (see Note 5).

(d) Includes loss on extinguishment of Partnerstmg-term debt which decreased net income attultdatto UGI Corporation by $5.2 $0.0¢
per diluted share (see Note 5).

(e) Includes loss on extinguishment of Partnertdnig-term debt which increased net loss attribletats UGI Corporation by $5.2 or $0.p8!
diluted share (see Note 5).

Note 21— Segment Information

We have organized our business units intaeportable segments generally based upon prodoictsgeographic location and regulat
environment. Our reportable segments comprise Afd¢riGas Propane; (2) an international LPG segnoemhprising Antargaz; (3)
international LPG segment principally comprisingdd and AvantiGas; (4) Gas Utility; (5) Energy $&as; and (6) Electric Generation.
refer to both international segments together atethational Propane" and Energy Services and ritie@eneration together as "Midstrean
Marketing." In Fiscal 2012, the Company is repatits Electric Generation operating segment agarsge reportable segment and our fo
Electric Utility reportable segment has been coraBinvith Corporate & Other. Previously, the Eleci@eneration operating segment
included in the Energy Services' reportable segniair years have been adjusted to conform t@tinent year presentation.

AmeriGas Propane derives its revenues principatiynfthe sale of propane and related equipment appliss to retail customers in
50 states. Antargaz' revenues are derived princigediyn the distribution of LPG to retail customerskrance and, to a much lesser ex
Belgium, the Netherlands and Luxembourg. Flaga &eDtrevenues are derived principally from the @hstion of LPG to customers
northern, central and eastern Europe and the UKilegdom. Gas Utilitys revenues are derived principally from the sal@ distribution o
natural gas to customers in eastern, northeastelcentral Pennsylvania. Energy Services reverngedaived from the sale of natural gas
to a lesser extent, LPG, electricity and fuel ailveell as storage and other energy services tomess located primarily in the Midtlantic
region of the United States. Electric Generatioreneies are derived principally from the sale otleity through PJM, a regional electric
transmission organization in the eastern U.S.
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The accounting policies of our reportable segmemts the same as those described in Note 2. We atgalumeriGas Propare’
performance principally based upon the Partnershigarnings before interest expense, income taxepredation and amortizati
(“Partnership EBITDA"). Although we use PartnersEBITDA to evaluate AmeriGas Propasgrofitability, it should not be considered a:
alternative to net income (as an indicator of opyegaperformance) or as an alternative to cash flasra measure of liquidity or ability
service debt obligations) and is not a measureedbpmance or financial condition under GAAP. Oefidition of Partnership EBITDA may
different from that used by other companies. Wduata the performance of our other reportable sedgn@rincipally based upon their incao
before income taxes.

No single customer represents more than ten peafemir consolidated revenues. In addition, albof reportable segment®venues
other than those of International Propane, arevedrirom sources within the United States, andoflbur reportable segments’ lotiged
assets, other than those of International Prommedpcated in the United States.

Midstream & Marketing International Propane
Elim- AmeriGas Energy Electric Flaga & Corporate &
Total inations Propane Gas Utility Services Generation Antargaz Other Other (b)
2012
Revenues $ 6,519 $ (178 (c) $ 2921« $ 785< $ 816« $ 43.C $ 11210 % 8241 $ 185.¢
Cost of sales $ 4,111 $ (174.0 (c) $ 1,719° $ 402t 3 703.6  $ 271 $ 685.5 $ 640.0 $ 106.:
Operating income (loss) $ 521 % — $ 1702 $ 1722 % 68 $ 65 $ 88z $ 236 % 4.€
Loss from equity investees $ 0.9 — — — — — (0.9) — —
Loss on extinguishments of
debt $ (139 — (13.9) — — — — — —
Interest expense $ (2219 — (142.¢ (40.7) (4.9 — (26.9) (4.€) 3.7)
Income (loss) before income
taxes $ 286: $ = $ 144 $ 13271 % 64.1 $ 65 $ 616 $ 19.C $ 1L
Net income (loss) attributable
to UGI $ 199.. $ — $ 15¢  $ 80t $ 37 $ 12 $ 51.:  $ 136 $ 1.t
Depreciation and amortizatic$ 316.C $ = $ 169.1 $ 49.C $ 37 % 9C $ 571 $ 221 % 6.C
Noncontrolling interests’ net
(loss) income $ (129 $ — $ (13.0 $ — 3 —  $ —  $ 0z $ — 3 —
Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 324.7
Total assets $ 9,709 $ (104.) $ 4539.¢ $ 2,070 $ 368 % 2582 $ 1686.! $ 531.¢ $ 358.¢
Bank loans $ 16571 $ = $ 49¢ $ 92 $ 85.C $ — S — % 21.C % =
Capital expenditures $ 3437 % — $ 1031 $ 109.C $ 36.C 3 244 % 472 $ 16 $ 6.5
Investments in equity
investees $ 0 % — $ —§ —  $ —  $ — S — &% =
Goodwill $ 2818, $ — $ 1919 $ 1821 $ 28 % —  $ 612.C $ 952 $ 7.C
2011

Revenues $ 6,091 $ (233.0 (c) $ 2538.( $ 1,026« $ 1,023¢ $ 491 $ 1,050t $ 438.1 % 198.:
Cost of sales $ 4,010¢ $ (2286 (c) $ 16050 $ 6106 $ 902z $ 311 $ 649.¢ % 321 % 119.t
Operating income (loss) $ 616 $ — $ 242¢ $ 1996 $ 84z $ 13 $ 89.2 $ 31 $ 4.t
Loss from equity investees $ 0.9 — — — — — (0.9) — —
Loss on extinguishments of
debt $ (38.)) — (38.7) — — — — — —
Interest expense $ (138.0 — 63.5) (40.9 (2.0 0.9 (25.5) 2.7) 3.2
Income (loss) before income
taxes $ 439 $ — $ 1417 $ 159: $ 82z $ 20 $ 62£ $ 5o $ 1.3
Net income (loss) attributable
to UGI $ 232¢ % — $ 39 $§ 99:c % 484 % 41 % 4.z % 32 % 0.z
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Depreciation and amortizatic$ 227.¢ $ = $ 947 $ 48/ $ 24 % 56 $ 521 % 185 % 6.2

Noncontrolling interests’ net

income $ 75: % — $ 750 $ — 3 —  $ —  $ 0.: $ — 3 —

Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 297.1

Total assets $ 6,663.0 $ (939 $ 1,800 $ 2,028.° $ 3382 % 242t $ 1636t $ 428.¢ % 281.¢

Bank loans $ 1380 $ — $ 95 $ — 3 24 % —  $ — 3 18¢ $ —

Capital expenditures $ 3556 $ — $ 77z % 91 % 63.1 $ 497 % 48¢ % 168 % 8.¢

Investments in equity

investees $ 0z % — $ — — 3 — $ —  $ — 0.: $ —

Goodwill $ 1562 $ — $ 696. $ 1821 $ 28 % —  $ 591¢ % 82z $ 7.C
2010

Revenues $ 5591.. $ (203.9 (c) $ 2,320 $ 1,047¢ $ 1,105 $ 58t $ 887.1 $ 172 $ 204.2

Cost of sales $ 3,584.( $ (197.) (c) $ 139.. $ 653<¢ $ 998.C $ 306 $ 465.¢ 3% 1162 $ 121.¢

Operating income (loss) $ 659 $ = $ 235¢ $ 175:% % 1106 $ 92 $ 1157 % 1¢ 8 11.1

Loss from equity investees $ (2.1 — — — — — (2.0 (0.7) —

Loss on extinguishments of

debt — — — — — — — —

Interest expense $ (1339 — 65.7) (40.5) 0.3 0.3 (22.9) 3.0 (2.€)

Income (loss) before income

taxes $ 523 $ = $ 1707 $ 134¢ 3 1107 $ 91 $ 90.7 $ 12 $ 8.t

Net income attributable to

el $ 261( $ — $ 47 $ 831 % 61z $ 7C % 60.C $ 12 $ 3.€

Depreciation and amortizatic$ 210.z $ — $ 874 $ 49t $ SIS 44 % 48¢ % 118 $ 5.2

Noncontrolling interests’ net

income (loss) $ 947 $ — $ 911 % — 3 32 % — 3 0z % — 8 —

Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 321.(

Total assets $ 6,374 $ (81 $ 16906 $ 1,996 $ 245¢  $ 205.C $ 1678 $ 3202 % 318.¢

Bank loans $ 200« $ = $ 91.¢ $ 17.C $ — S — S 68.2 $ 24z  $ =

Capital expenditures $ 352¢ % — $ 83z $ 73f $ 48 % 68.1 $ 512 $ 7€ $ 20.¢

Investments in equity

investees $ 04 $ — $ — 3 —  $ —  $ —  $ — % 04 $ =

Goodwill $ 1562° $ — $ 6837 $ 1801 $ 28 % —  $ 602.7 $ 87.C $ 7.C
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(a) The following table provides a reconciliation ofrtP@rship EBITDA to AmeriGas Propane operating mes

Year ended September 30, 2012 2011 2010

Partnership EBITDA $ 3247 % 297.1 % 321.(
Depreciation and amortization (169.7) (94.7) (87.9
Loss on extinguishments of debt 13.c 38.1 —
Noncontrolling interests (i) 1.4 2.4 2.2
Operating income $ 170.2  $ 242¢ % 235.¢

(i) Principally represents the General Partnef® %interest in AmeriGas OL

(b) Corporate & Other results principally compriskectric Utility, UGI Enterprises’ heating, verdtlon, aireonditioning, refrigeration ai
electrical contracting businesses (“HVAC/R”), ngpenses of UGI’'s captive general liability insuraraompany, and UGI Corporatian’
unallocated corporate and general expenses andeshténcome. Corporate & Other assets principayngrise cash, shotérr
investments, the assets of Electric Utility and HYR, and an intercompany loan. The intercompany laad associated interes
removed in the segment presentation.

(c) Principally represents the elimination of intersegintransactions principally among Midstream & Maihkg, Gas Utility and AmeriG
Propane.
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BALANCE SHEETS
(Millions of dollars)

September 30,
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1¢ $ 0.4
Accounts and notes receivable 4.C 4.¢
Deferred income taxes 0.4 0.4
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3 1.4
Total current assets 6.€ 7.1
Investments in subsidiaries 2,244.. 1,992.:
Deferred income taxes 28.8 22.:
Total assets $ 2,279.0 % 2,021.!
LIABILITIES AND COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts and notes payable $ 111 $ 11.4
Derivative financial instruments — 3.8
Accrued liabilities 2.4 1.7
Total current liabilities 13.t 16.4
Noncurrent liabilities 32.7 27.2
Commitments and contingencies (Note 1)
Common stockholders’ equity:
Common Stock, without par value (authorized - 300,000 shares; issued - 115,624,594 and
115,507,094 shares, respectively) 1,157. 937.¢
Retained earnings 1,166.: 1,085.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (62.0) (17.9)
Treasury stock, at cost (28.7) (27.9)
Total common stockholders’ equity 2,233.: 1,977
Total liabilities and common stockholders’ equity $ 2,279.0 $ Oz

Note 1— Commitments and Contingencies:

In addition to the guarantees of Flaga’s and Arstargebt as described in Note 5 to Consolidatedrial Statements, at September 30, 201.
UGI Corporation had agreed to indemnify the isswéri$42.70f surety bonds issued on behalf of certain UGkaliaries. UGI Corporation
authorized to guarantee up to $425.0 of obligatiorsuppliers and customers of UGI Energy Serviles,and subsidiaries of which $34a6
such obligations were outstanding as of SeptembeP312. UGI Corporation has guaranteed the floating xedirate interest rate swap:
Flaga which amount totaled $5.6 at September 302 20
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Year Ended
September 30,
2012 2011 2010
Revenues $ — $ — 3 =
Costs and expenses:
Operating and administrative expenses 27.¢ 31.C 31.¢
Other income, net (1) (28.7) (24.%) (31.7)
(0.9 6.2 0.1
Operating income (loss) 0.2 (6.2 (0.7
Intercompany interest income 0.2 0.1 —
Income (loss) before income taxes 0.t (6.2) (0.7
Income tax expense (benefit) 0.2 (1.7 0.7
Income (loss) before equity in income of unconsaakd subsidiaries 0.2 (5.0 (0.9
Equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries 199.2 237.¢ 261.¢
Net income $ 199.. § 232.¢ % 261.(
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 177 $ 2.0¢ % 2.3¢
Diluted $ 1.7¢ $ 2.0¢ $ 2.3¢
Average common shares outstanding (thousands):
Basic 112,58: 111,67 109,58t
Diluted 113,43: 112,94 110,51:

(1) UGI provides certain financial and administrativwces to certain of its subsidiaries. UGI biltlese subsidiaries monthly for all dir
expenses incurred by UGI on behalf of its subsielsaas well as allocated shares of indirect cotpazgpense incurred or paid with res
to services provided by UGI. The allocation of iredi UGI corporate expenses to certain of its slidises utilizes a weighted, three-
component formula comprising revenues, operatimerges, and net assets employed and considerslakige percentage of such ite
for each subsidiary to the total of such itemsdibtUGI operating subsidiaries for which generadl @ministrative services are provic
Management believes that this allocation methotk#&sonable and equitable to its subsidiaries. Thédksl expenses are classifiec
“Other income, net” in the Statements of Incomevabo
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of dollars)

Year Ended
September 30,
2012 2011 2010

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (a) $ 158.2 $ 201.¢ $ 173.(
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Net investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries (54.4) (119.9 (106.€)

Net cash used by investing activities (54.9 (119.9 (106.€)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Payment of dividends on Common Stock (119.)) (113.9) (98.6)

Issuance of Common Stock 16.7 31.C 31.¢

Net cash used by financing activities (102.9 (82.9) (66.€)

Cash and cash equivalents increase (decrease) $ 15 % 0.6) $ (0.4

Cash and cash equivalents:

End of year $ 1¢ % 04 $ 1.C

Beginning of year 0.4 1.C 1.4

Increase (decrease) $ 18 % (06 $ (0.9

(&) Includes dividends received from unconsolidatgbsidiaries of $156.0 , $188.9 and $172.8 thferyears ended September 30, 202@1,]
and 2010 , respectively.
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(Millions of dollars)

Charged
Balance at (credited) Balance at
beginning to costs and end of
of year expenses Other year
Year Ended September 30, 2012
Reserves deducted from assets in the consolidaladde
sheet:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 36.6 $ 265 % (2729 (1) $ 36.1
Other reserves:
Property and casualty liability $ 65.5 $ 31t % 340 (3) $ 95.5 (5)
32.5 (4)
Environmental, litigation and other $ 36.¢ $ 1.2 $ (5.0 (3 $ 37.¢
(0.9 (2)
4. (4)
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance $ 8l¢ (3.2 2.€ $ 81.
Year Ended September 30, 2011
Reserves deducted from assets in the consolidaladde
sheet:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 34€ $ 20.C $ (179 () $ 36.¢
Other reserves:
Property and casualty liability $ 65.7 $ 225 % (26.5) (38) $ 65.2 (5)
3.€ (2
Environmental, litigation and other $ 65.6 $ 539 % (259 (3) $ 36.¢
1.€ (2)
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance $ 784 $ 3.5 — $ 81.¢
Year Ended September 30, 2010
Reserves deducted from assets in the consolidaladde
sheet:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 388 % 271 % (30. (1) $ 34.€
Other reserves:
Property and casualty liability $ 725 $ 152 $ (2749 (3) $ 65.7 (5)
5.€ (2)
Environmental, litigation and other $ 66.2 % 54 $ 49 @3 $ 65.¢
(1.0 2
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance $ 87.6 g 9.4 $ — $ /8.

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoes
(2) Other adjustment

(3) Payments, ne

(4) Acquisition

(5) At September 30, 2012 , 2011 and 201ite Company had insurance indemnification redBésassociated with its property and casi
liabilities totaling $20.9 , $11.3 and $7.2 , respesly.
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EXHIBIT 10.20

201012 Performance Periol

UGI CORPORATION
2004 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT LETTER

This PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT, dated April 23, 201th¢ “Date of Grant”), is delivered by UGI Corpoumati
(“UGI”) to Monica Gaudiosi (the “Participant”).

RECITALS

The UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensatan (the “Plan”) provides for the grant of
performance units (“Performance Units”) with regpgecshares of common stock of UGI (“Share3he Compensatic
and Management Development Committee of the BobRdrectors of UGI (the “Committee”) has decidedgi@nt
Performance Units to the Participant.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Grant Lettetemnding to be legally bound hereby, agree asvialio

1. Grant of Performance Unit$Subject to the terms and conditions set fortthis Grant Letter and in the Plan,
the Committee hereby grants to the Participantgetaward of Performance Units (thegéBAward”).
The Performance Units are contingently awardedvahdbe earned and payable if and to the extent the
performance goals and other conditions of the Gratter are met. The Performance Units are grantddDividend
Equivalents (as defined in Section 9).

2. Performance Goals

(@) The Participant shall earn the right to paymerthefPerformance Units if the performance goals ritssd
in subsection (b) below are met for the measurempendd, and if the Participant continues to be leygd by, or
provide service to, the Company (as defined iniSe®&) through December 31, 2012. The measureneitdis the
period beginning January 1, 2010 and ending DeceBhe2012.

(b) The Target Award level of Performance Units andid@nd Equivalents will be payable if UGI’s Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) equals the median TSRoekagroup for the measurement period. The peepgs the
group of companies that comprises the S&P Utiliretex as of the beginning of the measurement gepovided tha
if a company is added to the S&P Ultilities Indexidg the measurement period, that company is rabtidied in the
TSR calculation. A company that is included in 8&P Ultilities Index at the beginning of the measueat period will
be removed from the TSR calculation only if the pamy ceases to exist during the measurement pédrdactual
amount of the award of Performance Units may badrigr lower than the Target Award, or it may beozbased on
UGI’'s TSR percentile rank relative to the compaiiethe S&P Ultilities Index, as follows:




UGI's TSR Rank Percentage of Target Award Earned
(Percentile)

Highest 200%
90th 175%

75th 150%

60th 125%

50th 100%

40th 50%

less than 40th 0%

The award percentage earned will be interpolatéaden each of the measuring points.

(c) TSR shall be calculated by UGI using the compagatdturns methodology used by Bloomberg L.P. or i
successor at the time of the calculation. The spiace used for determining TSR at the beginning) thie end of the
measurement period will be the average price feRbrday period preceding the beginning of the oreasent period
(i.e., the 90-day period ending on December 3192@60d the 90-day period ending on the last dah@imeasurement
period (i.e., the 90-day period ending on Decenie2012), respectively. The TSR calculation giefect to all
dividends throughout the three-year measuremenmagaes if they had been reinvested.

(d) The Target Award is the amount designated for 1(809th TSR rank) performance. The Participant can
earn up to 200% of the Target Award if UGI's TSRka&xceeds the 50th TSR rank, according to theytong
schedule.

(e) Atthe end of the measurement period, the Commitikeletermine whether and to what extent the
performance goals have been met and the amouetpaid with respect to the Performance Units. Exasplescribed
in Section 3 below, the Participant must be empddyg or providing service to, the Company on Delsen81, 2012 i
order for the Participant to receive payment wibpect to the Performance Units.

3. Termination of Employment or Service

(&) Except as described below, if the Participant’s leympent or service with the Company terminates teefo
December 31, 2012, the Performance Units and &ltiBind Equivalents credited under this Grant Lettdéirbe
forfeited.

(b) If the Participant terminates employment or sergineaccount of Retirement (as defined in Sectign 9)
Disability (as defined in Section 9) or death, Braaticipant will earn a pro-rata portion of the tRgpant’s outstanding
Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents, if peeformance goals and the requirements of this tGueatter are me
The prorated portion will be determined as the amtiuat would otherwise be paid after the end efrtteasurement
period, based on achievement of the performancks,goaltiplied by a fraction, the numerator of wiis the number
of calendar years during the measurement periadhioh the Participant has been employed by, origdeal/service to,
the Company and the denominator of which is




three. For purposes of the proration calculatibae,dalendar year in which the Participant’s termdmaof employment
or service on account of Retirement, Disabilitydeath occurs will be counted as a full year.

(c) Inthe event of termination of employment or seewom account of Retirement, Disability or deatle, th
prorated amount shall be paid after the end ofrthasurement period, pursuant to Section 5 below.

4. Coordination with Severance PlaNotwithstanding anything in this Grant Letterthe contrary, if the Participant
receives severance benefits under a SeverancéaRlalefined in Section 9) and the terms of sucletitsrequire that
severance compensation payable under the Sevdréartée reduced by benefits payable under this Blanamount
payable to the Participant with respect to PerforeaJnits and Dividend Equivalents after the Pgudict’s terminatiol
of employment or service shall be reduced by theuarhof severance compensation paid to the Paatitipnder the
Severance Plan, as required by, and accordingettetins of, the Severance Plan.

5. Payment with Respect to Performance Unitshe Committee determines that the conditianpayment of the
Performance Units have been met, the Company gaslio the Participant, between January 1, 2013Véarédh 15,
2013, (i) Shares equal to the number of Performéahts to be paid according to achievement of tliéggmance
goals, up to the Target Award, provided that thenGany may withhold Shares to cover required takhatding in an
amount equal to the minimum statutory tax withhddiequirement in respect of the Performance Watsed up to
the Target Award, and (ii) cash in an amount etuéte Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plarthe number of
Shares equal to the Performance Units to be pasearss of the Target Award.

6. Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Performancédin

(a) Dividend Equivalents shall accrue with respectedémance Units and shall be payable subjectdo th
same performance goals and terms as the Performumiseto which they relate. Dividend Equivalentsis be credite
with respect to the Target Award of Performancet®Jitom the Date of Grant until the payment datand to the
extent that the underlying Performance Units arieiied, all related Dividend Equivalents shallcakse forfeited.

(b)  While the Performance Units are outstanding, then@any will keep records in a bookkeeping accour
the Participant. On each payment date for a diddgend by UGI on its common stock, the Companylgretit to the
Participant’s account an amount equal to the DimidEquivalents associated with the Target AwarBerformance
Units held by the Participant on the record datetie dividend. No interest will be credited to auch account.

(c) The target amount of Dividend Equivalents (100%hefDividend Equivalents credited to the Partictan
account) will be earned if UGI's TSR rank is at 8t#h TSR rank for the measurement period. Thedizaht can earn
up to 200% of the target amount of Dividend Equewds if UGI’s TSR rank exceeds the 50th TSR ran&peding to
the schedule in Section 2 above. Except as desciib8ection 3(b) above, if the Participant’s enyptent




or service with the Company terminates before Déazr31, 2012, all Dividend Equivalents will be feitéd.

(d) Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash at thensaime as the underlying Performance Units ard, pai
after the Committee determines that the conditiongayment have been met. Notwithstanding anythmrigis Grant
Letter to the contrary, the Participant may notraedividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000rdpény calendar
year under all grants under the Plan.

7. Withholding. The Participant shall be required to pay to tben@any, or make other arrangements satisfactory |
the Company to provide for the payment of, any faeljestate, local or other taxes that the Compamgquired to
withhold with respect to the payments under thiarGt etter.

8. Change of Contrallf a Change of Control (as defined in the Plasgurs during the measurement period, the
outstanding Performance Units and Dividend Equivalshall be paid in cash in an amount equal tgteater of (i)
the Target Award amount or (ii) the award amouat thould be paid as if the measurement period enddtle date of
the Change of Control, based on the Company’s aehient of the performance goals as of the datkeoChange of
Control, as determined by the Committee. If a farPa@rticipant is entitled to receive a prorated raiar the
measurement period pursuant to Section 3(b) altbeegward will be the prorated portion of the antalescribed in
the preceding sentence. The Performance Units andddd Equivalents shall be paid on the closintg ad the
Change of Control.

9. Definitions. For purposes of this Grant Letter, the followtagns will have the meanings set forth below:
(@) “Company” means UGI and its Subsidiaries (as defined in tae)P

(b) *“ Disability” means a long-term disability as defined in therany’s long-term disability plan
applicable to the Participant.

(c) “Dividend Equivalent’means an amount determined by multiplying the nurobshares of UGI commc
stock subject to the target award of PerformandésUhy the per-share cash dividend, or the peresfaar market value
of any dividend in consideration other than casigl ppy UGI on its common stock.

(d) “Employed by, or provide service to, the Compasiall mean employment or service as an employee
director of the Company.

(e) “Performance Unit” means a hypothetical unit that represents the \&floae share of UGI common
stock.

(H * Retirement means the Participant’s retirement under therBetent Income Plan for Employees of UG
Utilities, Inc., if the Participant is covered Wyat Retirement Income




Plan. “Retirement” for other Company employees nsgammination of employment after attaining agevis ten or
more years of service with the Company.

(g) “Severance Plan'means any severance plan maintained by the Contpanhis applicable to the
Participant.

10. Grant Subject to Plan Provisions and Company Rslici

(@) This grant is made pursuant to the Plan and them3and Conditions established by the Committee with
respect to the Plan, both of which are incorporatein by reference, and in all respects shalhtagpreted in
accordance with the Plan. The grant and paymeRedbrmance Units and Dividend Equivalents areesuilip
interpretations, regulations and determinationseaning the Plan established from time to timehHgyCommittee in
accordance with the provisions of the Plan, inalgdibut not limited to, provisions pertaining tpttie registration,
qualification or listing of the Shares, (ii) chasge capitalization of the Company and (iii) othegquirements of
applicable law. The Committee shall have the aithty interpret and construe the grant pursuariéoterms of the
Plan, and its decisions shall be conclusive asyogaiestions arising hereunder.

(b) All Shares issued pursuant to this Performance ghamt shall be subject to the UGI Corporation stoc
Ownership Policy. This Performance Unit grant athhares issued pursuant to this Performance dgaitt shall be
subject to any applicable clawback and other pedicmplemented by the Board of Directors of UGlinasffect from
time to time.

11. No Employment or Other RightsThe grant of Performance Units shall not confasruthe Participant any right
to be retained by or in the employ or service ef@ompany and shall not interfere in any way whih right of the
Company to terminate the Participant’'s employmersieovice at any time. The right of the Compantetminate at
will the Participant’s employment or service at aimye for any reason is specifically reserved.

12. No Shareholder RightsNeither the Participant, nor any person entittedxercise the Participant’s rights in the
event of the Participant’s death, shall have anyefrights and privileges of a shareholder wipezt to the Shares
related to the Performance Units, unless and cettlficates for Shares have been issued to th&Rant or successc

13. Assignment and Transfer§ he rights and interests of the Participant urllisrGrant Letter may not be sold,
assigned, encumbered or otherwise transferred gxodpe event of the death of the Participantwiyor by the laws
of descent and distribution. If the Participantsdigny payments to be made under this Grant Ladtier the
Participant’s death shall be paid to the Partidigagstate. The rights and protections of the Camigeereunder shall
extend to any successors or assigns of the Conmgrahto the Company’s parents, subsidiaries, anlchtdt.

14. Applicable Law. The validity, construction, interpretation antket of this instrument shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the Conweatth of Pennsylvania, without giving effect te ttonflicts of
laws provisions thereof.




15. Notice. Any notice to UGI provided for in this instrumesttall be addressed to UGI in care of the Corporate
Secretary at UGI’'s headquarters, and any notitegdarticipant shall be addressed to such Patitigt the current
address shown on the payroll of the Company, sutd other address as the Participant may desigmtte Company
in writing. Any notice shall be delivered by hasént by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealwdlepe addressed
as stated above, registered and deposited, pgstepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by United States
Postal Service.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, UGI has caused its duly authedliofficers to execute and attest this Grant Lette
and the Participant has executed this Grant Legfegctive as of the Date of Grant.

UGI Corporation
Attest

By:

Corporate Secretary

| hereby acknowledge receipt of the Plan and then§@nd Conditions incorporated herein. | accepfrformance
Units described in this Grant Letter, and | ageebd bound by the terms of the Plan, includingTteens and
Conditions, and this Grant Letter. | hereby furtagree that all the decisions and determinatioseoCommittee shall
be final and binding on me and any other persomnigasr claiming a right under this Grant.

Participant



EXHIBIT 10.21

201113 Performance Periol

UGI CORPORATION
2004 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT LETTER

This PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT, dated April __, 201th¢ “Date of Grant”), is delivered by UGI Corpoumati
(“UGI”) to Monica Gaudiosi (the “Participant”).

RECITALS

The UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensatan (the “Plan”) provides for the grant of
performance units (“Performance Units”) with regpgecshares of common stock of UGI (“Share3he Compensatic
and Management Development Committee of the BobRdrectors of UGI (the “Committee”) has decidedgi@ant
Performance Units to the Participant.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Grant Lettetemnding to be legally bound hereby, agree asvialio

1. Grant of Performance Unit$Subiject to the terms and conditions set fortthis Grant Letter and in the Plan,
the Committee hereby grants to the Participantgetaward of Performance Units (thegéBAward”).
The Performance Units are contingently awardedvahdbe earned and payable if and to the extent the
performance goals and other conditions of the Gratter are met. The Performance Units are grantddDividend
Equivalents (as defined in Section 9).

2. Performance Goals

(&) The Participant shall earn the right to paymerthefPerformance Units if the performance goals ritssd
in subsection (b) below are met for the measurempendd, and if the Participant continues to be leygd by, or
provide service to, the Company (as defined iniSe®&) through December 31, 2013. The measureneitdis the
period beginning January 1, 2011 and ending DeceBhe2013.

(b) The Target Award level of Performance Units andid@nd Equivalents will be payable if UGI's Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) equals the median TSRoekagroup for the measurement period. The peepgs the
group of companies that comprises the Russell Middidities Index, excluding telecommunications quanies, as of
the beginning of the measurement period, as st for the attached Exhibit AIf a company is added to the Russell
Midcap Utilities Index during the measurement peyithat company is not included in the TSR cal¢oilatA company
that is included in the Russell Midcap Utilitieslax at the beginning of the measurement periodbgiltemoved from
the TSR calculation only if the company ceasexist @s a publicly traded company during the mearsent period
(including by way of a merger or similar transantio which the company is not the surviving compa@ompanies
that are designated at the beginning of the meamneperiod as telecommunications companies in the




Russell Midcap Utilities Index shall be excludednfrthe TSR calculation. The actual amount of thardvef
Performance Units may be higher or lower than they@t Award, or it may be zero, based on UGI's 8Rentile
rank relative to the companies in the Russell Madddilities Index, excluding telecommunications quanies, as
follows:

UGI's TSR Rank Percentage of Target Award Earned
(Percentile)

Highest 200%
90th 175%
75th 150%
60th 125%
50th 100%
40th 50%
less than 40th 0%

The award percentage earned will be interpolatéaden each of the measuring points.

(c) TSR shall be calculated by UGI using the compagatdturns methodology used by Bloomberg L.P. or i
successor at the time of the calculation. The spiace used for determining TSR at the beginning) thie end of the
measurement period will be the average price feRbrday period preceding the beginning of the oreasent period
(i.e., the 90-day period ending on December 310p@hd the 90-day period ending on the last dai@measurement
period (i.e., the 90-day period ending on Decen3de2013), respectively. The TSR calculation gietsct to all
dividends throughout the three-year measuremenmagaeas if they had been reinvested.

(d) The Target Award is the amount designated for 1(89th TSR rank) performance. The Participant can
earn up to 200% of the Target Award if UGI's TSRka&xceeds the 50th TSR rank, according to theytong
schedule.

(e) Atthe end of the measurement period, the Commiti#eletermine whether and to what extent the
performance goals have been met and the amouetpait with respect to the Performance Units. Exasplescribed
in Section 3 below, the Participant must be empddyg or providing service to, the Company on Delwen81, 2013 i
order for the Participant to receive payment wibpect to the Performance Units.

3. Termination of Employment or Service

(a) Except as described below, if the Participant’s legmpent or service with the Company terminates teefo
December 31, 2013, the Performance Units and a&ltiBind Equivalents credited under this Grant Lektdirbe
forfeited.

(b) If the Participant terminates employment or seraineaccount of Retirement (as defined in Sectign 9)
Disability (as defined in Section 9) or death, Braaticipant will earn a pro-rata portion of the tRgpant’s outstanding
Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents, if




the performance goals and the requirements of3hast Letter are met. The prorated portion willdetermined as the
amount that would otherwise be paid after the drii@dmeasurement period, based on achievemehegddrformance
goals, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator dfieh is the number of calendar years during thesonesment period |
which the Participant has been employed by, origeal/service to, the Company and the denominatahidh is three
For purposes of the proration calculation, therodde year in which the Participant’s terminatioreofployment or
service on account of Retirement, Disability, oattheoccurs will be counted as a full year.

(c) Inthe event of termination of employment or segvam account of Retirement, Disability or deatle, th
prorated amount shall be paid after the end ofrthasurement period, pursuant to Section 5 below.

4. Coordination with Severance PlaNotwithstanding anything in this Grant Letterthe contrary, if the Participant
receives severance benefits under a Severancalalefined in Section 9) and the terms of suclefitsirequire that
severance compensation payable under the SevePtarcee reduced by benefits payable under this Blanamount
payable to the Participant with respect to PerforceaJnits and Dividend Equivalents after the Pgudict’s terminatiol
of employment or service shall be reduced by thewarhof severance compensation paid to the Paatitipnder the
Severance Plan, as required by, and accordingettetins of, the Severance Plan.

5. Payment with Respect to Performance Unifshe Committee determines that the conditianpayment of the
Performance Units have been met, the Company gaallo the Participant, between January 1, 2014véardh 15,
2014, (i) Shares equal to the number of Performéahts to be paid according to achievement of tlidggmance
goals, up to the Target Award, provided that thenBany may withhold Shares to cover required takhatding in an
amount equal to the minimum statutory tax withheddiequirement in respect of the Performance Watsed up to
the Target Award, and (ii) cash in an amount etuéte Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plarthe number of
Shares equal to the Performance Units to be pasedass of the Target Award.

6. Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Performancéd.in

(a) Dividend Equivalents shall accrue with respectedémance Units and shall be payable subjectdo th
same performance goals and terms as the Performbnitseto which they relate. Dividend Equivalentsis be credite
with respect to the Target Award of Performancet®Jitom the Date of Grant until the payment datand to the
extent that the underlying Performance Units arieiied, all related Dividend Equivalents shalloakse forfeited.

(b)  While the Performance Units are outstanding, then@any will keep records in a bookkeeping accour
the Participant. On each payment date for a diddgend by UGI on its common stock, the Companylgretit to the
Participant’s account an amount equal to the DvidEquivalents associated with the Target AwarBaeformance
Units held by the Participant on the record dateaHe dividend. No interest will be credited to auch account.




(c) The target amount of Dividend Equivalents (100%hefDividend Equivalents credited to the Partictpan
account) will be earned if UGI's TSR rank is at 8t¢h TSR rank for the measurement period. Thedizaht can earn
up to 200% of the target amount of Dividend Equewnds if UGI's TSR rank exceeds the 50th TSR rankpeding to
the schedule in Section 2 above. Except as descinb8ection 3(b) above, if the Participant’s enyphent or service
with the Company terminates before December 313 281 Dividend Equivalents will be forfeited.

(d) Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash at thensaime as the underlying Performance Units ard, pai
after the Committee determines that the condittonsgayment have been met. Notwithstanding anytimrigis Grant
Letter to the contrary, the Participant may notraedividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000rdp&ny calendar
year under all grants under the Plan.

7. Withholding. The Participant shall be required to pay to tbenany, or make other arrangements satisfactory |
the Company to provide for the payment of, any feljestate, local or other taxes that the Compamgdquired to
withhold with respect to the payments under thiarGi etter.

8. Change of Contrallf a Change of Control (as defined in the Plasguss during the measurement period, the
outstanding Performance Units and Dividend Equivalshall be paid in cash in an amount equal tgteater of (i)
the Target Award amount or (ii) the award amouat thould be paid as if the measurement period endedtle date of
the Change of Control, based on the Company’s aehient of the performance goals as of the dateeoChange of
Control, as determined by the Committee. If a farParticipant is entitled to receive a prorated ravar the
measurement period pursuant to Section 3(b) allbgegward will be the prorated portion of the antalescribed in
the preceding sentence. The Performance Units andedd Equivalents shall be paid on the closingg dd the
Change of Control.

9. Definitions. For purposes of this Grant Letter, the followtegns will have the meanings set forth below:
(@) “Company” means UGI and its Subsidiaries (as defined in tae)P

(b) *“ Disability” means a long-term disability as defined in therany’s long-term disability plan
applicable to the Participant.

(c) “Dividend Equivalent’means an amount determined by multiplying the nurobshares of UGI commc
stock subject to the target award of PerformancésUhy the per-share cash dividend, or the peresfear market value
of any dividend in consideration other than casiigl py UGI on its common stock.

(d) “Employed by, or provide service to, the Compasiall mean employment or service as an employee
director of the Company.




(e) “Performance Unit” means a hypothetical unit that represents the \a&floae share of UGI common
stock.

(H “ Retirement means the Participant’s retirement under therBetent Income Plan for Employees of UG
Utilities, Inc., if the Participant is covered byat Retirement Income Plan. “Retirement” for otBempany employees
means termination of employment after attaining Bg&vith ten or more years of service with the Camp

(g) “Severance Plan'means any severance plan maintained by the Contpanhis applicable to the
Participant.

10. Grant Subject to Plan Provisions and Company Rdlici

(@) This grant is made pursuant to the Plan and them3and Conditions established by the Committee with
respect to the Plan, both of which are incorporat@in by reference, and in all respects shalhtagpreted in
accordance with the Plan. The grant and paymeRedbrmance Units and Dividend Equivalents areesilip
interpretations, regulations and determinationseaning the Plan established from time to timehHgyCommittee in
accordance with the provisions of the Plan, inalgdbut not limited to, provisions pertaining tpttie registration,
qualification or listing of the Shares, (ii) chasge capitalization of the Company and (iii) othegquirements of
applicable law. The Committee shall have the aithty interpret and construe the grant pursuariéoterms of the
Plan, and its decisions shall be conclusive asyogaestions arising hereunder.

(b) All Shares issued pursuant to this Performance ghamt shall be subject to the UGI Corporation stoc
Ownership Policy. This Performance Unit grant athhares issued pursuant to this Performance dgaitt shall be
subject to any applicable clawback and other pedicmplemented by the Board of Directors of UGlinasffect from
time to time.

11. No Employment or Other RightsThe grant of Performance Units shall not confasruthe Participant any right
to be retained by or in the employ or service ef@ompany and shall not interfere in any way whih right of the
Company to terminate the Participant’'s employmersieovice at any time. The right of the Compantetminate at
will the Participant’s employment or service at aimye for any reason is specifically reserved.

12. No Shareholder RightsNeither the Participant, nor any person entittedxercise the Participant’s rights in the
event of the Participant’s death, shall have anyhefrights and privileges of a shareholder wipezt to the Shares
related to the Performance Units, unless and cettlficates for Shares have been issued to th&Pant or successc

13. Assignment and Transfer§ he rights and interests of the Participant urllisrGrant Letter may not be sold,
assigned, encumbered or otherwise transferred gxodpe event of the death of the Participantwidyor by the laws
of descent and distribution. If the Participantsdigny payments to be made under this Grant Ladtier the
Participant’s death shall be paid to the Partidigagstate. The rights and protections of the Camgeereunder shall
extend to any successors or assigns of the Conmgahto the Company’s parents, subsidiaries, anlchtdt.




14. Applicable Law. The validity, construction, interpretation anéeef of this instrument shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the Conweatth of Pennsylvania, without giving effect te ttonflicts of
laws provisions thereof.

15. Notice. Any notice to UGI provided for in this instrumesttall be addressed to UGI in care of the Corporate
Secretary at UGI’'s headquarters, and any notitegdarticipant shall be addressed to such Patitigt the current
address shown on the payroll of the Company, suth other address as the Participant may desigmtte Company
in writing. Any notice shall be delivered by haseént by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealwélepe addressed
as stated above, registered and deposited, pgstepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by United States
Postal Service.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, UGI has caused its duly authedliofficers to execute and attest this Grant Lette
and the Participant has executed this Grant Legfegctive as of the Date of Grant.

UGI Corporation
Attest

By:

Corporate Secretary

| hereby acknowledge receipt of the Plan and then§@nd Conditions incorporated herein. | accepfrformance
Units described in this Grant Letter, and | ageebd bound by the terms of the Plan, includingTteens and
Conditions, and this Grant Letter. | hereby furtagree that all the decisions and determinatioseoCommittee shall
be final and binding on me and any other persoinigasr claiming a right under this grant.

Participant




EXHIBIT A

UGI CORPORATION
PERFORMANCE UNIT PEER GROUP

RUSSELL MIDCAP UTILITIES

(EXCLUDING TELECOMS)
as of 1/1/2011

A-1




AES Corp. (AES)
AGL Resources (AGL)
Allegheny Energy (AYE)
Alliant Energy (LNT)
Ameren Corporation (AEE)
American Water Works (AWK)
Aqua America Inc. (WTR)
Atmos Energy (ATO)
Calpine Corp. (CPN)
Centerpoint Energy (CNP)
CMS Energy Corp. (CMS)
Consolidated Edison Inc. (ED)
Constellation Energy (CEG)
DPL Inc. (DPL)

DTE Energy Co. (DTE)
Edison International (EIX)
Energen Corp. (EGN)
FirstEnergy Corp. (FE)
Genon Energy Inc. (GEN)
Great Plains Energy (GXP)
Hawaiian Electric (HE)
Integrys Energy (TEG)
ITC Holdings Corp. (ITC)

MDU Resource Group (MDU)
National Fuel Gas Co. (NFG)
NiSource Inc. (NI)
Northeast Utilities (NU)
NRG Energy (NRG)
NStar (NST)



NV Energy Inc. (NVE)
OGE Energy Corp. (OGE)
ONEOK Inc. (OKE)
Ormat Technologies (ORA)
Pepco Holdings (POM)
Pinnacle West Capital Corp. (PNW)
PPL Corporation (PPL)
Progress Energy (PGN)
Questar Corp. (STR)
Scana Corp. (SCG)
Sempra Energy (SRE)
Teco Energy Inc. (TE)
UGI Corporation (UGI)
Vectren Corp. (VVC)
Westar Energy, Inc. (WR)
Wisconsin Energy (WEC)
XCEL Energy Inc. (XEL)

A-1



EXHIBIT 10.29

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC.
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT
FOR
JERRY E. SHERIDAN

Jerry E. Sheridan is President and Chief Exec@iffieer of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., the generalmparbf AmeriGas
Partners, L.P. Mr. Sheridan has an oral compemsati@ngement with AmeriGas Propane, Inc. whichuohes the
following:

Mr. Sheridan:

1. is entitled to an annual base salary, which fardiyear 2012 is $450,000, prorated for the
number of months Mr. Sheridan served as PresidehChief Executive Officer (Mr.
Sheridan was promoted in March 2012);

2. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s annualisgrian, with bonus payable based on the
achievement of pre-approved financial and/or bissireerformance objectives that support
business plans and strategic goals;

3. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s long-temmpensation plans, the 2010 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, with annual awards as determinethéyCompensation/Pension Committee,
and UGI Corporation’s 2004 Omnibus Equity CompeansaPlan, with annual awards as
determined by the UGI Corporation Compensationiadagement Development
Committee;

4. will receive cash benefits upon termination of émgployment without cause following a
change in control of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., Amas®artners, L.P. or UGI Corporation;
and

5. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s benetinp| including the AmeriGas Propane, Inc.
Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and theri&as Propane, Inc. Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan.

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC.
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT
FOR
JOHN S. IANNARELLI

John S. lannarelli is Vice PresidenFwance and Chief Financial Officer of AmeriGasgaoe, Inc., the general part
of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. Mr. lannarelli has as oompensation arrangement with AmeriGas Prodanewhich
includes the following:

Mr. lannarelli:

1. is entitled to an annual base salary, which fardiyear 2012 is $243,620;

2. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s annualisgrian, with bonus payable based on the
achievement of pre-approved financial and/or bissireerformance objectives that support
business plans and strategic goals;



3. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s long-teompensation plans, the 2010 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, with annual awards as determinethbyCompensation/Pension Committee,
and UGI Corporation’s 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensa®lan, with annual awards as
determined by the UGI Corporation Compensationiadagement Development

Committee;

4. will receive cash benefits upon termination of éngployment without cause following a
change in control of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., Amag®artners, L.P. or UGI Corporation;
and

5. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s beneéinp| including the AmeriGas Propane, Inc.

Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and theri®as Propane, Inc. Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan.

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC.
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT
FOR
R. PAUL GRADY

R. Paul Grady is Vice President and Chief Operdbfftgcer of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., the generatrparof
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. Mr. Grady has an oral corsgkon arrangement with AmeriGas Propane, Incclvimcludes
the following:

Mr. Grady:

1. is entitled to an annual base salary, which fardiyear 2012 is $400,000, prorated based on
his commencement of employment with AmeriGas Prephrt.;

2. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s annualisgsian, with bonus payable based on the
achievement of pre-approved financial and/or bissimeerformance objectives that support
business plans and strategic goals;

3. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s long-temmpensation plans, the 2010 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, with annual awards as determinethéyCompensation/Pension Committee,
and UGI Corporation’s 2004 Omnibus Equity CompeansaPlan, with annual awards as
determined by the UGI Corporation Compensationiadagement Development
Committee;

4. will receive cash benefits upon termination of éngployment without cause following a
change in control of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., Amas®artners, L.P. or UGI Corporation;
and

5. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.’s benetinp| including the AmeriGas Propane, Inc.
Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and theri&as Propane, Inc. Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan.



EXHIBIT 10.31

SUMMARY OF DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
OF
AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC. (the General Partner of Ai@as Partners, L.P.)

The table below shows the components of directorpamsation effective October 1, 2012. A directopwshan office
or employee of the Registrant or its subsidiareesat compensated for service on the Board of irecor on an
Committee of the Board. With respect to Mr. Greegh#ollowing his retirement as Chief Executive 08 of UG!
Corporation in the spring of 2013, Mr. Greenberdl serve as Norkxecutive Chairman of the Board of Director:
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. In consideration for Mr. €tgerg’s service as Ndexecutive Chairman, AmeriGas Props
Inc.’s Board of Directors approved an annual retgipro-rated for the number of months Mr. Greeglserves as Non-
Executive Chairman during Fiscal 2013, of $200,000.

DIRECTORS' COMPENSATION

CASH EQUITY
COMPONENT COMPONENT

Annual retainer $65,000 1,100 Phantom U
(Representing
AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
Common Units to be

awarded January 1, 2013).

Additional annual retainer for

Audit Committee Members

(other than the Chairperson) $20,000

Additional retainer for
Audit Committee Chairperson  $25,000

Additional retainer for $7,500
Corporate Governance
Committee Chairperson

Additional retainer for $7,500

Compensation/Pension
Committee Chairperson

Additional retainer for $15,000
Presiding Director

The Directors are also offered employee rates opare purchases.



SUBSIDIARIES OF UGI CORPORATION

SUBSIDIARY
AMERIGAS, INC.
AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC.
AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
AmeriGas Finance Corp.
AmeriGas Eagle Finance Corp.
AP Eagle Finance Corp.
AmeriGas Finance LLC
AmeriGas Propane, L.P.
AmeriGas Propane Parts & Service, Inc.
AmeriGas Eagle Holdings, Inc. (CP Holdings, Inc.)
AmerE Holdings, Inc.
Active Propane of Wisconsin, LLC
Heritage Operating GP, LLC
Heritage Operating, L.P.
Heritage Service Corporation
Heritage Energy Resources, LLC
M-P Oils, Ltd.
902 Gilbert Street, LLC
Metro Lawn, LLC
AmeriGas Technology Group, Inc.
Petrolane Incorporated
FOUR FLAGS DRILLING COMPANY, INC.
ASHTOLA PRODUCTION COMPANY
UGI ETHANOL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NEWBURY HOLDING COMPANY
UGI ENTERPRISES, INC.
EASTFIELD INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.
EUROGAS HOLDINGS, INC.
UGI BLACK SEA ENTERPRISES, INC.
UGI CHINA, INC.

UGI ENERGY SERVICES, INC. (d/b/a GASMARK and d/b/a

POWERMARK)
Energy Services Funding Corporation
Hellertown Pipeline Company
Homestead Holding Company
UGI Asset Management, Inc.
UGI Development Company

UGID Holding Company

UGI Hunlock Development Company
UGI LNG, Inc.

OWNERSHIP

100%
100%

1)

()
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

©)
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

EXHIBIT 21

STATE OF
INCORPORATION

PA
PA
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
PA
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
OK
CANADA
NC
DE
PA
PA
PA
PA
PA
DE
PA
DE
DE
PA
DE

PA
DE
PA
DE
DE
PA
DE
PA
DE




SUBSIDIARY
UGI Storage Company
UGI HVAC ENTERPRISES, INC.
UGI INTERNATIONAL (CHINA), INC.
UGI INTERNATIONAL (ROMANIA), INC.
UGI INTERNATIONAL ENTERPRISES, INC.
UGI Europe, Inc.
UGI International Holdings BV
Flaga GmbH (4)
ECO Energietechnik GmbH
Kosan Gas A/S
Kosan Gas Sverige AB
Kosan Gas Norge A/S
Kosan Gas Finland Oy
Kosan Gas Denmark A/S
Flaga Suisse GmbH
Zentraleuropa LPG Holding GmbH
AmeriGas Polska Sp. z.0.0.
Gaz Centrum Sp. z.0.0.
Flaga GPL Romania S.r.l.
Flaga LPG SA
Flaga s.r.o.
LPG Technik spol s.r.o.
Propantrans s.r.o.
Flaga spol s.r.o.

ECO Energy Service spol s.r.o.

Flaga Gaz Magyarorszag Kift.
AmeriGas Polska Sp. z.0.0.
Gaz Centrum Sp. z.0.0.
UGI Bordeaux Holding
Antargaz Belgium N.V.
Antargaz Nederland B.V.
Antargaz Luxembourg S.A.
Gasbottling N.V.
Energy Sud S.A.
AGZ Holding
Antargaz (8)
Aquitaine Rhone Gaz
Gaz Energie Distribution
Norgal Gie
Rhone Gaz
Sigap Ouest
Sobegal
United Gas Belgium (9)
UGI Midlands Limited

OWNERSHIP

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
77.99%
100%
100%
50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
(5)
100%
100%
(6)
(7)
100%
100%
100%
100%
52.66%
50.62%
66%
72%
99%
100%

STATE OF
INCORPORATION

PA
DE
DE
PA
PA
DE
NETHERLANDS
AUSTRIA
AUSTRIA
DENMARK
SWEDEN
NORWAY
FINLAND
DENMARK
SWITZERLAND
AUSTRIA
POLAND
POLAND
ROMANIA
ROMANIA
CZECH REPUBLIC
CZECH REPUBLIC
CZECH REPUBLIC
SLOVAKIA
SLOVAKIA
HUNGARY
POLAND
POLAND
FRANCE
BELGIUM
NETHERLANDS
LUXEMBOURG
BELGIUM
BELGIUM
FRANCE
FRANCE
FRANCE
FRANCE
FRANCE
FRANCE
FRANCE
FRANCE
BELGIUM
UNITED KINGDOM




STATE OF

SUBSIDIARY OWNERSHIP INCORPORATION

AvantiGas Limited 100% UNITED KINGDOM

Amazon Gas Limited 100% UNITED KINGDOM
UGI ROMANIA, INC. 100% PA
UGI PROPERTIES, INC. 100% PA
UGI UTILITIES, INC. 100% PA
UGI ENERGY VENTURES, INC. 100% DE
UGI PENN NATURAL GAS, INC. 100% PA
UGI Penn HVAC Services, Inc. 100% PA
UGI CENTRAL PENN GAS, INC. 100% PA
UGI Central Penn Propane, LLC 100% PA
UGI Petroleum Products of Delaware, Inc. 100% DE
UGI STONERIDGE I, LLC 100% DE
UGI Stoneridge Il, LLC 100% DE
UNITED VALLEY INSURANCE COMPANY 100% VT

(1) AmeriGas Propane, Inc. and its subsidiary, Petrolaa Incorporated, hold a combined 26% (approx.) inteest in AmeriGas Partners
L.P.

(2) 1.0101% owned by AmeriGas Propane, Inc. the Generd&artner; and 98.9899% owned by AmeriGas Partnersl..P., the Limited
Partner.

(3) 99.999% owned by AmeriGas Propane, L.P. and .@% owned by Heritage Operating GP, LLC.
(4) A nominal share is held by Reinhard Schoédlbaue

(5) .01% owned by UGI Bordeaux Holding and 99.99% wned by AGZ Holding.

(6) 99.5% owned by Antargaz Belgium N.V. and .5% oned by Antargaz Luxembourg S.A.

(7) 90% owned by Antargaz Belgium N.V. and 10% owngby Antargaz Luxembourg S.A.

(8) A nominal share is held by each of Lon R. Gredrerg, Donald J. Groth, Matthew A. Woodward, Eric Naddeo and HC Conseil EURI
( Mr. Hervé Couffin).

(9) The remaining 1% is owned by UGI Bordeaux Holdigs, Inc.



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéendbe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N&-B37098) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333
167099, 333-22305, 333-49080, 333-104938, 333-12,84dd 333-142010) of UGI Corporation of our reated November 20, 2012 relat

to the financial statements, financial statemehedales and the effectiveness of internal contver dinancial reporting, which appears in
Form 1G-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, PA
November 20, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Lon R. Greenberg, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F UGI Corporation

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period

covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdore designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material waeakses in the design or operation of internal ocbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisagttifole in the registrar®’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 20, 2012

/sl Lon R. Greenberg
Lon R. Greenberg

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
UGI Corporation




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Kirk R. Oliver, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKi6F UGI Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period

covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdore designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material waeakses in the design or operation of internal ocbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisagttifole in the registrar®’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 20, 2012
/sl Kirk R. Oliver

Kirk R. Oliver
Chief Financial Officer of UGI Corporation




EXHIBIT 32
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chef Financial Officer
Relating to a Periodic Report Containing FinancialStatements

I, Lon R. Greenberg, Chief Executive Officer, an&irk R. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer, of UGI @poration, a Pennsylvania
corporation (the “Company”), hereby certify thatouar knowledge:

(1) The Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for theqoeended September 30, 2012 (the “Form 10-Kyfabmplies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-K fairlsepents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company.

X X Xk
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
/sl Lon R. Greenberg /sl Kirk R. Oliver
Lon R. Greenberg Kirk R. Oliver

Date: November 20, 2012 Date: November 20, 2012



